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A 2 PART 1 4€“ FINANCIAL INFORMATIONItem 1 - Financial StatementsREADING INTERNATIONAL, INC.CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share
information) SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31, 2024 2023ASSETS (unaudited) Current Assets: Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,083 $ 12,906Restricted cash 1,400 2,535Receivables 5,435
7,561Inventories 1,705 1,648Prepaid and other current assets 2,528 2,881Land and property held for sale 37,895 11,179Total current assets 59,046 38,7100perating property, net 225,065
262,4170perating lease right-of-use assets 170,549 181,542Investment and development property, net &€” 8,789Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 4,294 4,756Goodwill 25,715
25,535Intangible assets, net 1,841 2,038Deferred tax asset, net 238 2990ther assets 8,938 8,965Total assets $ 495,686 $ 533,051LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY Current
Liabilities: Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 44,636 $ 43,828Film rent payable 3,601 6,038Debt - current portion 52,624 34,484Subordinated debt - current portion &€” 586Taxes
payable - current 177 1,376Deferred revenue 9,728 10,9930perating lease liabilities - current portion 22,182 23,0470ther current liabilities 6,588 6,731Total current liabilities 139,536
127,083Debt - long-term portion 134,070 146,605Derivative financial instruments - non-current portion 269 4€”Subordinated debt, net 27,339 27,172Noncurrent tax liabilities 6,772
6,5860perating lease liabilities - non-current portion 170,127 180,8980ther liabilities 12,967 11,711Total liabilities $ 491,080 $ 500,055Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) A



A Stockholdersa€™ equity: Class A non-voting common shares, par value $0.01, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 33,681,705 issued and 20,745,594 outstanding at September 30, 2024 and
33,602,627 issued and 20,666,516 outstanding at December 31, 2023 238 237Class B voting common shares, par value $0.01, 20,000,000 shares authorized and 1,680,590 issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 17 17Nonvoting preferred shares, par value $0.01, 12,000 shares authorized and no issued or outstanding shares at September 30,
2024 and December 31, 2023 4€” 4€”Additional paid-in capital 157,132 155,402Retained earnings/(deficits) (108,974) (79,489)Treasury shares (40,407) (40,407)Accumulated other
comprehensive income (2,831) (2,673)Total Reading International, Inc. stockholdersa€™ equity 5,175 33,087Noncontrolling interests (569) (91)Total stockholdersa€™ equity 4,606 32,996Total
liabilities and stockholdersa€™ equity $ 495,686 $ 533,051 See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements. A 3 READING INTERNATIONAL,
INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited; U.S. dollars in thousands, except per share data) Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30, 2024 2023
2024 2023Revenue Cinema $ 56,357 $ 62,688 $ 140,570 $ 165,731Real estate 3,733 3,875 11,381 11,694 Total revenue 60,090 66,563 151,951 177,425Costs and expenses Cinema (49,371)
(53,278) (129,509) (146,297)Real estate (2,106) (2,281) (6,801) (6,600)Depreciation and amortization (3,926) (4,580) (12,142) (13,908)General and administrative (4,933) (5,405) (15,626)
(15,693)Total costs and expenses (60,336) (65,544) (164,078) (182,498)Operating income (loss) (246) 1,019 (12,127) (5,073)Interest expense, net (5,229) (5,072) (15,766) (14,063)Gain (loss) on
sale of assets (208) 4€” (1,324) a€”Other income (expense) (715) 267 (592) 356Income (loss) before income tax expense and equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures (6,398) (3,786)
(29,809) (18,780)Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 71 217 164 443Income (loss) before income taxes (6,327) (3,569) (29,645) (18,337)Income tax benefit (expense) (700) (896)
(321) (313)Net income (loss) $ (7,027) $ (4,465) $ (29,966) $ (18,650)Less: net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests (111) (65) (481) (361)Net income (loss) attributable to
Reading International, Inc. $ (6,916) $ (4,400) $ (29,485) $ (18,289)Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $
(0.82)Weighted average number of shares outstandinga€ “basic 22,426,184 22,273,423 22,394,385 22,208,757Weighted average number of shares outstandinga€“diluted 23,202,192 23,513,715
23,265,575 23,449,049 See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.A A 4 READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME(Unaudited; U.S. dollars in thousands) Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30, 2024 2023 2024 2023Net income (loss) $ (7,027) $
(4,465) $ (29,966) $ (18,650)Foreign currency translation gain (loss) 1,620 (1,686) (44) (3,038)Gain (loss) on cash flow hedges (171) (26) (269) (813)Other 50 52 158 156Comprehensive income
(loss) (5,528) (6,125) (30,121) (22,345)Less: net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests (111) (65) (481) (361)Less: comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interests 5 (3) 3 (5)Comprehensive income (loss) $ (5,422) (6,057) $ (29,643) $ (21,979) See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.A 4€Z A 5 READING
INTERNATIONAL, INC.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited; U.S. dollars in thousands) Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 20230perating Activities Net
income (loss) $ (29,966) $ (18,650)Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures (164)
(443)Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures 695 468(Gain) loss recognized on foreign currency transactions (83) &€”(Gain) loss on sale of assets 1,324 4€”Amortization of
operating leases 15,500 14,871Amortization of finance leases 31 23Change in operating lease liabilities (16,212) (15,998)Purchase of derivative instruments 4€” &€”Change in net deferred tax
assets 71 (98)Depreciation and amortization 12,142 13,9080ther amortization 1,107 1,157Stock based compensation expense 1,737 1,364Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables 2,107 325Prepaid and other assets (26) (483)Payments for accrued pension (513) (513)Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,574 932Film rent payable (2,420) (2,127)Taxes
payable (1,165) 2,155Deferred revenue and other liabilities 443 (3,257)Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (11,818) (6,366)Investing Activities Purchases of and additions to
operating and investment properties (4,571) (6,191)Contributions to unconsolidated joint ventures (30) a&€”Proceeds from sale of assets 9,590 &€”Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 4,989 (6,191)Financing Activities Repayment of borrowings (13,381) (6,862)Repayment of finance lease principal (30) (25)Proceeds from borrowings 16,027 3,839Capitalized
borrowing costs (483) (594)(Cash paid) proceeds from the settlement of employee share transactions (6) (244)Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,127 (3,886)Effect of exchange
rate on cash and restricted cash 744 (897)Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (3,958) (17,340)Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at the
beginning of the period 15,441 34,979Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at the end of the period $ 11,483 $ 17,639 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash consists of: Cash
and cash equivalents $ 10,083 $ 11,925Restricted cash 1,400 5,714 $ 11,483 $ 17,639 Supplemental Disclosures Interest paid $ 14,427 $ 13,826Income taxes (refunded) paid 1,638 (697)Non-
Cash Transactions Additions to operating and investing properties through accrued expenses 940 2,557 See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.A A 6
READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)A Note 1 4€“ Description of Business and Segment Reporting Our CompanyReading
International, Inc., a Nevada corporation (4€ceRDI&€ and collectively with our consolidated subsidiaries and corporate predecessors, the 4€ceCompany,a€ a€ceReading,a€ and a€cewe,a€
a€ceus,a€ or a€ceoura€) was incorporated in 1999. Our businesses, owned and operated through our various subsidiaries, consist primarily of:i,-the development, ownership, and operation of
cinemas in the United States, Australia, and New Zealand; andi,-the development, ownership, operation and/or rental of retail, commercial and live venue real estate assets in Australia, New
Zealand, and the United States. Business SegmentsReported below are the operating segments of our Company for which separate financial information is available and evaluated regularly by
the Chief Executive Officer, the chief operating decision-maker of our Company. As part of our real estate activities, we hold undeveloped land in urban and suburban centers in the United
States and New Zealand. The table below summarizes the results of operations for each of our business segments for the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, and 2023,
respectively. Operating expense includes costs associated with the day-to-day operations of the cinemas and the management of rental properties, including our live theatre assets. Quarter
Ended Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023Revenue: Cinema exhibition $ 56,357 $ 62,687 $ 140,570 $ 165,731 Real estate 4,898
5,056 14,844 15,338 Inter-segment elimination (1,165) (1,181) (3,463) (3,644) $ 60,090 $ 66,562 $ 151,951 $ 177,425Segment operating income (loss): Cinema exhibition $ 2,309 $ 4,395 $
(3,128) $ 4,256 Real estate 1,396 920 3,234 3,212 $ 3,705 $ 5,315 $ 106 $ 7,468 A reconciliation of segment operating income to income before income taxes is as follows: Quarter Ended Nine
Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023Segment operating income (loss) $ 3,705 $ 5,315 $ 106 $ 7,468Unallocated corporate expense
Depreciation and amortization expense (106) (172) (305) (527) General and administrative expense (3,845) (4,124) (11,928) (12,014) Interest expense, net (5,229) (5,072) (15,766)
(14,063)Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 71 217 164 443Gain (loss) on sale of assets (208) a€” (1,324) a€”Other income (expense) (715) 267 (592) 356Income (loss) before
income tax expense $ (6,327) $ (3,569) $ (29,645) $ (18,337)A a€Z A 7 Note 2 a€“ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Basis of ConsolidationThe accompanying consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of our Companya€™s wholly-owned subsidiaries as well as majority-owned subsidiaries that our Company controls and should be read in conjunction with our
Companya€™s Annual Report on Form 10-K as of and for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023 (4€ce2023 Form 10-Ka€). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated on consolidation. These consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (4€0eU.S.
GAAPa€) for interim reporting with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange Commission (a€eSECa€). As such, they do not include all
information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. We believe that we have included all normal and recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of
the results for the interim period. Operating results for the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year
ending DecemberA 31, 2024. Use of EstimatesThe preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto. Significant estimates include (i) projections we make regarding the recoverability and impairment of
our assets (including goodwill and intangibles), (ii) valuations of our derivative instruments, (iii) recoverability of our deferred tax assets, (iv) estimation of breakage and redemption experience
rates, which drive how we recognize breakage on our gift card and gift certificates, and revenue from our customer loyalty program, and (v) estimation of our Incremental Borrowing Rate
(4€eIBRA€) as relates to the valuation of our right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Actual results may differ from those estimates. A 8 Note 3 4€“ Liquidity and Impairment Assessment Going
Concern We continue to evaluate the going concern assertion required by ASC 205-40 Going Concern as it relates to our Company. The evaluation of the going concern assertion involves firstly
considering whether it is probable that our Company has sufficient resources, as at the issue date of the financial statements, to meet its obligations as they fall due for twelve months following
the issue date. Should it be probable that there are not sufficient resources, we must determine whether it is probable that our plans will mitigate the consequential going concern substantial
doubt. Our evaluation is informed by current liquidity positions, debt obligations, our beliefs about the recovery of the global cinema industry, cash flow estimates, known capital and other
expenditure requirements and commitments and our current business plan and strategies. Our Companya€™s business plan - two businesses (real estate and cinema) in three countries
(Australia, New Zealand and the U.S.) - has served us well since the onset of COVID-19 and is key to managementa€™s overall evaluation of ASC 205-40 Going Concern. As of the end of the
third quarter, 2024, we have $52.6 million of debt due in twelve months. We have cash of $10.1 million and negative working capital of $80.5 million. This net negative working capital position
includes land and property held for sale of $37.9 million (based on book as opposed to fair market value). In order to alleviate doubt that our Company will be able to generate sufficient cash
flows for the coming twelve months, these loans need to be refinanced and our revenues and net income need to increase through improved operations and asset monetization. In April 2024, we
exercised our first option to extend our Union Square financing facility, extending the maturity date of that loan ($47.1A million at September 30, 2024) to MayA 6, 2025. We also obtained an
extension of our NAB facility ($69.3A million at September 30, 2024), extending the maturity date of that loan to JulyA 31, 2026. This extension also included a bridge loan in the amount of
$13.9A million, maturing on MarchA 31, 2025, subject to prepayment obligations from the net sales proceeds of certain assets. On August 1, 2024, we extended the maturity of our Santander
loan ($7.7 million) to June 1, 2025. In October 2024 we obtained two six month options to extend our Cinemas 123 loan. We believe that we will be able to reach mutually acceptable terms with
respect to our Westpac ($12.0A million, due first quarter of 2025) credit facility. We continue to work towards monetizing the assets held on our balance sheet as being held for sale. We believe
that the global cinema industry will continue to improve in the last half of 2024 and 2025. This belief underpins our forecasts and cash flow projections. Our forecasts rely upon, among other
things, the market reception to current films such as Gladiator II, Wicked, Moana 2, Mufasa: The Lion King and Sonic the Hedgehog 3, the current industry movie release schedule, which
demonstrates an increased number of movies to be released from the major studios and other distributors and an improvement in the quality of the movie titles, and the publica€™s
demonstrable desire to attend movies in a theatrical environment. These named factors are both out of Managementa€™ s control and are material, individually and in the aggregate, to the
realization of Managementa€™s forecasts and expectations. In the event that our forecasts and cash flow estimates, and our reasonable refinancing expectations, do not come to fruition to the
extent needed to provide sufficient funding, we are willing and able to pursue additional asset monetizations. Since 2021, we have demonstrated our ability to complete such real estate asset
monetizations. In conclusion, as of the date of issuance of these financial statements, based on our evaluation of ASC 205-40 Going Concern and the current conditions and events, considered in
the aggregate, and our various plans for enhancing liquidity and the extent to which those plans are progressing, we conclude that our plans are probable of being implemented and that they
alleviate the substantial doubt about our Companya€™s ability to continue as a going concern. Impairment Considerations Our Company considers that the events and factors described above
constitute impairment indicators under ASC 360 Property, Plant and Equipment. At DecemberA 31, 2023, our Company performed a quantitative recoverability test of the carrying values of all
its asset groups. Our Company estimated the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of these asset groups and found that no impairment charge was necessary. The
financial performance of our cinemas has been improving, despite the challenges described above, and particularly the ongoing impacts of the WGA and SAG strikes on the first nine months of
2024. This improved performance at an asset group level, and the impact of this performance on our impairment modelling, resulted in no impairment charges being recognized for the first nine
months of 2024. Actual performance against our forecasts is dependent on several variables and conditions, many of which are subject to the uncertainties associated with among other things,
the factors presented above, and as a result, actual results may materially differ from managementa€™s estimates. A 9 Our Company also considers that the events and factors described above
continue to constitute impairment indicators under ASC 350 Intangibles &€ Goodwill and Other. Our Company performed a quantitative goodwill impairment test and determined that our
goodwill was not impaired as of DecemberA 31, 2023. The test was performed at a reporting unit level by comparing each reporting unit4€™s carrying value, including goodwill, to its fair value.
The fair value of each reporting unit was assessed using a discounted cash flow model based on the budgetary revisions performed by management in response to COVID-19 and the developing
market conditions. Given the continuing improvements in trading conditions, taking into account the actual and expecting impacts of the WGA and SAG strikes, no impairment charges were
recorded in the first nine months of 2024. Actual performance against our forecasts is dependent on several variables and conditions, including among other things, the factors presented above,
and as a result, actual results may materially differ from managementa€™s estimates.A Note 4 4€“ Operations in Foreign Currency We have significant assets in Australia and New Zealand.
Historically, we have conducted our Australian and New Zealand operations (collectively a€ceforeign operationsa€) on a self-funding basis, where we use cash flows generated by our foreign
operations to pay for the expenses of those foreign operations. However, in recent periods, cash flows from our overseas operations have been used to cover our domestic general and
administrative costs, interest expense, and loss from our domestic cinema operations. Our Australian and New Zealand assets and liabilities are translated from their functional currencies of
Australian dollar (a€eAU$a€) and New Zealand dollar (4€eNZ$4a€), respectively, to the U.S. dollar based on the exchange rate as of SeptemberA 30, 2024. The carrying value of the assets and
liabilities of our foreign operations fluctuates as a result of changes in the exchange rates between the functional currencies of the foreign operations and the U.S. dollar. The translation
adjustments are accumulated in the Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We take a global view of our financial resources and are flexible in making
use of resources from one jurisdiction in other jurisdictions. Presented in the table below are the currency exchange rates for Australia and New Zealand: Foreign Currency / USD As of
anda€Zfor thea€Zquartera€Zended As of andfor thenine months ended As of anda€Zfor thea€Ztwelve monthsa€Zended As of anda€Zfor thea€Zquartera€Zended As of andfor thenine months
ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 December 31, 2023 September 30, 2023Spot Rate Australian Dollar0.6934 0.6828 0.6451New Zealand Dollar0.6363 0.6340 0.6013Average Rate Australian
Dollar0.6700 0.6621 0.6647 0.6551 0.6691New Zealand Dollar0.6117 0.6098 0.6145 0.6053 0.6179A Note 5 4€“ Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share (4€ceEPSa€) is calculated by
dividing the net income attributable to our Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net income
attributable to our Company by the weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares outstanding during the period and is calculated using the treasury stock method for
equity-based compensation awards. A 10 The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted EPS and a reconciliation of the weighted average number of common and common
equivalent shares outstanding: Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemherA 30,(Dollars in thousands, except share data) 2024 2023 2024 2023Numerator: Net income (loss)
attributable to Reading International, Inc. $ (6,916) $ (4,400) $ (29,485) $ (18,289)Denominator: Weighted average number of common stock 4€“ basic 22,426,184 22,273,423 22,394,385
22,208,757Weighted average dilutive impact of awards 776,008 1,240,292 871,190 1,240,292Weighted average number of common stock &€“ diluted 23,202,192 23,513,715 23,265,575
23,449,049Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)Awards excluded from diluted earnings (loss) per
share 207,657 205,122 207,657 205,122 Our weighted average number of common stock - basic increased, primarily as a result of the vesting of restricted stock units. We did not repurchase
any shares of Class A Common Stock during the first nine months of 2024 or 2023. 207,657 shares issuable under stock options and restricted stock units were excluded from the computation
of diluted net income (loss) per share in periods when their effect was anti-dilutive; either because our Company incurred a net loss for the period, or the exercise price of the options was
greater than the average market price of the common stock during the period, or the effect was anti-dilutive as a result of applying the treasury stock method.A Note 6 4€“ Property and
Equipment Operating Property, net Property associated with our operating activities as at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, is summarized as follows: SeptemberA 30,
DecemberA 31,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023Land $ 48,826 $ 61,095Building and improvements 172,396 205,821Leasehold improvements 51,133 53,984Fixtures and equipment 152,223
155,156Construction-in-progress 1,972 4,290Total cost 426,550 480,346Less: accumulated depreciation (201,485) (217,929)Operating property, net $ 225,065 $ 262,417 Depreciation expense
for operating property was $3.9 million and $11.9A million for the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, respectively, as compared to $4.5 million and $13.8A million for the



quarter and nine months ended SepternberA 30, 2023. Investment and Development Property, net Our investment and development property as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31,
2023, is summarized below: SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023Land $ 4€” $ 3,856Construction-in- progress (including capitalized interest) 4€” 4,933Investment
and development property $ 4€” $ 8,789 A 11 Construction-in-Progress 4€“ Operating and Investment Properties Construction-in-Progress balances are included in both our operating and
development properties. The balances of our major projects along with the movements for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, are shown below:A (Dollars in thousands)
Balance,a€ZDecemberA 31,4€72023 Additions during the period Completeda€ZduringA thea€Zperiod Transferred to Held for Sale Foreigna€Zcurrencya€Ztranslation

Balance,é€ZSeptemberA 30,é€2202400urtenay Central development 6,412 &€~ a€” (6,089) (323) 4€”Cinema developments and improvements 1,658 230 (207) (60) 2 1,6230ther real estate
projects 1,153 489 (880) (422) 9 349Total $ 9,223 $ 719 $ (1,087) $ (6,571) $ (312) $ 1,972 2024 Real Estate Monetizations Between the fourth quarter of 2020 and the fourth quarter of 2023,
we classified as assets held for sale disposal groups and thereafter monetized the following real estate assets: The Auburn/Redyard Entertainment Themed Center (4€ceETCA€), Manukau (land),
Coachella (land), the Royal George Theatre, our property in Maitland, New South Wales, our Invercargill, New Zealand cinema and associated ancillary land, and our office building in Culver
City (sold in February 2024). In the second quarter of 2023, we classified our 2483 Trenton Avenue, Williamsport, Pennsylvania, property as held for sale. In the second quarter of 2024, we
further classified as held for sale our Cannon Park ETC, our Courtenay Central ETC and associated land and improvements, and our Rotorua land and improvements. A a€”disposal groupa€™
represents assets to be disposed of in a single transaction. A disposal group may represent a single asset, or multiple assets. Discussed below are those real estate transactions affecting the
presentation in our consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, and the profitability determination in our consolidated statements of income for the nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024, and 2023. Culver City, Los Angeles In May 2023, we classified our Culver City administrative building, commonly known as 5995 Sepulveda Blvd., as held for sale. Our
book value (as opposed to fair value) of the property was $10.8A million, being the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. No adjustments to the book value of the assets contained within
this disposal group were required. The disposal group consisted of land, a building and various leasehold improvements. The sale was completed on FebruaryA 23, 2024, at a gross sales price of
$10.0 million. The proceeds were used to discharge the $8.3A million first mortgage on the property. The loss on sale of this property is calculated as follows: March 31(Dollars in thousands)
2024Sales price $ 10,000Net book value (10,800)Loss on sale, gross of direct costs (800)Direct sale costs incurred (325)Loss on sale, net of direct costs $ (1,125) Disposal Groups Held for Sale
Cannon Park ETC In May 2024, we classified our Cannon Park ETC in Townsville, Queensland, Australia, as held for sale at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. The disposal group
consists of our Cannon Park City Center and Cannon Park Discount Center properties, comprising approximately 9.4-acres. The current book value (as opposed to fair value) of the property is
$19.5 million. No adjustments to the book value of the assets contained within this disposal group were required. We expect to complete the sale within 12 months. Wellington, New Zealand In
June 2024, we classified our Courtenay Central ETC in Wellington, New Zealand, as held for sale at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. The disposal group consists of our
Courtenay Central cinema and retail property, along with our Tory and Wakefield A 12 Street car parks. The current book value (as opposed to fair value) of the property is $16.5 million. No
adjustments to the book value of the assets contained within this disposal group were required. We expect to complete the sale within 12 months. Reading Cinema in Rotorua, New Zealand In
June 2024, we classified the land and improvements constituting our Rotorua cinema in Rotorua, New Zealand, as held for sale at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. The disposal
group consists of our land, cinema building and the associated improvements. The current book value (as opposed to fair value) of the property is $1.5 million. No adjustments to the book value
of the assets contained within this disposal group were required. We expect to complete the sale within 12 months. 2483 Trenton Avenue, Williamsport, Pennsylvania In June 2023, we classified
our industrial property at 2483 Trenton Avenue, Williamsport, Pennsylvania, as held for sale at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. The current book value (as opposed to fair value)
of the property is $460,000. The property is part of our historic railroad operations, consisting of land and an 18,000 square foot industrial building, and certain rail bed improvements. No
adjustments to the book value of the assets contained within this disposal group were required. We continue to hold this property as held for sale, and sales efforts continue as we work to
resolve certain easement issues. The property continues to meet the ASC 360 held for sale criteria. A Note 7 4€“ Leases In all leases, whether we are the lessor or lessee, we define lease term
as the non-cancellable term of the lease plus any renewals covered by renewal options that are reasonably certain of exercise based on our assessment of economic factors relevant to the
lessee. The non-cancellable term of the lease commences on the date the lessor makes the underlying property in the lease available to the lessee, irrespective of when lease payments begin
under the contract. As Lessee We have operating leases for certain cinemas, and finance leases for certain equipment assets. Our leases have remaining lease terms of 1 to 25 years, with
certain leases having options to extend up to a further 20 years. Lease payments for our cinema operating leases consist of fixed base rent, and for certain leases, variable lease payments
consisting of contracted percentages of revenue, changes in the relevant CPI, and/or other contracted financial metrics. The components of lease expense were as follows: Quarter Ended Nine
Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023Lease cost Finance lease cost: Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 10 $ 8 $ 31 $ 23Interest on lease
liabilities 1 4€” 4 10perating lease cost 7,585 8,076 23,723 24,287Variable lease cost 638 722 499 1,377Total lease cost $ 8,234 $ 8,806 $ 24,257 $ 25,688 Supplemental cash flow information
related to leases is as follows: Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023Cash flows relating to lease cost Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities: Operating cash flows for finance leases $ 33 $ 260perating cash flows for operating leases 20,511 24,944Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities
3,866 1,578 A 13 Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases is as follows: SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 20230perating leases Operating lease
right-of-use assets $ 170,549 $ 181,5420perating lease liabilities - current portion 22,182 23,0470Operating lease liabilities - non-current portion 170,127 180,898Total operating lease liabilities
$ 192,309 $ 203,945Finance leases Property plant and equipment, gross 234 232Accumulated depreciation (182) (177)Property plant and equipment, net $ 52 $ 550ther current liabilities 42
400ther long-term liabilities 12 43Total finance lease liabilities $ 54 $ 83 Other information Weighted-average remaining lease term - finance leases 1 2Weighted-average remaining lease term -
operating leases 11 11Weighted-average discount rate - finance leases 7.07% 7.07%Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 4.74% 4.62% The maturities of our leases were as follows:
(Dollars in thousands) Operating a€Zleases Finance a€Zleases2024 $ 30,862 $ 442025 29,623 112026 27,239 4€”2027 23,460 4€”2028 21,834 a€”Thereafter 113,572 a€”Total lease payments $
246,590 $ 55Less imputed interest (54,281) (1)Total $ 192,309 $ 54 As Lessor We have entered into various leases as a lessor for our owned real estate properties. These leases vary in length
between 1 and 20 years, with certain leases containing options to extend at the behest of the applicable tenants. Lease components consist of fixed base rent, and for certain leases, variable
lease payments consisting of contracted percentages of revenue, changes in the relevant CPI, and/or other contracted financial metrics. None of our leases grant any right to the tenant to
purchase the underlying asset. Lease income relating to operating lease payments was as follows: Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30,(Dollars in thousands)
2024 2023 2024 2023Components of lease income Lease payments $ 2,781 2,834 $ 8,186 $ 8,271Variable lease payments 178 288 600 618Total lease income $ 2,959 $ 3,122 $ 8,786 $ 8,889

A 14 The book value of underlying assets under operating leases from owned assets was as follows: SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023Building and improvements
Gross balance $ 117,675 $ 127,222Accumulated depreciation (22,442) (23,270)Net Book Value $ 95,233 $ 103,952A The minimum contractual rent payments due on our leases were as
follows:A (Dollars in thousands) Operating 4€Zleases2024 $ 2,2142025 8,8742026 7,3342027 6,5172028 6,548 Thereafter 21,384Total $ 52,871A Note 8 4€“ Goodwill and Intangible Assets The
table below summarizes goodwill by business segment as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, and DecemberA 31, 2023. (Dollars in thousands) Cinema Real Estate TotalBalance at DecemberA 31, 2023 $
20,311 $ 5,224 $ 25,535Foreign currency translation adjustment 180 &€” 180Balance at SeptemberA 30, 2024 $ 20,491 $ 5,224 $ 25,715 Our Company is required to test goodwill and other
intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis and, if current events or circumstances require them, on an interim basis. Our next annual evaluation of goodwill and other intangible assets
is scheduled during the fourth quarter of 2024. To test the impairment of goodwill, our Company compares the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying amount, including the goodwill, to
determine if there is potential goodwill impairment. A reporting unit is generally one level below the operating segment. As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, we were not aware that any events
indicating potential impairment of goodwill had occurred outside of those described at Note 3 4€“ Liquidity and Impairment Assessment. The tables below summarize intangible assets other
than goodwill, as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, and DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively. As of SeptemberA 30, 2024(Dollars in thousands) Beneficiala€ZLeases Tradea€ZName
Othera€ZIntang1blea€ZAssets TotalGross carrying amount $ 10,458 $ 9,024 $ 4,410 $ 23,892Less: Accumulated amortization (10,288) (8,067) (3,696) (22,051)Net intangible assets other than
goodwill $ 170 $ 957 $ 714 $ 1,841 As of DecemberA 31, 2023(Dollars in thousands) Beneficialé€ZLeases Tradea€ZName Othera€ZIntangiblea€ZAssets TotalGross carrying amount $ 11,283 $
9,024 $ 4,400 $ 24,707Less: Accumulated amortization (11,089) (7,961) (3,611) (22,661)Less: Impairments 4€” 4€” (8) (8)Net intangible assets other than goodwill $ 194 $ 1,063 $ 781 $ 2,038
A 15 Beneficial leases obtained in business combinations where we are the landlord are amortized over the life of the relevant leases. Trade names are amortized based on the accelerated
amortization method over their estimated useful life of 30 years, and other intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives of up to 30 years (except for transferrable liquor
licenses, which are indefinite-lived assets). The table below summarizes the amortization expense of intangible assets for the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 Quarter
Ended Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30, (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023Beneficial lease amortization $ 21 $ 21 $ 64 $ 430ther amortization 60 129 143
182Total intangible assets amortization $ 81 $ 150 $ 207 $ 225A Note 9 4€“ Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures Our investments in unconsolidated joint ventures are accounted for
under the equity method of accounting. The table below summarizes our active investment holdings in two (2) unconsolidated joint ventures as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, and DecemberA 31,
2023: SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31,(Dollars in thousands) Interest 2024 2023Rialto Cinemas 50.0% $ 727 $ 848Mt. Gravatt 33.3% 3,567 3,908Total investments $ 4,294 $ 4,756 For the
quarter and nine months ended SeptemherA 30, 2024 and 2023, the recognized share of equity earnings from our investments in unconsolidated joint ventures are as follows: Quarter Ended
Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023Rialto Cinemas $ (71) $ 25 $ (149) $ (14)Mt. Gravatt 142 192 313 457Total equity earnings $
71 $ 217 $ 164 $ 443A Note 10 4€“ Prepaid and Other Assets Prepaid and other assets are summarized as follows: SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023Prepaid and
other current assets Prepaid expenses $ 1,239 $ 1,813Prepaid taxes 559 802Income taxes receivable 400 4€”Deposits 312 249Investments in marketable securities 18 17Total prepaid and other
current assets $ 2,528 $ 2,8810ther non-current assets Other non-cinema and non-rental real estate assets 674 674Investment in Reading International Trust I 838 838Straight-line rent asset
7,415 7,445Long-term deposits 11 8Total other non-current assets $ 8,938 $ 8,965A Note 11 4€“ Income Taxes The interim provision for income taxes is different from the amount determined
by applying the U.S. federal statutory rate to consolidated income or loss before taxes.A The differences are attributable to foreign tax rate differential, unrecognized tax benefits, and A 16
change in valuation allowance. Our effective tax rate was (1.1%) and (1.7%) for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.A The difference is primarily due to an
increase in valuation allowance and unrecognized tax benefits in 2024.A The forecasted effective tax rate is updated each quarter as new information becomes available.A Note 12 a€“
Borrowings Our Companya€™s borrowings at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, net of deferred financing costs and including the impact of interest rate derivatives on effective
interest rates, are summarized below: As of SeptemberA 30, 2024(Dollars in thousands) MaturityA Date Contractuala€ZFacility Balance,a€ZGross Balance,a€ZNet(1) Stateda€ZInterestA Rate
Effectived€ZInteresta€ZRateDenominated in USD Trust Preferred Securities (US) AprilA 30, 2027 $ 27,913A $ 27,913A $27,339A 9.52% 9.52%Bank of America Credit Facility (US)

AugustA 18, 2025 16,250A 16,250A 16,195A 11.00% 11.00%Cinemas 1, 2, 3 Term Loan (US) (2) OctoberA 1, 2024 20,775A 20,775A 20,775A 8.75% 8.75%Minetta & Orpheum Theatres Loan
(US) JuneA 1, 2025 7,742A 7,742A 7,710A 7.00% 7.00%Union Square Financing (US) MayA 6, 2025 55,000A 47,141A 46,980A 12.54% 12.54%Denominated in foreign currency ("FC") (3)
NAB Corporate Term Loan (AU) JulyA 31, 2026 69,340A 69,340A 69,195A 6.10% 6.10%NAB Bridge Facility (AU) MarchA 31, 2025 13,868A 13,868A 13,851A 6.12% 6.12%Westpac Bank
Corporate (NZ)JanuaryA 1,202511,988A 11,988A 11,988A 7.95% 7.95% $ 222,876A $ 215,017A $ 214,033A (1)Net of deferred financing costs amounting to $1. 0A million.(2)This financing
facility was extended after September 30, 2024.(3)The contractual facilities and outstanding balances of the foreign currency denominated borrowings were translated into U.S. dollars based on
the applicable exchange rates as of SeptemberA 30, 2024. As of December 31, 2023(Dollars in thousands) MaturityA Date Contractualé€ZFacility Balance,4€ZGross Balance,a€ZNet(1)
Stateda€ZInteresta€ZRate Effectivea€ZInterestai€ZRateDenominated in USD Trust Preferred Securities (US) April 30, 2027 $ 27,913A $ 27,913A $ 27,172 9.65% 9.65%Bank of America Credit
Facility (US)(3) September 4, 2024 20,200 20,200 20,080 11.00% 11.00%Cinemas 1, 2, 3 Term Loan (US) OctoberA 1, 2024 21,008 21,008 20,780 8.84% 8.84%Minetta & Orpheum Theatres
Loan (US) JuneA 1, 2024 8,000A 8,000A 8,000 8.34% 8.34%U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan (US) JanuaryA 1, 2027 8,401 8,401 8,356 4.64% / 4.44% 4.64% / 4.44%Union Square Financing
(US) MayA 6, 2024 55,000A 47,141 46,925 12.53% 12.53%Purchase Money Promissory Note (US) SeptemberA 18, 2024 586 586 586 5.00% 5.00%Denominated in foreign currency ("FC")(2)
NAB Corporate Term Loan (AU) JulyA 31, 2025 68,276 68,276 68,173 6.11% 6.11%Westpac Bank Corporate (NZ) JanuaryA 1, 2025 8,775 8,775 8,775 8.20% 8.20%Total $ 218,159 $ 210,300 $
208,847 (1)Net of deferred financing costs amounting to $1.5A million. (2)The contractual facilities and outstanding balances of the foreign currency denominated borrowings were translated
into U.S. dollars based on the applicable exchange rates as of DecemberA 31, 2023.(3)This financing facility was extended after DecemberA 31, 2023. Our loan arrangements are presented, net
of the deferred financing costs, on the face of our consolidated balance sheet as follows: SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31,Balance Sheet Caption (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023Debt - current
portion $ 52,624 $ 34,484Debt - long-term portion 134,070 146,605Subordinated debt - current portion &€” 586Subordinated debt - long-term portion 27,339 27,172Total borrowings $ 214,033
$ 208,847 A 17 Bank of America Credit Facility Our Bank of America facility was amended on MarchA 27, 2024, to among other terms and conditions, (i) extend the Maturity Date to

AugustA 18, 2025, (ii) require a $275,000 principal paydown, (iii) eliminate the minimum liquidity covenant, (iv) reduce the principal amortization amounts and provide a principal holiday
period, and (v) require certain paydowns on the sale of certain real estate assets. Interest is charged at 2.5% above the Bank of America Prime rate, which itself has a floor of 1.0%. Payment-in-
kind interest at a rate of 0.5% commenced on JanuaryA 1, 2024, and will continue until DecemberA 31, 2024, increasing to 1.5% on JanuaryA 1, 2025, until the facility is repaid in full. This loan
is subject to mandatory prepayment out of a portion of the net proceeds realized by us in the event that we determine to sell certain specified assets. In October 2024, we amended this facility
to defer the monthly principal payments required in October, November and December, to the end of 2024. Minetta and Orpheum Theatres Loan On August 1, 2024, we extended the maturity of
our $8.0 million loan with Santander Bank, which is secured by our Minetta and Orpheum Theaters. It had previously matured on June 1, 2024. The extended facility now matures on June 1,
2025, requires monthly principal and interest payments with a balloon payment of $7.7 million on maturity, and carries an interest rate of 7.0%. Cinemas 1,2,3 Term Loan Our Cinemas 1,2,3
Term Loan is held by Sutton Hill Properties LLC (4€ceSHP&€), a 75% owned subsidiary of RDI. In October 2024, we obtained two further six month extensions for this loan, the first of which we
exercised. The loan is with Valley National Bank, carries an interest rate of 3.50% above monthly SOFR, with a floor of 7.50%, and includes provisions for a prepaid interest reserve. Union
Square Financing On MayA 7, 2021, we closed on a new three year $55.0A million loan facility with Emerald Creek Capital secured by our 44 Union Square property and certain limited
guarantees. Following the phase out of LIBOR, the facility bears a variable interest rate of TERM SOFR plus 6.9% and includes provisions for a prepaid interest and property tax reserve fund.
On AprilA 23, 2024, we executed the first 12 month extension on this loan, taking the maturity to MayA 6, 2025. The loan has one remaining 12-month option to extend, and may be repaid at
any time, without the payment of any premium. As this option is within our control, we will continue to keep the loan classified as long-term. Purchase Money Promissory Note On

SeptemberA 18, 2019, we purchased for $5.5A million 407,000 shares of our Class A Common Stock in a privately negotiated transaction under our Share Repurchase Program. Of this amount,
$3.5A million was paid by the issuance of a Purchase Money Promissory Note, which bore an interest rate of 5.0% per annum, payable in equal quarterly payments of principal plus accrued
interest. The Purchase Money Promissory Note matured on SeptemberA 18, 2024. U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan We repaid this $8.4A million loan in full in February 2024, with a portion of
the proceeds from the sale of our Culver City office building. Debt denominated in foreign currencies Westpac Bank Corporate Credit Facility (NZ) Our Westpac Corporate Credit Facility for
NZ$13.8A million matures on JanuaryA 1, 2025. The facility currently carries an interest rate and line of credit charge of 2.40% above the Bank Bill Bid Rate and 1.65% respectively. Westpac
has waived the requirement to test certain covenants for each quarter since the third quarter of 2020, including the quarter ending SeptemberA 30, 2024. On August 13, 2024, we increased the
limit on this facility by NZ$5.0 million to NZ$18.8 million. The maturity date remains January 1, 2025. Australian NAB Corporate Term Loan (AU) Prior to MarchA 31, 2024, our Revolving
Corporate Markets Loan Facility with National Australia Bank (4€eNAB&€) matured on JulyA 31, 2025. It consisted of (i) an AU$100.0A million Corporate Loan facility at 1.75% above BBSY, of



which AU $60.0A million was revolving and AU$40.0A million was core and (ii) a Bank Guarantee Facility of AU$5.0A million at a rate of 1.9% per annum. A On AprilA 4, 2024, we amended this
facility, which now matures on JulyA 31, 2026. As part of the amendment, we obtained an additional AU$20.0A million bridge facility which matures on MarchA 31, 2025 (or earlier, upon the
sale of certain assets), and modified certain A 18 covenants. We are also required, from MarchA 31, 2025, to make quarterly repayments of AU$1.5A million against the AU$100.0A million
Corporate Loan facility, until maturity date, representing permanent reductions in that facilitya€™s ceiling. The bank guarantee facility was reduced to AU$3.0A million. No other changes were
made. Effective June 28, 2024, we entered into an Interest Rate Hedging Agreement with NAB on AU$50.0 million of the Corporate Loan Facility with the Termination date on July 31, 2026. The
Interest Rate Collar transaction has a floor of 4.18% and a cap of 4.78%. Note 13 4€“ Other Liabilities Other liabilities are summarized as follows: SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31,(Dollars in
thousands) 2024 2023Current liabilities Lease liability $ 5,900 $ 5,900Accrued pension 493 684Security deposit payable 119 74Finance lease liabilities 42 400ther 34 33 Other current
liabilities $ 6,588 $ 6,7310ther liabilities Lease make-good provision 6,239 6,050Accrued pension 2,450 2,646Deferred rent liability 2,610 1,314Environmental reserve 1,656 1,656Acquired
leases a€” 2Finance lease liabilities 12 43 Other non-current liabilities $ 12,967 $ 11,711 Pension Liability 4€“ Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Details of our Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan are disclosed in Note 13 a€“ Pension and Other Liabilities in our 2023 Form 10-K. Included in our current and non-current liabilities are accrued pension costs of $2.9A million
on SeptemberA 30, 2024. The benefits of our pension plan are fully vested and therefore no service costs were recognized for the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, and
2023. Our pension plan is unfunded. During the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, the interest cost was $40,000 and $126,000, respectively, and the actuarial loss was
$52,000 and $156,000, respectively. During the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2023, the interest cost was $47,000 and $146,000, respectively, and the actuarial loss was
$52,000 and $155,000, respectively.A A 19 Note 14 4€“ Accumulated Other  Comprehensive Income The following table summarizes the changes in each component of accumulated other
comprehensive income attributable to RDI: (Dollars in thousands)Forelgna€ZCurrencya€ZItems Unrealizedd€ZGainA (Losses)a€ZonA Available-a€Zfor-Salea€ZInvestments
Accrueda€ZPensiona€ZServiceA Costs Hedgea€ZAccount1nga€ZReserve TotalBalance at ]anuaryA 1,2024%$ (986) $ (18) $ (1,669) $ a€” $ (2,673) Change related to derivatives Total change in
hedge fair value recorded in Other Comprehensive Income a€” 4€” 4€” (269) (269)Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income a€” a€” a€” a€” a€”Net change related to
derivatives a€” a€” a€” (269) (269) Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss) (44) (1) 156 (269) (158)Balance at SeptemherA 30, 2024$ (1,030) $ (19) $(1,513) $(269) $

(2,831)A Note 15 4€“ Commitments and Contingencies Litigation Matters We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings and, to the extent required, have accrued estimates of probable
and estimable losses for the resolution of these claims, including legal costs.i,-Where we are the plaintiffs, we accrue legal fees as incurred on an on-going basis and make no provision for any
potential settlement amounts until received. In Australia, the prevailing party is usually entitled to recover its attorneysa€™ fees, which recoveries typically work out to be approximately 60% of
the amounts actually spent where first-class legal counsel is engaged at customary rates. Where we are a plaintiff, we have likewise made no provision for the liability for the defendanta€™s
attorneysa€™ fees in the event we are determined not to be the prevailing party.i,-Where we are the defendants, we accrue for probable damages that insurance may not cover as they become
known and can be reasonably estimated, as permitted under ASC 450-20 Loss Contingencies. In our opinion, any claims and litigation in which we are currently involved are not reasonably
likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial position, or liquidity. It is possible, however, that future results of the operations for any particular
quarterly or annual period could be materially affected by the ultimate outcome of the legal proceedings. From time to time, we are involved with claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary
course of our business that may include contractual obligations, insurance claims, tax claims, employment matters, and anti-trust issues, among other matters. Environmental and Asbestos
Claims on Reading Legacy Operations Certain of our subsidiaries were historically involved in railroad operations, coal mining, and manufacturing. Also, certain of these subsidiaries appear in
the chain-of-title of properties that may suffer from pollution. Accordingly, certain of these subsidiaries have, from time to time, been named in and may in the future be named in various
actions brought under applicable environmental laws. Also, we are in the real estate development business and may encounter from time to time environmental conditions at properties that we
have acquired for development and which will need to be addressed in the future as part of the development process. These environmental conditions can increase the cost of such projects and
adversely affect the value and potential for profit of such projects. We do not currently believe that our exposure under applicable environmental laws is material in amount. From time to time,
there are claims brought against us relating to the exposure of former employees to asbestos and/or coal dust. These are generally covered by an insurance settlement reached in September
1990 with our insurance providers. However, this insurance settlement does not cover litigation by people who were not employees of our historic railroad operations and who may claim direct
or second-hand exposure to asbestos, coal dust and/or other chemicals or elements now recognized as potentially causing cancer in humans. Our known exposure to these types of claims,
asserted or probable of being asserted, is not material. A 20 Note 16 4€“ Non-controlling Interests These are composed of the following enterprises:i,-Australia Country Cinemas Pty Ltd. - 25%
noncontrolling interest owned by Panorama Group International Pty Ltd;i,-Shadow View Land and Farming, LLC - 50% noncontrolling membership interest owned by the estate of Mr. James J.
Cotter, Sr. (the a€ceCotter Estatea€); and,i,-Sutton Hill Properties, LLC - 25% noncontrolling interest owned by Sutton Hill Capital, LLC (which in turn is 50% owned by the Cotter Estate). The
components of noncontrolling interests are as follows: SeptemberA 30, DecemberA 31,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd $ 108 $ 76Shadow View Land and
Farming, LLC (2) (2)Sutton Hill Properties, LLC (675) (165)Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries $ (569) $ (91) The components of income attributable to noncontrolling interests
are as follows: Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, SeptemberA 30,(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd $ 39 $ 25 $ 30 $ 60Shadow
View Land and Farming, LLC &€” 1 4€” 1Sutton Hill Properties, LLC (150) (91) (511) (422)Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests $ (111) $ (65) $ (481) $ (361) Summary of
Controlling and Noncontrolling Stockholdersa€™ Equity A summary of the changes in controlling and noncontrolling stockholdersa€™ equity is as follows: CommonA Stock Retained
AccumulatedA Reading ClassA AA ClassA AClassA BClassA BA AdditionalEarnings A OtherA InternationalA Inc.A Total Non-VotingA ParA VotingParPaid-

In(AccumulatedA TreasuryComprehensiveA Stockholdersa€™ A NoncontrollingA Stockholdersa€™ (Dollars in thousands, except

shares)SharesValueA SharesA ValueA CapitalDeﬁcit)A SharesIncome (Loss)EquityInterestsA EquityAt January 1, 2024 20,664$ 237 1,681$ 17$ 155,402% (79,489)$ (40,407)$ (2,673)$ 33,087$
(91)$ 32,996Net income (loss) a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” (13,228) a€” a€” (13,228) (175) (13,403)Other comprehensive income, net a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” (2,538) (2,538) (3) (2,541)Share-based
compensation expense a€” &€” 4€” a€” 678 a€” a€” &€” 678 -- 678Restricted Stock Units 9 4€” 4€” a€” (2) a€” 4€” a€” (2) -- (2)At March 31, 2024 20,673$ 237 1,681$ 17$ 156,078$ (92,717)$
(40,407)$ (5,211)$ 17,997$ (269)$ 17,728Net income a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” (9,341) a€” a€” (9,341) (195) (9,536)Other comprehensive income, net a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” 886 886 1
887Share-based compensation expense a€” a€” 4€” a€” 456 a€” a€” 4€” 456 -- 456Restricted Stock Units 70 1 4€” &€” (5) 4€” a€” 4€” (4) -- (4)At June 30, 2024 20,743$ 238 1,681$ 17$
156,529% (102,058)$ (40,407)$ (4,325)$ 9,994$ (463)$ 9,531Net income a€” 4€” a€” a€” a€” (6,916) a€” a€” (6,916) (111) (7,027)Other comprehensive income, net 4€” a€” a€” a€” a€” a€” a€”
1,494 1,494 5 1,499Share-based compensation expense a€” 4€” &€” 4€” 603 a€” a€” 4€” 603 a€” 603At September 30, 2024 20,743$ 238 1,681%$ 17¢$ 157,132% (108,974)$ (40,407)$ (2,831)$
5,175$ (569)$ 4,606 CommonA Stock Retained AccumulatedA Reading ClassA AA ClassA AClassA BClassA BA AdditionalEarnings A OtherA InternationalA Inc.A Total Non-

VotingA ParA VotingParPaid-In(AccumulatedA TreasuryComprehensiveA Stockholdersa€™ A NoncontrollingA Stockholdersa€™ (Dollars in thousands, except

shares)SharesValueA SharesA ValueA CapitalDeficit)A SharesIncome (Loss)EquityInterestsA EquityAt January 1, 2023 20,412$ 235 1,681$ 17$ 153,784$ (48,816)$ (40,407)$ (1,957)$ 62,856$%
423$ 63,279Net income (loss) 4€” &€” 4€” &€” 4€” (11,111) 4€” &€~ (11,111) (213) (11,324)Other comprehensive income, net 4€” &€~ 4€” &€” a€” &€” 4€” (1,293) (1,293) (1) (1,294)Share-based
compensation expense a€” &€” 4€” a€” 443 4€” a€” 4€” 443 4€” 443Restricted Stock Units 89 &€~ a€” &€” (132) a€” 4€” a€” (132) &€~ (132)At March 31, 2023 20,501$ 235 1,681$ 17$ 154,095%
(59,927)$ (40,407)$ (3,250)$ 50,763$ 209$ 50,972Net income 4€” &€~ 4€” &€” 4€” (2,778) a€” &€~ (2,778) (83) (2,861)Other comprehensive income, net 4€” 4€” 4€” 4€” a€” a€” a€” (740) (740)
(1) (741) A 21 Share-based compensation expense 4€” 4€” 4€” 4€” 308 4€” a€” 4€” 308 4€” 308Restricted Stock Units 92 1 4€” 4€” (113) &€~ 4€” &€~ (112) 4€” (112)At June 30, 2023 20,593%
236 1,681$ 17$ 154,290% (62,705)$ (40,407)$ (3,990)$ 47,441$ 125$ 47,566Net income a€” a€” 4€” &€” 4€” (4,400) a€” &€” (4,400) (65) (4,465)Other comprehensive income, net a€” 4€” a€”
a€” a€” 4€” a€” (1,657) (1,657) (3) (1,660)Share-based compensation expense 4€” a€” a€” a€” 614 a€” 4€” 4€” 614 - 614Restricted Stock Units 0 &€” 4€” 4€” 4€” 4€” a€” 4€” -- -- --At September
30, 2023 20,593$ 236 1,681$ 17$ 154,904$ (67,105)$ (40,407)$ (5,647)$ 41,998% 57$ 42,055A Note 17 4€“ Stock-Based Compensation and Stock Repurchases Employee and Director Stock
Incentive Plan 2020 Stock Incentive PlanOn NovemberA 4, 2020, the Company enacted the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan, which was also approved by the Companya€™s stockholders on
DecemberA 8, 2020 (as amended, the 4€0e2020 Plana€). Under the 2020 Plan, the number of permitted authorized shares for issuance was originally set at 1,250,000, plus any shares reserved
for awards outstanding under the 2010 Plan that were subsequently forfeited (for instance, through a then outstanding out of the money option) or if the related shares are repurchased, a
corresponding number of shares would automatically become available for issuance under the 2020 Plan. On DecemberA 7, 2023, the Companya€™s stockholders, upon recommendation of the
Companya€™s board of directors, approved the First Amendment to the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan, increasing the number of Class A Common Stock reserved for issuance under the 2020 Plan
by an additional 971,807 shares. Under the 2020 Plan, the Company may grant stock options and other share-based payment awards of our Class A Common Stock to eligible employees,
directors and consultants. At September 30, 2024, there were 15,048 shares of Class A Common Stock available for issuance under the 2020 Plan, which includes shares from the 2010 Plan that
become available for issuance due to the forfeiture of then outstanding out of the money stock options. Stock options are granted at exercise prices equal to the grant-date market prices and
typically expire on either the fifth or tenth anniversary of the grant date. In contrast to a stock option where the grantee buys our Companya€™s share at an exercise price determined on the
grant date, a restricted stock unit (4€ceRSU&€) entitles the grantee to receive one share for every RSU based on a vesting plan, typically between one year and four years from grant. As
discussed further below, a performance component has been added to certain of the RSUs or options granted to management. At the time the options are exercised or RSUs vest and are settled,
at the discretion of management, we will issue treasury shares or make a new issuance of shares to the option or RSU holder. Stock OptionsWe have estimated the grant-date fair value of our
stock options using the Black-Scholes option-valuation model, which takes into account assumptions such as the dividend yield, the risk-free interest rate, the expected stock price volatility, and
the expected life of the options. We expensed the estimated grant-date fair values of options over the vesting period on a straight-line basis. Based on our historical experience, the 4€cedeemed
exercisea€ of expiring in-the-money options and the relative market price to strike price of the options, we have not estimated any forfeitures of vested or unvested options. Stock options to
purchase 207,657 shares of Class A Common Stock were issued to the Board of Directors upon their reelection to the Board in December 2023 for their services for their 2024 term. No other
stock options were granted in 2023. On June 6, 2024, we issued options to purchase 1,264,603 shares of Class A Common Stock to our senior executives. These options have a one-year vesting
and a ten-year term and were granted in lieu of cash bonuses which would otherwise have been paid under our Company's Incentive Compensation Program. No other stock options were
granted during the three quarters of 2024. For the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, we recorded a compensation expense of $302,000 and $466,000 respectively, with
respect to our prior stock option grants. For the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2023, we recorded a compensation expense of and $9,000 and $27,000 respectively, with
respect to our prior stock option grants At SeptemberA 30, 2024, the total unrecognized estimated compensation expense related to non-vested stock options was $623,000, which we expect to
recognize over a weighted average vesting period of 0.94 years. The intrinsic, unrealized value of all options outstanding vested and expected to vest, at SeptemberA 30, 2024, was nil, as the
closing price of our Class A Common Stock on that date was $1.63. A 22 The following table summarizes the number of options outstanding and exercisable as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, and
DecemberA 31, 2023: OutstandmgA StockA OptlonsA -A ClassA AA Shares Numbera€ZofA Options Welghteda€ZAveragea€ZExerc1seA Price

Weighted&a€ZAveragea€ZRemaininga€ZYearsA ofa€ZContractuala€ZLife Aggregatea€ZIntrinsica€ZValue ClassA A ClassA A ClassA A ClassA ABalance - DecemberA 31, 2022 327,498 $ 15.87
1.24 $ 4€”Granted 207,657 1.92 4€” 4€”Exercised &€” 4€” 4€” 4€”Forfeited (122,376) 4€” 4€” 4€”Balance - DecemberA 31, 2023 412,779 $ 14.19 1.79 $ 4€”Granted 1,264,603 1.47 a€”
4€”Exercised &€~ 4€” 4€” a€”Forfeited (205,122) 4€” 4€” 4€”Balance - September 30, 2024 1,472,260 $ 1.66 9.61 $ 4€” Restricted Stock UnitsThe following table summarizes the status of RSUs
granted to date as of SeptemberA 30, 2024: Restricted Stock Units RSU Grants (in units) Vested, Unvested, Forfeited, Grant Date Directors Management Totala€ZGrants

SeptemberA 30,4€72024 SeptemherA 30,4€72024 SeptemberA 30,4€72024 Opening balance 216,804 793,353 1,010,157 895,995 49,858 64,305 December 8, 2021 48,951 4€” 48,951 48,951
4€” a€”April 18, 2022 a€” 428,899 428,899 151,033 230,601 47,265December 15, 2022 73,683 &€” 73,683 73,683 &€” a€”April 11, 2023 4€” 413,536 413,536 146,714 257,790 9,032April 21,
2023 a€” 237,719 237,719 79,328 149,866 8,525April 28, 2023 &€” 20,427 20,427 5,109 15,318 a€” Total 339,438 1,893,934 2,233,372 1,400,813 703,433 129,127 Time vested RSU awards to
management typically vest 25% on the anniversary of the grant date and the remainder over a period of four years. Beginning in 2020, a performance component has been added to certain
management equity grants, which vest on the third anniversary of their grant date based on the achievement of certain performance metrics. From 2021 onwards, RSUs have two vesting
structures, which include time vesting and performance vesting. The majority of RSUs vest 75% evenly over a period of four years, with the remaining 25% contingent upon the achievement of
certain performance metrics, vesting in full on the third anniversary of the date of the grant. In the case of our Chief Executive Officer, RSUs vest 50% evenly over a period of four years with
the remaining 50%, contingent upon the achievement of certain performance metrics, vesting in full on the third anniversary of the grant date. On AprilA 11 and AprilA 21, 2023, the Board of
Directors determined that our Company was not in a position to pay cash bonuses that would otherwise have been earned by certain members of management under our Companya€™s
Incentive Compensation Plan for 2022, and authorized the issuance in lieu of such cash bonuses 85,139 RSUs, which vested on AprilA 11, 2024 and 52,360 RSUs, which vested on AprilA 21,
2024. No RSUs were granted during the remainder of 2023 or the first two quarters of 2024, however, the Compensation Committee has not completed its final review of 2024 incentive
compensation. For the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, we recorded compensation expense of $302,000 and $1.3 million, respectively. For the quarter and nine months
ended SeptemberA 30, 2023, we recorded compensation expense of $604,000, and $1.3 million, respectively. The total unrecognized compensation expense related to the non-vested RSUs was
$2.3A million as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, which we expect to recognize over a weighted average vesting period of 1.07 years. Stock Repurchase Program Our Stock Repurchase Program
expired on MarchA 10, 2024. It has not been renewed. No stock has been repurchased by our Company since MarchA 10, 2020. A A 23 A Note 18 4€“ Hedge Accounting As of SeptemberA 30,
2024, our Company held derivative instruments to the notional value of $34.7 million. As of DecemberA 31, 2023, our Company held no derivative instruments. The derivatives are recorded on
the balance sheet at fair value and are included in the following line items: Liability Derivatives September 30, December 31, 2024 2023(Dollars in thousands) Balance sheet location Fair value
Balance sheet location Fair valuelnterest rate contracts Derivative financial instruments - current portion $ &4€” Derivative financial instruments - current portion $ 4€” Derivative financial
instruments - non-current portion 269A Derivative financial instruments - non-current portion 4€”Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ 269A $ 4€”Total derivatives $ 269A $
4€” The changes in fair value of that instrument were recorded in Other Comprehensive Income and released into interest expense in the same period(s) in which the hedged transactions affect
earnings. In the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, respectively, the derivative instruments affected Comprehensive Income as follows: (Dollars in
thousands)Location of Loss Recognized in Income on Derivatives Amount of Loss (Gain) Recognized in Income on Derivatives Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
2024 2023 2024 2023Interest rate contractsInterest expense $ a€” $ (26) $ a€” $ (812)Total $ 4€” $ (26) $ a€” $ (812) Loss (Gain) Recognized in OCI on Derivatives (Effective Portion)(Dollars in
thousands) Amount Amount Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30 2024 2023 2024 2023Interest rate contracts $ 167 $ 4€” $ 269 $ 2A Total $ 167 $ 4€” $ 269 $ 2A
Loss (Gain) Reclassified from OCI into Income (Effective Portion)Line Item Amount Amount Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30 2024 2023 2024 2023Interest
expense $ 4€” $ (26) $ 4€” $ (812)Total $ 4€” $ (26) $ 4€” $ (812) A Note 19 4€“ Fair Value Measurements ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The statement requires that assets and liabilities carried at fair value be classified and disclosed in one of the following three
categories:i,-Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;i,-Level 2: Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets; and,A i,-Level 3:
Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable. A 24 The following tables summarize our financial liabilities



that are carried at cost and measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, and DecemberA 31, 2023, by level within the fair value hierarchy. Fair Value
Measurement at SeptemberA 30, 2024 (Dollars in thousands) Carryingé€ZValue(1) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 TotalNotes payable $ 187,104 $ 4€” $ 4€” $ 187,382 $ 187,382Subordinated debt
27,913 a€” 4€” 27,771 27,771 $ 215,017 $ 4€” $ 4€” $ 215,153 $ 215,153 Fair Value Measurement at DecemberA 31, 2023(Dollars in thousands) Carryinga€ZValue(1) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
TotalNotes payable $ 181,801 $ 4€” $ a€” $ 148,325 $ 148,325Subordinated debt 28,499 4€” 4€” 27,832 27,832 $ 210,300 $ 4€” $ 4€” $ 176,157 $ 176,157 (1)These balances are presented
before any deduction for deferred financing costs. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used to estimate the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities. There have
been no changes in the methodologies used as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, and DecemberA 31, 2023.i,-Level 1 investments in marketable securities primarily consist of investments associated with
the ownership of marketable securities in U.S. and New Zealand. These investments are valued based on observable market quotes on the last trading date of the reporting period. i,-Level 2
derivative financial instruments are valued based on discounted cash flow models that incorporate observable inputs such as interest rates and yield curves from the derivative counterparties.
The credit valuation adjustments associated with our non-performance risk and counterparty credit risk are incorporated in the fair value estimates of our derivatives. As of SeptemberA 30,
2024, and DecemberA 31, 2023, we concluded that the credit valuation adjustments were not significant to the overall valuation of our derivatives. i,-Level 3 borrowings include our secured and
unsecured notes payable, trust preferred securities and other debt instruments. The borrowings are valued based on discounted cash flow models that incorporate appropriate market discount
rates. We calculated the market discount rate by obtaining period-end treasury rates for fixed-rate debt, or LIBOR for variable-rate debt, for maturities that correspond to the maturities of our
debt, adding appropriate credit spreads derived from information obtained from third-party financial institutions. These credit spreads take into account factors such as our credit rate, debt
maturity, types of borrowings, and the loan-to-value ratios of the debt. Our Companya€™s financial instruments also include cash, cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payable. The
carrying values of these financial instruments approximate the fair values due to their short maturities. Additionally, there were no transfers of assets and liabilities between levels 1, 2, or 3
during the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, and SeptemberA 30, 2023. Note 20 4€“ Subsequent Events In October 2024, we amended our Bank of America credit facility to
defer the monthly principal payments required in October, November and December, to the end of 2024. In October 2024, we obtained two further six month extensions for our loan with Valley
National, the first of which we exercised. The loan now carries an interest rate of 5.0% above monthly SOFR, with a floor of 7.50%, and includes provisions for a prepaid interest reserve. In
connection with these extensions, we have increased our cash deposit with Valley National Bank by $500,000 to $1,500,000. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
unaudited consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 (Financial Statements). The foregoing discussions and analyses contain certain forward-looking statements. Please refer to
the &€ceCautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statementsa€ included at the conclusion of this section and our &€meRisk Factorsa€ set forth in our 2023 Form 10-K, Part 1 4€“
Financial Information, Item 1A and the Risk Factors set out below. Item 2 4€“ Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis (&4€ceMD&A&€) of Financial Condition and Results of Operations The
MD&A should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes in this Report. A 25 Business Overview & Updates While our performance this quarter was not
as strong as we had anticipated, especially in comparison to the third quarter of 2023, we remain optimistic about the direction of our cinema business and the cinema industry as a whole.
Presales to date for Wicked and Moana 2, which open in November 2024 are strong and we have high expectations for Gladiator II, Mufasa: The Lion King and Sonic the Hedgehog 3, each of
which open in December 2024. As we think about the future of the cinema industry, we are encouraged about the long term prospects of the cinema industry for a variety of reasons, including
(i) the current movie release schedule from 2025 to 2027 reflects an increase in quality tentpole movies, (ii) more content is being released catering to niche cinema audiences, such as faith-
based movies and concert films, (iii) major studios and distributors, including streaming platforms like Amazon, Apple TV, and Netflix, are adding a cinema exhibition leg to their overall
distribution plan as they recognize the economic value of the theatrical release window, not only for driving box office revenues, but also for promoting and distinguishing their films from other
content available on their platforms, and (iv) the success of certain highly anticipated and well-marketed films has shown that audiences are willing to return to cinemas, with attendance levels
on a per film basis rivaling those of pre-pandemic blockbusters. We have reduced our operating costs by neither renewing nor extending our leases at five (5) underperforming locations (three
in Hawaii, one in California and one in Texas). The reduction in our cinema count has, however, negatively impacted our gross revenues. We have been working to re-negotiate leases at our
continuing U.S. cinemas to either reduce occupancy or to convert fixed rent to percentage rent, thus better aligning our landlord's interests with our own. With respect to our real estate
segment, our Australian real estate operations continue to perform well, when measured in local currency. However, while the exchange rates for the Australian dollar have improved marginally
in the third quarter 2024 as reflected above, the contribution of the Australian real estate operations to our financial performance for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2024 has been
adversely impacted by the generally downward trend in exchange rates. And, recognizing our reduced need for administrative space, in 2024, we streamlined operations by selling our
administrative building in Culver City, California, generating $1.2A million in cash after settling mortgages, brokerage fees, and transactional costs. Further, we anticipate that this sale will
save us around $1.5 million in operating and holding costs through the end of 2025. Currently, we are managing our California operations remotely while we search for a more affordable,
appropriately sized space for relocation. The current macroeconomic situations such as inflation, interest rates, labor cost increases and the relatively low exchange value of the Australian and
New Zealand dollars have continued to be obstacles that our cinema operations and the entire cinema industry continues to navigate, and have adversely impacted our global cinema segment:
i,-Cinema patronage levels have not yet returned to pre-pandemic levels;i,-Inflationary pressures, ongoing supply chain issues, mandatory minimum wage increases and increases in benefits,
increased operating expenses all arising post-pandemic continue to push up our variable costs while we encounter consumer resistance to higher ticket prices;i,-Increased fixed costs for third
party cinema rents, some of which are increasing due to fixed rent escalations, some of which are fixed and some of which are adjusted by reference to changes in the cost-of-living index, which
are exacerbated by having to also pay COVID-19 related rent deferrals for the periods of time when our operations were closed or restricted;i,-Since March 2022, reserve banks in the U.S.,
Australia and New Zealand have materially increased interest rates causing our cost of borrowing to increase materially. We are encouraged by (i) the U.S. Federal Reserve reducing interest
rates by 50 basis points in September 2024 and by 25 basis points in November 2024 and (ii) the New Zealand Reserve Bank in October 2024 reducing interest rates by 50 basis points, with an
indication that the market expects a further 75 basis point cut by the New Zealand Reserve Bank in November; i,-Also, while exchange rates for the Australian and New Zealand dollar have
improved somewhat over the quarter ended September 30, 2024, exchange rates for the Australian and New Zealand currencies have generally decreased when compared to the U.S. Dollar, on
a year-to-date basis; andi,-General market and economic conditions. The film exhibition industry has seen some notable movie titles initially slated for 2024 being postponed to 2025, including
Captain America: Brave New World, Thunderbolts, Disneya€™s Snow White, Elio, Mission: Impossible 8, SpongeBob SquarePants, and James Camerona€™s eagerly awaited Avatar sequel,
which, while negatively impacting our current year, we anticipate will make for a positive effect on the 2025 movie slate. The third quarter of 2024 did have some impressive movie releases
such as Deadpool & Wolverine, Despicable Me 4, Beetlejuice Beetlejuice, Twisters, and It Ends with Us. The third quarter of 2024 was also helped by the steady success of Inside Out 2, which is
now the highest grossing animated movie of all time worldwide. Deadpool & Wolverine led the way for the third quarter (global box office to date $1.3 billion), along with Despicable Me 4
(global box office to date of $969 million), Twisters (global box office to date of almost $371 million), and the recently released Beetlejuice Beetlejuice (global box office to date of $451 million).
Surprisingly, the independent film, Longlegs, performed better than expected at the box office grossing $126 million worldwide. While these titles helped uplift the third quartera€™s grosses,
they were released late in the quarter and, as a result, were not enough to boost the third quarter of A 26 20244€™s grosses to the same level or higher than that of the third quarter of 2023. In
addition, our specialty cinemas in the U.S. did not perform as well in the third quarter 2024 compared to the same period in 2023 when movies like Past Lives, Bottoms, Theater Camp and
Asteroid City were in release, in addition to two key New York City engagements of Oppenheimer in 70mm projection. The 2024 remaining film lineup looks robust, and features some highly
anticipated releases, which are expected to continue driving audiences to our big screens. These films include: Wicked, Moana 2, Gladiator 2, and Mufasa: The Lion King. On the specialty film
side, while our specialty film slate is not as strong as it was in 2023, the releases for the remainder of 2024 are promising. Films such as Anora, Conclave, Nickel Boys, A Complete Unknown,
September 5 and Nosferatu are either performing well right now or expect to be well received at the box office when they open later in 2024. We are actively working with our landlords to
manage our occupancy costs, which remain high relative to our current revenue levels. Recognizing the oversupply of cinemas in the U.S., we have been evaluating our U.S. holdings and plan to
close underperforming locations where reasonable agreements with landlords cannot be reached. Since the start of fourth quarter 2022, we have chosen not to renew leases at three locations
in Hawaii, one location in Texas, and one location in Northern California (all of which experienced negative cash flow at the theater level). While some of our U.S. landlords have initiated legal
proceedings incident to these negotiations, we believe that we have tentatively reached revised lease agreements in each pending case, which are now being documented. While in the short
term, cinema closures will have an impact on our gross revenue levels year-over-year, we anticipate that they will improve our longer term operating results and remain confident that such
closures are in the best interests of our Company and our stockholders and that in the coming years, our cinema revenue will once again support our real estate development initiatives.
Currently, we have one eight-screen cinema project in the pipeline in Australia. Additionally, we expect continued improvements to the operational performance of our cinemas as our global
circuit steadily recovers. A key factor in this optimism is the ongoing expansion and enhancement of our Food and Beverage (F&B) offerings. As of 2023, we are currently able to sell beer and
wine in 100% of our U.S. cinemas, and liquor in all but three. We are actively pursuing licenses to offer liquor, along with beer and wine, at those remaining three locations. Looking ahead, we
are committed to securing liquor licenses and enhancing our F&B offerings across our circuits in Australia and New Zealand as well, reinforcing our dedication to elevating the cinema
experience for our customers. Recent Box Office Improvements The box office performance of certain films released in the third quarter of 2024 has illustrated resilience for the industry as a
whole. As previously noted, sequel movies, such as Deadpool & Wolverine and Inside Out 2, delivered stellar results. The Marvel sequel, Deadpool & Wolverine led the charge for released films
this past quarter and quickly became the number one R rated movie of all time both domestically and worldwide. Inside Out 2 has soared to become the highest grossing animated movie of all
time worldwide and continued its success into the third quarter. Another animated success that is continuing to generate revenue is Despicable Me 4, which by producing just under $1 billion
worldwide, brings the franchised€™s collective revenue to over $5.6 billion worldwide. Also, Beetlejuice Beetlejuice has become Warner Bros highest grossing domestic movie of 2024 and the
overall fourth highest grossing movie of 2024. The success of these films has reinforced our confidence in the resilience of the global cinema industry, demonstrating its ability to withstand
adversity, including rising operating costs, labor shortages, and shifting release schedules. Additionally, several standout releases from the third quarter of 2024 achieved significant milestones
with Twisters having the highest domestic opening weekend ever for a natural disaster film, while It Ends With Us became the highest-grossing romantic drama since the 2018 hit, A Star is
Born. As mentioned above, another Michael Keaton, reborn cult classic, Beetlejuice Beetlejuice became the highest-grossing domestic film of the year for Warner Bros., surpassing Dune: Part
Two for the top spot. As we enter the fourth quarter of 2024, we are ready to build on this momentum continuing another exciting movie lineup. We look forward to the diverse lineup of releases
planned for the rest of 2024, including (i)Wicked, Moana 2, Gladiator 2, Mufasa: Lion King and Sonic the Hedgehog 3 and (ii) critically acclaimed films from specialty distributors, such as
director John Crowleya€™s We Live in Time, director RaMell Rossa€™ Nickel Boys, director James Mangolda€™s A Complete Unknown and director Robert Eggersa€™ Nosferatu. Real Estate
Developments Regarding our United States real estate, during the first quarter of 2024, we sold our underutilized administrative office building in Culver City, California for $10.0 million.
Regarding our 44 Union Square property in New York City, we enlisted George Comfort & Sons (www.gcomfort.com) as our new leasing broker in the first quarter of 2024 to lead efforts in
securing tenants for the remaining space. While the space was initially intended for office use, we are exploring a variety of alternative options beyond traditional office tenants. This shift is
driven by the property's prime location in Union Square, the resurgence of foot traffic in the area, and the buildingd€™ s strong branding potential, including short-term and special purpose
uses. We believe that the Manhattan real estate market is improving. Compared to earlier periods in 2024, inquiries about rates and availability have increased over the last two months. A 27 As
of September 30, 2024, all of our tenants at our Australian and New Zealand properties were operational. While most of the retail spaces at our Courtenay Central location in New Zealand
remain closed due to seismic concerns, one tenant is still open and conducting business. Additionally, one tenant is trading at our Wakefield property. Our open land areas in Wellington are also
generating parking revenue. Given our liquidity requirements, we have largely paused our real estate development projects. Our restricted capital expenditures in 2023 and through the
majority of 2024 have primarily targeted improvements to our existing cinemas. To bolster our liquidity, the Company has listed for sale various assets, being our Newberry Yard property in
Williamsport, Pennsylvania, as well as locations in (i) Townsville, Queensland, Australia, (ii) Wellington, New Zealand, and (iii) Rotorua, New Zealand. In each case where we are selling a
cinema property, we intend to take back a lease of the cinema component. Company Overview We are an internationally diversified company principally focused on the development, ownership,
and operation of entertainment and real estate assets in the United States, Australia, and New Zealand. Currently, we operate in two business segments:i,-Cinema exhibition, through our 60
cinemas as of SeptemberA 30, 2024. i,-Real estate, including real estate development and the rental of retail, commercial, and live theatre assets. It is evident that these two business segments
complement and support each other. In the post-pandemic environment, we have increasingly depended on income from our real estate assets and leveraged the inherent value of those assets
to navigate current industry and economic challenges. As the impact of ongoing macroeconomic challenges begins to settle and the movie release schedule improves in both quality and volume,
attracting more moviegoers to our cinemas, we expect to once again rely on the cash flows generated by our cinema portfolio. While we remain confident in the long-term viability of the cinema
industry, we acknowledge our upcoming liquidity needs arising from debt maturities and other factors. As a result, we have identified specific real estate assets for monetization and will
consider additional properties if necessary to meet our liquidity requirements. We are confident that our two-pronged, diversified international business strategy will support the Company
through these challenging times as we navigate the uncertainties and difficulties posed by recent macroeconomic conditions. Please refer to Note 3 a€“ Liquidity and Impairment Assessment for
more details. Key Performance Indicators Food and Beverage Spend Per Patron A key performance indicator utilized by management in our cinema segment is F&B Spend Per Patron
(&€eSPPa€). This metric is calculated by dividing our post-tax F&B Revenues by the number of cinema attendees during a specific period. One of our strategic priorities has been to continue
upgrading the F&B menu at several of our global cinemas. As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, we have a total of 38 theater locations with elevated F&B menus (i.e. menus that are beyond traditional
popcorn, soda, and candy). We use SPP to assess our F&B performance compared to our competitors. While various factors like labor and cost of goods affect our F&B profitability, SPP
indicates our ability to maintain strong top-line performance. It also reflects our success in generating additional revenue by promoting and selling supplementary products to our customers
during their visits. Furthermore, this metric helps us evaluate how well we differentiate our F&B offerings from competitors. Management uses F&B SPP to adjust pricing strategies, measure
the effectiveness of marketing initiatives, optimize menu offerings, and ensure that prices remain accessible to our customers. Average Ticket Price per Patron Another key performance
indicator used by management in our cinema segment is Average Ticket Price (4€eATP&€) per Patron, which is calculated based on our total Box Office Revenues on a post-tax basis divided by
our cinema attendance during a specific period. ATP measures our operational cinema performance when compared to that of our competitors. ATP is a useful metric for evaluating our A 28
ability to achieve a strong top-line performance, gauging the effectiveness of our cinemasa€™ pricing strategies and our ability to entice customers back to our theaters. Management uses ATP
to adjust and inform ticket pricing schemes for our individual theaters, measures the effectiveness of our content programming, and ensures that price barriers are not created for our guests.
Real Estate Key Performance Indicators The key performance indicators used by management in our real estate segment with respect to our properties held for rent (other than our Live
Theatres) are net operating income,A occupancy factor (the percentage of the net rentable area of our properties that is leased) and average lease duration.A Set forth in the table below is a
comparison of these indicators for the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024 compared to the corresponding periods in 2023. As a matter of clarification, we have not
included in our calculation of net rentable area available for lease any space that is closed for renovation or redevelopment (such as our Courtenay Central property). In the case of our Live
Theatres, with respect to key performance indicators, we primarily look to the live theater rental revenue and ancillary income from the theatres.A This key performance indicator represents
box office revenues less amounts paid to producers for license fee settlements, plus ancillary income earned by us from certain theater operations. Our live theater rental revenue and ancillary
income for the third quarter of 2024 and 2023 are reflected in the chart below..A Historically, in the case of our development properties (such as 44 Union Square in New York City) and our



various international properties such as Newmarket Village in Australia, we have no specific key performance standards to compare performance from period to period.A Rather we continue to
analyze budgets and projections and compare actual results to budgeted or projected results from time to time.A Cinema Exhibition Overview We operate our worldwide cinema exhibition
businesses through various subsidiaries under various brands:i,-in the U.S., under the Reading Cinemas, Consolidated Theatres and Angelika Film Center brands.i,-in Australia, under the
Reading Cinemas, Angelika, and, for our one unconsolidated joint venture theatre, Event Cinemas brands.i,-in New Zealand, under the Reading Cinemas and our two unconsolidated joint
venture theatres, Rialto Cinemas brands. A 29 Shown in the following table are the number of locations and screens in our cinema circuit in each country, by state/territory/region, our cinema
brands, and our interest in the underlying assets as of SeptemberA 30, 2024. State / Territory / Location Screen Interest in Asseta€ZUnderlying the Cinema Country Region Count(3) Count
Leased Owned Operating BrandsUnited States Hawaii 6 74 6 Consolidated Theatres California 6 72 6 Reading Cinemas, Angelika Film Center New York 3 16 2 1 Angelika Film Center Texas 1 8
1 Angelika Film Center New Jersey 1 12 1 Reading Cinemas Virginia 1 8 1 Angelika Film Center Washington, D.C. 1 3 1 Angelika Film Center U.S. Total 19 193 18 1 Australia Victoria 9 62 9
Reading Cinemas New South Wales 6 44 6 0 Reading Cinemas Queensland 7 64 4 3 Reading Cinemas, Angelika Cinemas, Event Cinemas(1) Western Australia 4 27 3 1 Reading Cinemas South
Australia 2 15 2 Reading Cinemas Tasmania 2 14 2 Reading Cinemas, State Cinema by Angelika Australia Total 30 226 26 4 New Zealand Wellington 2 15 1 1 Reading Cinemas Otago 3 152 1
Reading Cinemas, Rialto Cinemas(2) Auckland 2 15 2 Reading Cinemas, Rialto Cinemas(2) Canterbury 1 8 1 Reading Cinemas Southland 1 5 1 0 Reading Cinemas Bay of Plenty 1 5 0 1 Reading
Cinemas Hawke's Bay 1 4 0 1 Reading Cinemas New Zealand Total 11 67 7 4 GRAND TOTAL 60 486 51 9 (1)Our Company has a 33.3% unincorporated joint venture interest in a 16-screen
cinema located in Mt. Gravatt, Queensland managed by Event Cinemas.(2)Our Company is a 50% joint venture partner in two New Zealand Rialto Cinemas, with a total of 13 screens. We are
responsible for the booking of these cinemas and our joint venture partner, Event Cinemas, manages their day-to-day operations. Our cinema revenues consist primarily of cinema ticket sales,
F&B sales, screen advertising, gift card sales, cinema rentals, and online convenience fee revenue generated by the sale of our cinema tickets through our websites and mobile apps. Cinema
operating expenses consist of the costs directly attributable to the operation of the cinemas, including (i) film rent expense, (ii) operating costs, such as employment costs and utilities, and (iii)
occupancy costs. Cinema revenues and certain expenses fluctuate with the availability of quality first run films and the number of weeks such first run films stay in the market. For a breakdown
of our current cinema assets that we own and/or manage, please refer to Part I, Item 1 &€“ Our Business of our 2023 Form 10-K. We now present a discussion of recent material developments.
Cinema Additions and Pipeline The latest additions to our cinema portfolio as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, were as follows:i,- Armadale, Western Australia, Australia: On JanuaryA 13, 2023, we took
over an existing six-screen cinema in Armadale, Australia, a suburb of Perth in Western Australia. i,-South City Square, Brisbane, Australia: On AugustA 24, 2023, we launched our first-ever
Angelika Cinemas outside of the United States at South City Square in Woolloongabba, Brisbane. The location operates as an eight-screen complex, featuring elevated F&B offerings (including
alcoholic beverages), and recliner seating. Three of the auditoriums, known as Soho Lounge cinemas, offer table service. i,-Busselton, Western Australia, Australia: On SeptemberA 22,2023, we
opened a five-screen complex in the newly expanded Busselton Central Shopping Centre precinct of Busselton, Western Australia. The state-of-the-art complex features a TITAN LUXE screen,
elevated F&B offerings, and recliner seating. Our Board has also authorized management to proceed with the negotiation of lease for one new state-of-the-art cinema, located in Noosa,
Queensland, Australia. A 30 Cinema Upgrades As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, the upgrades to our cinema circuitsd€™ film exhibition technology and amenities over the years are as summarized in
the following table: Location Count Screena€ZCountScreen Format Digital (all cinemas in our cinema circuit)60 486IMAX1 1TITAN XC and TITAN LUXE26 32Dine-in Service Gold Lounge
(AU/NZ)(1)11 29Premium (AU/NZ)(2)17 45Spotlight (U.S.)(3)1 6Upgraded Food & Beverage menu (U.S.)(4)16 n/aPremium Seating (features recliner seating)33 198Liquor Licenses (5)49 n/a
(1)Gold Lounge: This is our "First Class Full Dine-in Service" in our Australian and New Zealand cinemas, which includes an upgraded F&B menu (with alcoholic beverages), luxury recliner
seating features (intimate 25-50 seat cinemas) and waiter service.(2)Premium Service: This is our "Business Class Dine-in Service" in our Australian and New Zealand cinemas, which typically
includes upgraded F&B menu (some with alcoholic beverages) and may include luxury recliner seating features (less intimate 80-seat cinemas), but no waiter service.(3)Spotlight Service: Our
first dine-in cinema concept in the U.S. at Reading Cinemas in Murrieta, California. Six of our 17 auditoriums at this cinema feature waiter service before the movie begins with a full F&B
menu, luxury recliner seating, and laser focus on customer service. Our Spotlight service has been temporarily suspended since the initial COVID-19 shutdown.(4)Upgraded Food & Beverage
Menu: Features an elevated F&B menu including a menu of locally inspired and freshly prepared items that go beyond traditional concessions, which we have worked with former Food Network
executives to create. The elevated menu also includes beer, wine and/or spirits at most of our locations.(5)Liquor Licenses: Licenses are applicable at each cinema location, rather than each
cinema auditorium. As of today, we (i) have licenses in 100% of our cinemas operating in the U.S. to sell beer and wine and (ii) we are working to add liquor to our licenses in our three New
York City cinemas. In Australia, 83% of our cinemas are licensed and we have one liquor license pending. In New Zealand, 45% of our cinemas are licensed and we have no liquor licenses
pending. Recent Enhancements United States i,-Renovation Work: As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, we have converted 110 of our 193 U.S. auditoriums to luxury recliner seating. As of the date of
this Report, we are continuing to engage in discussions with certain landlords in the U.S. about tenant allowances to upgrade certain U.S. cinemas. Australia and New Zealand i,-Other Cinema
Upgrades: In addition, during the three-year period of 2021 to 2023, we improved our Reading Cinemas in Epping (VIC), Sunbury (VIC) and the State Cinema (TAS) in Australia. During the
remainder of 2024, we will continue to focus on the enhancement of our proprietary online ticketing and Food & Beverage capabilities, together with improving and expanding our social media
platforms and interfaces and the development of a paid subscription plan, plus the relaunching of our loyalty program in Australia and New Zealand. These are intended to enhance the
convenience of our offerings and to promote guest affinity with the experiences and products we offer. Cinema Closures On MayA 7, 2023, The Hutt Pop-Up in New Zealand was permanently
closed due to the expiration of our lease for that location. We chose not to continue the cinema as it was only brought online as a a&€cepop upa€ to address a temporary opening in the market.
Since the fourth quarter of 2022, we have closed five cinema locations, all of which were loss makers: three in Hawaii, one in Northern California and one in Texas. A 31 Real Estate Overview
Through our various subsidiaries, we engage in the real estate business through the development, ownership, rental or licensing to third parties of retail, commercial, and live theatre assets.
Our real estate business is intended to create long-term value for our stockholders through the continuous improvement and development of our investment and operating properties, including
our ETCs, and has, in recent times and will over the next 12 months, assist our liquidity needs through various asset monetizations. In addition to owning the fee interests in nine of our cinemas
(as presented in the table under Cinema Exhibition Overview), as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, we: i,-own our 44 Union Square property in Manhattan comprised of retail and office space which is
currently in the lease-up phase. The cellar, ground floor, and second floor of the building are now fully leased to Petco, which is in occupancy of its premises on a full rent paying basis;i,-own
and operate two ETCs known as Newmarket Village (in a suburb of Brisbane) and the Belmont Common (in a suburb of Perth)in Australia; i,-own and operate another ETC known as Cannon
Park in Townsville, Australia, which is currently held for sale; i, own property assets in Wellington, New Zealand (including Courtenay Central , historically operated as an ETC), which are all
currently held for sale;i,-own and operate our administrative office building in South Melbourne, Australia; i,-own and operate the fee interests in two developed commercial properties in
Manhattan improved with live theatres comprised of a single stage in each location;i,-own a 75% managing member interest in a limited liability company which in turn owns the fee interest in
and improvements constituting our Cinemas 1,2,3 located in Manhattan; i,-own an approximately 26.6-acre property in Williamsport, Pennsylvania, which is currently being held for sale;
andi,-own approximately 201-acres principally in Pennsylvania from our legacy railroad business, including the Reading Viaduct in downtown Philadelphia.For a breakdown of our real estate
assets, made current by our discussion below, please refer to Part I, Item 1 4€“ Our Business of our 2023 Form 10-K. We now present a discussion of recent material developments. A 32 Real
Estate Held for Development The combination of the COVID-19 pandemic, the lack of any material U.S. public pandemic financial assistance due to our public company status, the 2023
Hollywood Strike, increased interest rates, inflation, increased labor costs, and decreases in the value of the Australian Dollar and New Zealand Dollar vise a vise the U.S. Dollar, have
significantly impacted our cinema operations and necessitated capital conservation to sustain our cinema operations and service our debt. This has required us to rethink our real estate
business plan and to monetize a number of properties that had pre-COVID been slated for long-term development. To date, we have monetized the following property assets: (i)Our non-income
producing land holdings in Coachella, California and Manukau, New Zealand;(ii)Our Redyard ETC in Auburn, Australia; (iii)Our Royal George live theatre complex in Chicago (slated for
redevelopment, and now being redeveloped for residential purposes by the new owner); (iv)The land underlying our cinema in Invercargill, New Zealand;(v)Our non-competitive four-screen
strata title cinema in Maitland, Australia; and (vi)Our administrative office building in Culver City, California. These properties were identified for sale and sold in significant part because of (i)
our need for liquidity due to the circumstances referred to above, (ii) the amount of capital required to materially increase their value in the immediate to mid-term, (iii) they were either non-
income producing or provided immaterial cash flow and (iv) in the case of our Culver City office building, the property was not required for our operations because it exceeded our office size
requirements. As of the date of this Report, we continue to have the following properties classified as held for sale: (i)The land underlying our cinema in Rotorua, New Zealand; (ii)Our
approximately 3.7 acre five-parcel assemblage in the entertainment center of Wellington, New Zealand, which includes the Courtenay Central building;(iii)Our ETC properties in Townsville
(QLD) in Australia known as Cannon Park; and(iv)Our approximately 24 acre Newberry Yard in Williamsport, Pennsylvania (also currently non-income producing). In the case of Rotorua,
Courtenay Central and Cannon Park, if the potential buyer elects to have a cinema use on the property, we intend to lease back our existing Reading Cinema or a potentially new cinema, in the
event the potential buyer elects to build a new cinema. Our remaining assets held for development include the Cinemas 1,2,3 in Manhattan, and our various historic railroad properties, the
principal of these being our holding in downtown Philadelphia, which is discussed in greater detail below. United States:i,-44 Union Square Redevelopment (New York, N.Y.) &€“ On

JanuaryA 27, 2022, we finalized a long-term lease agreement with Petco, securing occupancy of the cellar, ground floor, and second floor of the building, amounting to 42% of the leasable area.
Petco commenced full-rent, cash-paying occupancy and officially opened its doors to the public on JuneA 1, 2023. During mid-March 2024, we engaged George Comfort & Sons as our exclusive
leasing broker for the remaining space. Originally designated for office use, the property's striking presence in Union Square, coupled with the resurgence of foot traffic in the area, and its
exceptional branding potential, prompt us to explore a spectrum of uses beyond traditional office tenants. This includes consideration for short-term and special-purpose arrangements. Also, we
are advised by our broker that in the last two months there have been an increase in the number of inquiries regarding rates and availability compared to earlier periods in 2024.i,-i,-Minetta
Lane Theatre (New York, N.Y.) &€“ Prior to the pandemic, our theater hosted Audible productions featuring a limited cast and special live performances streamed on the Audible platform. Public
performances resumed on OctoberA 8, 2021, after an approximate 1.5-year hiatus due to the COVID-19 pandemic, during which we provided certain abatements. Audible has since resumed full
operations and extended its license agreement with us through MarchA 15, 2026, with an option to extend for an additional yearA 4€7 A 33 i,-Orpheum Theatre (New York, N.Y.) 4€“ Before
COVID-19, our Orpheum Theatre was home to STOMP. While shows ceased from April 2020 to June 2021 due to the pandemic, performances afterward were intermittent. During this time, we
provided certain abatements. STOMP concluded its 30-year run at our theater on JanuaryA 8, 2023. Under our termination agreement, we retain the rights to host any future productions of the
show. Following STOMP's departure, new productions such as The Empire Strips Back and Comedian Rachel Bloom's Death, Let Me Do My Show brought fresh excitement to audiences during
2023. During the first quarter of 2024, the Orpheum hosted Eddie Izzarda€™s Hamlet which had a four-week run through AprilA 14, 2024. And, on SeptemberA 14, 2024 performances of The
Big Gay Jamboree began at the Orpheum. This new show from a book by Marla Mindelle, the co-author and original star of the Off Broadway hit musical-comedy Titanique is being produced by
(i) LuckyChap, the producing team, which includes Margot Robbie, behindA BarbieA andA SaltburnA and (ii) multiple-Tony-winning Broadway producing veterans Sue Wagner and John Johnson
(Stereophonic, Lempicka). i,-Cinemas 1,2,3 (New York, N.Y.) &€“ Currently operated as the Cinemas 123 by Angelika, we have historically treated this property as an asset held for long term
development. However, in light of a variety of factors, such as market conditions in Manhattan for real estate assets, cost of capital and demands on our liquidity, we have begun to explore
alternatives for this property. These alternatives may include, again by way of example, the bringing in of a capltal partner, the entering into a long-term ground lease (which could serve as the
basis for medium to long term finance), and/or the sale (in whole or in part) of our interest in the property.A i,-The Philadelphia Viaduct and Adjacent Properties (Philadelphia, Pennsylvania) 4€“
The Reading Viaduct is an 0.7-mile-long raised rail bed and bridge system that spans the Callowhill and Poplar neighborhoods and extends to Vine Street in the heart of the city's Central
Business District, near the proposed new home of the Philadelphia 76ers. Comprising approximately 6.5 acres of land, along with various connecting bridges over public streets and sidewalks,
the Reading Viaduct represents a significant contiguous land holding unobstructed by public thoroughfares. While we believe there continues to be interest from the City of Philadelphia and the
City Center District in acquiring the Reading Viaduct for park purposes and while the City did pass an ordinance last year to facilitate an acquisition through condemnation, no concrete steps
have been taken to proceed with condemnation or transfer of the property. Recent developments in the area include the announcement of a $158A million federal grant for the Chinatown Stitch
project in mid-March 2024, which further highlight the potential of the Reading Viaduct. The Chinatown Stitch project aims to reconnect the Chinatown community and surrounding
neighborhoods by capping the Vine Street Expressway I-676, which directly intersects with the Reading Viaduct at Vine Street. We believe that capping the expressway at our property would
significantly enhance the attractiveness and viability of the Reading Viaduct for future development. i,-Australia:i,-Newmarket Village ETC (Brisbane, Australia) &€“ Through 2024 and into 2025
we plan to continue operating our Newmarket Village ETC, which includes Reading Cinemas as an anchor tenant. Our site includes a 23,218 square foot parcel adjacent to the center, improved
with an office building. Over the next few years, we will be evaluating different development options for this space. As of the date of this Report, the combined center and office building is 99%
leased.i,-Cannon Park Center ETC (Queensland, Australia) 4€“ We own two adjoining properties in Townsville, Queensland, Australia, (Cannon Park City Center and Cannon Park Discount
Center) comprising approximately 9.4-acres which we operate as our Cannon Park Center ETC. The total gross leasable area of the two properties is 126,368 square feet. Our six-screen
Reading Cinema is an anchor tenant. These properties are currently 94% leased. This property is currently being marketed for sale.i, The Belmont Common (Belmont, Perth, Australia) 4€“ The
total gross leasable area of the Belmont Common is 60,116 square feet. Our ten-screen Reading Cinema is the anchor tenant with six third-party tenants. The site is currently 100% leased. A 34
New Zealand:i,-Wellington, New Zealand, including Courtenay Central. &€“ Our Wellington properties include five contiguous parcels representing approximately 161,082 square feet of land
located in the entertainment core of Wellington and within walking distance and offering direct views of Wellington Harbor. Assembled over a period of years, we believe our properties
represent the largest commercial assemblage available anywhere in Wellington. After recently encountering certain challenges with our development plans, we engaged JLL as our exclusive
sales agent to market these key property assets that represent a once-in-a-lifetime development opportunity for a well-capitalized buyer. The June 2023 opening of Takina, Wellingtona€™s first
and state-of-the-art Convention and Exhibition Center (wcec.co.nz) directly across the street from our properties, the loosening of certain height and density restrictions, and the lack of
comparable building sites, are among the characteristics that we believe make this development site a generational opportunity.A i,-It is our intention to structure any monetization transaction
to preserve for us the right to lease or operate any cinema that is built or operated on the assemblage, in the future. For a complete list of our principal properties, see Part I, [tem 2 €
Properties under the heading a€celnvestment and Development Propertya€ in our 2023 Form 10-Ka€ Corporate Matters Refer to Part I 4€“ Financial Information, Item 1 a€“ Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements-- Note 17 &€“ Stock-Based Compensation and Stock Repurchases for details regarding our stock repurchase program and Board, Executive and Employee
stock-based remuneration programs. A 35 Please refer to our 2023 Form 10-K for more details on our cinema and real estate segments. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS The table below summarizes
the results of operations for each of our principal business segments along with the non-segment information for the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, and SeptemberA 30,
2023, respectively: Quarter Ended % Change Nine Months Ended % Change (Dollars in thousands) SeptemberA 30,2024 SeptemberA 30,2023 Fav/a€Z(Unfav) SeptemberA 30,2024
SeptemberA 30,2023 Fav/a€Z(Unfav)SEGMENT RESULTS Revenue Cinema exhibition $ 56,357 62,687 (10)% $ 140,570 $ 165,731 (15)% Real estate 4,898 5,056 (3)% 14,844 15,338 (3)% Inter-
segment elimination (1,165) (1,181) 1% (3,463) (3,644) 5% Total revenue 60,090 66,562 (10)% 151,951 177,425 (14)% Operating expense Cinema exhibition (50,535) (54,458) 7% (132,972)
(149,941) 11% Real estate (2,106) (2,281) 8% (6,801) (6,600) (3)% Inter-segment elimination 1,165 1,181 (1)% 3,463 3,644 (5)% Total operating expense (51,476) (55,558) 7% (136,310)
(152,897) 11% Depreciation and amortization Cinema exhibition (2,611) (2,784) 6% (7,753) (8,551) 9% Real estate (1,210) (1,624) 25% (4,084) (4,830) 15% Total depreciation and amortization
(3,821) (4,408) 13% (11,837) (13,381) 12% General and administrative expense Cinema exhibition (902) (1,050) 14% (2,973) (2,983) -% Real estate (186) (231) 19% (725) (696) (4)% Total



general and administrative expense (1,088) (1,281) 15% (3,698) (3,679) (1)% Segment operating income Cinema exhibition 2,309 4,395 (47)% (3,128) 4,256 (>100)% Real estate 1,396 920 52%
3,234 3,212 1% Total segment operating income (loss) $ 3,705 $ 5,315 (30)% $ 106 $ 7,468 (99)%NON-SEGMENT RESULTS Depreciation and amortization expense (106) (172) 38% (305) (527)
42% General and administrative expense (3,845) (4,124) 7% (11,928) (12,014) 1% Interest expense, net (5,229) (5,072) (3)% (15,766) (14,063) (12)% Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint
ventures 71 217 (67)% 164 443 (63)% Gain (loss) on sale of assets (208) 4€” 4€”% (1,324) 4€” -% Other income (expense) (715) 267 (>100)% (592) 356 (>100)% Income before income taxes
(6,327) (3,569) (77)% (29,645) (18,337) (62)% Income tax benefit (expense) (700) (896) 22% (321) (313) (3)%Net income (loss) (7,027) (4,465) (57)% (29,966) (18,650) (61)% Less: net income
(loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests (111) (65) (71)% (481) (361) (33)%Net income (loss) attributable to Reading International, Inc. $ (6,916) $ (4,400) (57)% $ (29,485) $ (18,289)
(61)%Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) (55)% $ (1.32) $ (0.82) (61)%A Consolidated and Non-Segment Results: Third Quarter Net Results Revenue Revenue for the quarter ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024, decreased by $6.5A million, to $60.1A million, compared to the same period in the prior year, primarily due to (i) lower attendance in all three countries as a result of
closing cinemas in the U.S. along with lower performing titles for our theaters in the third quarter of 2024 compared to 2023, (ii) slight decreases in property rent revenue in all three countries,
and (iii) lower U.S. live theatre revenue. The decrease in revenue was offset by the appreciation of the AU/NZ foreign exchange rates against US dollar. Revenue for the nine months ended
September 30, 2024, decreased by $25.5 million, to $152.0 million, when compared to the same period in the prior year. This decrease is attributable to lower cinema performances in all
countries, as a result of a decline in attendance, lower U.S. live theatre revenue and reduced rental income in the U.S. and New Zealand. A 36 Segment Operating Income/(Loss) Our total
segment operating income for the quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, decreased by $1.6A million, from a gain of $5.3A million to a gain of $3.7A million, primarily due to weaker attendance,
and lower global rent revenue. Our total segment operating income for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, decreased by $7.4 million, from an income of $7.5 million to an income of
$0.1 million, primarily due to (i) weakened cinema performance, as attendance declined year-over-year, and (ii) a loss in third party rental revenue in the U.S. and New Zealand. During the third
quarter of 2024, both the Australia and New Zealand dollars improved against the U.S. dollar. The average Australia dollar exchange rate against the U.S. dollar for the third quarter of 2024
increased 2.3% compared to the same period in 2023. The average New Zealand dollar exchange rate against the U.S. dollar for the third quarter of 2024 increased 1.1% compared to the same
period in 2023. The appreciation of the Australia and New Zealand currencies positively impacts segment operating income and negatively impacts segment operating loss in U.S. dollar terms
for the period. Net Income/(Loss) Our net loss attributable to Reading International, Inc. for the quarter ending SeptemberA 30, 2024, increased by $2.5A million, from a loss of $4.4A million to
a loss of $6.9A million, when compared to the same period in the prior year, primarily due to weakened cinema performance and increased interest expense, partially offset by reduced
depreciation expense. For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, net loss attributable to Reading International, Inc. increased by $11.2 million, from a loss of $18.3 million to a loss of
$29.5 million, when compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to decreased cinemas segment results, increased interest expense, and a loss on the sale of our Culver City
office building. Income Tax Expense Income tax expense for the three months ended September 30, 2024, decreased by $0.2 million compared to the equivalent prior-year period. The change
between 2024 and 2023 is primarily related to an increase in pretax loss in 2024. Income tax expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, increased by $0.01 million compared to
the equivalent prior-year period. The change between 2024 and 2023 is primarily related to an increase in unrecognized tax benefits in 2024, partially offset by an increased in pretax loss in
2024. 4€Z A 37 Business Segment Results Cinema Exhibition The following table details our cinema exhibition segment operating results for the quarter and nine months ended SeptemberA 30,
2024, and SeptemberA 30, 2023, respectively: Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended Fav/(Unfav)(Dollars in thousands)SeptemberA 30,2024% of RevenueSeptemberA 30,2023% of Revenue
SeptemberA 30,2024% of RevenueSeptemberA 30,2023% of Revenue Quarter 4€ZEndedNine Months EndedREVENUE United StatesAdmissions revenue$ 15,44527%$ 19,49531% $
39,36828%$ 50,25030% (21)% (22)% Food & beverage revenue 9,82417% 11,66319% 24,23717% 31,10819% (16)% (22)% Advertising and other revenue 2,5475% 3,0745% 6,9965% 8,7005%
(17)% (20)% $ 27,81649%$ 34,23255% $ 70,60150%$ 90,05854% (19)% (22)% AustraliaAdmissions revenue$ 14,44526%$ 14,91824% $ 35,55925%$ 39,42824% (3)% (10)% Food & beverage
revenue 8,69115% 7,85613% 20,80515% 21,01613% 11% (1)% Advertising and other revenue 1,6093% 1,4122% 4,2483% 3,8942% 14% 9% $ 24,74544%$ 24,18639% $ 60,61243%$
64,33839% 2% (6)% New ZealandAdmissions revenue$ 2,2154%$ 2,6684% $ 5,5594%$ 6,9894% (17)% (20)% Food & beverage revenue 1,3392% 1,3832% 3,2622% 3,7742% (3)% (14)%
Advertising and other revenue 2420% 2190% 5360% 5720% 11% (6)% $ 3,7967%$ 4,2707% $ 9,3577%$ 11,3357% (11)% (17)% Total revenue$ 56,357100%$ 62,688100% $ 140,570100%$
165,731100% (10)% (15)%OPERATING EXPENSE United StatesFilm rent and advertising cost$ (8,780)16%$ (10,876)17% $ (21,192)15%$ (27,563)17% 19% 23% Food & beverage cost
(2,632)5% (2,908)5% (6,550)5% (8,039)5% 9% 19% Occupancy expense (5,102)9% (6,265)10% (14,095)10% (18,768)11% 19% 25% Other operating expense (10,388)18% (11,722)19%
(28,485)20% (32,513)20% 11% 12% $ (26,902)48%$ (31,771)51% $ (70,322)50%$ (86,883)52% 15% 19% AustraliaFilm rent and advertising cost$ (6,775)12%$ (6,582)10% $ (16,170)12%$
(17,652)11% (3)% 8% Food & beverage cost (1,922)3% (1,670)3% (4,631)3% (4,407)3% (15)% (5)% Occupancy expense (4,673)8% (4,276)7% (13,612)10% (13,048)8% (9)% (4)% Other
operating expense (6,831)12% (6,576)10% (19,156)14% (18,104)11% (4)% (6)% $ (20,201)36%$ (19,104)30% $ (53,569)38%$ (53,211)32% (6)% (1)% New ZealandFilm rent and advertising
cost$ (1,048)2%%$ (1,190)2% $ (2,482)2%$ (3,164)2% 12% 22% Food & beverage cost (273)0% (273)0% (703)1% (731)0% -% 4% Occupancy expense (804)1% (792)1% (2,347)2% (2,357)1%
(2)% -% Other operating expense (1,306)2% (1,330)2% (3,549)3% (3,595)2% 2% 1% $ (3,431)6%$ (3,585)6% $ (9,081)6%$ (9,847)6% 4% 8% Total operating expense$ (50,534)90%$
(54,460)87% $ (132,972)95%$ (149,941)90% 7% 11%DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION, IMPAIRMENT AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE United StatesDepreciation and
amortization$ (1,262)2%$ (1,458)2% $ (3,784)3%$ (4,518)3% 13% 16% Impairment of long-lived assets 4€”0% a€”0% 4€”0% a€”0% (>100)%(>100)% General and administrative expense
(513)1% (672)1% (1,885)1% (1,839)1% 24% (3)% $ (1,775)3%$ (2,130)3% $ (5,669)4%$ (6,357)4% 17% 11% AustraliaDepreciation and amortization$ (1,237)2%$ (1,192)2% $ (3,619)3%$
(3,611)2% (4)% -% Impairment expense 4€”0% a€”0% a€”0% a€”0% -% -% General and administrative expense (389)1% (377)1% (1,087)1% (1,144)1% (3)% 5% $ (1,626)3%$ (1,569)3% $
(4,706)3%$ (4,755)3% (4)% 1% New ZealandDepreciation and amortization$ (112)0%$ (134)0% $ (350)0%$ (422)0% 16% 17% Impairment expense a€”0% a€”0% a€”0% &a€”0% -% -% General
and administrative expense (1)0% a€”0% (1)0% &€”0% -% -% $ (113)0%$ (134)0% $ (351)0%$ (422)0% 16% 17% Total depreciation, amortization, general and administrative expense$
(3,514)6%$ (3,833)6% $ (10,726)8%$ (11,534)7% 8% 7%OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) a€“ CINEMA United States$ (861)(2)%$ 3311% $ (5,390)(4)%$ (3,182)(2)% (>100)% (69)% Australia
2,9185% 3,5136% 2,3372% 6,3724% (17)% (63)% New Zealand 2520% 5511% (75)(0)% 1,0661% (54)%(>100)% Total Cinema operating income (loss)$ 2,3094%$ 4,3957% $ (3,128)(2)%$
4,2563% (47)%(>100)% Third Quarter Results RevenueFor the quarter ended September 30, 2024, cinema revenue decreased by $6.3 million, to $56.4 million when compared to the same
period in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to a global decline in attendance, in part due to the closure of the cinemas in the U.S. described above and a weaker slate of film in our
U.S. specialty cinemas. A 38 For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, cinema revenue decreased by $25.2 million, to $140.6 million compared to the same period in the prior year. This
decrease was primarily driven by (i) weaker movie slates as result of the 2023 Hollywood Strikes, (ii) weaker film slate in our U.S. specialty cinemas, (iii) four closed U.S. cinemas, and (iv) and
lower Average Ticket Price in AU and NZ, along with (v) a weakening of AU/NZ foreign exchange rates. This was offset by a higher Average Ticket Price in the U.S and higher global F&B per
capitas Cinema Segment Operating Income/(Loss) Cinema segment operating income for the quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, decreased by $2.1 million, from an income of $4.4 million to
an income of $2.3 million when compared to the same period in the prior year. This decline in operating income is due to a decrease in cinema revenue in the U.S. and New Zealand as a result
of lower attendance. Cinema segment operating loss for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, was $3.1 million compared to a gain of $4.3 million during the same period in the prior
year, primarily due to decreased attendance as a result of a weaker film slate as a result of the impacts of the 2023 Hollywood Strikes, in addition to a weaker film slate at our U.S. specialty
cinemas and the closure of multiple cinemas in the U.S. Operating Expense Operating expenses for the quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, decreased by $3.9A million, to $50.5A million,
compared to the same quarter in the prior year. Operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, decreased by $17.0 million, to $133.0 million, compared to the same time
period in the prior year. These decreases were due to decreased global film rent expense as a result of lower attendance, decreased food & beverage cost, primarily in the U.S., and reduced
U.S. occupancy costs offset by increases in Australia occupancy and other operating expenses. A 39 Real Estate The following table details our real estate segment operating results for the
quarters and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemherA 30, 2023, respectively: % Change Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended Fav/(Unfav)(Dollars in

thousands)SeptemberA 30,2024% ofa€ZRevenueSeptemberA 30,2023% ofa€ZRevenue SeptemberA 30,2024% ofa€ZRevenueSeptemberA 30,2023% ofa€ZRevenue Quarter EndedNine Months
EndedREVENUE UnitedA StatesLive theatre rental and ancillary income$ 3918%$ 4659% $ 1,2208%$ 1,3709% (16)% (11)% Property rental income 1,05321% 1,14923% 3,19222% 3,63224%
(8)% (12)% 1,44429% 1,61432% 4,41230% 5,00233% (11)% (12)% AustraliaProperty rental income 3,08263% 3,06361% 9,34263% 9,19160% 1% 2% NewA ZealandProperty rental income
3728% 3808% 1,0907% 1,1457% (2)% (5)% TotalA revenue $ 4,898100%$ 5,057100% $ 14,844100%$ 15,338100% (3)% (3)%OPERATING EXPENSE UnitedA StatesLive theatre cost$ (143)3%$
(122)2% $ (550)4%$ (476)3% (17)% (16)% Property cost (290)6% (466)9% (1,069)7% (1,132)7% 38% 6% Occupancy expense (220)4% (260)5% (676)5% (743)5% 15% 9% (653)13% (848)17%
(2,295)15% (2,351)15% 23% 2% AustraliaProperty cost (488)10% (548)11% (1,661)11% (1,653)11% 11% -% Occupancy expense (509)10% (505)10% (1,476)10% (1,477)10% (1)% -% (997)20%
(1,053)21% (3,137)21% (3,130)20% 5% -% NewA ZealandProperty cost (327)7% (273)5% (1,019)7% (810)5% (20)% (26)% Occupancy expense (129)3% (108)2% (350)2% (309)2% (19)% (13)%
(456)9% (381)8% (1,369)9% (1,119)7% (20)% (22)% TotalA operatingA expense $ (2,106)43%$ (2,282)45% $ (6,801)46%$ (6,600)43% 8% (3)%DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION, GENERAL
AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE UnitedA StatesDepreciation and amortization$ (673)14%$ (824)16% $ (2,089)14%$ (2,358)15% 18% 11% General and administrative expense (193)4%
(171)3% (673)5% (507)3% (13)% (33)% (866)18% (995)20% (2,762)19% (2,865)19% 13% 4% AustraliaDepreciation and amortization$ (490)10%$ (617)12% $ (1,632)11%$ (1,900)12% 21% 14%
General and administrative expense 7(0)% (60)1% (52)0% (189)1% >100% 72% (483)10% (677)13% (1,684)11% (2,089)14% 29% 19% NewA ZealandDepreCIatlon and amortization (47)1%
(183)4% (363)2% (572)4% 74% 37% General and administrative expense 4€”0% a€”0% &€”0% a€"0% -% -% (47)1% (183)4% (363)2% (572)4% 74% 37% TotalA depreciation, amortization,
generalA and administrative expense$ (1,396)29%$ (1,855)37% $ (4,809)32%$ (5,526)36% 25% 13%OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) - REAL ESTATE UnitedA States$ (75)(2)%$ (229)(5)% $ (645)
(4)%$ (214)(1)% 67%(>100)% Australia 1,60233% 1,33326% 4,52130% 3,97226% 20% 14% NewA Zealand (131)(3)% (184)(4)% (642)(4)% (546)(4)% 29% (18)%

TotalA realA estateA operatingA income (loss)$ 1,39629%$ 92018% $ 3,23422%$ 3,21221% 52% 1% Third Quarter Results Revenue Real estate revenue for the quarter ended SeptemberA 30,
2024, decreased slightly by $0.2 million, to $4.9A million, compared to the same period in the prior year. This revenue decrease was primarily due to the elimination of intercompany rent
income due to the sale of our Maitland property in the fourth quarter of 2023 and the third party and intercompany rent income loss from our Culver City office building due to the abandonment
by that tenant of their premises at the building in July 2023 (we subsequently sold the property in February 2024). Additionally, as a result of the Orpheum Theater being a€cedarka€ for July
and August 2024, there was a decrease in Live theater rental and ancillary income contributing to the real estate revenue being $0.1 million lower compared to the same period in the prior
year. For the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, real estate revenue decreased by $0.5 million, to $14.8 million, compared to the same period in the prior year. Aligning with the third
quarter of 2024, the slight decrease was due to the decrease in U.S. rental income, partially offset by the increase in rental income in Australia. Real Estate Segment Income/(Loss) Real estate
segment operating income for the quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 increased by $0.5A million to $1.4A million, compared to the same period in the prior year. This increase was primarily
due reduced operating expenses in the U.S. and Australia and reduced global depreciation and amortization. A 40 For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, real estate segment operating
income increased slightly to $3.2 million, compared to the same period in the prior year. This increase in operating income was due to lower depreciation and amortization expenses across all
three countries and lower general and administrative expense in Australia.A LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES Our Financing Strategy Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, we used cash
generated from operations and other excess cash to the extent not needed to fund capital investments contemplated by our business plan, to pay down our loans and credit facilities. This
provided us with availability under our loan facilities for future use and thereby, reduced interest charges. On a periodic basis, we reviewed the maturities of our borrowing arrangements and
negotiated renewals and extensions where necessary. However, disruptions to our cinema cash flow caused by the (i) COVID-19 pandemic and government efforts to address the pandemic, (ii)
the lack of receiving any U.S. federal COVID-19 pandemic funding (i.e. Payroll Protection Program and Shutter Venue Program) due to our public company status, (iii) the historic rise in interest
rates and inflation which occurred following the pandemic and (iv) the 2023 Hollywood Strikes, we have needed to defer capital expenditures and to rely on borrowings and the proceeds of
asset monetizations to cover our costs of operations, pay interest expense and pay down debt. Since MarchA 31, 2020, we have paid down our institutional debt by $48.0A million. Our bank
loans with Bank of America, NAB, and Westpac require that our Company comply with certain covenants. Furthermore, our Companya€™s use of loan funds from NAB and Westpac is limited
due to limitations on the expatriation of funds from Australia and New Zealand to the United States. We believe that our lenders understand that we are doing everything that can reasonably be
done, and that, generally speaking, our relationships with our lenders are good. While our Company believes that there will be recovery in the global cinema business, we still face
macroeconomic headwinds such as increased interest rates, inflation, supply chain issues and increased film rent, labor and operating costs, many of which are beyond our control. We have
taken a variety of steps across our various operating jurisdictions to reduce our spending, including, without limitation, deferring non-essential capital expenditures, deferring certain
operational expenses, renegotiating occupancy arrangements, deferring compensation expense and eliminating certain T&E expenses. We are closely monitoring our debt maturity dates to
arrange necessary amendments. In this third quarter of 2024, we have drawn an additional NZD $5.0 million loan from Westpac and extended the Santander loana€™s maturity to June 1, 2025.
In October 2024, we executed an amendment to our Bank of America loan to defer the monthly principal payments of $500,000 in October, November and December 2024 to the end of
December 2024. In October 2024, we obtained two further six-month extensions for the Valley National Bank loan, the first of which we exercised. As of September 30, 2024, we have debt of
$52.6A million coming due in the next 12 months. Notably, we expect that the recent reductions of federal funds rate in September 2024 (50 bps) and November 2024 (25 bps) will help ease the
pressure on our financing and have a favorable impact on our interest expense and financial results in the coming quarter. As discussed elsewhere in this Report, we believe that cinema cash
flow for the fourth quarter of this year and for 2025 will be strong. However, if our Company is unable to generate sufficient cash flow in the upcoming months, we will be required to adopt one
or more alternatives, such as reducing, delaying or eliminating planned capital expenditure, monetizing additional assets, restructuring our debt and/or our lease obligations or finding
additional sources of liquidity. In February 2024, we sold our Culver City office building for $10.0A million.A While we incurred a loss of $1.1A million on the transaction, we were able to reduce
debt by $8.4A million and to free up cash in the amount of $1.2A million which was used to support operational activities.A Further, due to the scope and extent of office vacancies in Los
Angeles County, we anticipate that we will be able to save approximately $1.5A million between now and the end of 2025 by moving to other premises. We listed as an asset held for sale our
Newberry Yard property in Williamsport, Pennsylvania.A This property was historically used as a rail yard, and, accordingly, improved with tracks and switches and has direct access to the
aread€™s rail system. A We carry the property on our books at a book value (the lower of cost or market, as opposed to fair market value) of $0.5A million.A This asset was selected since it is
currently non-income producing. Certain issues as to the location of various railroad rights of way have now been resolved on what we believe to be favorable terms and terms which enhance
the value of the property. In order to further bolster our liquidity and capital resources, in the second quarter 2024, we classified our Cannon Park property in Townsville, Australia and our
Wellington property assemblage in New Zealand, with book values of $19.5 million and $17.9 million, respectively, as properties held for sale. Our Wellington assemblage consists of five parcels
aggregating 161,082 square feet located in the entertainment center of Wellington and within walking distance of Wellington harbor, we are currently conducting a controlled auction of the
property through JLL. No assurances can be given that we will consummate a sale of such assets. We have also classified the land underlying our Rotorua, New Zealand as held for sale. In the
event that we cannot obtain sufficient net proceeds from the disposition of these assets (or determine to defer disposition due to unfavorable market conditions), in addition to other strategies,
we may look to monetize other real estate assets. A 41 For more information about our borrowings, please refer to Part I 4€“ Financial Information, Item 1 4€“ Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements-- Note 12 4€“ Borrowings. For more information about our efforts to manage our liquidity issues, see Part I- Financial Information, Item 1 4€“ Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements 4€“ Note 3 4€“ Liquidity and Impairment Assessment. The changes in cash and cash equivalents for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, and SeptemberA 30, 2023,



respectively, are discussed as follows: Nine Months Ended SeptemberA 30, (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 % Change Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (11,818) $ (6,366)
(86)%Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,989 (6,191) >100%Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,127 (3,886) >100%Effect of exchange rate on cash and
restricted cash 744 (897) >100%Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash $ (3,958) $ (17,340) 77% Operating activitiesCash used in operating activities for the nine
months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, increased by $5.5A million, toA $11.8A million compared to cash used in the same period of prior year of $6.4A million. This was primarily driven by an
increase in Net Loss and offset by an increase in net payables. Investing activitiesCash provided in investing activities during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 was $5.0 million
compared to cash used in the same period of prior year of $6.2A million. This was due to $9.7A million proceeds from sale of the Culver City office building in February 2024. Financing
activitiesCash provided in financing activities for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, increased by $6.0A million, to $2.1A million compared to cash used in the same prior year period.
This was primarily due to the new bridge loan of $13.9 million from NAB on April 10, 2024, and an increase of $3.2 million for Westpac loan on August 19, 2024. The increase was partially offset
by the payoff of the Citizens loan of $8.4 million, following the sale of the Culver City office buildings, the scheduled repayments of $4.0 million on the Bank of America Credit Facility, and $0.3
million debt repayment to Santander on August 23, 2024. The table below presents the changes in our total available resources (cash and borrowings), debt-to-equity ratio, working capital, and
other relevant information addressing our liquidity for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, and preceding four years: As of anda€Zfor thed€Z9-Monthsa€ZEnded Year Ended
December 31($ in thousands) September 30, 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020Total Resources (cash and borrowings) Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted) $ 10,083A $ 12,906A $ 29,947A $
83,251A $ 26,826A Unused borrowing facility 7,859A 7,859A 12,000A 12,000A 15,490A Restricted for capital projects 7,859A 7,859A 12,000A 12,000A 9,377A Unrestricted capacity 4€”
a€” 4€” a4€” 6,113A Total resources at period end 17,942A 20,765A 41,947A 95,251A 42,316A Total unrestricted resources at period end 10,083A 12,906A 29,947A 83,251A 32,939A Debt-
to-Equity Ratio Total contractual facility $ 222,876A $ 218,159A $ 227,633A $ 248,948A $ 300,449A Total debt (gross of deferred financing costs) 215,017A 210,300A 215,633A 236,948A
284,959A Current 52,624A 35,070A 38,026A 12,060A 42,299A Non-current 162,393A 175,230A 177,607A 224,888A 242,660A Finance lease liabilities 54A 83A 209A a€” 4€”Total book
equity 4,606A 32,996A 63,279A 105,060A 81,173A Debt-to-equity ratio 46.68A 6.37A 3.41A 2.26A 3.51A Changes in Working Capital Working capital (deficit)(1) $ (80,490) $ (88,373) $
(74,152) $ (6,673) $ (64,140)Current ratio 0.42A 0.30A 0.39A 0.94A 0.47A Capital Expenditures (including acquisitions) $ 4,571A $ 4,711A $ 9,780A $ 14,428A $ 16,759A (1)Our working
capital is reported as a deficit, as we receive revenue from our cinema business ahead of the time that we have to pay our associated liabilities. We use the money we receive to pay down our
borrowings in the first instance. A 42 As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, we had $10.1A million in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents compared to $12.9A million on DecemberA 31, 2023. On
SeptemberA 30, 2024, our total outstanding borrowings were $215.0A million compared to $210.3A million on DecemberA 31, 2023. We manage our cash, investments, and capital structure to
meet the short-term and long-term obligations of our business, while maintaining financial flexibility and liquidity. We forecast, analyze, and monitor our cash flows to enable investment and
financing within the overall constraints of our financial strategy. In the past, we used cash generated from operations and other excess cash to the extent not needed for any capital
expenditures, to pay down our loans and credit facilities providing us some flexibility on our available loan facilities for future use and thereby, reducing interest charges. CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATIONS, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES The following table provides information with respect to the maturities and scheduled principal repayments of our recorded
contractual obligations and certain of our commitments and contingencies, either recorded or off-balance sheet, as of SeptemberA 30, 2024: (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Thereafter TotalDebt(1) $ 22,303 $ 99,622 $ 65,179 $ 4€” $ a€” $ 4€” $ 187,1040perating leases, including imputed interest 30,862 29,623 27,239 23,460 21,834 113,572 246,590Finance
leases, including imputed interest 44 11 a€” a€” a€” a€” 55Subordinated debt(1) a€” a€” a€” 27,913 &€~ a€” 27,913Pension liability 132 547 576 607 638 443 2,94 3Interest on pension liability
39 137 108 77 45 11 417Estimated interest on debt (2) 4,650 11,060 5,293 1,317 4€” 4€” 22,320Village East purchase option(3) 5,900 4€” 4€” 4€” 4€” 4€” 5,900A Total $ 63,930 $ 141,000 $
98,395 $ 53,374 $ 22,517 $ 114,026 $ 493,242 (1)Information is presented gross of deferred financing costs.(2)Estimated interest on debt is based on the anticipated loan balances for future
periods and current applicable interest rates. A (3)Represents the lease liability of the option associated with the ground lease purchase of the Village East Cinema, which on August 12, 2024
was extended to November 30, 2024 and our sublease of the facility was extended until September 1, 2026. Litigation We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings and, as required,
have accrued estimates of probable and estimable losses for the resolution of these claims. Please refer to Part I, Item 3 4€“ Legal Proceedings in our 2023 Form 10-K for more information.
There have been no material changes to our litigation since our 2023 Form 10-K, except as set forth in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-- Note 15 &€“ Commitments and
Contingencies included herein in Part I 4€“ Financial Information, Item 1 4€“ Financial Statements on this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This note sets out our litigation accounting policies.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements There are no off-balance sheet arrangements or obligations (including contingent obligations) that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future
material effect on our financial condition, changes in the financial condition, revenue or expense, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources. CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES We believe that the application of the following accounting policies requires significant judgments and estimates in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial
Statements and hence, are critical to our business operations and the understanding of our financial results: (i) Impairment of Long-lived Assets (other than Goodwill and Intangible Assets with
indefinite lives) &€“ we evaluate our long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets using historical and projected data of cash flows as our primary indicator of potential impairment and we
take into consideration the seasonality of our business. If the sum of the estimated, undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, then an impairment is
recognized for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value based on an appraisal or a discounted cash flow calculation. For certain non-income
producing properties or for those assets with no consistent historical or projected cash flows, we obtain appraisals or other evidence to evaluate whether there are impairment indicators for
these assets. No impairment losses were recorded for long-lived and finite-lived intangible assets for the quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024. A 43 (ii) Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible
Assets with indefinite lives 4€“ goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but instead, tested for impairment at least annually on a reporting unit basis. The
impairment evaluation is based on the present value of estimated future cash flows of each reporting unit plus the expected terminal value. There are significant assumptions and estimates used
in determining the future cash flows and terminal value. The most significant assumptions include our cost of debt and cost of equity assumptions that comprise the weighted average cost of
capital for each reporting unit. Accordingly, actual results could vary materially from such estimates. No impairment losses were recorded for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for
the quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS Our statements in this quarterly report, including the documents
incorporated herein by reference, contain a variety of forward-looking statements as defined by the Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements can be identified by
words such as: "may," "will," "expect," "believe," "intend," "future," and "anticipate" and similar references to future periods. Examples of forward-looking statements include, among others, our
expectations regarding renovations and addition of cinemas; our beliefs regarding the impact of the 2023 Hollywood Strikes on the cinema business; our expected operating results, including
our ultimate return to pre-pandemic type results; our expectations regarding the recovery and future of the cinema exhibition industry, including the strength of movies anticipated for release
in the future; our expectations regarding people returning to our theatres and continuing to use discretionary funds on entertainment outside of the home; our beliefs regarding the impact of
our cinema-anchored real estate developments; our beliefs regarding the success of our diversified business strategy; our beliefs regarding the future of the Reading Viaduct; our expectations
regarding the impact of streaming and mobile video services on the cinema exhibition industry; our belief regarding the attractiveness of 44 Union Square to potential tenants and ability to
lease space on acceptable terms; our expectations regarding the timing of the completions our renovation projects; our expectations regarding the effects of our enhanced F&B offerings on our
operating results; our expectations regarding credit facility covenant compliance and our ability to continue to obtain necessary covenant waivers and loan extensions on terms acceptable to us;
and our expectations of our liquidity and capital requirements and the allocation of funds; our expectations regarding our ability timely monetize certain assets and to generate sufficient cash
proceeds from such sales; and our expectations concerning our ability to negotiate arrangements with our landlords to abate and/or defer the payment of rent; and our expectations regarding
the reduction of the federal funds rate on our liquidity. Forward-looking statements are neither historical facts nor assurances of future performance. Instead, they are based only on our current
beliefs, expectations and assumptions regarding the future of our business, future plans and strategies, projections, anticipated events and trends, the economy and other future conditions.
Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, they are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict and many of which are
outside of our control. Our actual results and financial condition may differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. Therefore, you should not rely on any of these
forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause our actual results and financial condition to differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements include,
among others, the following: i,-with respect to our cinema and live theatre operations:i,-reduced consumer demand due to inflationary pressures;i,-the adverse continuing effects of external
events of the past COVID-19 pandemic and Hollywood Strikes on our Companya€™s results from operations, liquidity, cash flows, financial condition, and access to credit markets;i,-the adverse
continuing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic or other contagious diseases on short-term and/or long-term entertainment, leisure and discretionary spending habits and practices of our
patrons;i,-the decrease in attendance at our cinemas and theatres due to (i) increased ticket prices (ii) a change in consumer i,-behavior in favor of alternative forms or mediums of
entertainment, and (iii) limited availability of wide release content;i,-reduction in operating margins (or negative operating margins) due to (i) decreased attendance, (ii) limited availability of
wide release content, and (iii.) increased operating expenses; i,-unwillingness of employees to report to work due to the adverse effects of contagious diseases or to otherwise conduct work
under any revised work environment protocols;i,-competition from cinema operators who have successfully used debtor laws to reduce their debt and/or rent exposure;i,-the uncertainty as to
the scope and extent of our government's responses to future outbreak of infectious diseases;i,-the disruptions or reductions in the utilization of entertainment, shopping, and hospitality venues,
as well as in our operations, due to pandemics, epidemics, widespread health emergencies, or outbreaks of infectious diseases or to changing consumer tastes and habits;i,-the number and
attractiveness to moviegoers of the films released in future periods, and potential changes in release dates for motion pictures;i,-the lack of availability of films in the short- or long-term as a
result of (i) major film distributors releasing scheduled films on alternative channels or (ii) disruptions of film production or (iii) rescheduling of movie releases into later periods, as most
currently experienced due to the effects of the 2023 Hollywood Strikes;A i,-the amount of money spent by film distributors to promote their motion pictures;i,-the licensing fees and terms
required by film distributors from motion picture exhibitors in order to exhibit their films; A 44 i,-the comparative attractiveness of motion pictures as a source of entertainment and willingness
and/or ability of consumers (i) to spend their dollars on entertainment and (ii) to spend their entertainment dollars on movies in an outside-the-home environment;A A i,-the extent to which we
encounter competition from other cinema exhibitors, from other sources of outside-the-home entertainment, and from inside-the-home entertainment options, such as &€cchome cinemasa€ and
competitive film product distribution technology, such as, streaming, cable, satellite broadcast, video on demand platforms, and Blu-ray/DVD rentals and sales;i,-our ability to continue to obtain,
to the extent needed, waivers or other financial accommodations from our lenders and landlords;i,-the impact of major movies being released directly to one of the multitudes of streaming
services available;i,-the impact of certain competitorsa€™ subscription or advance pay programs;A i,-the failure of our new initiatives to gain significant customer acceptance and use or to
generate meaningful profits;i,-the cost and impact of improvements to our cinemas, such as improved seating, enhanced F&B offerings, and other improvements;i,-the ability to negotiate
favorable rent abatement, deferral and repayment terms with our landlords (which may include lenders who have foreclosed on the collateral held by our prior landlords);i,-disruptions during
cinema improvements; i,-in the U.S., the impact of the termination and phase-out of the so called 4€ceParamount Decree;a€i,-the risk of damage and/or disruption of cinema businesses from
earthquakes as certain of our operations are in geologically active areas;i,-the impact of protests, demonstrations, and civil unrest on, among other things, government policy, consumer
willingness to go to the movies; A i,-labor shortages and increased labor costs related to such shortages and to increasingly costly labor laws and regulations applicable to part time non-exempt
workers. Disruptions in film supply and film marketing due to the 2023 Hollywood Strikes; andji,-the ability to negotiate terms and conditions, including price, for the asset monetization
transactions for the assets we have held for sale as of June 30, 2024.1,-with respect to our real estate development and operation activities:i,-the increased costs of wages, supplies, services and
other development expenses from inflation;i,-the impact on tenants from inflationary pressures;i,-uncertainty as to governmental responses to infectious diseases;i,-the rental rates and
capitalization rates applicable to the markets in which we operate and the quality of properties that we own;i,-the ability to negotiate and execute lease agreements with material tenants;i,-the
extent to which we can obtain on a timely basis the various land use approvals and entitlements needed to develop our properties;i,-the risks and uncertainties associated with real estate
development;i,-the availability and cost of labor and materials;i,-the ability to obtain all permits to construct improvements;i,-the ability to finance improvements, including, but not limited to
increased cost of borrowing and tightened lender credit policies;i,-the disruptions to our business from construction and/or renovations;i,-the possibility of construction delays, work stoppage,
and material shortage;i,-competition for development sites and tenants;i,-environmental remediation issues; i,-the extent to which our cinemas can continue to serve as an anchor tenant that
will, in turn, be influenced by the same factors as will influence generally the results of our cinema operations;i,-the increased depreciation and amortization expense as construction projects
transition to leased real property;i,-the ability to negotiate and execute joint venture opportunities and relationships;i,-the risk of damage and/or disruption of real estate businesses from
earthquakes as certain of our operations are in geologically active areas;i,-the disruptions or reductions in the utilization of entertainment, shopping and hospitality venues, as well as in our
operations, due to pandemics, epidemics, widespread health emergencies, or outbreaks of infectious diseases, or to changing consumer tastes and habits; and A 45 i,-the impact of protests,
demonstrations, and civil unrest on government policy, consumer willingness to visit shopping centers.A i,-with respect to our operations generally as an international company involved in both
the development and operation of cinemas and the development and operation of real estate and previously engaged for many years in the railroad business in the United States:i,-our ability to
renew, extend, renegotiate or replace our loans that mature in 2024 and beyond, and the impact of increasing interest rates;i,-our ability to grow our Company and provide value to our
stockholders;A i,-our ongoing access to borrowed funds and capital and the interest that must be paid on that debt and the returns that must be paid on such capital, and our ability to borrow
funds to help cover the cessation of cash flows we experienced during the COVID-19 pandemic;i,-our ability to reallocate funds among jurisdictions to meet short-term liquidity needs;i,-the
relative values of the currency used in the countries in which we operate;A i,-changes in government regulation, including by way of example, the costs resulting from the requirements of
Sarbanes-Oxley and other increased regulatory requirements;A i,-our labor relations and costs of labor (including future government requirements with respect to minimum wages, shift
scheduling, the use of consultants, pension liabilities, disability insurance and health coverage, and vacations and leave);i,-our exposure from time to time to legal claims and to uninsurable
risks, such as those related to our historic railroad operations, including potential environmental claims and health-related claims relating to alleged exposure to asbestos or other substances
now or in the future recognized as being possible causes of cancer or other health related problems, and class actions and private attorney general wage and hour and/or safe workplace-based
claims;i,-our exposure to cybersecurity risks, including misappropriation of customer information or other breaches of information security;i,-the impact of future major outbreaks of contagious
diseases;i, the availability of employees and/or their ability or willingness to conduct work under any revised work environment protocols; A i,-the increased risks related to employee matters,
including increased employment litigation and claims relating to terminations or furloughs caused by cinema and ETC closures;i,-our ability to generate significant cash flow from operations if
our cinemas and/or ETCs continue to experience demand at levels significantly lower than historical levels, which could lead to a substantial increase in indebtedness and negatively impact our
ability to comply with the financial covenants, if applicable, in our debt agreements;i,-our ability to comply with credit facility covenants and our ability to obtain necessary covenant waivers and
necessary credit facility amendments;i,-changes in future effective tax rates and the results of currently ongoing and future potential audits by taxing authorities having jurisdiction over our
various companies; i,-inflationary pressures on labor and supplies, and supply chain disruptions; i,-changes in applicable accounting policies and practices;i,-changes in future effective tax rates
and the results of currently ongoing and future potential audits by taxing authorities having jurisdiction over our various companies; i,-the impact of the conflict events occurring in Eastern
Europe and the threats of potential conflicts in the Asia-Pacific region; andi,-the impact of the conflict events occurring in Israel and the threats of other potential conflicts in the Middle East.
The above list is not necessarily exhaustive, as business is by definition unpredictable and risky, and subject to influence by numerous factors outside of our control, such as changes in



government regulation or policy, competition, interest rates, supply, technological innovation, changes in consumer taste and fancy, weather, earthquakes, pandemics, and the extent to which
consumers in our markets have the economic wherewithal to spend money on beyond-the-home entertainment. Refer to Item 1A - Risk Factors, as well as the risk factors set forth in any other
filings made under the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, including any of our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, for more information. Given the variety and unpredictability of the factors that
will ultimately influence our businesses and our results of operation, no guarantees can be given that any of our forward-looking statements will ultimately prove to be correct. Actual results
will undoubtedly vary and there is no guarantee as to how our securities will perform either when considered in isolation or when compared to other securities or investment opportunities.
Forward-looking statements made by us in this quarter report are based only on information currently available to us and are current only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended SeptemberA 30, 2024. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or to revise any of our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise, A 46 except as may be required under applicable law. Accordingly, you should always note the date to which our forward-looking statements speak.. A 47 Item 3 4€“
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk The SEC requires that registrants include information about potential effects of changes in currency exchange and interest rates in
their filings. Several alternatives, all with some limitations, have been offered. We base the following discussion on a sensitivity analysis that models the effects of fluctuations in currency
exchange rates and interest rates. This analysis is constrained by several factors, including the following:i,-It is based on a single point in time; andji, It does not include the effects of other
complex market reactions that would arise from the changes modeled. Although the results of such an analysis may be useful as a benchmark, they should not be viewed as forecasts. Currency
Risk While we report our earnings and net assets in U.S. dollars, substantial portions of our revenue and of our obligations are denominated in either Australian or New Zealand dollars. The
value of these currencies can vary significantly compared to the U.S. dollar and compared to each other. We do not hedge the currency risk, but rather have relied upon the natural hedges that
exist as a result of the fact that our film costs are typically fixed as a percentage of the box office, and our local operating costs and obligations are likewise typically denominated in local
currencies. However, we do have intercompany debt and our ability to service this debt could be adversely impacted by declines in the relative value of the Australian and New Zealand dollars
compared to the U.S. dollar. Also, our use of local borrowings to mitigate the business risk of currency fluctuations has reduced our flexibility to move cash between jurisdictions. Set forth
below is a chart of the exchange ratios between these two currencies in relation to US dollars since 1996: In recent periods, we have paid material intercompany dividends and have repaid
intercompany debt, using these proceeds to fund capital investment in the United States. Accordingly, our debt levels in Australia are higher than they would have been if funds had not been
returned for such purposes. On a company wide basis, this means that a reduction in the relative strength of the U.S. dollar versus A 48 the Australian dollar and/or the New Zealand dollar
would effectively raise the overall cost of our borrowing and capital and make it more expensive to return funds from the United States to Australia and New Zealand. Our Company transacts
business in Australia and New Zealand and is subject to risks associated with fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates. During the third quarter of 2024, the average Australian dollar and
New Zealand dollar strengthened against the U.S. dollar by 2.3% and 1.1%, respectively, compared to the same prior year period. However, on a year-to-date basis, the average Australian
dollar and New Zealand dollar weakened against the U.S. Dollar by 1.0% and 1.3%, respectively. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, approximately 38.1% and 9.3% of our assets were invested in assets
denominated in Australian dollars (Reading Entertainment Australia) and New Zealand dollars (Reading New Zealand), respectively, including approximately $6.3A million in cash and cash
equivalents. At DecemberA 31, 2023, approximately 36.4% and 8.9% of our assets were invested in assets denominated in Australian dollars (Reading Entertainment Australia) and New Zealand
dollars (Reading New Zealand), respectively, including approximately $5.8A million in cash and cash equivalents. Our policy in Australia and New Zealand is to match revenues and expenses,
whenever possible, in local currencies. As a result, we have procured a majority of our expenses in Australia and New Zealand in local currencies. Despite this natural hedge, recent movements
in foreign currencies and the current holding of U.S. dollars by certain Australian and New Zealand subsidiaries have had an effect on our current earnings. The effect of the translation
adjustment on our assets and liabilities noted in our other comprehensive income was an increase of $1.6A million for the quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024. As we continue to progress our
acquisition and development activities in Australia and New Zealand, no assurances can be given that the foreign currency effect on our earnings will not be material in the future. Historically,
our policy has been to borrow in local currencies to finance the development and construction of our long-term assets in Australia and New Zealand. As a result, the borrowings in local
currencies have provided somewhat of a natural hedge against the foreign currency exchange exposure. We have also historically paid management fees to the U.S. to cover a portion of our
domestic overhead. The fluctuations of the Australian and New Zealand currencies, however, may impact our ability to rely on such funding for ongoing support of our domestic overhead. We
record unrealized foreign currency translation gains or losses that could materially affect our financial position. As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, and DecemberA 31, 2023, the balance of cumulative
foreign currency translation adjustments were approximately a ($1.0)A million loss and ($1.0)A million loss, respectively. Interest Rate Risk Our exposure to interest rate risk arises out of our
long-term floating-rate borrowings. To manage the risk, we utilize interest rate derivative contracts to convert certain floating-rate borrowings into fixed-rate borrowings. It is our
Companya€™s policy to enter into interest rate derivative transactions only to the extent considered necessary to meet its objectives as stated above. Our Company does not enter into these
transactions or any other hedging transactions for speculative purposes. Historically, we maintain most of our cash and cash equivalent balances in short-term money market instruments with
original maturities of three months or less. Due to the short-term nature of such investments, a change of 1% in short-term interest rates would not have a material effect on our financial
condition. The negative spread between our borrowing costs and earned interest will exacerbate as we hold cash to provide a safety net to meet our expenses. We have a combination of fixed
and variable interest rate loans. In connection with our variable interest rate loans, a change of approximately 1% in short-term interest rates would have resulted in an approximate $518,000
increase or decrease in our quarterly interest expense. For further discussion on market risks, please refer to Part I, Item 1A 4€“ Risk Factors included on our 2023 Form 10-K.A A 49 Item 4
4€“ Controls and Procedures We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our Companya€™s reports filed under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 4€eExchange Acta€), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECa€™s rules and forms and
that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and our management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of
possible controls and procedures. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such, term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act. Based upon that evaluation, we concluded that, as of
SeptemberA 30, 2024, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There were no other changes in our internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during the third quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 4€Z A 50 PART II 4€“ Other Information Item 1 4€“ Legal Proceedings The information required under Part II,
Item 1 (Legal Proceedings) is incorporated by reference to the information contained in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-- Note 15 4€“ Commitments and Contingencies included
herein in Part I &€“ Financial Information, Item 1 &€“ Financial Statements on this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. For further details on our legal proceedings, please refer to Part I, Item 3 a€“
Legal Proceedings, contained in our 2023 Form 10-K. Item 1A 4€“ Risk Factors There have been no material changes to the risk factors we previously disclosed in Item 1A of our 2023 Form 10-
K. We encourage investors to review the risks and uncertainties relating to our business disclosed under the heading Risk Factors or otherwise in the 2023 Form 10-K, as well as those
contained in Part I 4€“ Forward-Looking Statements thereof, as revised or supplemented by our Quarterly Reports filed with the SEC since the filing of the 2023 Form 10-K. Item 2 &4€“ Sales of
Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds None. Item 3 a4€“ Defaults upon Senior Securities None. Item 4 &€“ Mine Safety Disclosure Not applicable. Item 5 &€“ Other Information During the
quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, no director or officer of the Company adopted or terminated a 4€ceRule 10b5-1 trading arrangementa€ or a 4€cenon-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangementa€
(in each case, as defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K).4€Z A 51 Item 6 4€“ Exhibits 10 1 10.1*Letter of Variation dated August 09, 2024, between Westpac New Zealand Limited and Reading
Courtenay Central Limited31.1*Certification of the Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.31.2*Certification of the Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.32**Certifications Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.101The following material from our Companya€™s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, formatted in iXBRL (Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii)
Consolidated Statements of Income, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.104Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in iXBRL and contained in Exhibit 101) * Filed herewith** Furnished herewith A 52 SIGNATURES Pursuant to the
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. READING
INTERNATIONAL, INC. Date: NovemberA 14, 2024 By: /s/ Ellen M. CotterEllen M. CotterPresident and Chief Executive Officer Date: NovemberA 14, 2024 By: /s/ Gilbert AvanesGilbert
AvanesExecutive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer A 53 EX-10.1 2 rdi-20240930xex10 1.htm EX-10.1 Exhibit 10.1Westpac Letter of Variation Aug 2024 i»¢ i»¢ Exhibit 10.1
i»¢ i»¢ A Auckland 1010, NZA A A A i»¢ A Westpac New Zealand Limited Level 4, Clty51de Westpac on Takutai Square, Auckland 1010, NZ PO Box 7740, Victoria Street West, Auckland
1142, NZ SPECIALISED BUSINESS SERVICES A i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ 09A AugustA 2024 i»¢ i»¢ TheA Directors ReadingA CourtenayA CentralA LimitedA C/-A ReadingA InternationalA LimitedA
59954 SepulvedaA Blvd SuiteA 300A CulverA City CaliforniaA 90230 UnitedA StatesA ofA America i»¢ i»¢ DearA Directors, i»¢

BANKINGA FACILITIESA 4€“A READINGA COURTENAYA CENTRALA LIMITED i»¢ i»¢

WeA areA pleasedA toA confirmA thatA weA haveA approvedA theA followmgA changesA toA yourA hankmgA arrangements: 1»¢ THEA CHANGES

AsA itA relatesA toA yourA bankmgA arrangementsA forA theA MultiA OptlonA CreditA LineA agreementA datedA 7A OctoberA 2016,A asA amendedA fromA timeA toA time: i»¢

1.TheA limitA ofA theA MOCLA shallA beA increasedA toA $18,840,000A (+5,000, 000) i»g

2.TheA ex1st1ngA EqultyA ratioA apphcableA toA yourA bankmgA arrangementsA isA amendedA asA follows:

DurmgA theA termA ofA theA facilitiesA prov1dedA toA youA byA WestpacA NZ,A youA willA maintainA Shareholdersa€™ A FundsA ofA notA lessA thanA 40%A ofA AdjustedA TangibleA Assets,
forA theA penodA 1A ApnlA toA 30A ]uneA 2024A (inclusive)A withA suchA ratioA toA be: (i)NotA lessA thanA 35%A fromA 1A]ulyA toA 30A SeptemberA 2024A (inclusive)

(ii)NotA lessA thanA 40%A fromA 1A OctoberA 2024A andA thereafter.

ThisA covenantA shallA beA testedA quarterlyA fromA 30A JuneA 2024A andA thereafterA onA theA ReportingA DateA byA WestpacA NZA inA itsA absoluteA discretion. i»¢

3. TestlngA ofA theA InterestA CoverA RatioA covenant,A apphcableA toA yourA bankmgA arrangements,

willA beA waivedA forA theA financialA quartersA endingA 30A SeptemberA 2024A andA 31A DecemberA 2024. i»¢

4.DuringA theA termA ofA theA facilitiesA providedA toA youA byA WestpacA NZ,A youA willA not,A withoutA WestpacA NZ&€™sA priorA writtenA consent,A repayA anyA shareholdersa€™ A adv
i»; CREDITA FEESA ANDA CHARGES EstablishmentA FeeA ofA $5,000A isA payableA onA theA dateA ofA executionA ofA thisA agreement. Classification:A PROTECTED A A A i»¢ i»¢

THEA CONDITIONSA OFA APPROVAL Nil. i»¢ InA allA otherA respectsA yourA bankmgA arrangementsA remainA unchanged. i»¢

IfA theA termsA ofA thisA letterA areA acceptableA toA you,A pleaseA signA thisA letter,A arrangeA forA allA guarantorsA toA signA it,A andA returnA it.A TheA changesA willA takeA effectA fror
i»¢

ThisA letterA mayA beA executedA inA twoA orA moreA counterparts, A allA ofA whichA willA beA deemedA toA constituteA theA sameA instrument.A WestpacA NZA mayA acceptA asA anA origit
i»¢ ThisA offerA isA openA forA acceptanceA untilA 5.00A pmA onA 26A AugustA 2024A YoursA  faithfully, WESTPACA NEWA ZEALANDA LIMITED i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Jennifer Wood JenmferA Wood
SENIORA MANAGER SPECIALISEDA BUSINESSA SERVICES Classification:A PROTECTED A A A ACCEPTANCE i»¢ WeA acceptA theA changesA describedA inA thisA letter. i»¢

SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA Borrower,A ReadingA CourtenayA CentralA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ A /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ A /s/ Steve LucasA Director i»¢

DateA ofA acceptance: A 14/08/2024 i i»¢ i»¢ GUARANTOR' SA CONSENT i»¢

WeA confirmA thatA ourA guaranteeA isA notA affectedA byA theA changesA referredA toA inA thisA letter.A SignedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor,A ReadingA NewA ZealandA Limited,A by:
i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ i¢ i»¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i»¢ DateA ofA acceptance A A 14/08/2024 i»¢ i»¢ ing

SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor,A ReadlngA CinemasA CourtenayA CentralA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ Iv¢ Iv¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ I»¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i e
DateA ofA acceptance AA 14/08/2024 Classification: A PROTECTED A A A SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor, A ReadingA NewA LynnA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director
D¢ Ir¢ D¢ iv¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i»¢ DateA ofA acceptance A A 14/08/2024 i D¢ Ive SignedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor, A ReadlngA DunedinA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M.
CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ iv¢ iv¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i i»¢ DateA ofA acceptance: AA 14/08/2024 i»¢ i»¢, S1gnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor,A ReadingA QueenstownA Limited,A by: i»¢
i»¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ Is/ Steve LucasA Director i g DateA ofA acceptance:A A 14/08/2024 i ing irg ive

SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor,A ReadmgA RestaurantsA NZA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i 1»¢

DateA ofA acceptance:A A 14/08/2024 Classification:A PROTECTED A A A SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor,A CourtenayA CarA ParkA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M.

CotterA Director i I»¢ I»¢ 1»¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i»¢ DateA ofA acceptance: A A 14/08/2024 i 1>>¢ i»¢

SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor,A ReadingA WelllngtonA Proper‘tlesA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i»¢

DateA ofA acceptance: AA 14/08/2024 1»¢ D»¢ i»¢ SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor, A QueenstownA LandA HoldlngsA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ Is/
Steve LucasA Director i»¢ DateA ofA acceptance: A A 14/08/2024 i I ivg e SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor, A DarnelleA EnterprlsesA Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director
I»¢ I»¢ »¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i»¢ DateA ofA acceptance: :A A 14/08/2024 1 i»g Ir¢ SignedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor,A MovielandA CinemasA (NZ)A Limited,A by: i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M.
CotterA Director i i»¢ I»¢ i»¢ /s/ Steve LucasA Director i»¢ DateA ofA acceptance: AA 14/08/2024 i»¢,

SlgnedA onA behalfA ofA theA guarantor,A NewA ZealandA EquipmentA SupplyA Limited,A by: Classification: :APROTECTED A A A i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Ellen M. CotterA Director i»¢ i»¢ i»¢ /s/ Steve
LucasA Director i»; DateA ofA acceptance:A A 14/08/2024 i»¢ Classification:A PROTECTED A A EX-31.1 3 rdi-20240930xex31 1.htm EX-31.1 Exhibit 31.1 CEO Sec 302 Certification EXHIBIT
31.1 i»¢ CERTIFICATIONA OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002 i»¢ I, Ellen M. Cotter, certify that: i»¢ 1) I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Reading International, Inc.; i»¢ 2) Based on my knowledge, this report does
not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; i»¢ 3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; i»¢ 4) The registrant's other
certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andA A have: i»¢ a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external



purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d. disclosed in this report any
change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and i»¢ 5) The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): i»¢ a) all significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record,

20240930xex31_2.htm EX-31.2 Exhibit 31 2 CFO Sec 302 Certification EXHIBIT 31 2 i»¢ CERTIFICATIONA OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-
14(a)/15d-14(a) AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 i»¢ I, Gilbert Avanes, certify that: i»¢ 1) [ have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q of Reading International, Inc.; i»¢ 2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; i»¢ 3) Based on my knowledge, the
financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; i»¢ 4) The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: i»¢
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b) designed such
internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; c) evaluated the effectiveness of the
registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and i»¢ 5) The registrant's other certifying
officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): i»¢ a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. i»¢ i»¢ By:AA A A A A A A A /s/ Gilbert Avanes Gilbert Avanes Executive
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer November A 14, 2024 EX-32 5 rdi-20240930xex32.htm EX-32 Exhibit 32 CEO.CFO Sec 906 Certification EXHIBIT 32 i»¢, CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO18 U.S.C.A A SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 i»¢ i»¢ Ellen M. Cotter, Chief Executive Officer, and Gilbert
Avanes, Chief Financial Officer, of Reading International, Inc. (the &€ceCompanyé€), pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
do each hereby certify, that, to his or her knowledge: i»¢ A- The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September A 30, 2024 (the "Report") of the Company fully complies with
the requlrements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) as applicable, of the Securltles Exchange Act of 1934 and A- The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the

20240930x10qg001 Jjpg M_IC X 02D9)1@ 108 8 1@ # VPI# (1 0(! O(" @(" @(" PA# P,# M P8$! ,%!P8'IP<&!P<("0L)" @*" <"'@T*"@L # P,IPD.#PT, #@L,# S_MVP!# 0(" @,# P8# P8," <(# P,#
P#P#P#P#HP#P#D#DP M#P#P#P#P#DP#P#P#SP1"I[/X#2(A$! Q$! \0 M'P 04! 0$! 0% $" P0%!@<("OH+ \0 M1 @$# P($ P4% M! 0 %] O(#
0111(A,4$&$U%AIR)Q%#*!D:$((T*QP152T? D,V)R@@D* M%A<8&1HE)B7]#A(6&AXB)BI*3E)66 EYBIFJ*CI*6 FIZBIJK*SM+6VM[BYNL+#Q,7& MQ\C)RM+3U-76UJCO9VN'BX~3EYN?
HZ>KQ\O/T]?;W~/GZ \0 'P$ P$! 0$! M 0$! 0 $" P0%!@<("0OH+ \0 M1$ @$"! 0#! <%! 0 0)W $" M Q$$!12$Q!A)140=A<1,B,H$(%$*1H;'!"2,540 58G+1"A8D-.$E\1<8&1HF M)R@I*C4V-S@Y.D-
$149'2$E*4U155E=865ICI&5FIVAIL:G-T=79W>'EZ@H.$ MAS:'B(F*DI.4E9:7F)F:H].DI.:GJ*FJLK.TM;: WN+FZPL/$Q<;'R,G*TM/4 MU=;7V-G:XN/DY>;GZ.GN\O/T1>;W~/GZ JH # ,! (1 Q$
[P#]~*kek "B MBB@ JAXH\4:9X'\,ZCK>MZC8:/HVCVLM[?W][<); VME;Q(7DFED, V=?"FNKIWP@"~'FHQZ;JL&GRLK>)] M4@"-.+LX!: VN@\:0=1\1=6\,>)0$%S\$=2L MMD=]X9TWPHFCW=BS
2H6-XDE[$2CHO#* 4*GIR2?BWXD?\%!/CS\8XXX_%0Q MK~ +7B:*%S)"JGB[4+N.)B_@[~W?\ M"Q? ?Q \9W%]X@\6:71=QHTVKW$UAK\<]RD!M;F!F*2(RRNH)4LA;>A5U5A_ M:'0 4444 %%%%
11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%9 MWBWQ?I/@#PS?:UKV]:=HNCZ9"UQ>7] *|\8:W&NHZO/;S7TJR7,X\VY>*%6FF8%V"(9;B/16
M\ROV::AJ$PWW$ EG>4A*P <:~*/B%XU :5\0V$;V?AD M/X3\(M+&K?Z; + &KWUTF?F1H[=XH%8?*PO+A$LSM;7%M:9ENU5BH65Y4D MP@R3GC] * / V8/~"6?[.0[&<5DWPU " #?@/PU?
Z<"L&JC34N164$8(-1/Y MERP(_02'J?6NU :W :1\% L1 L[>*?BA\0-2.F>%0"5H;JZ=%#3W#DASH(5) M >:61EC1<@%G&2!DCJOBA\4/#0P4~'>L~ +?%FL6'A PUX>M)+[4M1091%!9P MH,L[,?
Y=2< 9)Q7\DA\ P7] X+<>(?\ @K7\=X].T634-$~"O@RY? A&=$D/ MEOJ$V"C:G=]/O7#]2J**&/>51?9N(R37D%%?N1 P;A \ IMM) M\8KCO?V@OVA]!V>#$V:AXA\ |>HO\~(SPT6H7T;=+(<-"
P TDX=QY&%NO#U M? @U+ X(:W'PWM]+ :F~**ESVVM:A:LWP~T:Z5HVLK>9"C:K,A )>6)BL /R MB.11<,7B:/\ =FBB@ HKP3 @H+"WOHO 3[~&OA P 1ZUH6K>($\1:TFB6\ M%@\:-
'>>X+L78#:$MW'&26*C@9(~3S_P '(WA/[0"/A?XK-N#RYO;;U[Q6]Z:M'Z5T5X-"S; ,%" M _I'[3_[,NO?$W08=72S\*P7+ZQIMAL)AI2G1: M4U=)Q;0:IVNS/TQHKY/ ."?
P#P53TK]O;XA: H%AX,UGPT"~A6$=\9[RXCE M68-)LV@+T(/-= \ MY MT~'OV"?A19>)MX=@SNP+ M$ *D:,Q)XSM'1854<13?B.%, UHYFLF]47]8;24+I0576];6WGH>XT M5\8?L4?
\%H/"[9GQ\A\I6WACS5_#%[?64UUSW&H7,++>R1;6:!50D[_+,DG7 M&V%ZIF ;0 ;-T \ 86" "">-=1T2~U""34H-.6UM94B?=+N.[B+QW" ;X/,893B:#C7G;EB[:\VBL[VU?F>TT5":2?\'( A<_,WPM\4
M"/MW[7-I)[;P)KD%Q=Z 0M$'A>53+L"T~43 MZ\UUW 10+ @K!/HW[ WQ)T+PYJ/@ 5 $4VMZ>$;QUCKKO;H]SZUHKXW\+?\%F/1?BK]IA_Q MO\9H/#VK[O!FIVEZEX?$\10(Y+FZ@M[=PVO0IC?
[0C;NVV11DH:](_X)~?M~ MZ1~W]X"U[7=*T#40#L>@:@-.FAO98Y&D8Q)+N4H2-N' YP<@\5<<13DU%/=7 M7HZGX4\.Z+]JGC[7='D>VO'M94M=/MKA&*M
9VW,SJ00QCC=02X:VM;>)III!'$K2.5C1CM169L8 )(% M?&IQ~V_~TW~VBEK% "~ SW\#!\./"&IF7XB?&0FP#0K(T;/::#;N;VON@$L,EP MT", ;DVL#7W+10\.~$0~"(JASXH~(K3Q+ T P#$?QI~U-
XHLI//M;7Q*5STW MPIIDNW89+30[9A;1L4~5C(9=W7KS7V(D/AOX(?#9 (MI#,>%/"NGM)Y5M E MMOZ9:0H6.V- %2-$4\*, #16]7YP P#!TQ VP?V12~"5'B71=-0)+;Q\7;A
M?!]CY3[9$MI5:2"~D/.=AMD>$D=#@::1#SR++*MM86:=!D1B")1[#)/)/]AO !.;1C;3/"~"?0[$? MPY"~$. ER1W(\&Z2D%]=Q[ME ?R,T]Y<*&)(62YDF=5)"56"] * GL P"#/W @ MGTW[1'[<>] &?
7=.6?PI\&+8'3VN(=T5UK=TKIIMW*4)M6T 00#V@VDE]].HWTRPVUE!&I9Y)';A5502 M2:A~*/Q2\.?!/X>:0XL\7:WIOASPUH%LUY].I:A.L-M9Q+U9W;@=@.Y) &20 M* FY P""W7 12#XX P#!172\
9™\1"N\X7>$]1C_ &-OAGXJBT;4'2)Q<0V:AX=BL$16GC8LI<"$ \A X."O"" FK P#14/QY)V_(>S MZAHGP(\.W6"WB<-!<"+KE#\M[~# BQX[U'~P_$?P9T?2[F\@MN\(N
MR _T>1$93:7#,JBU8™;*6"THQN'[B?\ 1+ _(-G]" 88MM# "~ +7QQL=-\2?& ME=E]INC[TNM-\$OPR8(REQ?(>3,"T<3C]T6*BO@#PS_@WZ X-?0~$; L/XV_ MM.>' P#B9'9?~"/A]],' 'G
11W.JQ,/1;T9; 1A\G'G#?NB3]WY];LK;6+; M3I;NUCU"\BDG@MFE433QQE!(ZIG+*IDC#$# WKG&1GX# P"'I' 1?7PC~QEX MQ X5%\)-#N?CE~T?K :UTWPAH227D.E7)#;3?-""VY=K.;6/\53YS
KK+7Y M??M&” OVT?\ @EY~VA%/VZ_VEO$"~F>( 0[2\11 IXBT;3+YKP"%=,N8I1+1@ M@C MDOVYNBGD/)&+A%=F>1PS@'1(1%5="UVQ\4:)9ZGIMY:ZAIVHP)=6MU;2 MK+ #/~X/JE?F/XNN
MS$T+]GGP7;R>"?ATZ")#?7-MX]?0HV\3K/:W;)<6] 71~ =;=8I[3Y!IU~T,"0", M_N1 P4K_."?] \ I1#X5>&?#1\6R~#I/#>0KKBW2::M" +C%I)/["5C+#=*RRVAM M /
"$BIBWFOW6ZG&"17DXO!5*E24X]58 >N $2)\HR; #8#&PEUR\ MK2:UW3LS) X)D_FV~§ !' .(?B0:W::G47~S:] 9L\ ,2A3<~/KSQ1;>*OOLU\*FK:C2H[J MV6)DCB\QP<2!Y?0 %I#P.2?
D:+ @V;>.-%/QPES*H! XI!ID~0\ Q] I6>)P M-2<*:@KCP_H M/@0X5>/8+G2?AAH/C: U@336WAL>'U09],CMX5@>8:0S(8EG>Z">8=P9IGX 8 M9"-
_~"WG[7EO~T/~UKJ.FVNH11"%/AG'+HEM.[A(S=%E-[-N;&WB)%SQ HV M1PU?H9~PM P2&O0/V'+;XAW6E %&?5?$/C'1!1.G7YVL;QZ)*1*1 <&+SG\A MWC8(60?NV!)W9I7G?V)?
An%.C_LI?'NT\; (/'8 (:Z=:7$5KIJUX?2UC2XE" MIJH=C-+0(C,R[20)D#9!7!UJX:M4HQHK30U/%X>XSX=RGB#%Y]:527+~YBH< MBYI+71-
\JBRWT;9~10@#]H _30!/[1UO\1 _AK;6>CP:'KB:Q8:3:Z0 :"60+; MI+5IP%+1RIF7&U<1R[ ,*#7ZP?\ 1;3XG:5\9 \ @F'X5\5Z'.;G2/$6L:5] M%I(1AFCE@E=(RK-)TY4Z"~%FN=:R3ITW5I-
W;5NO=ZGYP_I'PQ\"M7_P""8 Q.N_&4/@:+ MXPVFOL_A:\E6%?$HC2&R: *IUIN?LK.9U9?12=\N[ +$?0/_;@:;K# %KX MIW~QWN)%500LC@>AK[O\ V,0V)/!7[" PG?PGX-74[1+NX:\U'4]4
MF2: U29*R(D8PBJH2-$0 9"Y+$FP=55(3FDE%6TZFW%0B1D5;*FK?3~K'XT?LD]8_~"P~BIE$)'Q$U,%5Y"GSKOY?IVKV3 M_@XWE$/[30@9R"0GAIR<=?\
CZDKZ6""0 1#5/A'~V58 %F3XHSZG#8"(+S7 M5T<>'U@W>>9BL1G\]C\IE&6V?,$Z#.1UW 12C_@D6W I0KXE:-XB3XB/X- L M?2&TL6XT-=0$I, KR>9N \>/O ;<=LYY]%@*OU>=+JW?
\C>7BED_~L~ S=MIKK7;*[NI]-BAB:66>Y M33(VBC5%!9B7"@ DEL"0>0V]O\ @C-X? ;5UKP=K5EXNN?!GB/PQHXT&[OD MTM+X:S:1G= L]&2/:T+M.596Z7,H8-\A3T3 ()L P#!/F/_
(0Z_#+Q#H!\ M5R>,+GQ!JW]I/>-IPLI$GD11+$(Q))G!COMV[G?C'RY-8; 5*5?FO[J3L8\5 M~ *~5YQPU+">S:Q1"-/ 1,30 A+XU :>+=6"&$ " JWC7=]HZV$6]:&7DIFE:"W+136[.[9VQSB%<'; M""Q-
4 V6?2~ #?"~/\ 9[~/GACQS]'Q;0-:/A6_CU"VT~Q\.1V$=PR C9*\D\[% M3G " #8?>HIX+$4W&, =D[WONM-SU,S\3.%E%>X?S(%%%% 7\M/\ P=1?MH \-'"2\%)[#X9Z5 M~ ~+/CZ)M6T?
P/JLOQ&\579A9(+[5YKEY;*#Y?E4R7>Z?RS\K16UCDEC@1YI BO)(P1$!/5F=E4 M#]J20!R:L5~0' 113XL:+ P %20B%)X*"(-S=Z1"~QC9>)H_#&I>-;;PNJAKG@ MGQW;BZMDL[Y[X[[*U>2ZMO\
3Q:~4'E@M79!/.U 'E?[97QD\= \% K/4->" M"A675? /[-&LK]/B/X-ZEXKA, Q8C~VNTATIT QAWOSB>>*26:2. .( MC+<_+I\5V_P? ;E\+~(/~";NM6WBV#]J/0+~W\3_5UC2 M-OX58F2"6'5+
MO9SIGAB@E>:2/S),1"-\-+9W $OV' ~UO\:/$7PM\:>$?!&I>(0AS\$ VUO@3I M(M]-~*=QJ%EX<\$"(/ @(C$VHP&*1)8+F39"FE100+;WY$UOY4 D8S~"?VS/ M! [#'[/6N $?]DCX(ZCXTM?
%.M66G_$/JHWXCB\L]$OM1GN(K>ZU:=)6 M.[ MMA=M.URMK%!;P2"85!)VD O P"";W P*#X"?2\&"/[.=Y\8?C+XH\)R?$:.V M>370&M\OEV>E-(A+:?1$)7?@C<@\N/[1V90) MD\E_;PT+1/\
@G) P5:~#?Q'_;2")5E~UGX6\6:%]J5L- N-*AA3X?WZ 9S#> MVV@I*,EM(H6,94[F\V5M\T<9;P+Q]~USXD :M X.,-&G 9V&N?L8")/B?H] MOX3U75/&&EQ07F]":W-R+J;315:..6ZA2QCMX5;]
[+52"17E+* 0>)]'M?~ M#3__ (+@Z)?F[OOBGX"\4>#?M-V98X1K9IL+R22+*31;")<)>V/FIA@20YC+*7 M_M)?LU MH?\ IRO\+;N77=,T3]F+X!6H?6?"/AS78)+C72%=1'%(EK+? M
198H&8R'<5C5%FC=(+0:DM?< _["7 !"/X-?L:~-U"(>0'60C3\;;J1+N \ MB#XZN#]>I-=14I[EMDD+);D,GR/ /.JG:9F%?:U 'YEA&L'[:. J?2M!?2\$ “[ MCX5",#=6_P 00V=M2/@ 4[2\)%W%8@0]A\Q"!Y?
EK'-:1>2189/)K]-: %W] MH/3! P $:\ @Y4\& $ZW"Z=\"?VPH'T+70@6.VL=9>2%)92NX!3]K-EWH7[K5~T5 'Q1_P %D/VF/'7[./BCIDV#P3XBNM A\?\ Q[\->%/$"PQ1
M.-3TNY>43VK;U;:KAIDKAN."\: X*]?MN M) LU P#!3;X,>' @/;P",["7 MP9] B77/A[<1*%\8P6DFIX8)1&T]78@W/"4;EXU&R7<89/T\HH /2\ X(G? M%[XC_P#!1; @D"ZSXL"*'C?
30%VO:YJEI%XLLX+"+6[.W@U$B,! 7TMY+8/Y: M>6V86&&;'."% P"#>'XG $WJHO\ 9E\5 $+XF %7QG\0-2F\5:EX/ VS _B9X MFL BO\8]0\:>)
[/2]3E/AVYUJUWST, . H6L271TZ+1X3#A9%02_VE,&\QLP*2 M&3S/3 \ @H]“TKX-_P""@'B#5-:~(/B.P~#FB?M12_#+4[N[_L~?2],T66:0 MP6,E@;%9T$@"HFHB\Q$! AHV+*S?N;10!°8/_5V ;7_
&D V>/~"H7P2\,? M G[-XJLKGP=JWB75_ %RJHGC2.SD+3VT,PB:2*Z" SAVA8$#S(U!63/E2;0\ MP1<_X*1>(0&?_!' ,;?GXW")-8UEQ"&M>(+NZGOH(8;U+*TPT=HJ1JBM+_ M
,LU7&YG8*.217Z0T4 ?D; P1@ X*B?&GQMAVII'@CIH.Z\937\ #1'AJX\8 M~"X]6\%7?A[3 #VHEUQ=S76AZ?+<01F @73'LKC[OK.BX";F+;V[SX$>)/B[ M>?\ I\ \> 104/C[\4=7~"2@GP;;>X-
*NK;2!'=3SW4*&QE=+)6-]]3L%" M%9/D7,AP< IM10N\1 IKJI[QYXB X+W?&/X37 B&\N/A[X?"&>E:YI>C&&,0 M6EW+/$DLP<(‘W,&889B/,CCX*~(_14W]l/2 P#@]+K/@FT"~(OBB+XC6WQRC
M\'Z#\%%\"INCZKX$+\:U)?M"77S(P)#.9=R*3( (3B+]T:* /SO_X+-?MI M M$?LWA\%"?V:/" P%-OXAF\3Z7XEU;5?!-TB+!XQCTZWBNGM5F\MI(K@P)<>2 MRD#S3&"&!*G7 P"",/\ PAGUOXH?
\$P/BQ\=_C1KFO3:=X\6>)+Z4ZE;1+? M:5I-G",EILC2,/)&FY ,;F<[>N /T8HH (/ @C7 P58",WQ& ;0T'PW\>; MWQ3'T/[2 AJ™\6""+'5 "%YHECX80[:INICHVG7,UM$-1MVTB6SN?M*0O( 1&
MFXLQQ 7/@S_PA[D\(?\ 1?0]H3X% $;XC/:~'YH?"]C\- #<]GE'O;C2H+B[ M6*2.(G+-)N)E? W<<#C](** "BBB@ HHHH '# @\O\ VTW~# [#WA'X-:7< MB/4 B]] VK5$&UB-*TYHIBC#[R%
MIOJW\OMY5YYQI#?\&SO !/.>-?L5]JZC:&5,D;D8$$9'(X/:0SE\4?\ *V[ 9Q M P MX53]H[QWX'\WES>W$&KC7:"64F2~0$6Z2ZFNR MDI#2KD;?T@HH _#/XX?LW "~ +/VO/BCO>*?#/[*X\#?
\)CK ANP\. $[X]"/+? M7-1~" B*W;[/:375]:-JEW 9-VD5E:/"SQOH[~7YB)+%Y>E P52 X)Y M< " M;IC[XW %67XN~&YO#GC: A\2 %;X4?#;01-%T[4M/CMXK74;FSU&Z:YN%FDM
M((WN08D215F=UD*B.3]; C,?AU\=+36 @SX"@LKR#QOI<]G+H>IEHIX@LWC< M3?97!!E9%#% );S8/D=A'NCIO( VI/BKXC\ *) $'[-7Q5U.XUSQ]\-;!+00 M=>U"[6XN/B%X4= *M=4DR
S7<+8M+T$']~B2[BMTE ')2\$COV$/V0?!I'PI\ M% %KIGGX>""L %5@FHZ=XGU!?[4UV$E/)EB-U.\LEO(C(\4L,+JBR)(NW(- M?'G_ =P?\$[-1\: [[PQ~UI\.TNIA
' P:G@BUJZTXNEV~E" >'M[M&4Y$E ME=,&!4 BXE=F"PK7H [',7 Y% P"'I>I?LX:A-]C_ &>/VDK]J?Q-\)KFX MG7R?#FN@HMYH>]@I"R QB)2S=;110EGF(_3SQOX*TCXE>"]7\.>(-.M-8T'Q
M!193:;J5A=1B2"]MIHVCEAD4\,CHS*0>""101\Z?\$>?~"AVG_P#13S]@;P9\ M3XVM(0$;Q'2/%=E;]$2PUBW51-/#NE637GC?P:0\ PEOA58U9 MI9KVT1R]LBKR[7%NT\"J?E\R6-C]P50 /!I"
[JO0=/~"B_P#P32~'WCF]OVO_ M !=I-M PC7BQG??- :MFB)++(0JC=/&T-UA1@"Z4=0:~0* '+]AQ$ X)"?\ MIQ\4?@%<7$=A*OVHK' A- 1,)*KI8ZEOGD-LH&V.!=R:C ] %G6&P')84 M?L;1110
4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 7S] P51 ; M)C 8 X)\?%3XL*Z+]J?AC1771@VG(~IW#+;6(=,C ]IFA+\\(/OH&OR M P"" FB7?
_113]NCJE/IBG27NCLOZHWQ& ~ ($MNCHICHUJ)8(V$RAEON@U! M'7'G&T O"@#4 _P'#3+ @GY< L] \$ JOBAXEMI( &GQXN(]=)G#":'IXPPL% M;).3%))KH,/0)=1
\I7ZHUAT'0;' PKH5EI>F6=MI~FZ; EK:6MO&(H;:)%"l M&BC 554 #@ "K= 11110IYU~T ~S'X9 :N"& WAGQ-8V%Y;B5;FV- Y8PWT$ MAR*EX)E:.5<@'##*LJ21M'+'%*GYP M@ LC?%+X!WVD>--
N_%[PIX]~%3 MW&]J~"/$<3R?$3P,)~L=% M'X:?M]>* PIHW @L%"~S@W@;P3XK_&8 BGI+>'K;XE~10$.CQ:GX=\70J&GL MANK>VMDN[R*TU:U-Q;P2Q30$N-6BVNK++Y7M/@G_ (+$?
MB>"0@ ~SZ"~K LW M_#WXE7GQMLK>UT+Q3I/Q'@TJPUR]:Q:\5)DFMECL[B:"*5EA+X9XY$3Y@$'W MI~T) P $W?@; ~U)XJB\0~-/AKX>0?%MN\4D'B:P6322$-NT9IS'Y>IV;17B;3 MG 64=2.A-?
+'Q4_X-WI$U#X6KX2 "~ &W[1'[0?PYT&SU~#Q-IFC2:[%KFE:-?Q M7905N;9+B/[5%+)FW+=#,A9R&IF) /S1_X+(0?M1 \%F/V] "GP8 X9)M? MAQ\
< A7HTWBQOHO'EA<3WFA3S0P~9""DDCQR"50$/FBO: @) MP56 X*= &;]HW6/V:[7X> O00?BY\-O#L&J://XA1TO+ZI?L\?VK?%>0;2F4 MW$+,;>/RPSG&P$)7T)\=/""3 P"W-] [1 PI"~+>@?
MO0?"GQIX\"%,5]19V=]K MO@(>'%U.TNPHGM;U;(SK<ON$&%PGE,S/&5DP]>9?'2\ X)~ \%+/'W_|0CP+ M~T?:S?LK6/C[X>Z- 8$">'; %>'2]=L'DF=[:\BNE,DJ'[1)T>/:=K(5=5< M 'RY"TM~TA
\%,M+ X*%?#[JFCXL?M :3\,+[XKW$)T36]'M[*STEHK@O0$$ MANK2V6Z:7S4:!(I&5S*T7*[(DITO~ "D/ IN[\?0V./@ < M6M~TOXA"-/Q2"~ M$%Q9~()3]JVG7,M]:VMG.LBW$-W<7<[2?
9B!,8W15\M92#E0LG8 \%2?V'0\ M@IW_,%-=3"'D_B[X2?!W1=2"%E /]>@:0X(U~*PNX9YC 2?-N[~1UVM;Q,- M@3YE!))"X]-"~,,' 6& :.~IFK?#070AU\&*TGQ-H4 A[6+"&\TT75 !/; MM!-
(Y~V21K(ZNQ)BB50Q~55&!0! " KW[#/[5~B?MR_LA?#WXM>'S"NG".=&AU MIX(I?-%A'Y-736?#']G:N; ~>U>9"EY"XP%2+,4,BI3]°2W_ 1A\ #]
MIKX\?'?]M#5X#* QLUR3P[VWFOAK;PAL,BUMYD50GA~VRV FR1$ $W\3C._ M)~ %7ARV\8"&-1TB]5FLM5M9;.=5."8Y$*-C\":S/@ \*=$"!/PF\,>"/#5 MI]@\.” #*M=%TNV+ES!:VT2PQ(6/)
(1%&3R>M ‘14444 %%%% 11110 4444 M %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 1110 M4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%%
11 5110 4444 %%%% 1110 4444 ? 9 end GRAPHIC 7 rdi-20240930x10qg002.jpg GRAPHIC begin 644 rdi-20240930x10qg002.jpg M_IC X 02D9)1@ ! 0% 8 !@ # X0!:17AI9@ 34T *@ @ !0,! 4 M
12@,#$ ! %$0$10%$10!%$2MO0 ! 8:@ "QC_; $, " 8&!P8%" <'IPD)" H,% T, M"PL,&1(3#Q0=&A\>'1H<" D+B<@(BPC'|PH-RDL, #$T-#0?)SD].#(\+C,T M,0 ; $,1"0D)# L,& T-&#
(A"$R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R M,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,0_!$(*$"X@,!(@ "$0$#$0' MQ ? 110$! 0$! 0 0(#! 4&!P@)"@0_Q "U$ " 0,# @0# M!04s$! 7T! @,
11$%$B$Q008346$' (G$4,H&1HO@COK'1%5+1\"0S8G*" M"0H6%Q@9&B4AF)R@I*COU-C+CY.7FY~CIZO'R\ 3UJO?X~?K_Q ? 0 # 0$! M 0$! 0$! 0(#! 4&!P@)"@0_Q "U$0 " 0($! ,$!P4$! | G< M
0(#$00%(3$&$D%1!V%Q$R(R@0@40I&AL<$)(S-2\!5B7]" M@X2%AH>(B8J2DY25EI>8F9JBHZ2EI]>HJ:JRL[2UMK>XN;K"P\3%QL?(RKR\ 3UJO?X"~?K V@ , P$ A$#$0 _/?Z** M"BBB@ HHHH
ek "BEB@ HHHH *++* "BBB@ HHHH *++ "BBB@ HHHH * M** "BBB@ HHHH ** "BBB@ HHHH **B~U6Y)'GQ9'4;Q0!+1110 45'Y M\.POYL>P'l;<, U)0 44C.] %F"Y.ID]Z6@ HID@!*C
M\~'S/+\U- 3;N&?RI[ J*6=@JCJ2<"@!+*0L%4L2 'R2: OP!!11Y1% "T44 M4 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 M 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110
4444 %%%% 11163(- MA@5CD11"#:0L-T1/YDT :U%8G]@WO _0SZQ"5M \ &:/[!0?~AGUC\K;_.,T M ;=%8G]@WO\ T,~L?E;? &:/[!0?~AGUC\K; P",T ;=%8G]@WO_ $,"L?E; M? &:/[!0?
~AGUC\K; XSOIMT5B?V#> J#/K'Y6W ,9H L&] P'AGUC\K; X MSOIMUYMJW@Z~N)?%WV;2XP+]KAV+*T: <"A\< +T/7K77?V#> \ 0SZQ~5M M\9H L&] Z&?6/RMO C- -1V/CF2TN?4#)
MK7T2Q\20:XSZG?R36"VZ"(%4!8X"8/@ ?![C((/6KWI@WO\ T, L?E;? &:/ M[!0?~AGUC\K; P",T <1K'@W69UU(6-CBSO;RVO?L;21@K,DH\Q00;<,B@XS MU/:M6~L?
&SM>&"=@K2*46.5%R//1&S)~7$65(/4~06NB _L&] P"AGUC\K; X MS1 8-[ T,~L?E;? IFA: SB;KPUXNO[6![X2SSB*RW+]J4;9(YR\A SMR5" M\UTWANW\317,$NM.\B&Q594:13MF& X"\'/)R \




0SZQ~5M \9H XW2?# B32 #DUK;64\%\]"9 ,6:$8A:W&E7%Y)$;BS59$>65=LF*Z P#L&] Z&?6/ MRMO_(S1 8-[ P!#/K'Y6W QF@#E)?# (NO1I*7MQJHBAD@GD6615\N1)0S
MILOW#;PI /%>C5B?V#> 1#/K'Y6W P 9H L&] Z&?6/RMO\ XSOIMT5B?V#> M _P#0SZQ~5M \9H L&] Z&?6/RMO_ (SO!MT5B?V#> \ 0SZQ~5M \9H L&] MZ&?6/RMO_C- &W16) 8-[ T, L?
E;?\ QFCP;W_*&?6/RMO_C- &W16) 8 M-[ T,~L?E;? |FC~P;W H9]8 *V P#C- &W16//HMW# <1R-XBU6948,8Y!; M[7QV.(@<'V(K8H **JW]I+>PK'%?W-DP;/F6X3),CK\P....G_L&] Z&?6/RMO\
XS1 8- -#/ MK'Y6W QFBX,QM;\/7]SXQCUFRM\;WN8(HX"LD(&]5(AR=P(SQ MCU.<5D76@".]3\ W.FWKM(9E*%)+B/+$P* EA ") YQUY%=S 8-[ PI#/K'Y
M6W _QFC~P;W HO]8 *V ~TIUN ]#/K'Y6W M ,9H L&] P"AGUC\K; XSO!MT5B?V#> ]#/K'Y6W P 9H L&] Z&?6/RMO\ MXSOIMT5B?V#> P#0SZQ"~5M \OH L&] Z&?6/RMO
(SO!MT56L;62SM _*EOQ; MB\; <3YMP$W?3Y%48 "K- 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4 M444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%8EW:~)7NI&M-6TV*W+?NT
MDL'=E'NPE&?R% &W17/280%W 0;TG P60 \'J/L7B[ *#>D \ @M?_./4 M 3°*9;Z+1C 9T\<-TTJ¥IEW!&&>5+*"41'&['%> MVE&V2-]-DPP] P!]2&8L CC7(I1#/ 9&ZWCMABB(Q\UTG6-
64G'R[26QZ9IM M]X UJRFFC?1(=T<6\])& GR&DQE00>5V\?WA71K8>+%4*NM:2 |@#~S7 P#C MU+]B\6 ]102? I: P >IB.8A\::S82ZPSZ92> 8.84Q%MIXP5R[=\_
M*WX=)H60:EJ5[>17MA#:QVL4;/MD+L2RIN, #!"WNAJ*?]B\6 P#0;TG_,%K M P#QZC[%XM Z#>D ~"U_CU '&7.L~*X8[AK&6X0+9[B26TN"H. ,:M%%]U2 M/FW @CT&:]*T 4+?
4K=IK9RRI(T3Y4KAU.&'(:R/L7BW H-Z3 X+7 ~/4U- MASH,)K.D*"23C3'ZGK_,M] .CHKGOL7B[ *#>D \ @M?_./4?80%W 0; MTG_P60\ '] .AHK'L;;Q%'>(U_JFGSVPSNCALFC8\<88R"/M6Q0
4444 % M%%% 11110 4444 %%%Y% 11110 4444 %%%% 115+4HM1EMU73+JWMIMV6>> MRJ1Z8#+S[YK+~Q>+0~@WIA X+7_JCU '0T5SWV+Q= T&]) P#!: \\>H" MQ>+0~@WI/ @M?
_X]0!H:~JRFE@WC6=PMO<"61%,T9<(QX!(&3BN,L_&.NVT:6 MTNBR-*]3R232SAHL1\?NWP"Z]~1NQ],UT?V+Q=_T&I) \%K_/QZF3:9XIN( M)()M8TAXI%*ITU\,",$?ZZ@9ST" CSB[]WLU/Z
T\QY!$K-YP%L)55#C@[ MCMY[BGOX]JUF-[0/HL2B>*0 O"<;Y-G\((X&&(SD+?~@WI/ @M? P"/4?80%0\ T&]) P#!: \\>H Y?4]6U]- M1U"2PN[F?2Y9X0LH49M@/,$BXV@K\RIZ\'.>
[/P_JC:EIL8N,KJ$,<:WD90 MKLE*IB.1[]]J?80%0 0;TG P60\ 'J:NG~*U9F76=(18Y8C3'Y/ ?ZA SHZ M*Y[[%XN Z#>D P#@M?\ ~/4?80%W 0;TG P60 \ '] .AHKGOL7B[ H-Z3 X
M+7 ~/5>TR#6XIG.J:A97,97Y%M[1HB#ZDEVS0!IT444 %%%% 11110 4444 M%%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% '+>.]1>00#NE65W8&+=+?P6T MBO$7RLCA3@
CD=J]3>.%TNS2>]22Y\"&:\C1(0*>.WB WEPQ \#T'?VK?UWP M[I B.W@@U$3-'I*LR"*9H\.IRI~4C.#R*35/#6E:S"E];F3RE9 0YAE&™\I M(ZJV.0>M &2?BII*ZCY!67[-YOD?:L?
+YGD~=MQUQL[~0%1>% %UUXA\27MN M8%BLI86UY;!A\Q+0~\0<=%";GK6P?"NBG4 MYL4,W7;D[-VSONV=-VSY@R<4 GO-# 9~PL) M_++">R%A-&A!YD4[< YYK5\=: ?
>' #D.HZ<(Q,UW!"5FB+?+(X4\ @YYHE M~'7ABIK@MI[#S[C[40L[@1RYSOC /R,..:U MK7QK#V1[K[.;;S&Y)C)R5~F:.@'+V_Q&M+JQLIN M'3;QH[N[AMHB1@-YJEE8$\'[@@=#5F7QW:VFL0:;?
6%U;32Q228.&*F.(2,, M G/!(I'4@BKH\&Z.-/L;!8YUMK"X6YM4%P [TUSMQS]TY.!TIMQX-TA]3FU: M"IHM3=GD2X$K_+(T?EELIQIW'3TH8&1#\3+%[*6ZFLIB4IMEB! <,9# < #*#C@
M8')ZD8[UIZIXBOE\(Q:SI>F7$TKE&: U:/$P3/S[4)&Y@ 2!GFLS1/AlIBT~? M314U.?4+&0I(D+E08IE.1(CJJE3P/4"~1=9=:9;7MK%;S ~8RQ,'1A(P<,.C;@ M-<[3&0DM%Y*[V21'Y5MOZ"Q]J[:?$+3-
OU&VL[&WN MIFGAAEW" XC\U2R;L9P,#D]!D=><1ZKX#AOM7TB>&7RK2T:X:Z7> FW!E383 MO!SG'<_2MNW\,Z59WGV]JT@:VD"S+:GR9&13&HP@(!P208]10!S5E\4M-N]-D
MO'L;F+%M#>3~7X5": #GPUIV\L$=I,81+=;8]]P[817W]!D\$-E@1SFMBQT#3]-LINUL MXY(4NY'EF996W,[?>;<3D$ ~U#V#]<-X>\?:S+H4&0ZQ:Q V.-/DN+N>* ILE
M63:))ECOW#\06MY/'22S6,$6D7CW%XTZ1Q\)N:) W!;&0P/IKAL?"FD:?X&=.~TZ7<-]I>;2PPMG>X=B PVG=D -QQSF M@#)\6>(-2TC6?#UK9[!'J4ALL4JFW,KKMBIQM ([@ U!I'XVN]+L-(7Q';VU_
M=F))A$1L11*+CDYZ DIXR.M; ~I~";#5M3L-0NO/~T6#%[RN(Y-\DIW%>)XX?.>,X/9>-W3(-;,0@ 1 MI9A+Y,],+ \ M$;)F4"?&"V,] 3IS3Y?"FCRZC-?M:XN)=Y8]Y #.FQG S@, M5XW=<4=
ZE/PGXTMO%GFB&TFMFCMX+G$A!RDPSKT[_*?TKIJPM \(:1X:F>7 M3(YXV>&.!|@\[N-BOV##$],G\ZW:;MT *++011110 4444 %%%% 1110 44 M44 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%%
14%Y>6VGVDEU=S)#!& N[G %3U3U33;?5M.F MLKI\4@&1N*@Y!R.1@@4 3PW$-P,PRK(-H;*G(P1D?F*HS ~ (M(MGG6: A4V MX/FG.ON 21GID $D=>*H:3X=NM*UK[1']l-@+=8A:A< , IGT[?
718\1Q0_(%YG51R)-$DL;!D=0RL.AIZ& MG5P*=+T.<6M[CKC'0]">E#!'K-%2N MNA[$@@C<.M="'0 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 111 M10 4444 %%%% 11110 4444
%A4[35;" 0/:744RF1HP4;/S+U%7*Y% !1M7@ M.BWIT]4NA, X7+;DXRO)YZ8YXQ@=]:$SH;S5]/T~5(KNZCBD<%@1/.T=6/H/< M\5)9:A::C$\EG.DR1R-$Q7LPZBLJ30IX %-QK5K-
$WVJT2UEBG4D*$9B"N/] MXY%8+>"=86\U26WU>*&.],A5$$@"EI$8' /4*I'X ~E(;.\HKSB7P3XAMMER- MEBTZ"U6>\M/(DE:6UDG<"8 MQ8%6&>0."NTIN - ,](HHHH **+ "BBB@ HHHH
#+P[[4]>@0)(K3PZ+]! M3\DWVY$W?WOQ!U'3KK4AKJW6"X@,UT$221BL<5L@!<#MND(7ZUU5Y>~ (K MV$1R>%"NUPZ.FIQAES'((XJ(MJA5E/@.T(965@;N'D,MB1-
>FUN#590#$TLEN&%O0$VIQ>7"64*Q4!1Q M4Y?5&5E;P'9E65E8&[APOQRP~[T)Y/]:!&11GQ#U&ZF%E>6MC:WDL\=0&S2$ M(C"0)9-~3_#D*IW)JG>>--4. H2+]~M.6XUE9?-7P/;"3PYW-
PQSMZ MGOZT, #&;XA:]8B8]-MFEE-FL2;SA9)V),1/=EBPY(P!FJR %"[FL+5HH;!+] M?:ZAW;:Z23F* ZY*]SD]L>]="D~KQ10Q1 "~ K5(X&WQ(MY" ! &W/*C;P>3T]:
M;0U0>7 Q0=I~Z"K' I([FX>XT~VNG2WB5L MA5B 0X],0N G5/7?'E[X?AMGN1ILXEAN+EFMY&8>7'&",>YD8+1.:U40-\M~Q\1ZQ/XG?198=/+1%!<>9$[$-$Y<,1[C:N M.W-
#0JLD3Q/X#M&CDV[T:[A(;IW(V\XP,>E1V+:18W4]U PBKSW4AWRM/+], M.\("2J#"CY5W' /- &GHNIW$OB77](F8R1V+O0ROR'KME4G:3WP5/X$5T%9-*~I1%F( '3H *N?VSXF Z%,?\ @RC_,* .DHK
MF [9\3?]"F/ 91 P"%']L~)O\ H4Q X,H \* .DHKF P"V?$W $*8 P#! ME' A3DUCQ*74-X5"]2 6 M& X'KTH Z*BBL*[U37X;N6.V\-BX@5L)-IN1-X M]1<$9% &[7':SXGU;2=40(?LEK+:
VT<$RELI)+*$Q)ZX!W<8[>N:N_VSXF Z M%,?~#*/ K-B -W=71\ VIN+L 3RF~BW2 $$9..<$#\A0 ~S\8WLAL[VYM MH$T]73VNOV7=YD# @#/8AB3COP360X1U P#X2?
PS:ZML1#.7!1"2%VNR]>_M%8\2:C!J*ZA%X#MDO%C$25K?1!@@&-H..E6[6_U~RMUM[7P;'#"N=])J$8 R M*QO[9\3?\ 0IC_,&4?"% &KK5S MCW5S:&W6>)"RFXW;!CU"\GZ"N5@\;:C-JL>FR6$-
M<-&$?S6)6*7[.)B21_M.5]TOO!<5Q;R8WQ2:A&5;'/(Q5SHLSKK:')CR\I6MNR+LAQ7T2X&2<<#W/YFM'~V?$W 0IC P91 X4P.DHK%T 4MH-%:R61N)S8E$6BRWB8$!V3$5' <1C M P
*$'4H7'Q"AADFC&FRLZ3"$ RA>3/Y/S9'RY/(SU'-4=4\?SM<-:V MTO+=+@M(CHZ-(R.I..,;3SVK= _M;Q)S_,4BO/7_(F,?"%'K>).?\ BD5Y MZ \ $QC_* .?
M/B)*VM.CVL\L5Y":M:VI"JT+.DC,& WV#&>N>U3>)/$NL M1Z?][:?,;:2TL1>Q,L2NS!I&51@@C&U"3_O#TK: M;Q) P!"BO\ X,8 \*A: MJUIKQ+L"#U\]$,8<:E'RIYP>.1F@"GK'C1/#,2W \KZE!
<[C&1)&@01PAVPO MOS9.?QJD/\UEK.H?;&CN+?~T!9VIO$R QKB/YR>IYEY[<=]W [6\28Q P ( MBN!T'JHQ P"%'[K>)\ H45 \&,?"%'4.A6D\< "~ 1:R2SZ7)&T=U+:.K2C:KH M&®8Y;&,%5!!
[E@*IW?Q)AM=,0-0.ER~3;. DSIESRS1+(%V]0<,?R-1U?Q*]1 M@"$E/_<1C_PH_M;Q(?\ J(Q_X5#+>: //#-)X/SFABO'GAH\IB,9QCKC//O1U ZNBL'VU7Q# M+=11S"&1#'S@/+]0C;8)\G '/2M" @
HJCJES?VMLKZ?IWVZAM@Q " >L6!ZY- MO/ ;/B; H4Q P"#*\ PH N")K_%#3-$FN] CMY;F/&V*?=B3T1=0.XG ' MUKG3XUU">"U2TM[6VADMDG,33[BH:$QAMVWKDR<8/>K 12:0K%L+;40
\%U M &#B.: BO@S01PWMQ9-/=1ECF*0*C;!QSIX\" U==7(PSZS;FV,/@F!#;1F* K?Q#RT M.,JO' X'Y5: MGQ- P!"F/\A P91 X4P.DHK(TS4-9NKHQW~ABQAVDB7[6DN3 MZ8 K7H
*+3]5N11 M(EVT[3/MILV'7[0L6T>N3UH T*QO$NH:EING1SZ9#;S MS&9%,,Q8&0$@87'20D\#!J1 ;/B; HAQ P"#*/\ PJEJIU76(XX]2\#6]TD3
M[T6: B8*WJ,CK0!3/CC4[J/5Q8V=L)K59'@$VXAIDS1;#C~)BHQCU[UM6>N: MC)XL33+]VACMIK'[1&Z;BPD4]'0M]TXW>W;KGC,NX+~ ~BFBNO -K-'X>570 MHB'8<@GCUY]>TEU>PD=[3P1!
S >,= $,\ >GH!"0H0,Z"BN; MGQ- T*8 \ M&4?"%71+016NYG74-%%A&%RK_:EEW'TP!Q0!JT444 %;3[0[ M-<27L$.?D~97<*1\X('|ZXK5U6\U.T$71G:3]0W9W Z2L6STZCFLPZOXE;KX
M24 748 \* ,~X\:RZ5]#Z*]G-J&H0637+D2(K.54.4P!C=@\</E(8#('3177?VMXDX XI%>.G $QC PH M; MQ) T** ~#&/ H0$ GB6[NEL#;0 9ENYX[?>Q5PN[#E95=7 M7 B91@JRG((.."#4W]K>).?
~*17GK_Q,8"?TH P;GQl++]J5C)1)%;V:)=-<1 M&1&:5HI5B"@GH"6R".:TK;QZMQ$)?[*GV-8-?2IM?!"C'?<*M V MKXC .A03 P8Q | XA0IK)1TV+ X,8 \*@=2BOQ CDG6&/IFILSY%E ~TH$VQ
M+&S,I/WAB3\U(K(3XDS7.H:?>0VTHT"6.>.6U!5G:1)8T4J<9)PY..~*Z7~U MO$G_ $**\?\ 41C_,*/[6\2?]"BO' 41C_PI]0Z&)I'C:[NX9M.":>"~B2YE M-Y\@O*DLJKP.HQ&H. ?F%=EHVH'5=$1-1,?
EFZMXYBF?N[E!Q~M855?>(+]V MDMY?" ,<@VL!J48R#U' Z&IDU;Q)'&LC_E1R2[![2'C_E1R2[![2'C_)4TAW+E%4_M[3@]' *C~TX/l RHY)=@]I#N7* PIIP>C_)4?VG!Z/~5"+L'M(=RY15/
M~TX/1_RH M.#T?\ *CDEV#VD.YTAW+E%4 [ M3@]' *C~TX/1_P ].278/:0[ERBJ?[IP>C E1 :<'H YATAW+E%4 [3 M@]'_"H M.#T?\].278/:0[ERBJ?]IP>C_E1 :<'H YATAW+E%4 P"T
MX/1_RH M.#T?\].278/:0[ERBJ?]IP>C E1 :<'H P"5')+L'M(=RY15/~TX M/1 RH M.#T?\J.278/:0[ERBJ?\ :<'H_P"5'IP>C_E1R2[![2'C_E1R2[![2'PG.*=FRY15/~TX/1 RH M.#T?\].2787M(=RY15/\
MM.#T?\J/[3@]' *CDEV#VD.YTAW+E%4 [ M3@]' *C~TX/1_P ].278/:0[ERBJ?]IP>C E1 :<'H YATAW+E%4 [3 M@]' "H M.#T?\].278/:0[ERBJ?]IP>C E1 :<'H YATAW+E%4 P"T
MX/1 RH M.#T?\.278/:0[ERBJ?]IP>C E1 :<'H P"5')+L'M(=RY15/~TX M/1 RH M.#T?\.278/:0[ERBJ?\ :<'H P"5'IP>C E1R2[![2'C E1R2[![2'] XSCFI*EZ%)WU04444#"1.2] X )/K_
$K;K,N;*>6Y=U4;2>.:TIM)ZF-9 M-QT,~L"UEN)-;\100=3F.%80*7?Q'NC).WTYKJ?[.N/[J \ ?5590#]7$S32 M6RF1U".PHZ X/(Y/7UK9R7[FFORM)(6CGV<$CI[=LGT%=E/X1M+]626:S5 MGD>-
W/FL,LGW#@"":FIX/LD! T~'161""Q.5D.7!R>03R0:7,K[E*#ML8C: MWJ$H-BVGK#>R"4HS2 J-&]@EU)&[/S 8QUI[5!;SZI+X TF>RE,E\\ #L'EV MO.."RAST9AG!-
="XlM(HHSTLU"P$F(F9BR9&#AB[RR1QQU MI[\+M20) ; 6&VM; 6%V0;>-RTC,K1IRHSC!QU~4@D9 ' I78-X4M6" [K&)MKL MX)8DEF7:Q)SDY' '/ :F1~#K*(J4L(P5,;*?,; (,8PF.>P) HYEW'ROL8">*KF M6RDOH]+=K,H) (9P' (QNVG< N>/0?
+GBMZPNTO]/@NXVIDF319K' YC"8P25@ VV@2&")$CO850>E-275DN#Z(AH MIU_9UQ_=7_0JC~SKC~Z0_?5/FCW%[.78JT5: LZX_NK_ -14?V=X>SEV*M%60[.N/ M[J_]]4?V=+CJ2>'YI=,9A+$=\JHVUWC M .X*>QZ'\,5A7F0S@6"F.Q7/3)K0+[0#] M-
JUO<1Y1@1E9"I&1C@BH/"$4MOIC[%%A5V??/S#=NPW/SWsM=A2MLD1 #RG[H; (Y'J.F,FILVISGQ; ISFMT@A99TF MC4C]Y(J Y]< YQ"-;MSX5A0&5IX9&925%1=2%06Z]&" 'MAYT!3<6\YMHS+;@ MK$">4!&#"@IE)=R>25MAM%60[.N/[J_]14?V=X09R[%6BK71G
M7'1U?7"3/[.N/[J_]114X>SEV.+-Y>6_B 2TO[F>*&Y/\ H,L9!B;@ NV' M\+Y#')ZX_"M/1X7C0;\?: [RX@C985"TR[_F RQ''~T!]0:U/"$8B"WB]~S*9 M@=P)XUJQ75 MTN9A]JI95EM)%F8Q,IDP(PI'R-T7//48MCPY>R7"F/+-YIS+/(CPS?ZR @ ZM
MCW(&.>":UCX=0P/ UNKQO]X/(6)YR.2<]>:E@T9[5"D,2JK,6/59))ZDD\DT M*2743A)]"*BK7]G7"']U?~~3/[.N/[J_1157-'N+V1Q!Y+-,8C\UO\R@3,/XD M'(('/?UK4UU&.FO.MW=1>6A*"VDV&1CPN3Z9(X]ZU;GP\EXX>XMD=@I3.\C*
MGD@X/ (XZ&GG1&92K1!E,@EPSDC<" "#UXPO . .E3==RN278YW7(-:32[1--G=I MHP5G;>H=CL(5LG P'P3[9~E.MM>B.J16=P["; (J*NU?DW$$@GOEMK$<=!S@F MNDDTN:6-DDC5E;J-W6J["' (Y+Y+U[2(W*BVRIY& 0/; (#$7B:7,K[BY)6M8* M*M?V=,\UI:9K%X=
UB[FBF6[LPY"QSG<\16,$ M*6'W@3\P([&M\>$;7SII6LTPWSE97:R308VMTLDSE<,~[>H91DIV\>F:Z+ MIK@W6CVLS+,C,F&69] [A@<$%N (ZU;B\,0PH4BM5C!*D[)64 +P!D'.!Z=*N M)I4H!"DGN., C6/ :~HOX3 MUN>26YM+ZUV8B=L0"=J\
[L896Y (]CCKDSW!\/JUNEN;=#"D9B6/>=NPC! &< M'CUJ%_"U0+9S6DEHKO3@"53*V7 Z G.<#ZT-KN"B"Q)15E=-N%4*%& ,#YLT MO]G7' JU?""JIKGCW) ] G+L5:*M?V=X M>SEV*M17*&2VD16E4D=82 _T!/OFK_\ 9UQ_=7_0JF3:3+/$8Y%"4XSMD*GC
MGJ"#2YH]PY)=C \,73WNAQF:2Z:9)) (9/M( EGIY&UL<$@8&1UZU!X=N+V]\ M*M(UP9+P0OY)- "', NX"278Y&VU+4M.LI/[5"TEC<#:JE7E" [0=F0=N2 MO[=>%]R*Z>VN(KNUAN8&WOS()$;&,J1D5+<>"'8[J!H) [6-XV?S"-V,MZY"'.: MGATF2WACAAB1(HU"HBG
4#@ 4*2[@X2[$%%60[ .N/[J_]1]14?V=X09R[%6BK7]1G7"'JU?\ 0JC"SKC~ZO\ WUISI[A[.78NZ;_QZ?\ C5RIJE$ M\-OL< ')/6K%PG)+*T4C+># M$X+,=XQC'7@8],4~278GVD.YF:MXMN-.N]1BBLXOH[6&VG] . (WK+(4/\/!& M,CKGVIMI?
BZ '0[:QM[:*\M;B)/+N796V-,L>[&WD-G(*DCGGGBM!M(\//;K M UDYC6%+?!=\F-6W*I.[)P>1GI4KV.ARAA):,~X;]-BFZY;YW !)P$R1@\ GVK,B\1R7.H+?E+A MK>[@TUUM M#*(3+(X)&.0; ([XYKH%T OTW8M7RUR;LMO;/FD;2°8"
(B3&/0=B2:7)+L/VD.X[0?$[ZQI]UBR6I1>7$) XWCEWA ME+LF"<8SE?X21SUKHZPK"TT73)Q-96IA<1>2""QPFXMM )QC))_&M'~TH/\ M;_*CDEV%[2'TAW+E%4_ P"TH/\ ;_ *C~TH/]0\
*CDEV#VD.YTAW+E%4 [2@ V RH M*# ; *CDEV#VD.YTAW+ES%4 [2@ V P J/[2@ P!0\J.278/:0[ERBI?]1I0?[?Y4? MVE! M EIR2[![2'C=#"&.]149&.]:-87NGZQJ(:>18(@6\LAMYW[U*Y+* P M(/\ =]1\UM:@UAJ=HUMQ-9>G"(- M6N;Z&>X>3TZ4*$K; ZD+
[F7!-=Z7JU™\NHRW=GY4: #[E)S KPs/L; 31] E>2WBN-S @";-)*!DY. S$ M#)]*LV+Z;IMI+:S5@\F$,S!%'&6))/YDTTCW- GBJ7]197[7Y47VE|7M7 MEIR2[![2');JZMM!BN(97MYQ>, \UN:##.;67)0;16)YW2! YW#LIK\I(./[P8_E3;>VTBVOVO8X9/ . (
MPI9BP3UV@GC/M5F*2PAC@CB21$@.8USB .".>>>07-)0E;83J0[G.3W5_IDT MMMIWUW<&ZOBK"&GYD#~6VPO(XXQG' [9'2NET*"74- (BG59D (=XW6<@N&IRK M D<'D'FHI%TI6W\A[TAW#19S::)<7 MEU=350"; (\;30081@X49QWQG\:P[;4-2U+07?
$,GVR[FN;67E6)-/:/>%"*55 M=W! ))Z\X_"NECDT") ($CCD5($V1H"=H7&, $9P>G?-0+;Z1'YGEP21>;,9Y/ M+=DWN1@DX// Z=*?)+L'M(=RYHEV+_0=/NQ,9 .MXW,K)L+DJ.20;/I57J$5 M[:01)%$A2-%"HBK@*!T 'I3

JTH/JO\J; A*"P*I#N7**I _VE! M E1 :4'~ MW"5+DEV#VD.YTAW+E%4 [2@ V_RH M*# ; M *CDEV#VD.YTAW,OPYJKR>$Q?7MT+F2-YQ)*,#=ME8#IP. *9H%]?ZCI6K P"EQRWD M=W/'"W!6/@;%X[#/Z5=MQI=HD:6\+QQQERI*2%RYRV1G!Y]>G:I+673[ (2BV
MA,7G2&63:0WF/4TN20_: 0[G/GFJZIIFGR7VQ]I+&Y&095V/ MVJ=G'RY)#MUX M7T.*ZZUNH;VSANK=]\, T:RIMC&5 (R#"59MRFDWENT$]L7C:352.0=_KD'.>W MTXJQ!=V=M;QV\$9CAB4 (B*N J@8 %/DEV%[2'IC63<="A7)ZEJ=]HV
MMWEQ/<22:)LC2;INLV8'$@./N9X/IP?6NV_L~Y N# 0JIW]@ RW,CO!C,9+=",VVNW2"UM+>VEOY%CB,\K, *Z8>%;1;F"X6R5) ( (UBO MI*RCBOWS(!PP';.<5+ PC$'G"=]AA\T7'VG=GGS=NW=]<<41:QIM@%SU<\?=4 D__ %ZC769[6"32XH)MO-KY4=W<"(;+
M+G?P-N.YRIUXS6]/X;2YOH[V6 FYBC,:2+,RE5)! (&#WP/RJ'_A$;7[4MS]D M_7*@C+"90G49P&&<-C) " ]1GK2YEW#D=MCE9/$<"IK H@VKOWMHVSQBSDCDSC' M. !GH]; .A2/-X=TR61V>1[2)F9CDL2@R2?6I M | P#A#[3#7Z)R52 3Y[9/F??YSG!
[CISZVTY[.UBMK>$)#"@2-="=]C@#FFI+ MJQ.#Z(BHJU_9]S_<' ?5']GW/]P?]]14":/<7)+L5:*M?V?< W! WUl 9]S < M' ?5'-'N')+L5:*M?V?< P!P?]]4?V?< P!P?]]14XX<\DU%U>] MRE%VLT8V0:K=6U_!96L3:SIEQIW\\EM
M. AEN+>0+L6$I\AZ9#; L=">?2MR?PS%W\Q@7 (9I6R _WAG.=I _N]..E,3 MPM%'?F]2&19B0<"Y?9D# ~3=MX'M3YE?<. 1VV)J*M7V7< W! P!]4?V?<_W! M P!]57-'N3R2[%6BK7]GW/\ <' ?5']GW/\ <' ?5'-'N"')+L<-
>:SE:6@:C<7+0!>F3[8U0'="'D&+8"<; M,=,8QSSQFM@"%X607M;VP>0$D!I"5#"'.6"DXSR?SI]0X;CM4"PO&,#;C$SIOP MOW1G/W1Z=*E-+J4XM]#GQ!K NM3AL]2>?-NHC>Y "1W!)SM*C.-N..<'%7] MEGETI1l=+,MS'(\4PEE\P[E8@X;
R/3CISN#PE' ;_*BG& KF\E;'.3C+<<"F M,U?CTN:)-Bl@+U"]34EW$X2?0@HIU_91S <' ?5']1GW/]P?]1]14":/<7)+L5: M*M?V?< W! WUl 9]S <' ?5'-'N')+L5:*M?V?< W! WUl 9]S <' ?5'-'N M')+L5:*M?V?< P!P?]]4?V?

< PIP?]]4X: O\BBYKB%TRYLS 5U)$'N4OIK! C&XP ' () ]JLVVNPG4XK . XD832*BJI%7Y - Q'()/ MJIVUB! Z#GK722:7-+&TXN278JT5: L~Y_N# 0JC~S[ MG™X/~"J.:/<.278BMO\ CYB_WQ_.MZLF&QG2>-F48# GFM:L:K3>AT4$TGJ/:Z?JA0//DN=.72/0*D/\F\%,
M< 'T[5J2\(C;>?+*]HLGFH4*R2%E"D8( )XR*GB\.K"N$@. "VYLRL=YV[?FR M?F&., '--.RWSXMI#E[."0; VPNEIVOQ? &:.[Q:LGS* <+ 'G@8(QSSQ[UK"~' M[MK[P]87+5/-)) "I>1X]C, WOY7LB\+Q0($A@:,#;C9.P.%Z#. <[1GITIW M#I, D$*10PHD:#"JT
S4I+N2X2[$%%60[/N?[@ [ZH LY N# 0JGS1[BY)= MBKI5SK"S[G"X/""J/I, N?[@i[ZHYH]PY)=BK7!1,‘7J.E7I/I.’JﬁLKZLD@)"B M) [(JR(IT WC*]>?QKT?"S[C"X/SK+7P?:AIRUH)/.7:PDD+!5"7A 'M6NY4GEN-, +K*LS EW50PP5XVD, #[9JLUU?R:3
MI, #R:E :5HBR/IE, 9, FY25,>>-N<\=2E[UTX\. (L;1 9P8VW[U:0L)-PPVX$ M -D>N::GAB. - J@NHR”Z}WRI/’M ) SDE#CIXH; 7<%%BOI-R+WIK&ZSTIF\Z! ' M\PIMWY4Y/)+L5 M:*M?V?< W! WUI 9]S <' ?5'-'N')+L5:*M?V?< PIP?]]42V?< P!P?]]4
MX3V6C/+; /LE M>6*(28SL#R*I;\ 36 \ V?< W! WU45SHS7EN]0<0))%(, K'@TN:/<.278Y M(Z5>P>" ' &\R; 39YHH)&&20%! 1 /TIN 2K&FW= +HZ?922VMIHW?: IM "0+MV@[./ER2'/7A??% M=-;W$5W:Q7,#;X9ID$B-ZJ1D&I+CPZEW T$ULKIM) YA
21W=>NORB>&WV. , ') /6K M% GRAPHIC 8 rdi-20240930x109g003. wq GRAPHIC begin 644 rdi- 2&724@930)(10!7”003 Jjpg M ]C X 02D9)1@ ! 03 8 !@ # XO!:17AI9@ 34T *@ @ '0,! 4 M ! 2@.# $ ! %$$0 $ ! 0 %$$1 0 ! %$2 M 0 ! 8:@
"QC__; $, " 8&!P8%" <'IPD)" H,% T, M"PL,&I1(3#Q0=8A\>"IH<"'" D+B<@(BPC'!PH-RDL,#$T-#0?)5D] . #(\+C, T M,0 ; $,!"0D)# L, & T-&#(A'"$R, C(R, C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R M,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R, O !$(
*P"U@, ! (@ "303#3$0' MQ ? !!0$! Q%! O O(#! 4&!P@)"@0 Q "U$ " O,# @0# M!048! 7T! @, !!$%3$B300083463'(G$4, H&IHOBCOK ' !%$5+1\ "0S8G*" M"OH6%0@9&B4F)REI*COU-C+CY. 7FY~CIZ0 'R\ 3U]0?X"?K Q ? 0 # 0$! M 03! 03! O(#!
4&!P@) "@0_Q "USO " (3! 1P43! ! G< M O(#$00%(3$&3D%1!V5Q$R (R@O@IOISAL<S) (S-2\!5B7]" MBX2%AH>(B8I2DY25ET>8F9IBHZ2EIJ>HJ : JRL [2UMK>XN; K"P\3%QL ? (RKR\_3U]0?X"?K V@ P$ A$#30 _ /2Z*** M"BBB@ HHHH ****
"BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH * M*** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HH MHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB M@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH ****
"BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** M"BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH * M*** "BBD.OI(&3C@4 +16+ :.NY Y $? @ Z 87 ('+ P#ST?VCKW O C \#E ~)H VJ*Q?[IU[ H 1 P#@ M P"@!' X'+ \31 :.07]
"/ M L #E P#B: -JBL7"T=> Z $? @%K>X@)#: '05X(.00=NOO>A"- T85G\298WM[75=.2VNC:K M- *&EV8/VGI&>&RN;HI\ 3RG9.@&2"0#"-="E MOK"
(B#P[&VQOH+WZLV!QRZN3"- . SWK (. IXW: 4W"HIDEVS(!"; :="0<8. TT[Q#XD0=/\9Z ' I@0OH; 2WN[6 : 2Z51 (PSR MI3!!8<]6&. “*VC=ZR>0AR /*7Q.W3"&D>ZUB1@S"&X&8="UXA |EHZAT.=7 MXFPO=WEH+- \$WDAUG!

D[WX"51PUO: 9\ 1;N/18W0=. ENKB&Q6YNI%98 M\ [F8 A>I48Y('%$=3]IU?+' A&H/FZ Z8G/\ X/3C>ZT3D“82< 2°/U>GI]V M@"/P?JEWI~C37%Y (DDBWEQSK( %*+(ON, #DEQSWKH*Q!?ZXH 7P .@%\0 M .32 P'HZ] T ( L7 P")H VI*Q?[IU[ * $2?

_@Z 37 @7 387 ('+ PHST?VCKW @ C \#E ~ M)H VJI*Q?[1U[ H 1 P#@ P"@ M!' X'+ \31 :.07] " #E P#B: -JBL7"T=> Z $?7 @>U<-+XVUC2XX P"U MXU@NH;O[-<1G:L4VV"232&0&=K[5/I#07607:W(NU #T3*>Q05( ]!I'0-:D

M& '\ PMCUO5/ _++01@Z7\2%U6 : SERTS=+<7#0 +HZIXR: T2ZB; 39K40X*]3: WETNK, >H4TK=>. *I/5N/87&WPW '(Q>)P? M7[M*;56B6)\.0DM][-Z0/U6A@CE #WQ#FFT712MJ"YNKNTBEEF!"[F?2DJH M&-J[/F/:
(I+;XDR:KIV\EK!;V_FL5D=I@XC!M3.0;&L#&/#< P M"!B\3C/7°&@76L $#PW >H%XG Q-#UN".7\-_$)MALM/6>W1Y9)HK6>=) R M 8T2/G"C(R6(Z8!')HD\67<7Q!U?3) -2MUL+.&*1$:2)30*DF/&-0SCJ. F*Z M!;K6$QM\ - P+@Y&+Q!S WS2&YU)G_

!H8 (XV]"*DEUXSNKG3 M[9+>\""'RY/-61%/D+*!TYS[MNWV/I6K> $"5+74!%8-$8)S: )<2RJ LFUCNQ M>2H. !MR, -D50"ZUAIG>&X , YP+Q.0 ?-*;S6CNSX?\ QVA@BWX> MO)MO\ - : 7>W)S<7%I%+*=N, LR GCMS6E6+ :.N \ O C Y? B:/[IU[ H MI \

@ Z $? ('+ P#ST?VCKW @ C \#E ")H VJ*Q? M[IU[ H 1 P#@ P"@!' X'+ \ M31 :.0?] ", H#E P#B: -JBL7"T=> 7 $? @ Z $7 ('+ P#SUH6$]W/"STEF+60-@()1)D>NO!0!:HHH MH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH

#xx% “"BBBG M HHHH **** "BBB@ HHIG>:I: 7+##F)>6SSRP)/&TL . T2(&&4W?=SZ9H GHIGGI=I%/T. :KZ2J=EJF MGO7UG.LMM, H"N>WOX( &@"WI44EQ%% "\K/\B#+; IN/Y#D 2LRU\4Z+>&U$ M%~C&Z UO*, I/)7!! 'RG*L, ''(- &Q1110 4444 %%%%
11110 4444 %%%% M!1110 4444 %$%%% !1110 4444 %%%% !115>]0K;3KIKI[E$4*$ LO>I( ' M'J2!0!8H]"&\@GBSB284Y"""IXZ\ ' ! I3>6RS11&>, 22ACENX9; '7 'KB@" : BF M>=% SU3IG[PZ57MMALKNIN/ . "<-<6A59TPIL+#<.07@]] +=%-$D;$!74DC(
MP>M93GBOI (I+F.2]V/; 2+ ' *K1. ""5+# Q\PPI.ID8!H V:*;'(DL:RIL&IP& M5AT(/0TZ@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HH MHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BF":(SM )$,RJI& >X:@#T./3@ E3Z "BBB@ M
HHIAJEN : 3T#*NI :G9V; . , J+B94R, X[GUH OT54M-5T" 8+9WUM<, 4\P"*4, M=N<9X[9!&?:IS0KIKYKS; FIW: () &@#C>3)P&*]<9[T 3T4C, $4LQ 4#))[54 MO]ETWZ/-MFU " MK2*IMJ1//*]!CZ D\F@"YI14%I>VNH6XN+. YAN(2<"2)PRY 'N M*=#1-'+Y;F-
[C!MK#IIQT(]* ) - *** "BBB@ HHHH *0D*"20 .232 MT$ C!&0: .G (26P] T'=, \"X \:3 (26P] T'=, \"X \:M?V/IG O-L M P#0PO\ Al 8°E ] VS . " P"%$ %7 (2GP] T'=, \"X \:Y Q4?#7BBV MBGE\1:1& >2K-, C/&Q0ATS. "K
X(<\@UU7]CZ77 - VS [\+ Al 87E P#0 M-L ~ " X4 >9:KIND!T-MXDTVZDN- 1\V2:6Y1FBB*2#Y@9 VL & IOZXJU M87AL-C A,=/DB, EN\B2W"YES$ ' (+: . %06>GNB21D0">JQRIH '&&"R _[CYA™8! =SXXKTCQ]+ ZIMG -"% M P */['TO H&V?\ WX7_
Heé( ; -HFEZ3?VUOXIT7[7.Y MI159L Z#NF?*!I -']CZ7 M P! VS [\+ A4L%CIVKSK>UGABC!, <84D?A0!8HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH * M*** "BBB@ HHHH **** "JM[JI=AIJHU >VUJKG"F>54#'VR>:M5#<6EM=Al< MV\4P7D"1 V/SH S0"$I\/?\
0=TS P "X \ &C A*72#W 0=TS P+C QJU 8~ ME \ O-L ~ " X42V/I? $#;/ OP0"% %7 A*?#W 0=TS P+C QJEJVL"&]5 MTR:QDUSIVCE #K--'(C#/(*ENO:U P"Q]+ Z!MG -"% P */['TO H&V2\ MWX7 H \RNMAT*UTFX6U\56-U(NGRV\%L]Z
J. V\KY9, GRK™\ *X; =P1SQ4L_M&BZ%+1267QC8078D, ZNSFC'E>:B+A/G"7; Y8SR, M¥@58HD*9#C2&50/&/FV~0>020( ' TO H&V?\ WX7 M H L?2 ~@;9 P#?A?\ "@#C]%B\-Z5K U! $FCRD6JOJBS ; '#.6=2TC$!M MYX[>M4;S2 ?#NH2WSU<>+-
(6°FESAEAD1S; ". F63S#EMDA&X$?=7BN" L?2 ~ M@;9 ]™% PH L?2 °@;9 ]°% PH>H+0Q-&US2-/MI+67Q'I, EOSP2T N(PR1! MO & XY/!YX'E: \ PE/A[ H.Z9 X%Q XU: L?2 ~@;9 ]™% PH L?2 "@;:9 M]"% PH J P#"4~'0"@[IG @7' C1 P
)3X> ZANF 2™ I &YHDGNY [ FWUS%8U< M7) : 6>5\W<6&6" M; ;V.%//-=W9:A!2VD-S$6595W*LIE ' _%$3R*K:IKJAIST, M%P\CW$P+)!!&9) "H\VT<[IW- '-1:7K:>)HHI; W5YM- CT0/G>=LWSB7>*M+TN]N]7N-3L [9I[SQK*QDD; YB)8\IDJ3§QJ >@YKUWS8\
MI\Q<<= 71455%:7<*I[B M+>9'<"4,IN),, OSRO(Q[ZRI.CR+) "NBOE; :WSCC.3Z\X~: /FQX!\Q, $9!W4=06//?%$SKXI M P"$GGN]&BNCIMEVP=8W"$L7!, JISP"S0Z>]5M4T07++QC#>7=9:C=V TZ"W MGE:8BX9?M#, P5]P. X @\[1D=:]+::-, [G4$#. , \X"E5M-
U2TU73(=1M) "UK, MN"-V4KDIZX- "T!ZGGNH: -XJU/PSXFBNI; JKV3[1'; VRN!%$*A<-$R'/!" +CC MOG-: CK3+Z~\%65EI]I<37"W-J"P?,RICISS[CV ]:[3S(\XWKGCOZ]*/.B MYZ) WT* .%0?#%UINH:8VDRZB1JI&JO0=:M- '+L)5HF' (4@ [,8&1C-9INFZ7X
MICUM[>\.J+H\E >GS(+C;*!E#"Y.F&6, '!=1QGKVI?, CQG>N, MXSGOOEK<#E/#EKKWINZE<:0@"6BBB@ HHHH **** M"BBB@ HIGEC(R)%(SC. > I2AT. [#J=IPV#TH =1110 4444 $%%(SIF-S!"(?$J28\3 MQK*+;:24W2*H7.>2 2#TYIW
+! TTM8H+: Y+7BRE5"3*M ' ORI&[N8VP>G06 MA>'PS : HT5TM@BW#@, C*, . Q; CCW8?B15BWT ?0Y?F@TZT/DLT>1" 5.3D=/5F M, T &T@ND MCMI3%YDL159""O2A[X*D5EW'A7PMX@VPVQS$8LIR673YS#MDPINQ3!. N/P]J MZ:WL[ : T#BW@CB\QB[[%
W,>I1/00!/115'"V=--M]H"VP?3Y V??NX\W=MV?7 M=QCUH 044PS1"=8#(HE92RH3RO.I'YC\Z?0 4444 %%%(SIF-S!22@!:*** "BBB@ HHHH **1G5,;F"Y.!D]333+& MH):11@X.3T- #Z*: '4N5# L.HSR*=0 4444 %%%% !15:]U"TTV%$9KR=88V<
MIAFZ%B< ?4GBI8)X[F%987#QMT(H DHHI '941G8X51DGT% ''6 C"[L2%\16 M@LBURSE*#?P1EO<$X[\ “@SWKINM:0)/%DFAVODP>38 :VFG4GS"6*A0, C@8R MQ]QTJI\]SHMW'822/:2I=R"2T9@") 7V[@5]3M!/T%37\6FL4EOTMR8@65Y0, ]

"I/NITE, 2. 7M? 'OGN]4L [3AS-9F5T>":J. B"/(RS#G, GZX&*6#XEZ7/EVI6G_$6QU"> MR@72]226\E9(U\H/\J[7"1012T %$%%% !17/2\ "$Z7 P &K ~ M#:Y “+H XOS2 P#GXU: ,&MS \ ST =#17/7\(9I?\ S\:M P"#6Y ~+H X MOS2 ~?C50 !K< \
Q=_'OURF0Z9J%S5)K=09NBS : 18+!;22@[ (V&\, "O#CALC MBK7 AFE \ /QJW @UN? BZ/"$,TO\ Y*-6 P#!K< !=)JXT['-V?P 0; M?Q+9ZE)): “WM[M) |&C- E88H/+BA<==0=C"%. NM- N_%$>H>)=2TYST\W3DTW3[ MBXOH#NRTK=, CE@.G5:Z+ A#-
+ Y2-6 \&MS /%T?\(9I?\ S\:0 P"#6Y ~ M+IO4IRB #[5]COF:Q\K"T%N@ S?ZN !&?EZ!@"784 30 FL6-A]CE&G70B MT"&*SDDE? 1IT5B2!MY!=MV<]L8-=1 PAFE \ &K?°#6Y \ BZ/"$,T0 GXU M; P:W/\
\70". 3MOAYIMLES1[%;>&. SMS#' (R"=#3&:16. W *4@GU Q45 \ M#+5+NU2W-W:2*MNZ ') 95+SSAY\ #Y5"#:GU/2NQ XOS2 P#GXU; ,&MS \ M%T?\ (917 /QIW @UN?\ XN@#EG\%>)#J- ¥ 74+ LIN6BOSMYFD ?<8E (6, GY> L
M8"X'0US6 J/AV™.G™'[&QCM'LM/8+ XO0S2 "7C50 !K< P#Q=' "&:7 , &K?\ @UN? M BZ: Z&BD50B*HS@# RUATG[?NG4NI(B- H(:E:D:%=Q>+EUIK/[ "' '979&5YSD, H"4IPI<-DB(. [/; '>KO\ PAFE P#/ MQIW (-;G XNC A#-
+_Y7°-6_\&MS P#%T+0'J=#17/7\ (917 /QIW @UN?\ MXNKNF: #9723, \MM+>NSKM(N+V688]@[$ ] &I1110 SR[>&[S A(=07"]A?WDEU- - J*R28R(MOGC7@8X57 '3L* M@ X0S2 ~?C50 !K< P#Q= &/I'@:]LY=/EQ-3, KVYF64!W*NC/OCQGH487EQ
M3+7P3JJR68N 4\ V&*X229%FD4R8CI6 . (YW, 05B.@VUM \ (91?2 /QIW @UN? M (NC A#-+ Y~-6 \&MS /%T 1 MACOZ\X &KD/@G68M<:] MDB#[4]1QY<;E2[%(US5F"4Y/[LY", HW7UW %, TO\ MY"-6 P#lK< !=' "&:7 S\:M X-:G_
. +H6@&1>>3 ; RXEQ[>) U4&YLKNVE MDR5;R=N8VOQR, E2< [>?6I-:\*Z0J].L6-_ :WL4'D - (@F=IN\Y'XP, 'Y59>?[ MU:? AFE \ /QJW @UN? BZ/"$,T0\ Y"-6 P#!K< != '/67@+4K6YLO MES;O6L-Y-
<31PR29E21W)4] ! ]UG. G:K4[~! ]332; 6TM]8(FASB&5FBS]!%) [ MNBCZSDUM?\ (9I?\ S\:M P"#6Y ~+H XOS2 ~2C50 K< \ Q= &%7>"=:GL MVCM]42*X:4'N3, 9I<"70+(H . >2#QBHAX U..2", 6HPB.XO5NA'EGI/VGSL MDS\+Z?8WD=U#-
J3216*B749Y%Z8Y5G (/XB@#: HHIAJFD6VKI& MES)=((R20V>ZDA//J489 &@" 7-", | -FU73;>TBTK[>&GOR, ) 41H54AMRENY MP!D$-92 M'6EELEU%;P21!/-0;Q)*[";\QOES; : \Y " '%; FEZSK=MXWBU*>23Z:NF_9TC MY+Q'DS/+;2WKLZ[2+B]EF&/8. MQ




00174444 %%9°]: /: ZNL : W, EV@C) * 9[J2 'KZ[&&?QK._XOS2_P#GXU; M ,&MS \ $T 1*,=-FUGULK:+20M]_:4DD<2HCOIK!LI6[DEHCGS: Y6 P=K, = MCK$S]DNHK>YAVBS 6#2RNIANZ, J. 5&>DRR26THZ[ . NTBX0)9A™ =B!"%
1116=JFC6NK71IDNT\Q. W[/=ROYSZ[ M&&?QH J>*]SGU[28K. |DIK=0S. 7=D"5 '#$ J,@G&*QMS\&7"IZY)+ :JATQK M%KO1)+(), EIASSC(8 C&*U/$,TO GXU: P:W/\ \71 PAFE P#/QJW (-: MG XNCI8.MS-
A'4Q<:=) 'J8'DIQ"<OSHIX'+2, HZ '>#M(/0#056V\820;Q:, MIZD@:S -RWG2LIF"ZWIC!7'&IR*W/"$, TO\ Y*-6 P#IK< _ !='_"§:7 S\ M:M X-:G__.+H Y6+X=:W!I=G:0:U"'"]JZM$Z[B(BML\.]0?XBS!B.@Q6Q PC M-]9:7IP, TEY):7, SCHTFXE%03G
25G__/""ZMYMO, T1F\UNEVD3R32-L$Q4T ! PA\N&[ 1ZZ+ A#-+ Y~ M-6 \&MS_/ST?\(9I?\ S\:M_P'"#6Y ~+I 9-CX(OK3#(N>,H"077 [*9:"]5CN+1Y]I#PORO(85GE |, 2*"", $YDANO>/F-;/\ MPAFE P#/QIW (-:G XNC A#-+ Y"-6 \&MS P#5T7
Y5/AWKCVIMY~LQ?:8 M)9W256D)B\TI\H3SE2CS ]<\UHGWA '5+/6/[1GOWDMEI ; F<6=0(10:IRPR"0 MS9!VD<=!S6U_PAFE P#/QIW _(-:G XNC A#-+ Y*-6 \&MS P#ST 6 "~GW M.D %M, T"\_X0S2 P#GXU:; ,&MS \ %UJ:9T=0 MI-NT$NIRZ, “\FXN'F;.
. KDD#CIOW<"[1110 45A2;+C_GJU-EU":&%Y6DD* MHIBAIDX'H!UK7V3, /KL ; ]%YJ]-J% MO#"TFOI-H[GNYC]!1[)A[==CH**P(]IDE+B. YW 6VQ]ISM; T/OR*@0=;.GB M WSLHS\RP(57/SMP, "0]12/9, /: KL=-17*W0B*. PE$<]Q+0V&5@DI?86ZLY!P
M/>K, 6]-. S+%=;F559@#R PR, 44>R8>W787&BL#TI//, 'VG]ZSWE, \AK4>R876 (] CK4?; +C GIU'LF'UB/8W**P_MEQ SU:C[9 MON45A ;+C_ )ZMI1]LN/~>K4>R876 (]CK5G60B>"10)K6WNI '>$D, PC. PD?> ;&"11[) P MINNQUMS<=)XNM( ] (CU4WDILY,
[72%F. 2"2 ,@#!R35RYUM: 33T+":Z(M8X M- : 106&WE<\=>*7L GWAVZ[ ' 2T50U XNMM-\K/1-=%94$@: */>10IZ%BH(7\ :U M?M=Q P ]6I"RE>W7EW**P MEQ SU:C[IQN45S- K?IFVIN M+FX=4!P J[F8"@ Y)J,>(HL6F:FOKID, 4(*$SN
20>.#P>011]) IPINNQUS MY=0(E, ,F5(PXQD< 459°V7' /51/9, M/;QI6Y16" ILN/">KA?;+C GIU'LF 'UB/8W**P MEQ SU:C[IQNI5A_;+C )ZNIILN/">K4>RE76(IC. MEQ.0J? (VW<>BELS!/5SY-
PINNQU-%8"ZA*TLD:S, MECONILIOK3 MEQ SU:CV3#Z0'L;ES8?VRX YZMIILN/“>K4>R826 (]CZC5I"5) Y%#T - *XU73=K&M115+499 (DC*, 5RIG$II7=C24N M57+MAR7R7N
IR3P7RH=) K=@JZ?0Z>BN5 'B_M*(MIKIID#7C( d(+, 20>.", 'KZAVW\36 UTHC. */9/N 'MUV. LHKEO SACW 8OM3"=0\ +SM.W?MW; -V, ;LK4?;+C_GIU'LF 'UB/8W* M*P MEQ SU:C[9K4?:+C_)ZMI[)A]8CV-RBL M/[9QN45A :[C GIUA6>L?:
87%K=66SLRAQT) 58 MI_4&CV3#V\>QT=%]:>IHI6'164 D?AFH:30) ! 26TD]0=NRIN M$8%2&! (! 7@C/(((10:/9/N'MUV. KHK# UW' _#U:C[IKA?;+C GIU'LF'UB/SW**P MEQ SU:M'3Y'E@SNQSAL< O4I4W%7* MA5AGISNBBBLSAYRENN"-
ESCUBMIC3)=0GL (Y UU B22Q!CE5;.T CM-62[/MO[I [Z-35Q M*5*:/*+C2=1ASRL=E?+:2ZE/) . MF(_,D21!19= !PG&SLQ*LIXDI2RKNY(&, G11°=/\ [/MO M[A [Z-/VDA]E, X#Q+ITUU>"YLXKR"AMR%> [ M<-EB3~ZDO\, AX/ (P.>16WTCZ:NDNI; -I) (/N
XE'( (+ ,/N°G)KT'39]-U:&. : TCG: *16*NR, H™ M5BI!ST.0>*0 -GUWIT ]]&CVDAIE- 'CIKHYNQ632"TNI? '38H3*20F, 4F8L MNXYSXHO!G@YI*TH]. U"*. RDLXM293*6:#4 0 9P2, QD>6IRIUG. #U%>G?V?; MPW3 - J&CAS[:"Z?°C1[2(.E-
[C&/6BMG"S[ ;27" "C1_9]M =/ ?1I"UB3 M["I1C45L V?;7W3 WT:/[/MO[I [Z- 'MSA["IC45 P!GVWIT P#2IH L™V N MG OHT>UB'L)&-16S 9]M =/ 'T:/[/MO[I [Z- 'MSA["IC45L V?: ?W3 WT
M:/[/MO[I P"~C1[6(>PD8US; /IGWW]T ]]1&C S[;*Z?°*C1[6(>PD8US; /\ MOIM =/\ WT:/[/MO[L [Z-'MSA["I1C45[ V?;?W3 P!]&CS[;"Z?"~C1[6( M>PDEUWT]G;RN\D! (BAGVSC[P#8P2. X! 1. I&Z&], TF<9807:~"8]->VU"W MNIEFCS'&
T9+,5W9[ ' (]11ZU2U! ; V3PG26#VTLMX-/\LF) IMED9", ) */TQFM~ M75 #\.BQZNUPYL9"=LJH[="03@#( P-K#1E/FN@?:H)9;B* +RND6"(PLBI[@< D,NO.Y-=0J! TW2KIKF[+)&#08R MS,>P ') /L *BSUHYSF3(PV2&* K LX!)4\
<'Y3UQTI>TC231]15+2. 1()#$HILX+$ '=DEL 8JJ"FW;>+X]2BOEC)E3>I'[IXO0+P6; TE M4D@=\8'3FNSAN]&N-7FTJ. 10ML2; VC977*\ E21ALSC. "<9J";5-#M]8CTIO MW'VIW"+MBE*;B,@;P-N<>] 'M(Z![&9BZ&DI7&L&6"6(27[21F]"-ZE5 (IN#
M6Q6A!_9ES>75I#( ' GM2HGOS (6&0#°%67[/MO[I [Z- -58V$Z$CE&HKI LV _MNG OHT?V?; W3 WT:/:Q#VSCSHKI L NG +Z-']GVWIT ]1&CVLOIA(Q] M*V?[/MO[I [Z-']GVWIT P#?1HIK$/82, :L '4[B2;6;2R; 2KZ6VCE28500KY
MID ' WYT>VL ; B*GEVEMNVV28D[ (K" \U2 [MKIWM+B. 6&, BS[1\["8/DE&<>60, \_TK6SIDEVH 7+ MMt; " <(-B8E@8+ D-ZKEQ?PKI+F"PL[2: ZNE\N"%#) ([, <*H&2: IM>: *EN\[S M; (TBE?N6WY
MIL>U=152V;2[R"": IRR3DIGWEUB'L)&-5BR X ( K 2M'"S[; "Z?""C3H[*" M)PZIOPZ<7*-D<8+*;< /$P!*N, <\ 'T]>E9ZQZ]]GX>"WORS7S-"7E=(L$1A9%5 MW X!(9<@=R: [CAFTS2;-KI\IDC!P, 99F/8 #DGV%1"[T:%D3(R ; 9#% &506 M<
DIICE *N.E:>TCZICHY, [6. : 873°( 17, <=Xe> WEBEGDO?. 005, 7N< 08 M\IHNDN[WEKE>H2YB6UIQ*DZ 12(R ‘D=7FWS " “UGHZ6&IT: XU>; 2HY6"VQ)O M: - ESPDUSTBVRBON! EBENKBEKEXHM OPN =K@#D~FIGKTQ7: 7V7: 73 1 P!16&J>IR: 7I%1]1089(\
[5"[FICZ #DGAI/2E*I%JS '&C-. YQOCU21/#37T MSLEQ#=N\[I'JU=CIK. !|P"0+0> M-E99ISTI>8F-R'&"/:BNC T:1_: (L/-/V@ML ~::NON MVINF['.,YQ4UO 9EW=75M!())KIE2=03\CS;@# %" J1/T9[&?165 9IM =/ M ?IH LV NG +Z-
VL1>PD8US%; /IGVWIT ]]&C"S[;~Z?\ OHT>UB'L)&-1 MES 9]M =/ ?1H L™V NG OHT>UB'L)&-165 &?;7W3 - J&CS[;*Z?°"C1 M[6(>PD<]?17$UG)%;/&DC8&7) QGGISTS6+HL.IV>A 8I+=8KJ2:Y, ;H"8XP MI&I2W<ISQBNUF@L ; =XDD#; YGV(H,
YS38%TVYN; FWATC>X 8SM8Y'P187=K%ID%|#"L/(4[Y&4 (6&>X410/3/ MISN=675/[-6<6Z068"<'@-C/3. "#CKOYH52-@IC. YE: 6;QU*M#T "A; PO+YX& M. 'QSTX *K=:L-K9SQ9&&*DD Y(SEXI3°S[;*Z?""C3]KS7L)&-165 9IM = M/ ?
1H L™V NG OHT>UB'L)&-6MI? 'NW~ \ T%/ +/MO[I [Z-30PI 16,8 M!.>M3. ::LBZ=*4979)1116)T!3)I!#"\ ISWV*6VHN6. .P" . WU"WFGB(. TM*IB(W, WRYQ"7%;D M?BNVGL+: @OSFMKEQ'$\43/EB<8( RISZXK2"VW/ /O E1[)CL170Y"[TW5
M) +1[F239C=2V=2V\4MIKAFIFOQ, %)WIYPVSSQ5F:RUI) ) : VL[ Y%A-G#(X+, M7°<"<""2EQGDBRV?O5TWVVY YZ'\JSKCQ3#: WA=M-/, LDDPGO_W*M(>BAMN M, CI1[)BI0'L/YT4SWF[. >3L).!RIQFNP\ 'OWUOH; MP:@LXF2ZGV <.2ADSICD\;2, 5+]MN?\
GHPRIL-;)U)M/\Y M*Q"8]4. -A., MYQ@\TEL:T&\1%2V.DHKS Vh/ /O E56\UW[ ULMQ.ZFYF$$6%)!<] 2!QT[T M_9, MXICL: *Q/MMQ_P ]#°5'VVX YZ'\J/9, /K$3:HKS VW' /O E1]MN/\ MGH?RH]DP"LI-NBL3[ ;A *CV3#ZQ$VZ*Q/MMQ_P
[#°5'VVX ¥Z'\J/9, /K$3:HKS VW' /O E1IM MN/\ GH?RHIDPL1-NBL3[:A *CV3#ZQ$VZXCOK.ZT QIJ/V*UN8-+F+2W, $\>5CE(SNB; /. XYRHR M. <\ 'BMS[; MFPWO~'\>EQ; :C;75P)XP8X/FBELS+NR, '(Y(QSS6EI7VV3P7ISGRVDLE\NF M 6WDQ?)+
(T9&$Q[ ) 9%0CQ1; - IT5SM\GMIBI&GZH270G. ! C/&#YZ#-6)M<$% MIER]UF*3'EEINWYZ!0. 23[408NUKC L*] [%24H[ V] TC3+*R2ZANXOL\XIX/W MIVL-RR;AQ@ G'!SC%=77)R"*K: *GQUF-XSQWIVPF.)GW'_@(..?7&*T?MMQ_S
MT/YS7LE3[>*Z&W16) IMN/">A_*C[:,#/7IC-9075Y+#PW : -0++. ' ' [H+(INX'"DAE MR/4FM"UOSKIKBZN'DS. .%R270 #)/L*B'B.$ 97],P:MS'""A!9@"2.GIX M/7TI*D[@Z\GMBEBZD\3?VG% '>?9/>VEAF@EA 'S$$%3%W) . #T. #0T-7: J*YNM M2M)
(D*1PPO, OF#"F4C:H;Z ME5#XGM[C4Y=-BORUYSIIH]I&H. #8D8;&><90 MAIUY%$0QI&[Q<'HNWOC. ,XQG )QUQSI[) Q" W78@\+: ; JEAXAUZ2"MXACG, #+ M+&S$2L $PQ&IZUUE*Z&W16) IMN/\ GH?RH VW' /0 E1[)A]8B;=%8GVVX YZ'\J/MMQ__MST/Y4>R8?
6(FWIE) IMN/*>A *C[;S'GUS75?; ;C_GH?RK. E\IVMKOD> MY"YBAF6,G. W[QX'1>YZ#UHIDT 'MXOH3") 8- 3U3OKRSM. 6 - G6SUE27<%F80\ " M, CJ Q[@PX, SENMZIS ) J1@SZIER/ITUK7FN+86;7=U=B M.W7&9,9'/313)=;BMENGENSB: -1) *2N"0> >GS>G'?
BCY3#V\>Q10; +6- *MK_M5SMS@E"E6 7MMQ_ST/Y4>RE>WCV-NBL3[ ;A_*CV3#ZQ$VZ M*Q/MMQ_ST/Y5- : WA\ ESSK2$J3R*3L - *XU7BWEU : **IZA- ) "B&-MN25XX, $1A9%5W X4D, N1ZDUH7VNE3; SKF[N3'&#C[N23Z 9) ]A48\20 MG[) IF#=N8X
4(+, . DC&. #P>0I5"R=]S/VZML2MIKD\3 P!IQIWGVEWMIHIX M)8I\S @IENY)P>AP>. ]5MON9=2UV"S32M2B%OND@N3:@1"9HR [ -GHHECIR3 M[59CUL2WTUE '=:KB!5>2/ '*ALX/30@U"?$D*ZINEM=X0 '4LL94C< ,G!0@G"
M., YQI[)A[==B+P=IM]IWE1.ES#: 06,4, T4[$@W*D[F3)Z$=2. #D=\UUUA_* MC[;0(Q MFK'VVX YZ'\JIW O+IEL;B[N3''G PNXL?0 #)/TI2I.VK&L1&"Q2"ZM) 'X5 M?4+:62YBO " :=XXS=MXE?5HXKS[)#: 2PS6\L (WsU M8%7*[G< V><'Y>]1CQ' "6ME V?-
>,50/4@NO"2. G!&#UT*; : ™) [>ZU*: 3X: X M-=Q#TCC. "02, -@\ '&<d>R=PINK: %>30KR36W-@TD=]: S T9/M,> ) +VA M5/4]36GCC! )S@6/"FFZES:SKS7T$21520M "' )&Q(E(C 9NG. P"N:10%-JINJ M'360U6["EQ+*DIP,D XP2!S@' - -
T1507:20) *EE=2NTO#. '@>/ . <'YE&>AZ4 MU3>UQ.LMVF=;16) JMN/">A_*C[ ;R8?6 (FW16) IMN/">A_*C[;R8?6(D-_'])Y8 CVY+EV*@,QR!P"/ )(I~91GD'I2]DQ W78KVFC/8WIO;F:0:5I=KGP![U M9;Q)IR":KW2N(?G;="0@" /89&" >I&
<5.0B")MOP+>];: G&=@ 'MG&>F<§ ' '7 M!S1[-VWs[==B7PK)K:QW":0 (DOIKS-@7#: 2W@d#" 'FU@Q:E+, F*.8FE< MD XZX.*?MN/“>A *G[)A[>/8VZ*Q/MMQ ST/Y4?;:C )Z'\]/9,/K$3:HK MSVW' /0 E6A820+ S2-
DAL5, J;BKEQJJ3LBWI114&ISE(6"*7() "C)P"3°0 MK9 LZWI& P"~J/[.M_10°"JZ, VSCS+3=(0; JM*N; "I TM+EXSISK*IOQ2 M*/\ 6I#ZXPP[\&H; 23=6N; *] : IM534H41VS; 11) *C[@4(. 6W#(], ' IKU/SK M?T; _
+ZH LZW]& [ZI>TB6Z4VIG! :#87\6IW+7B2K:AC=0, I"0K2@:H 0. S! M]OFIB32W7B: :\NK. [5+0 9/ "(VS[26P'F)QMIG<\ 'UKT#"SK?T: 0JC SK? MT.: 0JCVDI>QF>5V=MIPMG:ZCU=[0?"'%797\DRV2PR.R, # 0\9.2/087G:#DB06?
[.M_10°°/[.M_10""J.>(>RF M>0"#5TMI4FAUIISTZZ2,A9" /. \TF+&"1G;C 'MEA=PZA=W] I +-8WLLT>IP3HX MOA!; [?G V=;~C?]]47V=;"C?] 4E. *§ZPF8]%; '1G6 HW ? M5']G6 HW ?5'MBA["9CT5L?V=;:~C?]]47V=;"C?]]4>UB'L)F/16Q 9U0Z-_
MWUI_9UOZ- WUI[6(>PF8]1%: '1G6 HW ?5'1G6 HW 25 'MBA["9CT5L?V=:"C M?]]47V=:"C?]]4>UB'L)F/16Q 9UOZ- WUI 9UOZ- WUI[6(>PF8I+KY: . WN(M-E)EGBFC. (I", [HVIACGYID?3I7HWIG6 HW 25'1G6 HW 'U2
M2 BULFDT>72=07D6F : >- 9! “0/=":: (A_PIYNVG:>042]] I6KT>G30° ' MH*LYSNEQN+5. JS. +>KR:2-04 C! )R, <HLY BO(_=AS%5W SM) MRNLIUZ' =i "C21147V=; AC7]]40 10(6 M+USSLHYAAY. . _6]379>-
: %S, JSSCEB#U/02=2+*56: . GUBW>+P7=79; P74\E
M0: QVZ8B+54@+RN, ONZK3=71.8] 7\ 07="RNEL: 36X 1411 "%, “AW+D?OUNOIGE M Hi _U3STITSFOAPS7>(/) W1 N"HS 2/ /sNVU72[>W; 28) GiF4] 2H=a0. MY=WINSLG,:@<5UOUKS LG//& P"~J/[.M 10""J:J10GIFS 'HK8 LZW]& [Z
MH LZWI& [ZHIKS7L)F/5BR X ( K 2M# SK?T; 0JG1V,,4@=0VX=. :3]1:* MCIDFF6:S]4°Y'|36A44U0 < "0'CIGUESV=S><7*-D<tXLM(: WP /%-#>., 1221\ ?VG)9"'60K>5[B. +R0' I~["R*KN!G:2"NIZF
MOI/[. M _10°"J/[ .M 10" JUYXWNE>RG: QQ: - )#XMU*X: VNGBSAS%S=8F (<EIR M54] "<, . />H=2ANM5U*U REYAS$ (D2430X3:\1 =6/\0)4<'"]FNZ LZW]& [Z MH_LZW]& [ZHYXVL'LIWN>?\ AG3[NWN;>2>!X5M=+AL6##§"16)) 'JIV/074 M5L?V=;~C?]]4?
V=; (7] ]4U4B) TOMW, >BMCSK?T;_0JC SK?T;__+ZH]K$7 ML)F/6#XOLX:WO)4EBNEI, R1I26P)>$P#AL#DCLIG]>>* ; “SK?T; _+ZH LZW M]& [ZI2J1:L-49IW//?")E*QAE[ZWE: XCNW: =HX3A5V. INP&OI. 5) ‘8D E3Q
M7IWGORT$FE: DGV*&2. I C:D(RDELS/N[ _+.M 10°"J/[.M 10°"] M/:1'[&IP\ERM[XEM8) - U!8[1V>*8VY$1D9I2"Q; T ) 'N3[5I65 M678@7 GF@POX$[C"-=-_9U0Z-_WUI 9U0Z- WU3]I$7L9F/16Q 9UOZ-_P!] M4?
V=;~C?] ]4>UB+VSS 'HK8 LZW]& P"J/[.M_10°"J/:Q#VSS 'HKE LZW]& M P"~J/[.M 10°"J/:Q#V$S 'HKE LZW]& P"~I/[.M 10°"]/:Q#VSSC;A)5\ M96,S P#'LUE-$A)XSI=#CZEQ?R-6+=I8;F\0) [>0M+. L, OCTTB/V, CSFTTI[2Z-U<3. -, TZUN(
MH3/ 'L9A(02#SRIA< D#. 7Q) HOAPQEKES7 "2#4 7L ZM/ (6X50+" '_@14/289-> MB/ISI(NV2/130[.M 10\ QJE[2( 93.+\-RZM)%. NIP>4J", 1COMP MVWYU [J#C![UNSL?V=;~C?\ ?5']G6 HW 25/VL1.A(QZ*V/[.M 10\ 0JC MSK?
T;_OJCVLI>PF8]:VE P#'NW"_04["SK?T; 0JIX83@0JF<$YY-3.::LC M2G2E&S5V24445B= 4444 %%%% 1110 4444 %%%% /1110 4444 %%%% /11 M10 4444 %%%% 1110 4444 %%%% /1110 4444 %%%% /1110 4444 %%%% M 1110 4444 %%%%
11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 1110 4444 M3%%% 11110 4444 %%%% 1110 4444 %%%% /1110 4444 %%%% 1110 4 2444 %%%% /1110 4444 7 9 end GRAPHIC 9 rdi-20240930x10qg004.jpg GRAPHIC begin 644 rdi-
20240930x109g004. jpg M_[C X 62D9)1@ ! 0$ 8 !@ # X0!:17AI9@ 34T *@ @ !0,! 4 M ! 2@,# $ ! %30 $ ! 0 $$1 0 ! %32 M 0 ! 8:@ "0C_: " 88!P8%" <'IPD)" H,% T, M"PL,&1(3#Q0=5A\>"1H<"" D+B<@(BPC'!PH-RDL,#3T-
#02)SD]. #(\+C, T M,0 : $,!"0D)# L.& T-&#(A'"$R,C(R,C(R,C(R.C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R M,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R,C(R.C(R.C(R,0 I$( 2 #:P,!(@ "$05#$0' MQ ? !!0$! 03! 0 O(#! 4&!P@)"@0 Q "U$S " O,# @0# M!04$! 7T! @,
11$%$B30008346% ' (G$4, H&IHOGCOK ' |%5+1\ "0S8G*"_M"OH6%Q@I&BAF)R@I*COU-C+CY. 7FY~CIZ0'R\_3UJ0?X"7K Q ? O # 03! M 03! 03! 0(#! 4&!P@)"@0 Q "U$SO " 0($! ,$!P4$! | G< M 0(#300%(33&3D%1!V5Q$R (REOG4OIGAL<S) (S-
2\/5B77" MGX2%AH>(B8J2DY25ET>8F9BHZ2ELT>H] : JRL [2UMK>XN: K"P\3%0L ? (RKR\_3U]0?X 2K V@ , P$ AS#$0 _ /2Z*** M"BBB@ HHHH **** "BBR@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH * M*** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH ****
"BBB@ HHHH **S]8UO3M!LTN MM2N/)CDE2"(*C2/+(QPJ(BEL[ 'T4$\$] : CTCQ#IFNO=063\AGM '5+B">"2" ME(LNY=TZ0[.Q\C[9=P6 GRK!#YT@3S)&"ZBYZL< M' ')H L4456ZWK>G>" - 'GU;5KC[/8P; 7, EV, "W2IES WMO\ 90[FO~7NV8Z+\0\
KS ICKIGNGH **KW5 9V/D7:+N"W M\"58(?.D">9(WWA7/5CEX Y-5]*UO3M; "V V=<>=]ANY+*XIEV3) C7#5M)N/MSC/N\N7BR: MKS3PP! ' ( (V% GA167=ZWIUCKSG:3< MWSRU+S?LDEQCYGEKN?D# P#GDC/:M"@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** " MBBB@
HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBB@ HK'UCQ3HVOZCI=AJ=YY$UID MODV:>4[>:"5&,J"!RZ]<=:+#Q1I.]7DMK8S3SR17MZ=X?5M6N/L]C!M\R78S[=S!1PH)/) X% &A17/W M/C;P[:?VEY H;/[>V V;:"YD/G[MF.B + K$~]CK[&GN@H **KW5 9V/D?;+N"
MW\ ~58(2.D">9 (WWA7/5C@X Y-5]*UO3M; V V=<>=]ANY+*X IEV3) C7#5M) N/MSC/N\N78R: MK3PP! "' ( (Y% &A167=ZWIUCK&G:3 M4 MY!"OM/#8.#@]<5P ") ?$/\ Z*? .4"W QH ] HKS  (I+XA ]%/\ *I: M P"-' ")?$/ **? P"4"W QH ] HKS
XI+XA_]%/ _/*1; XT?\(E\Q_~ MBG ~4"W __,: /6**\_\ "$2°(?\ T4__,H30 C1 P (E\O "BG /E M \ MS@#T"BO/ P#ASOB' PI%/ \ *!; .-' ")?28/\ 7*? .4"W QH ] HKS M (I+XA ]%/\ _*I; P"-'_")?8/ **7? P"4"W QH
V/& AR\\16>D-820+= M:7IMOJ21SL52:RR

S| E 1, 1 > s=M; <d7<, : a
(E\0_P#HI \ Y047 6C_(1+ WA I%/\ *1; P"- 678 #C6+3XI0")I; FQN+6/4+R[:X=H"TO - L<<)6TC W;$5( SXPW 717J%>7 | )7: »11 P#Y0+7 1K X14XA \ 13 __"G6 P#C NO1Z!17G_/PE7QF .BG PHE W \:/\ ASOB' T4 PA\0 (T >@45y \ N\{E\B \ HI )aﬂ 6C Aso8" T4\ wm 65'1/176 \ PE]O#‘ Z*7 Y0 W47\ QH XI+XA P#13 \
' HI P#Y0+? _IH X1+X MA_\ 13 "G PB7 PHE W \: ‘74 p#| 2C) -KGC ' “VKSHBBY_\_9DSMM?((7W00!USS>7 P#") 7 08" -3, 1; XT >@45Y P (E\6_"BG M&C ASOB" P! L .- %7\ ")7s

2D4 3545 MILLI0 4444 %333 11110 4444 3333 11110 4444 5333 11110 4444 & Mess 11110 455 B PIITSPZIEVI-WEVE '3 XFOTSCE580/0-
7<44_%%3%% 11110 4444 $%%% 11110 4444 5%%% 11110 4444 S6WN/AS - !

5483 11110 4444 3333 11110 4444 33% 11110 4444 33%% N /1110 4444 $46_B/Q3HWA+3H,

\_MAO(HHXX].
< MY AZ7-UKC- *TCO-1YC>%(+/2- 26U PH9: XIPGLVVORNKE 65+LF+, 5P5+9°F H:N7S>/

: 5 . 7
K]0\ xsz'u'y HP#\);\0_PHHE'_EZN \*/\ A+7B'_T3# ROV \ A7HSS 'F,6J"-8KS;; A stzam ‘/xgwn ~20&'c<3t 15[ A+7B"
- A\WS_L

Y YVZ/ " BMIBCVLGIASOILES  ,\O 'ALIGNTS7 _(\*UI*/:REVSSSPT/ #R 1>%" MUY YY;
L(]S%" MP7/ #R \>%’ 7°/"MIBG[60081, 7[!< \ [+ QX478+G GE X\*VI* M/:R#V$3/L+::&=FD3 *XZCU%s ;333IT:9

= / - R:
<9..F>,9205 "I MIGLF™ [M97-DICY@ISRH 28ZY)/X=Z *4G@7P]*DB-9S*) ' MOF*7DR'!1165."(\S NQ\G/2. ~aN9/.C*IS1X608 N #,FXL2N>, GEYK>HWFGR: 9] EBE> Q' 77VZ5 M!L [-34!ILD.
OUNK61WG2, 3) 7 M33NIZEODSMO 5LE<;<'D $U:E\3:7!J=[ISR7‘VIRMONAZ+:2L1% >#!<-WX MAD\$EX- J6/; !YY\RUE3*@!B!E>7 8907, ,]*+]0[+"NG__&W/@0 “>D"1V/+NC(\T/05HT44_%%%% 11110 44CDIC, +D#(48R7; MGBL72- =17]+. [MDCF'E7'G))%)N"G<54AL) 1c#35




PLIS WP C COMIF5$% 10

w ! 163 :< \ =C 028 D K4z (IDG05>2) V]U- 1[. 0>V 2 96YMO3..
i< JV/\C C1[*0>Ve:. ms 115 W8 R/*-']IS W8 R/*- 'u“]n UJ'R?[J Ma mz 07\ [35 Im m\' 0260\ #6K)_N. 7" "1 M N, ?*1“1 MJE( N;P- 'sm"ry [L7Y" &IIY-( zmznsz 9"&
GCT)I L7Y" :US9/\ M: > &CVSVTV\FN) SXHEMGW/ (PS1PIR372576L

19684F ) ReT ) 1 08! 1P4; #500%(3568D%1 12DY25E1>8F9JBHZZELI>H] : Ps_4s
IS T'4W_+[A P#CEN _ NE\ 7TW N *)DJ 0:0"Wn/ 007\ ON' ..42;[G H$70 7 M]]P **0Td 4/M]5 P! 51 [[A *.47;[G HS70 ‘w P#'*ﬂfl d/H]S r N"+H_+[A PECE'VY ZI%[ W \ \ 7z ]]P '*ﬂu d/ﬁ]s P/ B] [[A ~.47:(G HS70 ‘¢ P#'*0Td H A/H]s T'4H+[A PECEVY ZI5] We# 1\ 7 11P %074 d/ﬁls P!
BL[[A ".47:[G HS70 "We H P#'*0T4 4/NIS T"+H +[A PACE'V"Y ZIS[ WW# \ \ 7 ]]P '*OT4 4/NIS P! B] [[A *.47;[6 K NS70 'W# P#**0T4 4/MS T"+H _+[A P#CE'V"Y Z/N[ Wi \ | 7 JIP '*0T4 4/M]S PI B] [[A ~ M.47:(G HS70 ‘¢ P§'*OT4 4/W]S T"+h ‘[A P,fcs V°Y ZIS[ WWg \ M\ 7 J]P_'*0T4 4/M]S P!
MB] [[A ~.47;[G Hs " 074 ! :

‘Wt P#'*0T4_4/M]S T"+H_+, 2 Wt \ \ 7%#9/% &51110 45F: XATKPQI3: 1]%%% 11110 uu A%48%7- " M3R"-/%6B, V. HU'

16X\MG"$57 we. P D(3D) 1Y 8]70) J=C, &K>1<z 5. 7! +/Q/@9SU*ST- Y+ '/ "SKMX#"+=RLADIS , NSPJ !
1227 U] 2)b3 5"\ m/wz m{z 13)5°0 HAHH *+* "G5O HAHH **** “6H0 HHAH **** H'B5Ge wm **++ "BBRQ HHHH **** "BBB@ HHHH **** "BBBQ@ HHHH * e "BBBQ_HHHH **** "ssn@ wm *x "BBBQ HHHH *** "sss@ HH mm x*+x "BBBQ HHHH **** "BBBQ ww
7 7 4+ \ X =+ P"0I0\ T3)5 *_"BBB@ HHHH M***XR N=3M/&13:AJGH6>FF>.50\I*. 2TF#A%, . VL-7H MK!=/\F/RY4=Hd<]T( . :*S1ILK30 -*07 N-15=EW6\ D@’ 67, G HS70 7 J]P_'* Mrl%d/M]S P!

nnp 3 qu/ﬂ]s P! B] [[A A.u [5 mn "Wt P#'Y qw/h]s T MW +[A PHCE'V™Y ZIS[ W \ \ 7 ]]P_'* qu/ﬂ]s P! B] [[A ~.47; 15 /4370 7] P#‘* o] M54/M]S T"eH _+[A PHCE'VY ZI5[ W \ \ 7 JJP_"* +]sd/M]S P!
s ~.47 . S T4 :

B 7 -7ZH:W P
s] [[A A.u 15 /4570 'w.v P#'* +]%4/M]S r"w +[A W PECE'V~Y ZIS[ g \ 1\ 7
~.47; PE* 4, T+ +[A P#CE'V"Y ZI%[ g \
Ps ! wY];3[; D<-69){ N"=D*\ +Y979M&YB!C )R, &H; 2R WSK| /
11110 4444 %% 11110 4444 ¥55 11110 4444 3355 11110 44 MA4 3433 11110 4444 935 11110 4444 s 11110 50U0\ Y GH PE7 MK+ Z":000U0 ) GH \ 7K+ @F@" 1110!@0\
0 M444d %%%% 11110 4444 5%%% 11110 4444 %3%% /1110 4444 %58 B?5 M;GIM"G0;2V, \J\>R#*\WL/\ /K7$>: : =300, =/"\Z_M=Y+1$SKS4445REX4444 %
4444 %3%% 11110 4444 %v% My /1110 4444 3%v% /1110 4444 %3%% /1110 4444 %%%% /546 011/ M 7K+ P"GFK]4-; Y &H ]>LO H)H 0Td4d 4+ \ X =+ P"0I0\ T3)5"J% M P ’ME 17377B9*0T %3%% /1110 4444 %%%% /117":ESUIXT75[Z6XN+5 H){I/&l/”} 878W<1H89+7]>L" _ *$+5°L.¥74 [ /vs M+ TW_9H; W /E97
~IC P#QI@" 15#5=6 Y\K+ _,#' P#C5'FZM SY67 @ M8 \ \:H OT50\W50"7*R P# Q \ XUIYNK?\"SE X&/ /&] +]%4/-U; GR MLO\ P,? .-d>;JW /E9?"IC P#QJ@" 15#5=6 Y\K+ ,#' P#C5'FZM SY M67 @8 \ \:H OT50\W50"7*R P# Q_\ XUIYNK?\"5E X&/ /&) +]%4/-U M; GRLO\ P,7 .-d>;JW /E97°IC P#0J@" 15#5=6 Y\K+ ,#' P¥C5'FZ
OT50\W50"7*R P# Q_\ XUIYNK?\"5E X&/ /&] +]% M4/-U; GRLO\ P,7 . -d>;JW /E97"IC P#QJ@" 15#5=6 Y\K+ ,#' P#C M5'FZM SY67 @8 \ \:H ﬂrnwsmmz P# 0\ XULYNK?\ "5 x&/ /&1 M +]%4/-U; GRLO\ P,7 _.-4>;JW /E97"IC P#QI@" 15#S=6 Y\K+ ,#' M P#C5'FZN SY67 @8 \ \:H OT50\W50"7*R P# @ \
78, x 8 7 P

+[A_PHCE'V™Y ZIS[ Wt \ \ 7LO_*": 4, PNE \ 7TW *)DJ 0 4444 %%%% /1110 4444 %8+"$]/E\IN MI\K30DI*+dWSGDBI>/-
110 M10B Y#]Y PI>L" mmz)a.’\/m 2]8/ 61:0T ss% 11110 4444 %%% MI1110 4444 5%%% 11110 4444 %3%% 11110 4444 %%%% 11110 4444 s Msss
CITO KZ; T3)5°3% \ M\7NE P#7TW HF2K] 11110 4444 %%%% uua 4444 3%%% 11110108 Y# H]Y. UzP’AAzuuAs R[S KU@ P#6I:0T 5%%% lum 4444

(F) OMTE PYXC-V; : V6SU! SMLXH< Y\K+ P, 7\ _*-55 M6*30'9DP;
7 P-4 72*H>;JW_/E9?"IC__M 1JCS=6 Y\K+ P #' \ C5 %Aa.r FZN _SY67 @8 _P_:H\W50°7*R | 0 M _(U9! THIAYNK?\"5E X&/ \ &J/-U; GRLO _, 7 P"-4 7Z*H>;JW /E9?~ MIC _1JCS=6 Y\K+ P #' \ C5 $"BJ'FZN SY67 @8 P
* -1 Z]57\ TST 7Z** ¥ PR\ MINE ]757°B9*0UG0 ﬁmm *AF P#1,E7Z_"BBB@ HHHH **** ".955@ K M) XIKISXC;Q

HAH ~

S#I[XY)
S=6 Y\Ke P #" 1 C5 4BIF2H 567 @B P :H\WS07*R \ O (U0 HIPHIAYNK?\ "5E XS/ \ &3/-U; GRLO
wwsov*n \ # 7 (wmmmx?\ws X8/ \ &J/-U; GRLO _, 7 P-4 7Z*H>;JW / ME9?*IC rJHH]Idw wxv <, y (ﬂ/w 5.7*'- “BBB@ HHHH **** H"BBBG JAK?\ R -1 P"067 T$U7JAK?
"D-F7T73F"PX"R;K5#]GP_HHH H17\A™\_Z] Mé " HaN7Z ” xxr "BEB *xxr "BBB@ HHHH **** "B

£31

. KM<6[ : 9 $BKIMFQBEOM \ T@ '1P. c /426! 37 *T_9M22/: J*BMF=K M25I,
P/h2 2010 _$3)5J% w\nvs mrsy*ar s Mw. 11110 444 <5x BUG=], CT--4_H-C((9;2~24B3, I/FAPHXXRINE\ T mm IXI33R/SU_T=\QLe#<6 "L QN T
. . %67 4; %1/

. v
1546 ~01/ 7K+ z“wum/m Y 6H W P#7Ke Z': +]33% 3"

~ %B2/VI% '04QTHEF23T; ! .
$*6K]8< MA6I VW= 7EI0SOY, 1/515 T<<>9]> <>G-WRM6 Y ;+ , W P#CM "BJ'E M:M S°V7 (10 px '/‘u GJLO\ w; T 7Z*H>50HW /[97\ @&
\AE P ;| QUCRHS Y 1+ N . W PACN N°BI'EN SV7_(10 P0's/%); GILO\ B _..T 72451 M /(97\ €6 \K50°7VR P# - \ X[Hl?)lJAVﬂ(I\ ME P ;_\ QUCR MM6 ¥ ;+
H wcﬂ 58] 'E:N ST (50°7VR_P# -\ X[0!@ $+3YKW MPV\L=V84MCYDDI"[*, )

uu T

P2, 8/
\K50"7VR_P# - \ X[0!?HIAY6K?
\ QUCRMG ¥ ;+

o#C

GY.

U7 (10 P#":/*U; GILO\ P#7_..T 7Z+H>5I /[97\ MaS

TH 7zw>51w [97\ @6, =H\KS0"7UR P# - \ X[0!7HIAVER?\ HE P" H;
L0 D HE P"

W P#C HH 58T E:
*U; GILO\ P#?

M\K50"7VR_P# - \ X{al?/mm{?\ ME P" ; \ QUCRME Y ;+
W P#CH S"BJ'E:M S°V7_(10 P#"

W2 ! 2
‘5%5++8,5)A 8aM>"/ 2'CS3/D =!) QTZL:FHH **** “BBBG"A% R'[S KII@ Aw m GUOB_Y#]Y UZP?~A2U7H **** "BBBG HHHH *++* "BBB@ HHHH *++* M"HHH@
15K6/E[ : $4_AOW"BBBLBPHHH MH _**** "INIV:ZAT= 6. - MoH* ;575 *:MUU~_ 4B}

A #7 >,
NP aaﬁyst/v[u)kﬁw SUFTV[ 56~ 266, FEXRI/&EE“4>I]*I PRI/ _CL N«%sw <wﬂ5\zs3/zwx‘vx IX]L"LIXHEEV"VTJSF\ KX
HH_**** "BBB@ HHHH **Ii = £, 10+ CKSIMNMNGIYC

: : 1uI0WES ! M, E:. 2\NXDO) Z#[F: 3:_I%0K4&C3:E:1I7F ! & . M4DT) H. . 2F< .

\["5XSL, M a6 &5P", 66 [YQU]3*P, :sm as XW6]>A*BTI=3. G551:°BJ ' I/"YM P'@o> ]\6 wc[/< 11>] PA(7\ x»s/wzw;sm HiWO\ WQ# /62 M/LSS P!!>] [XA_"-T 7Z*H78+G "‘][ Hox \ 62/L5S rs[n/ +XA_P#C W= B3 'V"Y Z"1[ _-\0 PRNC[I< \ 0707°~(7 C= %°BI'U"Y P"G0> ] M\O__INC[!

$%[ MW 08" xwal?)m]@lvr\ mm 75/ P i 5707\ aﬂ' LT 71‘;475' MG_H+WO\ WO# _/6Z/L%S F”)] [XA_“-T 7Z*H78+G_*"][ WQ# \ &Z/L WS TS[W +XA P#C= wu vy Zvg[ -\s PHONC( /< \_707°2(7 Co My *N7\770KEGL T045 :1oP; [0°667SK1"PT/_SU[W 0B ' Jn7. 651
~ Jo5#[!< P2 7 &2, -I>] [XA_\ C="; M: R] G Z[ - ] <t "I *38H;.

7L721: M MD&[ 9, 55

Z?X‘LU" :0-5,
< 1I>] P"~(7\ XWO!7HIAJ@N?°@0> P#7$/\ \:H"P7,
K/ MBRZN3J-RTSE_Z/!+MBSYI 'SX"3"'3IFM: *UYGTU R

: . ! 7HIA
thef/< J1>] P nan«mu@ﬂr@w P#75/\ | »mv s ns 00 PAIAION?\ feho I H
XUT$]=: z :H-

<. x I6MH+ I
.-T 7Z*H78+G. MW\ W (62/L%S P!1>] [XA *-T 7Z*H? M8+G_ *"][ Wﬁ \ &Z/L%S T“n[ﬂ ‘X‘ PJ’C $°BI'V"Y Z"][  -\O P#Q MNC[!< \ 8707°(? C= $°BJ'V"Y P"@0> ]\6
= X _"NXKFO; 5N, 06}

m ns‘ xm;wm]@ﬂﬂ H+WO_75/ P_;H*P7/ 67 MO?\ 0B"
HP7, . L MVPE6-A"RE :516'ZBM; 1+ “TM#LKS. 6EASF_WL< K MFMI-RITIOII E~IG'2;7,

T 72°H78+G H

HHHIIALI10 4444 %5%% 11110 4444 S%%% 546 PHD M :C.

7 1 - LYP> : >I63HK)
-0 HYV]AV +'<d5K"T. ":B[7, I1C+s=s#"V]) Z"EE P"] H"ZXT7VWL/ 04LO\ P(3 13 4%YD_N]12R PE A/\ 6K]%:5)0 mzz"@u’\ 006"~ 'JNZ3 Turs_,"s P :0T4 W4J[:T6 H*67 (3] CL ;>D ]12R P# A/\ 6K]% s#°V]) Z'EE P”"”XT M7VWI/ 04LO\ P(3
1 1010 N027°G197\ @06~ 'INE3 Tvrs s P MOTA 4/[;T6 H*67 (5) C1 ;D I12R P# A/\ 6K]% W#"V]) Z'EE P"I W'IXT7VWI] O4L0\ P(3_ 1] 1010 MOZ7°GI97\ @OG™~'JNZ3 Tsrs ,"s H P :0T4 4/[;T6 N6 (s] CL ;20 J12R P¥ A/\ &kI% '#"V]] Z'EE H P"I"IXT7WI/ 03L0\ P(3_1J 1010 HOZ7°GI97\ @0G™~ JHZ3 Turt
] "s P 074 4/[;TG H*67_($) CI ;>D ]2k P# A/\ SK]' w"V]) MZ'EE p"/"7XT7WWI/ 04L0\ PIJ 17 1010 H027°GI97\ @0G™- 'JHZ3 T Mt ": P 1074 4/[;T6 H*67_($) C1_;>D ]!2R b# A/\ 6K]' " HV]) Z'EE P"/"XT?WWI/ 04L0\ P(3 1] 1010 H027°GI97\ @9G"- JH M5 T'ws S P S04 4/[:16 W67
~V]) Z"EE P"!"?XT7VWI/ 04L0\ P(3. 197 - 4 4/[;16 H*6; ) 1/\ M6K]s #°V]) Z"EE P"""XT’WI/ 04L0\ P(3 6 "B *x* "BERG HHl '
172 "Bl

<X 5=
506555 /4CHXUI5<, J<5

ZWDO9+A4; [urmrmzu] 7! 5@1/ >
‘1&#U . DT<6 M2Z:

/. /<, 22 < SIAE?; !
19 H: "uw«mm T N, \XI2> " (496 "HO>" H* L) EPGNI7HFK&"C 00216 Y7\

MRK \$5 "

216} !
]mrs $30%-96




V\SDTSA DT _M/HKE 7. ! N0 U!+>. T]M. EO,
Ms)mm/' ‘*YZCW{ W I7LLL ;>0 H.#G6)P, m--"sm umrrsw [ #= slzarzz M XFR V’J!JY‘ l)m:c aL Po\l ] WPL'&J)MR&K»M"WY" (82, LRAESG 14< ){c ).:
“#01U=%6V ; OFTOWENNZEZ( 60601.9. 4 #:300; Y . =7D% “N]MO3D3 .9 ){FSIbPM SII 68 ;maz ~ 93¢

J)rF7sa5 <. 8/HSMGN. /RP7A *N6X] % - mw z FON+73BT. HZA E E+5CF A ! T W. JC\GAISUS@'1M_[MLMW#<#\: 12 [1824+263;U, C!Vid HD' 10 4444
3%%% /1110 4441 3343 /1110 4444 33%% ‘1119 4444 %3%3 ‘1113 uu !‘W, luu uu 353% /546 Aw 7)(‘ @ NFKJ4-; ¥ 6H 1>m H)H 07444 4+ \ X =+ P"0I0\ 73)5&[5&\1 X7 N‘ZJH}? +C9R 51/6"@511A A n>|/ p" >5[ X 57 IS S°BIJKUW /*] \ M & . (H M)I/ P">5[ X S7 IS SBI'JKVW /*] \ & . (H H>V P">
M5[ X 57 1% $°BJ'JKWW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X S7 % %"BJ M'JKVW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X 57 /% $°BJ'JKWW /*] \ L (H MoV P">S[ X S7_!% %"BI'JKUW /*] \ & _.(H MoV P">5[ X M S? IS $°BJ'JKUW /*] \ & . (H MoV P">5[ X S7 !5 %"BJ'JKV MW /*] \ & _.(H MoV P">5[ X S? I
3B JKVW /*] \ & . (H W M>V P">5[ X S7 1% $°BJ'JKWW /*] \ & .{ﬂ oV P">5[ X 57 M 1% $°BI'JKWW /*] \ & . (H n>v P>, 5[ X S7_!% $°BI'KVW /* M] \ & . (H M>V. P">5[ X S7_!% $°BI'JKVW /*] \ & . (H M>V M P">5[ X S7 % $°BJ'JKVW /*] \ & .(H M>V P">5[ X S7_ ! MS“BJ'JKVW /*] \ & .
(H MoV P">5[ X S7_ IS $°BJ ' JKVW /*] \ M & . (H MoV P">S[ X S7 I% %"BJ'JKUW /*] \ & . (H MoV P"> M5[ X S7 IS $°BJ'JKVW /*] \ & .(H MoV P">S[ X S? !% %"BJ M'JKUW /*] \ & _.(H M>V P">5[ X S7_!% $°BJ'JKVW /*] \ & M .(H M>V P">5[ X S? I% %"BJ'JKUW /*] \ & _.(H M>V P">5[ X M 57 !%
3°BIJKVW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X S7 1% %"BI'JKV MW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X 57 1% S°BJ'JKVW /*] \ & . (H M M>V P">5[ X S7 1% %"BJ'JKVW /*] \ & .(H M>V P">5[ X S7 M IS S"BJ'JKVW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X 57 1% %"BJ'JKVW /* M] \ & .(H M>V P">5[ X 57 1% °BJ'JKVW /*] \ &; .
(H MV M P">5[ X 57 1% S°BJJKVW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X S7 1% Ws"BJ'JKVW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X S7 /% %"BJ'JKUW /*] \ M & . (H M>V P">5[ X 57 1% S°BJJKVW /*] \ & . (H M>V P"> M5[ X S7 1% %"BJ'JKUW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X 57 1% $°BJ MW'JKVW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">5[ X S7 1%
SBT'JKVW /*] \ & M . (H MoV P">5[ X S7_I% %"BJ'JKUW /*] \ & __.(H MV P">5[ X M S7 IS S°BJ'JKVUW /*] \ & . (H M>V P">S[ X S7 I% %"BI'JKV MW /*] \ & __.(H MoV P">5[ X S7 IS S°BJ'JKUW /*] \ & _.(H M MoV P">S[ X S7_I% %"BJ'JKUW /*] \ & _.(H MoV P">5[ X S7 M IS $°BJ'JKWW /*] \ & .
(H MoV P">5[ X S7_I% "BJ JKVW /* M| \ &;__.(H MoV P">5[ X 57 _I% "BJ JKVW /*] \ &; _.(H MoV W P">5[ X 57 I% S"J&H \ ( U'_KUE P#031 :]H SRO? IF P#B*J:I M1, 5SI%[!%!>H)) Z(OV*89)4Q7PT ;5%%% 1110 4444 33%% 11110 444 m sus uua 4604 MY 11119 4444 MR 11170 4444 AW (1010 H 4444 s
/119 4444 8% (1110 4444 AMA 11106 4449 WA | NITID 4444 SN [1110 4404 ML 1119 4444 wu 11110 4444 % A%S 11110 4444 %5%% 11110 4444 $%%% 1110/ 9 end GRAPHIC 11 rdi-20240930xex10 1go GRAPHIC begin x10_19061. jpg M_]C X 6209)1@ ! 0S5 8 !@ # X0 34T %
s P XG(" F. 760\C.

2 6\ "9V01 4co+», 7 954C 61 !

Consolidated Balance SheetsLi ionLinkLi ionLinkLi initionl ink00200 - Statenent - Consolidated 0f Incomeli fonL inklil inkL initionl ink09300 - Statenent - Consolidated of Conprehensive’
IncomeLi; inkli fonLinkli initionLink0g500 - Statement - Consolidated 0Of cash FlowsLink:, fonL inkLi fonLinklLi initionlinkd6502 - D;stlasure -_Earnings per Share fon Of Basic And Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share)
(betails)Link:p nkL kL nk40662 - Disclosure - Property And Equipment (Schedule Of eropecty Ami i (Details)Link:, ionLinkLi inkli inkd0605 - Disclosure - Property And Equipment (Loss On Sale Of Property)
(betails)Link:p nkl kL nk40762 - Disclosure - Leases ( ts 0f Lease Expense) (Deta. i ionLinkLi fonL inkLi initionL inkd070d - bi "~ Leases Balance Sheet Related To Leases)
(Details)Link:p nkL kL nk46765 - Disclosure - Leases (Maturity Of Leases As Lessee) Iﬂetazls)lmk.y fonL inkLi fonL inkLi initionLinkd0706 - Disclosure - Leases (i 0f Lease Income)
(Details)L nkl kL k40708 - Disclosure - Leases (Haturity Of Leases As Lessor) (Details)Link:pi fonL inkLi fonL inkli initionLinkd0803 - Disclosure - Goodwill An ible Assets (Summary Of ible Assets Other Than
Gooduill) (Details)Link: ionLinkLi ionLinkLi itionLink1001 - Disclosure - Prepaid And Other Assets (Details)link: ionLinkLi fonLinkLi initionLinkd1362 - Disclosure - Other Liabilities (Summary Of Other Liabilities Including Pension)
(Details)Link:p i £ ionLinkLil initionl inkd1402 - Di Other Comprehensive Income (Details)link:p fonL inkLi fonL inkLi initionLinkd1802 - Disclosure - Hedge ing (Schedule Of Derivative Instruments On The Balance Sheet
At Fair Value) (Details)lin inkli fonL inkLi itionLinkd18607 - msclasure - Leases INatunty Of Leases As Lessee) (Details) Alt Calcli ionLinkLi ionL inkLi initionLinkd1962 - Di - Fair Value Measurements (Schedule Of Fair Value
Carried At Cost And Weasured On A Nanre:urrzna Basxsl (aetaxzs;unk, ionLinkLi inkl k00090 _-_Docunent_-_Document And Entity lnfar fonLink:, fonL inkLi fonLinkLi initionlink00105 - Statement - Consolidated Balance Sheets

)Link:p ionLink161601 - Di: 1 _Of Business ind Seqnent_Repo, ink ionLinkLi initionLink16201 - Disclosure - Summary Of Signifi i
Policiest fonLinkli ionLinkLi initionlink10301 - Disclosure - Liquidity And ionLinkLi i mu initionlink10401 - Disclosure - Operations In Foreian
Currencyli fonLinklil ionLinkLi initionink10501 - Disclosure - Earnings Per Sharelink: ionLinkLi onLinkLi initionLinkl0601 - Disclosure - Property And i fonL inkLi ionLinkLi i ink10701 - Disclosure -
Leasesli onLinklil fonLinkli] initionlink10801 - Disclosure - Goodwill And Assetsli ionLinkLi) fonLinklil fonLink10961 - In Unconsolidated Joint
VenturesLink:pi fonLinklil ionLinkLi i ink11001 - Disclosure - Prepaid And Other AssetsLi fonL inkLi ionLinkLi initionlinkl11161 - Disclosure - Income TaxesLil ionLinkLi fonL inkLi fonLink11261 - -
BorrowingsLi ionLinkLi ionLinkli) initionlinkl130] - Disclosure - Other Liabilitiesl inkli onLinklil initionLinkl1d01 - J other C ive Incomeli fonL inkLi ionLinkLi initionlink11501
- bi - i And i fesli fonL inkLi inkli ionLinkl1601 - Disclosure - 1ling Inter i ionLinkLi ionLinklLi ink11701 - Disclosure - k- ion And Stock
Repure ink: ionLinkLi ionLinkLi initionLink11801 - Disclosure - Hedge i inkLi) onLinkli) initionLink11901 - Di - Fair Value inkli ionLinkli) initionLink12601 - Disclosure -

Eventsli fonL inklil fonLinkLij initionl ink20202 - Disclosure -_Sumnary OF Si Policies (Fall:}’llznk.y fonL inkLi ionLinkLi initionLink39103 - Disclosure - Description Of Business And Segment Reporting
(Tables) Link:p fonL inkli) fonLinkli initionLink30403 - Dis In Foreign currency (Tables)Link:pi fonL inklil initionLink30563 - Disclosure - Earnings Per Share
(Tables) fonL inkli fonLinkli initionlink30663 - Disclosure - Frnperty And El]lupment (Tables) Link:p: fonLinklil fonL inkLi initionlink30703 - Disclosure - Leases (rables/l inkli fonL inkLi initionlink30803 -
Disclosure - Goodwill And ible Assets (Tables)Link:p fonL inklil n‘lﬂ - Disclosure - In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (Tables)Link:pi ink inkli initionLink31003 - Disclosure - Prepaid And Other Assets
(Tables) Link:p; inkli ionLinkLi/ ini ink31203 - Disclosure - Earrnwxngs /ranles;z' inkl ionL inkLi ink31303 - Disclosure - Other Liabiliti /r.;ples;z ionLinkli) fonLinkli) initionLink31403 -
Disci Other Comprehensive Income (Tables)Link:p fonL inkLi fonL inkLi initionlink31603 - Disclosure - Non-controlling Interests (Tables) Link:p ki ionLinkLi i ink31703 - Disclosure - Stock-Ba: fon And Stock
Repurchase (Tables)Link:p) fonL inkLi ionLinkL initionlink31803 - Disclosure - Hedge ing (Tables)Lin inkL ki ink31903 - Disclosure - Fair Value Heasurenents
(Tables) Link:p fonL inkLil ionLinkLi initionlink40102 - Disclosure - Description Of Business And Segment Reporting (Swwmary 0f Results OF ions For Prznc.uml Business Segments) (Details)link:p inklLil ionLinkLi i ink40103 - Disclosure -
ion Of Business And Segment Reporti i1 o Net_Income To_Comnon )_(Details) Link:p; inkLis k40301 - Disclosure - L.xqudxty And .
(Details)Link:p fonLin i k40462 - - In Foreign Currency (Summary Of (urrenzy Exchange Ratesl (Details) Link:p fonLinkLi itionLinkd0501 - Disclosure - Earnings Per Share (Narrative)
(Details)Link:p fonLin n k40661 - - Property And Equipnent (Narrative) (Details)Li inkli initionLink40603 - ﬂlsclasurg - Property And_Equipment (Summary Of And Property)
(Details)Link:p fonLin n k40604 - - Frpperty And quupment ((Dnstruztzan -In-Progress Balance) (Detausll :p) fonLinkli ionLinkli) ink40701 - Disclosure - Leases (Narrative
(Details, fonLin n k40763 - Least h_Flow Related To Leases) (etails)Link: ionL inkLij ionL inkLij initionLink40707 - Disclosure - Leases (5.,.,/( Value 0f Assets Under Operating
Leases Fron Ouned Assets) (Details) Link:p fonLinkl ionLinkLil indEiont 1nkd0501 - stclvsure - Goodwill And Assets (Narrative) (Details)li ionLinkLi ionL inkLi initionLink49802 - Disclosure - Goodwill And Assets (Summary 0f
Goodwill) (Details)Link:pi inkli ionLinkLil initionLink40804 - Disclosure - Goodwill And Assets (sunmary Of Anortization Expense) (Details)Link:p fonL inkLi) ionLinkLi initionLink46901 - Disclosure - In Unconsolidated Joint
Ventures (Narrative) (Details)l ionLinkLil fonL inkLij itionL ink49962 - Disclosure - In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (Summary Of The In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures And Entities)
(Details)Link:p kL k46903 - Di - In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (Summary OF Equzty Earnings (Losses) Fron In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures)
(Details)Link:p kL k41161 - Disclosure - Income Taxes (Details)link:p inkli) k41201 - Disclosure - Hnrrmungs (Bank _of Amen:a Credit Facility) (Narrative,
(Details)Link:p kL k41262 - Disclosure - Borrowings (Minetta And Orpheun Theatres Loan) (Narrative) memzsn D fonLinkl kL k41203 - Disclosure - Borrowings (Cinema 1, 2, 3 Term Loan) (Narrative)
(Details)Link:p nkl kL k41204 - Disclosure - Borrowings (Union Square Financing) (Narrative) (Details)link:p fonLinkli) fonLinkli ind tiont ink41205 - Disclosure - Borrowings (Purchase Money Promissory Note) (Narrative,
(Details)l nkl nkl. k41206 - Disclosure - spmmngs (U.5. Corporate Office Term Loan) (Narrative) (Details)link:pi fonLinkli fonLinkli initionLinkd1207 - ms:losure - Borrowings (Westpac Bank Corporate Credit Facility
(2))_(arrative) (vetails)Link:p fonLinkli ionLinkLil ink41208 - Disclosure - Borrowings (Australian NAB Corporate Term Loan (AU)) (Narrative) (Details)l fonLinkli) i - Disclosure - Borrowings (Sumary OF
Borrowings) (Details)Li ionL inkLi onL inkLij initionLinkd1213 - lJ.zszlasure -_orrowings (Schedule Of Long-tern bebt Instrunents, Net Of The Deferred ananung Costs) (ﬂEtazlslUn k:pi fontinki ionLinkLil ink41301 - Disclosure - Other
tive) (Details)link:p: fonL inkLij fonL inkLi initionLink41601 - Ling Interests ( (Details)Li fonl ink41602 - Disclosure - 11ing Interests Of Non-

controlling Interests) (Details)Link:pi ionLinkLi onLinkli initionlinkd1603 - Disclosure - Non-controlling Interests ( 0f Incone Attributable To lion- tontrvlung Interest} (Details)Lin ionLinkLi ionL inkLi initionLinkd1604 - Disclosure -
Non-controlling Interests (sumary 0f Changes In [vntrolullg And Hon- canrramng s’ Fquity) meraus/unkw inki fonLinklL ink41701 - Disclosure - Stock-Bas: And Stock Repurchases (Narrative)
(Details)Link:p. 1703 - Disclosure - St And Stock Renurchases (sumiary Of Stock _options ing And Exercisable) (Details)Link:p i inkli itionLinkd1705 - Disclosure - Stock-
Based ion And Stock R!ﬂurchases (Schedule lzf i sm:k Units Issued And Vested/ (netaus)z :p) inki ink41801 - Disclosure - Hedge (Narrative, {Detaxls)hn 2p) ionLinkLi ionLinkLi nk41803 -
Disclosure - Hedge (Schedule Of Changes in Fair value) (Details)li ionL inkLi: initionLink41804 - Di: - hedge (sumary Of Hedged ions That Affect Earnings)
(Details)Link:p. fonL ink ink41961 - Di: air m.,e ( i lﬂetausn : ionLinkLi i ink42001 - Disclosure - Events
Details)Link:, resentauaannkhnk calculatxnannkl :definitionLink995445 - Disclosure - Ins. ing Ar: i Linkli) lef. xnl_EX-101.DEF EX-101.LAB 15 rdi-

rran ink: i ink: c: 9;
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shares Preferred stock, par value Preferred stock, shares authorized Preferred stock, shares issued Preferred stock, shares outstanding Consolidated Statements Of Income [Abstract] Product and Service [Axis] Products And Services [Domain] Product and Service [Domain] Cinema [Member] Cinema
[Menber] Cinena_[Henber] Real Estate Revenue [Member] Real Estate Revenue [Hember] Real Estate [Hember] Revenues [Abstract] Revenue Revenue Total revemue Operating Costs and Expenses [Abstract] Costs and expenses Costs and expenses Costs and expenses Degrer1auon and_anortization
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Reconciliation of Operating Profit (Loss) from Se i ymmar) Table Text Block] Sunmary Of Reconciliation To Net Income
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Sale, Not Discontinued Operations, [Table Text Block] Disposal Groups, Disposed Of By Sale, Not Discontinued Operations, [Table Text Block] Loss On Sale Of Property Lease, Cost [Table Text Block] Components Of Lease Expense Schedule of Supplemental Cash Flow, Information Related to Leases
Table Text Block] Schedule of Supplemental Cash Flow, Information Related to Leases [Table Text Block] Supplemental Cash Flow Information Related To Leases Schedule Of Supplemental Balance Sheet, Information Related To Leases [Table Text Block] Schedule Of Supplemental Balance Sheet.
Information Related To Leases [Table Text Block] Supplemental Balance Sheet Information Related To Leases Lessee, Liability, Maturity [Table Text Block] Lessee, Liability, Maturity [Table Text Block] Maturity Of Leases As Lessee Operating Lease, Lease Income [Table Text Block] Components Of
Lease Income Schedule Of Book Value Of Assets [Table Text Block] Schedule Of Book Value Of Assets [Table Text Block] Book Value Of Assets Under Operating Leases From Owned Assets Lessor, Operating Luse Paynents to be Received, Maturity [Table Text Block] Maturity Of Leases As Lessor
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Expense [Table Text Block] Summary Of Amortization Expense Schedule of Equity Method Investments [Table Text Block] Summary Of The Investments In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures And Entities Schedule ﬂf Earnings Loss From Equity Method Investments [Table Text Block] Schedule Of Earnings Loss
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Schedule of components of Noncontrolling interests table text block. Schedule Of Components Of Noncontrolling Interests [Table Text Block] Components Of Non-controlling Interests Schedule of components of income attributable to nanconrrollu interest table textBlock. Schedule Of Components
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Gross Debt carrying amount Long-term Debt, Net Long-term Debt, Net Borrowings due Balance Net Total borrowings Debt, Current Debt current Bridge Loan Bridge loan Working Capital Working Capital Working capital Impairment of Intangible Assets, Finite-Lived Impairment charges against sites
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Properties [Member] Operating And Investing Properties [Member] Investment, Name [Axis] Equity Method Investee Name [Domain] Equity Method Investee, Name [Domain] Courtenay Central Development [Member] Courtenay Central Develagment [Member] Courtenay [entral Development [Heamerl Cinena

Developnents And Improvements [Member] Cinema Developments And Improvements [Member] Cinema Developments And Improvements [Member] Other Real Estate Projects [Member] Other Real Estate Projects [Member] Other Real Estate Projects [Member] Construction in Progress, Gross Balance Balance

Additions For Construction In Process Additions For Construction In Process Amnmms durmg the period Completed For Construction In Process Conpleted For Construction In Process Conpleted during the period rrans!erred To Held For Sale Transferred To Held For Sale Transferred ta Held for
Gail Gross Dis) eratiof Lo: Gro: 1

Los: rating (Axi Minimum [Me um Maximum ratin ratin
Remayung Lease Term Remaining lease term Lessee, Operating Lease, ﬁenewal Term Renewal term Lessor, Operating Lease, Term of [antract Lease term of contract Fxﬂaﬂce Lease, Interest Expense Interest on lease liabilities Operating Lease Cost Operating lease cost Variable Lease Cost
(Amortized) Variable Lease, Cost (Amortized) Variable lease cost Lease, Cost Total lease cost Finance Lease, Interest Payment on Liability Operating cash flows for finance leases Operating Lease, Payments Operating cash flows for operating leases Right-of-Use Asset Obtained in Exchange for
Operating Lease Liability Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities Operating Lease, Liability Total operating lease liabilities Finance Lease, Right-of-Use Asset, Gross Finance Lease, Right-of-Use Asset, Gross Property plant and equipment, gross Finance
Lease, Right-of-Use Asset, Accumulated Amortization Accumulated depreciation Finance Lease, Right-of-Use Asset Property plant and equipment, net Finance Lease, Liability, Current Finance lease liabilities Other current liabilities Finance Lease, Liability, Noncurrent Finance lease
liabilities Other long-term liabilities Finance Lease, Liability Total finance lease liabilities Finance Lease, Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term Weighted-average remaining lease term - finance leases Operating Lease, Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term Weighted-average remaining lease
term - operating leases Finance Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent Weighted-average discount rate - finance leases Operating Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Payments, Remainder of
Fiscal Year Operating leases, 2024 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Payments, Due Next Twelve Months Operating leases, 2025 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Payments, Due Year Two Operating leases, 2026 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Payments, Due Year Three Operating leases, 2027
Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Payments, Due Year Four Operating leases, 2028 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Payments, Due after Vear Five Operating leases, Thereafter Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Payments, Due Operating leases, Total lease payments Lessee, Operating Lease,
lzalulxrz Undiscounted Excess Amount Operating leases, Less imputed interest Finance Lease, Lisbility, Paynents, Remainder of Fiscal Year Finance leases, 2024 Finance Lease, Liability, Payments, Due Next Twelve Months Finance leases, 2025 Finance Lease, Liability, Payments, Due Finance

E) Operati)

nts Finance Lease, Liability, Undiscounted Excess Amount Finance leases, Less im interest Operating L L Income, L P ts Le: ayments Operating Lease, Variable Lease Income (Exj Expense,
lesse payments Operating Lease, Lease Income Total lease income Property Subject to or Available for Operating Lease, by Major Property Class [Table] Major Property Class [Axis] Major Property Class [Domain] Major Property Class [Domain] Building And Building Improvements [Member] Building
And_Improvements [Member] Property Subject to or Available for Operating Lease [Line Items] Lessor, Operating Lease, Payments to be Received, Remainder of Fiscal Year 2624 Lessor, Operating Lease, Payments to be Received, Next Twelve Months 2025 Lessor, Operating Lease, Payments to be
Received, Two Years 2026 Lessor, Operating Lease, Payments to be Received, Three Years 2027 Lessor, 0peraullg Lease, Payments to_be Received, Four Years 2026 Lessor, Operating Lease, Paymeﬂt5 to be Received, Therea!ter Thereafter Lessor, Operating Lease, Payments to be Received Total
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agreement. In Internal Trust in Reading International Trust I Straight-Line Rent Asset Straight Line Rent Asset Straight-line rent asset Deposits Assets, Noncurrent Long-term deposits Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation, Change in Enacted Tax Rate, Percent




Effective tax rate Schedule of Long-term Del [Table] Debt [Axis] Debt lane _[Domain] Debt Instrument, Name [Domain] United States Bank Of America Credit Facility [Member] United States Bank Of America Credit Facility [Member] Bank Of America Credit Fauuzy

[Member] Floor Rate [Member] Floor Rate [Member] Floor Rate [Member] Debt Instrument [Line Items] Line af Credit Facility, Maximum Borrowing Capacity Line of credit facility, maximum borrowing capacity Facility Limit Debt Instrument, Face Amount Debt, face amount Debt Instrument, Basi:

Spread on Variable Rate Spread on variable interest rate Spread on variable rate Debt Instrument, Periodic Payment Debt Instrument, Quarterly repayment Debt Instrument, Periodic Payment, Principal Principal payment Debt Instrument, Payment In Kind Interest Rate Debt Instrument, Paymeﬂt In

Kind Interest Rate Payment in kind interest rate Debt Instrument, Maturity Date Maturity date Maturity Date Debt Instrument, Interest Rate, Stated Percentage Interest rate Interest rate Minetta and Orpheum Theatres Loan [Member] Minetta And Orpheum Theatres Loan [Member] Minetta And Orpheunm

Theatre5 Loan [Hember] Debt Instrument, Periodic Payment Terns, Balloon PayWEnt to be Paxﬂ near balloon payment Debt In5trmneﬂt Interest nam aunng Period Ststed Interest Rate us Cinenas 1, 2, 3 Tern Loan [Member] l/luted State L'1nemas One Two Three Term Loan [Nember] US Cinema 1, 2 3 Tern
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Damauv Executive Officer [Member] Executive Officer [Member, mremzr Member] Directors He/mer Management_[Member] Management [Member] Award Type [Axis] Share Based Compensation Arran ements By Share Based Payment Award Award Type And Plan Name [Domain] Share-based t‘am ensauan
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options granted Employee Service Nonvested Awards, Total Cost Not yet Period for period of cost_She ement by Share-Based Payment Avard, Award Vesting Rights,
Percentage_Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Award Vesting Period, Maximum Vesting period of stock options and RSU Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Number of Shares Authorized Common Stock authorized for issuance Share-based
Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Number of Additional Shares Authorized Additional shares authorized Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Options, Vested and Expected to Vest, Outstanding, Agaregate Intrinsic Value Value of all options
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Document And Entity 9 Months Ended
Information - shares Sep. 30, 2024 Nov. 13, 2024
Document Type 10-Q
Document Quarterly Report true
Document Transition Report false
Entity File Number 1-8625
Amendment Flag false
Document Period End Date Sep. 30, 2024
Document Fiscal Year Focus 2024
Current Fiscal Year End Date --12-31
Document Fiscal Period Focus Q3
Entity Registrant Name READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code NV
Entity Tax Identification Number 95-3885184
Entity Address, Address Line One 189 Second Avenue
Entity Address, Address Line Two Suite 2S5
Entity Address, City or Town New York
Entity Address, State or Province NY
Entity Address, Postal Zip Code 10003
City Area Code 213
Local Phone Number 235-2240
Entity Central Index Key 0000716634
Entity Filer Category Non-accelerated Filer
Entity Current Reporting Status Yes
Entity Interactive Data Current Yes
Entity Small Business true
Entity Emerging Growth Company false
Entity Shell Company false
Class A [Member
Title of 12(b) Security Class A Nonvoting Common Stock, $0.01 par value
Trading Symbol RDI
Security Exchange Name NASDAQ
Entity Common Stock, Shares Qutstanding 20,745,594
Class B [Member
Title of 12(b) Security Class B Voting Common Stock, $0.01 par value
Trading Symbol RDIB
Security Exchange Name NASDAQ
Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding 1,680,590
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Consolidated Balance
Sheets - USD ($) Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
$ in Thousands
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,083 $ 12,906
Restricted cash 1,400 2,535
Receivables 5,435 7,561
Inventories 1,705 1,648
Prepaid and other current assets 2,528 2,881
Land and property held for sale 37,895 11,179
Total current assets 59,046 38,710
Operating property, net 225,065 262,417
Operating lease right-of-use assets 170,549 181,542
Investment and development property, net 8,789
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 4,294 4,756
Goodwill 25,715 25,535
Intangible assets, net 1,841 2,038
Deferred tax asset, net 238 299
Other assets 8,938 8,965
Total assets 495,686 533,051
Current Liabilitie

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 44,636 43,828
Film rent payable 3,601 6,038
Debt - current portion 52,624 34,484
Subordinated debt - current portion 586
Taxes payable - current 177 1,376
Deferred revenue 9,728 10,993
Operating lease liabilities - current portion 22,182 23,047
Other current liabilities 6,588 6,731
Total current liabilities 139,536 127,083
Debt - long-term portion 134,070 146,605
Derivative financial instruments - non-current portion 269

Subordinated debt, net 27,339 27,172
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Noncurrent tax liabilities

Operating lease liabilities - non-current portion
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Stockholders' equity:

Nonvoting preferred shares, par value $0.01, 12,000 shares authorized and no issued or outstanding shares at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings/(deficits)
Treasury shares

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total Reading International, Inc. stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equit

Class A [Member
Stockholders' equity:
Common_stock

Class B [Member
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock
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Consolidated Balance

Sheets (Parenthetical) -

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

$ / shares
Preferred stock, par value $ 0.01 $ 0.01
Preferred stock, shares authorized 12,000 12,000
Preferred stock, shares issued 0 0
Preferred stock, shares outstanding 0 0
Class A [Member
Common stock, par value $0.01 $ 0.01

Common_stock, shares authorized 100,000,000 100,000,000
Common stock, shares issued 33,681,705 33,602,627
Common stock, shares outstanding 20,745,594 20,666,516
Class B [Member

Common stock, par value $ 0.01 $ 0.01
Common stock, shares authorized 20,000,000 20,000,000

Common stock, shares issued 1,680,590 1,680,590
Common stock, shares outstanding 1,680,590 1,680,590
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Consolidated Statements
Of Income - USD ($)
$ in Thousands

3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Revenue

Total revenue $ 60,090 $ 66,563 $ 151,951 $ 177,425
Costs and expenses

Depreciation and amortization (3,926) (4,580) (12,142) (13,908)
General and administrative (4,933) (5,405) (15,626) (15,693)
Total costs and expenses (60,336) (65,544) (164,078) (182,498)
Operating income (loss (246) 1,019 (12,127) (5,073)
Interest expense, net (5,229) (5,072) (15,766) (14,063)
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (208) (1,324)

Other income (expense (715) 267 (592) 356
Income (loss) before income tax expense and equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures (6,398) (3,786) (29,809) (18,780)
Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 71 217 164 443
Income (loss) before income taxes (6,327) (3,569) (29,645) (18,337)
Income tax benefit (expense) (760) (896) (321) (313)

Net income (loss (7,027) (4,465) (29,966) (18,650)
Less: net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests (111) (65) (481) (361)

Net income (loss) attributable to Reading International, Inc. $ (6,916) $ (4,400) $ (29,485) $ (18,289)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding-basic 22,426,184 22,273,423 22,394,385 22,208,757
Weighted average number of shares outstanding-diluted 23,202,192 23,513,715 23,265,575 23,449,049
Cinema [Member

Revenue

Total revenue $ 56,357 $ 62,688 $ 140,570 $ 165,731
Costs and expenses

Costs and expenses (49,371) (53,278) (129,509) (146,297)
Real Estate [Member

Revenue

Total revenue 3,733 3,875 11,381 11,694
Costs and expenses

Costs and expenses $ (2,106) $ (2,281) $ (6,801) $ (6,600)
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Consolidated Statements
0f Comprehensive Income -
usb (%)
$ in Thousands

Consolidated Statements 0f Comprehensive Income [Abstract

Net income (loss

3 Months Ended

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

$ (7,027) $ (4,465)

$ (29,966) $ (18,650)

Foreign currency translation gain (loss 1,620 (1,686) (44) (3,038)
Gain (loss) on cash flow hedges (171) (26) (269) (813)
Other 50 52 158 156
Comprehensive income (loss) (5,528) (6,125) (30,121) (22,345)
Less: net income (loss) attributable to noncontrollin (111) (65) (481) (361)
Less: comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests5 (3) 3 (5)

Comprehensive income (loss
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Consolidated Statements
0f Cash Flows - USD ($)

$ in Thousands

Operating Activities

$ (5,422) $ (6,057)

$ (29,643) $ (21,979)

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Net income (loss $ (29,966) $ (18,650)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures (164) (443)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures 695 468
(Gain) loss recognized on foreign currency transactions (83)

(Gain) loss on sale of assets 1,324

Amortization of operating leases 15,500 14,871
Amortization of finance leases 31 23
Change in operating lease liabilities (16,212) (15,998)
Change in net deferred tax assets 71 (98)
Depreciation and amortization 12,142 13,908
Other amortization 1,107 1,157
Stock based compensation expense 1,737 1,364
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Receivables 2,107 325
Prepaid and other assets (26) (483)
Payments for accrued pension (513) (513)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,574 932

6,772
170,127
12,967
491,080

157,132
(108,974)
(40,407)
(2,831)
5,175
(569)
4,606
495,686

238

6,586
180,898
11,711
500,055

155,402
(79,489)
(40,407)
(2,673)
33,087
(91)
32,99
533,051

237


javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);

Film rent payable (2,420) (2,127)
Taxes payable (1,165) 2,155
Deferred revenue and other liabilities 443 (3,257)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (11,818) (6,366)
Investing Activities

Purchases of and additions to operating and investment properties (4,571) (6,191)
Contributions to unconsolidated joint ventures (30)

Proceeds from sale of assets 9,590

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,989 (6,191)
Financing Activities

Repayment of borrowings (13,381) (6,862)
Repayment of finance lease principal (30) (25)
Proceeds from borrowings 16,027 3,839
Capitalized borrowing costs (483) (594)
(Cash paid) proceeds from the settlement of employee share transactions (6) (244)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,127 (3,886)
Effect of exchange rate on cash and restricted cash 744 (897)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (3,958) (17,340)
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at the beginning of the period 15,441 34,979
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at the end of the period 11,483 17,639
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash consists of:

Cash and cash equivalents 10,083 11,925
Restricted cash 1,400 5,714
Total 11,483 17,639
Supplemental Disclosures

Interest paid 14,427 13,826
Income taxes (refunded) paid 1,638 (697)
Non-Cash Transactions

Additions to operating and investing properties through accrued expenses $ 940 $ 2,557
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Description Of Business
And Segment Reporting

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Description Of Business And
Segment Reporting [Abstract

Description Of Business And

Segment Reporting
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Summary Of Significant
Accounting Policies
Summary Of Significant
Accounting Policies
Abstract

Summary Of Significant
Accounting Policies
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Liquidity And Impairment
Assessment
Liquidity And Impairment
Assessment [Abstract

Liquidity And Impairment
Assessment

Note 1 - Description of Business and Segment Reporting

Our Company
Reading International, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“RDI” and collectively with our consolidated subsidiaries and corporate predecessors, the “Company,” “Reading,” and “we,” “us,” or “our”) was
incorporated in 1999. Our businesses, owned and operated through our various subsidiaries, consist primarily of:

the development, ownership, and operation of cinemas in the United States, Australia, and New Zealand; and

the development, ownership, operation and/or rental of retail, commercial and live venue real estate assets in Australia, New Zealand, and the United States.
Business Segments

Reported below are the operating segments of our Company for which separate financial information is available and evaluated regularly by the Chief Executive Officer, the chief operating decision-
maker of our Company. As part of our real estate activities, we hold undeveloped land in urban and suburban centers in the United States and New Zealand.

The table below summarizes the results of operations for each of our business segments for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, and 2023, respectively. Operating expense
includes costs associated with the day-to-day operations of the cinemas and the management of rental properties, including our live theatre assets.

Quarter Ended Nilée Months Ended

September 30, eptember 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenue:
Cinema exhibition $ 56,357 $ 62,687 $ 140,570 $ 165,731
Real estate 4,898 5,056 14,844 15,338
Inter-segment elimination (1,165) (1,181) (3,463) (3,644)
$ 60,090 $ 66,562 $ 151,951 $ 177,425
Segment operating income (loss):
Cinema exhibition $ 2,309 $ 4,395 $ (3,128) $ 4,256
Real estate 1,396 920 3,234 3,212
$ 3,705 $ 5315 $ 106 $ 7,468
A reconciliation of segment operating income to income before income taxes is as follows:
Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 20224 2023
Segment operating income (loss) $ 3,705 $ 5,315 $ 106 $ 7,468
Unallocated corporate expense
Depreciation and amortization expense (106) (172) (305) (527)
General and administrative expense (3,845) (4,124) (11,928) (12,014)
Interest expense, net (5,229) (5,072) (15,766) (14,063)
Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 71 217 164 443
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (208) — (1,324) —

Other income (expense)
Income (loss) before income tax expense $

(715) 267 (592) 356
(6,327) $ (3,569) $ (29,645) $ (18,337)

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as well as majority-owned subsidiaries that our Company controls and should be read
in conjunction with our Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 (“2023 Form 10-K”). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated on consolidation. These lidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim
reporting with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). As such, they do not include all information and footnotes required by
U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. We believe that we have included all normal and recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim period.

Operating results for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2024.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and footnotes thereto. Significant estimates include (i) projections we make regarding the recoverability and impairment of our assets (including goodwill and intangibles), (ii) valuations of our
derivative instruments, (iii) recoverability of our deferred tax assets, (iv) estimation of breakage and redemption experience rates, which drive how we recognize breakage on our gift card and gift
certificates, and revenue from our customer loyalty program, and (v) estimation of our Incremental Borrowing Rate (“IBR”) as relates to the valuation of our right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Actual
results may differ from those estimates.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 3 - Liquidity and Impairment Assessment

Going Concern

‘We continue to evaluate the going concern assertion required by ASC 205-40 Going Concern as it relates to our Company. The evaluation of the going concern assertion involves firstly considering whether
it is probable that our Company has sufficient resources, as at the issue date of the financial statements, to meet its obligations as they fall due for twelve months following the issue date. Should it be
probable that there are not sufficient resources, we must determine whether it is probable that our plans will mitigate the consequential going concern substantial doubt. Our evaluation is informed by
current liquidity positions, debt obligations, our beliefs about the recovery of the global cinema industry, cash flow estimates, known capital and other expenditure requirements and commitments and our
current business plan and strategies. Our Company’s business plan - two businesses (real estate and cinema) in three countries (Australia, New Zealand and the U.S.) - has served us well since the onset of
COVID-19 and is key to management’s overall evaluation of ASC 205-40 Going Concern.

As of the end of the third quarter, 2024, we have $52.6 million of debt due in twelve months. We have cash of $10.1 million and negative working capital of $80.5 million. This net negative working capital
position includes land and property held for sale of $37.9 million (based on book as opposed to fair market value). In order to alleviate doubt that our Company will be able to generate sufficient cash flows
for the coming twelve months, these loans need to be refinanced and our revenues and net income need to increase through improved operations and asset monetization.

In April 2024, we exercised our first option to extend our Union Square financing facility, extending the maturity date of that loan ($47.1 million at September 30, 2024) to May 6, 2025. We also obtained an
extension of our NAB facility ($69.3 million at September 30, 2024), extending the maturity date of that loan to July 31, 2026. This extension also included a bridge loan in the amount of $13.9 million,
maturing on March 31, 2025, subject to prepayment obligations from the net sales proceeds of certain assets. On August 1, 2024, we extended the maturity of our Santander loan ($7.7 million) to June 1,
2025. In October 2024 we obtained two six month options to extend our Cinemas 123 loan. We believe that we will be able to reach mutually acceptable terms with respect to our Westpac ($12.0 million, due
first quarter of 2025) credit facility. We continue to work towards monetizing the assets held on our balance sheet as being held for sale.

We believe that the global cinema industry will continue to improve in the last half of 2024 and 2025. This belief underpins our forecasts and cash flow projections. Our forecasts rely upon, among other
things, the market reception to current films such as Gladiator II, Wicked, Moana 2, Mufasa: The Lion King and Sonic the Hedgehog 3, the current industry movie release schedule, which demonstrates an
increased number of movies to be released from the major studios and other distributors and an improvement in the quality of the movie titles, and the public’s demonstrable desire to attend movies in a
theatrical environment. These named factors are both out of Management’s control and are material, individually and in the aggregate, to the realization of Management’s forecasts and expectations. In the
event that our forecasts and cash flow estimates, and our reasonable refinancing expectations, do not come to fruition to the extent needed to provide sufficient funding, we are willing and able to pursue
additional asset monetizations. Since 2021, we have demonstrated our ability to complete such real estate asset monetizations.

In conclusion, as of the date of issuance of these financial statements, based on our evaluation of ASC 205-40 Going Concern and the current conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, and our
various plans for enhancing liquidity and the extent to which those plans are progressing, we conclude that our plans are probable of being implemented and that they alleviate the substantial doubt about
our Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Property And Equipment

Property And Equipment
Abstract

Property And Equipment

Impairment Considerations

Our Company considers that the events and factors described above constitute impairment indicators under ASC 360 Property, Plant and Equipment. At December 31, 2023, our Company performed a
quantitative recoverability test of the carrying values of all its asset groups. Our Company estimated the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of these asset groups and found that
no impairment charge was necessary. The financial performance of our cinemas has been improving, despite the challenges described above, and particularly the ongoing impacts of the WGA and SAG
strikes on the first nine months of 2024. This improved performance at an asset group level, and the impact of this performance on our impairment modelling, resulted in no impairment charges being
recognized for the first nine months of 2024. Actual performance against our forecasts is dependent on several variables and conditions, many of which are subject to the uncertainties associated with
among other things, the factors presented above, and as a result, actual results may materially differ from management’s estimates.

Our Company also considers that the events and factors described above continue to constitute impairment indicators under ASC 350 Intangibles - Goodwill and Other. Our Company performed a
quantitative goodwill impairment test and determined that our goodwill was not impaired as of December 31, 2023. The test was performed at a reporting unit level by comparing each reporting unit’s
carrying value, including goodwill, to its fair value. The fair value of each reporting unit was assessed using a discounted cash flow model based on the budgetary revisions performed by management in
response to COVID-19 and the developing market conditions. Given the continuing improvements in trading conditions, taking into account the actual and expecting impacts of the WGA and SAG strikes, no
impairment charges were recorded in the first nine months of 2024. Actual performance against our forecasts is dependent on several variables and conditions, including among other things, the factors
presented above, and as a result, actual results may materially differ from management’s estimates.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 4 - Operations in Foreign Currency

‘We have significant assets in Australia and New Zealand. Historically, we have conducted our Australian and New Zealand operations (collectively “foreign operations”) on a self-funding basis, where we use
cash flows generated by our foreign operations to pay for the expenses of those foreign operations. However, in recent periods, cash flows from our overseas operations have been used to cover our
domestic general and administrative costs, interest expense, and loss from our domestic cinema operations. Our Australian and New Zealand assets and liabilities are translated from their functional
currencies of Australian dollar (“AU$”) and New Zealand dollar (“NZ$"), respectively, to the U.S. dollar based on the exchange rate as of September 30, 2024. The carrying value of the assets and liabilities
of our foreign operations fluctuates as a result of changes in the exchange rates between the functional currencies of the foreign operations and the U.S. dollar. The translation adjustments are accumulated
in the Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

‘We take a global view of our financial resources and are flexible in making use of resources from one jurisdiction in other jurisdictions.
Presented in the table below are the currency exchange rates for Australia and New Zealand:

Foreign Currency / USD

As of and As of and As of and
for the As of and for the for the As of and
quarter for the twelve months quarter for the
ended nine months ended ended ended nine months ended
September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023 September 30, 2023
Spot Rate
Australian Dollar 0.6934 0.6828 0.6451
New Zealand Dollar 0.6363 0.6340 0.6013
Average Rate
Australian Dollar 0.6700 0.6621 0.6647 0.6551 0.6691
New Zealand Dollar 0.6117 0.6098 0.6145 0.6053 0.6179

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 5 - Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to our Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is

calculated by dividing the net income attributable to our Company by the weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares outstanding during the period and is calculated using the
treasury stock method for equity-based compensation awards.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted EPS and a reconciliation of the weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares outstanding:

Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in thousands, except share data) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Numerator:
Net income (loss) attributable to Reading International, Inc. $ (6,916) $ (4,400) $ (29,485) $ (18,289)
Denominator:
‘Weighted average number of common stock - basic 22,426,184 22,273,423 22,394,385 22,208,757
Weighted average dilutive impact of awards 776,008 1,240,292 871,190 1,240,292
Weighted average number of common stock - diluted 23,202,192 23,513,715 23,265,575 23,449,049
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)
Awards excluded from diluted earnings (loss) per share 207,657 205,122 207,657 205,122

Our weighted average number of common stock - basic increased, primarily as a result of the vesting of restricted stock units. We did not repurchase any shares of Class A Common Stock during the first
nine months of 2024 or 2023.

207,657 shares issuable under stock options and restricted stock units were excluded from the computation of diluted net income (loss) per share in periods when their effect was anti-dilutive; either

because our Company incurred a net loss for the period, or the exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price of the common stock during the period, or the effect was anti-dilutive
as a result of applying the treasury stock method.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 6 - Property and Equipment
Operating Property, net

Property associated with our operating activities as at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, is summarized as follows:

September 30, December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Land $ 48,826 $ 61,095
Building and improvements 172,396 205,821
Leasehold improvements 51,133 53,984
Fixtures and equipment 152,223 155,156
Construction-in-progress 1,972 4,290
Total cost 426,550 480,346

Less: accumulated depreciation (201,485) (217,929)
Operating property, net $ 225,065 $ 262,417

Depreciation expense for operating property was $3.9 million and $11.9 million for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively, as compared to $4.5 million and $13.8 million for
the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2023.

Investment and Development Property, net

Our investment and development property as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, is summarized below:

September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Land $ — $ 3,856
Construction-in-progress (including capitalized interest) — 4,933
Investment and development property $ - $ 8,789

Construction-in-Progress - Operating and Investment Properties

Construction-in-Progress balances are included in both our operating and development properties. The balances of our major projects along with the movements for the nine months ended September 30,
2024, are shown below:

Balance, Completed Foreign Balance,
December 31, Additions during the during the Transferred to Held for currency September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 period eriod Sale i 2024
Courtenay Central development 6,412 — — (6,089) (323) —
Cinema developments and improvements 1,658 230 (207) (60) 2 1,623
Other real estate projects 1,153 489 (880) (422) 9 349
Total $ 9,223 $ 719 $ (1,087) $ (6,571) $ (312) $ 1,972

2024 Real Estate M PR

Between the fourth quarter of 2020 and the fourth quarter of 2023, we classified as assets held for sale disposal groups and thereafter monetized the following real estate assets: The Auburn/Redyard
Entertainment Themed Center (“ETC”), Manukau (land), Coachella (land), the Royal George Theatre, our property in Maitland, New South Wales, our Invercargill, New Zealand cinema and associated
ancillary land, and our office building in Culver City (sold in February 2024).

In the second quarter of 2023, we classified our 2483 Trenton Avenue, Williamsport, Pennsylvania, property as held for sale. In the second quarter of 2024, we further classified as held for sale our Cannon
Park ETC, our Courtenay Central ETC and associated land and improvements, and our Rotorua land and improvements.

A “disposal group’ represents assets to be disposed of in a single transaction. A disposal group may represent a single asset, or multiple assets. Discussed below are those real estate transactions affecting

the presentation in our consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, and the profitability determination in our consolidated statements of income for the nine months ended September 30,
2024, and 2023.

Culver City, Los Angeles

In May 2023, we classified our Culver City administrative building, commonly known as 5995 Sepulveda Blvd., as held for sale. Our book value (as opposed to fair value) of the property was $10.8 million,
being the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. No adjustments to the book value of the assets contained within this disposal group were re%l_nred. The disposal group consisted of land, a building and
various leasehold improvements. The sale was completed on February 23, 2024, at a gross sales price of $10.0 million. The proceeds were used to discharge the $8.3 million first mortgage on the property.

The loss on sale of this property is calculated as follows:
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(Dollars in thousands)

March 31
2024

Sales price

Net book value

Loss on sale, gross of direct costs
Direct sale costs incurred

Loss on sale, net of direct costs

10,000
(10,800)

(800)
(325)

(1,125)

Disposal Groups Held for Sale
Cannon Park ETC

In May 2024, we classified our Cannon Park ETC in Townsville, Queensland, Australia, as held for sale at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. The disposal group consists of our Cannon Park
City Center and Cannon Park Discount Center properties, comprising approximately 9.4-acres. The current book value (as opposed to fair value) of the property is $19.5 million. No adjustments to the book
value of the assets contained within this disposal group were required. We expect to complete the sale within 12 months.

Wellington, New Zealand

In June 2024, we classified our Courtenay Central ETC in Wellington, New Zealand, as held for sale at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. The disposal group consists of our Courtenay Central
cinema and retail property, along with our Tory and Wakefield

Street car parks. The current book value (as opposed to fair value) of the property is $16.5 million. No adjustments to the book value of the assets contained within this disposal group were required. We
expect to complete the sale within 12 months.

Reading Cinema in Rotorua, New Zealand

In June 2024, we classified the land and improvements constituting our Rotorua cinema in Rotorua, New Zealand, as held for sale at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. The disposal group
consists of our land, cinema building and the associated improvements. The current book value (as opposed to fair value) of the property is $1.5 million. No adjustments to the book value of the assets
contained within this disposal group were required. We expect to complete the sale within 12 months.

2483 Trenton Avenue, Williamsport, Pennsylvania

In June 2023, we classified our industrial property at 2483 Trenton Avenue, Williamsport, Pennsylvania, as held for sale at the lower of cost and fair value less costs to sell. The current book value (as
opposed to fair value) of the property is $460,000. The property is part of our historic railroad operations, consisting of land and an 18,000 square foot industrial building, and certain rail bed improvements.
No adjustments to the book value of the assets contained within this disposal group were required. We continue to hold this property as held for sale, and sales efforts continue as we work to resolve certain
easement issues. The property continues to meet the ASC 360 held for sale criteria.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 7 - Leases

In all leases, whether we are the lessor or lessee, we define lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease plus any renewals covered by renewal options that are reasonably certain of exercise based on
our assessment of economic factors relevant to the lessee. The non-cancellable term of the lease commences on the date the lessor makes the underlying property in the lease available to the lessee,
irrespective of when lease payments begin under the contract.

As Lessee

‘We have operating leases for certain cinemas, and finance leases for certain equipment assets. Our leases have remaining lease terms of 1 to 25 years, with certain leases having options to extend up to a
further 20 years. Lease payments for our cinema operating leases consist of fixed base rent, and for certain leases, variable lease payments consisting of contracted percentages of revenue, changes in the
relevant CPI, and/or other contracted financial metrics.

The components of lease expense were as follows:

Quarter Ended

Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Lease cost
Finance lease cost:
Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 10 $ 8 $ 31 $ 23
Interest on lease liabilities 1 — 4 1
Operating lease cost 7,585 8,076 23,723 24,287
Variable lease cost 638 722 499 1,377
Total lease cost $ 8234 § 8,806 $ 24,257 $ 25,688

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows:

Nine Months Ended

September 30,
(Dollars in 2024 2023
Cash flows relating to lease cost
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows for finance leases $ 33 $ 26
Operating cash flows for operating leases 20,511 24,944
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities 3,866 1,578
Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases is as follows:
September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Operating leases
Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 170,549 $ 181,542
Operating lease liabilities - current portion 22,182 23,047
Operating lease liabilities - non-current portion 170,127 180,898
Total operating lease liabilities $ 192,309 $ 203,945
Finance leases
Property plant and equipment, gross 234 232
Accumulated depreciation (182) (177)
Property plant and equipment, net $ 52 $ 55
Other current liabilities 42 40
Other long-term liabilities 12 43
Total finance lease liabilities $ 54 $ 83
Other information
Weighted-average remaining lease term - finance leases 1 2
Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 11 11
Weighted-average discount rate - finance leases 7.07% 7.07%
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 4.74% 4.62%
The maturities of our leases were as follows:
Operating Finance
(Dollars in thousands) leases leases
2024 $ 30,862 $ 44
2025 29,623 11
2026 27,239 =
2027 23,460 —
2028 21,834 =
Thereafter 113,572 —
Total lease payments $ 246,590 $ 55
Less imputed interest (54,281) (1)
Total $ 192,309 $ 54
As Lessor

‘We have entered into various leases as a lessor for our owned real estate properties. These leases vary in length between 1 and 20 years, with certain leases containing options to extend at the behest of the
applicable tenants. Lease components consist of fixed base rent, and for certain leases, variable lease payments consisting of contracted percentages of revenue, changes in the relevant CPI, and/or other
contracted financial metrics. None of our leases grant any right to the tenant to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease income relating to operating lease payments was as follows:

Quarter Ended
September 30

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
P of lease i
Lease payments $ 2,781 2,834 $ 8,186 $ 8,271
Variable lease payments 178 288 600 618
Total lease income $ 2,959 $ 3,122 $ 8,786 $ 8,889

The book value of underlying assets under operating leases from owned assets was as follows:

September 30, December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023

ilding and impr S

Gross balance $ 117,675  $ 127,222

Accumulated depreciation (22,442) (23,270)

Net Book Value $ 95,233 $ 103,952
The minimum contractual rent payments due on our leases were as follows:
Operating

(Dollars in leases
2024 $ 2,214
2025 8,874
2026 7,334
2027 6,517
2028 6,548
Thereafter 21,384
Total $ 52,871
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Goodwill And Intangible Note 8 - Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Assets
The table below summarizes goodwill by business segment as of September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023.
(Dollars in thousands) Cinema Real Estate Total
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 20,311 $ 5,224 $ 25,535
Foreign currency translation adjustment 180 — 180
Balance at September 30, 2024 $ 20,491 $ 5,224 $ 25,715
Our Company is required to test goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis and, if current events or circumstances require them, on an interim basis. Our next annual evaluation
of goodwill and other intangible assets is scheduled during the fourth quarter of 2024. To test the impairment of goodwill, our Company compares the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying amount,
including the goodwill, to determine if there is potential goodwill impairment. A reporting unit is generally one level below the operating segment. As of September 30, 2024, we were not aware that any
events indicating potential impairment of goodwill had occurred outside of those described at Note 3 - Liquidity and Impairment Assessment.
The tables below summarize intangible assets other than goodwill, as of September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, respectively.
As of September 30, 2024
Other
Beneficial Trade Intangible
(Dollars in thousands) eases Name Assets Total
Gross carrying amount $ 10,458 $ 9,024 $ 4,410 $ 23,892
Less: Accumulated amortization (10,288) (8,067) (3,696) (22,051)
Net intangible assets other than goodwill $ 170 957 $ 714 $ 1,841
As of December 31, 2023
Other
Beneficial Trade Intangible
(Dollars in thousands) Leases Name Assets Total
Gross carrying amount $ 11,283 $ 9,024 $ 4,400 $ 24,707
Less: Accumulated amortization (11,089) (7,961) (3,611) (22,661)
Less: Impairments — = (8) (8
Net intangible assets other than goodwill $ 194 $ 1,063 $ 781 $ 2,038
Beneficial leases obtained in business combinations where we are the landlord are amortized over the life of the relevant leases. Trade names are amortized based on the accelerated amortization method
over their estimated useful life of 30 years, and other intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives of up to 30 years (except for transferrable liquor licenses, which are indefinite-lived
assets). The table below summarizes the amortization expense of intangible assets for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024
Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Beneficial lease amortization $ 21 $ 21 $ 64 $ 43
Other amortization 60 129 143 182
Total intangible assets amortization $ 81 $ 150 $ 207 $ 225
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Investments In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures Note 9 - Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures
Our investments in unconsolidated joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
The table below summarizes our active investment holdings in two (2) unconsolidated joint ventures as of September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023:
September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) Interest 2024 2023
Rialto Cinemas 50.0% $ 727 $ 848
Mt. Gravatt 33.3% 3,567 3,908
Total investments $ 4294 § 4,756

For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, the recognized share of equity earnings from our investments in unconsolidated joint ventures are as

follows:

Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rialto Cinemas $ (71) s 25§ (149) s (14)
Mt. Gravatt 142 192 313 457
Total equity earnings $ 71 $ 217 $ 164 $ 443
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Pre And Other Asset Note 10 - Prepaid and Other Assets

Prepaid and other assets are summarized as follows:

September 30, December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Prepaid and other current assets
Prepaid expenses $ 1,239 $ 1,813
Prepaid taxes 559 802
Income taxes receivable 400 —
Deposits 312
Investments in marketable securities 18
Total prepaid and other current assets $ 2,528
Other non-current assets
Other non-cinema and non-rental real estate assets 674
Investment in Reading International Trust I 838
Straight-line rent asset 7,415
Long-term deposits 11
Total other non-current assets $ 8,938
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Income Taxes Note 11 - Income Taxes

The interim provision for income taxes is different from the amount determined by applying the U.S. federal statutory rate to consolidated income or loss before taxes. The differences are attributable to

foreign tax rate differential, unrecognized tax benefits, and

change in valuation allowance. Our effective tax rate was (1.1%) and (1.7%) for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The difference is primarily due to an increase in valuation
allowance and unrecognized tax benefits in 2024. The forecasted effective tax rate is updated each quarter as new information becomes available.
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Borrowings
Note 12 - Borrowings

Our Company’s borrowings at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, net of deferred financing costs and including the impact of interest rate derivatives on effective interest rates, are summarized

below:

As of September 30, 2024

Effective
Contractual Balance, Balance, Stated Interest
(Dollars in thousands) Maturity Date Facility Gross Net( Interest Rate Rate
Denominated in USD
Trust Preferred Securities (US) April 30, 2027 $ 27,913 $ 27,913 $ 27,339 9.52% 9.52%
Bank of America Credit Facility (US) August 18, 2025 16,250 16,250 16,195 11.00% 11.00%
Cinemas 1, 2, 3 Term Loan (US) ) October 1, 2024 20,775 20,775 20,775 8.75% 8.75%
Minetta & Orpheum Theatres Loan (US) June 1, 2025 7,742 7,742 7,710 7.00% 7.00%
Union Square Financing (US) May 6, 2025 55,000 47,141 46,980 12.54% 12.54%
Denominated in foreign currency ("FC") (3)
NAB Corporate Term Loan (AU) July 31, 2026 69,340 69,340 69,195 6.10% 6.10%
NAB Bridge Facility (AU) March 31, 2025 13,868 13,868 13,851 6.12% 6.12%
Westpac Bank Corporate (NZ) January 1, 2025 11,988 11,988 11,988 7.95% 7.95%
$ 222,876 $ 215,017 § 214,033
(1) Net of deferred financing costs amounting to $1.0 million.
(2) This financing facility was extended after September 30, 2024.
(3) The contractual facilities and outstanding balances of the foreign currency denominated borrowings were translated into U.S. dollars based on the rates as of 30, 2024.
As of December 31, 2023
Stated Effective
Contractual Balance, Balance, Interest Interest
Maturity Date Facility ross Net®) Rate Rate

(Dollars in thousands)
Denominated in USD
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Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Trust Preferred Securities (US) April 30, 2027 $ 27,913 $ 27,913 $ 27,172 9.65% 9.65%
Bank of America Credit Facility (US)(3) September 4, 2024 20,200 20,200 20,080 11.00% 11.00%

Cinemas 1, 2, 3 Term Loan (US) October 1, 2024 21,008 21,008 20,780 8.84% 8.84%
Minetta & Orpheum Theatres Loan (US) June 1, 3024 8,000 8,000 8,000 8.34% 8.34%
U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan (US) January 1, 2027 8,401 8,401 8,356 4.64% | 4.44% 4.64% [ 4.44%
Union Square Financing (US) May 6, 2024 55,000 47,141 46,925 12.53% 12.53%
Purchase Money Promissory Note (US) September 18, 2024 586 586 586 5.00% 5.00%
Denominated in foreign currency ("FC")(2)
NAB Corporate Term Loan (AU) July 31, 2025 68,276 68,276 68,173 6.11% 6.11%
Westpac Bank Corporate (NZ) January 1, 2025 8,775 8775 8775 8.20% 8.20%
Total 3 218,159 § 210,300 § 7
(1) Net of deferred financing costs amounting to $1.5 million.
(2) The contractual facilities and outstanding balances of the foreign currency i borrowings were trans into U.S. dollars based on the appli rates as of December 31, 2023,
(3) This financing facility was extended after December 31, 2023.

Our loan arrangements are presented, net of the deferred financing costs, on the face of our consolidated balance sheet as follows:

September 30, December 31,
Balance Sheet Caption (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Debt - current portion $ 52,624 $ 34,484
Debt - long-term portion 134,070 146,605
Subordinated debt - current portion — 586
Subordinated debt - long-term portion 27,339 27,172
Total borrowings $ 214,033 $§ 208,847

Bank of America Credit Facility
Our Bank of America facility was amended on March 27, 2024, to among other terms and conditions, (i) extend the Maturity Date to August 18, 2025, (ii) re(&xire a $275,000 principal paydown, (iii) eliminate

the minimum liquidity covenant, (iv) reduce the principal amortization amounts and&)o;ovide a principal holiday period, and %V) require certain paydowns on the sale of certain real estate assets. Interest is

charged at 2.5% above the Bank of America Prime rate, which itself has a floor of 1.0%. Payment-in-kind interest at a rate of 0.5% commenced on January 1, 2024, and will continue until December 31, 2024,

increasing to 1.5% on January 1, 2025, until the facilit&/ is_refpai_d in full. This loan is subject to mandatory prepayment out of a portion of the net]groceeds realized by us in the event that we determine to sell
certain specified assets. In October 2024, we amended this facility to defer the monthly principal payments required in October, November and December, to the end of 2024.
Minetta and Orpheum Theatres Loan

On August 1, 2024, we extended the maturity of our $8.0 million loan with Santander Bank, which is secured by our Minetta and Orpheum Theaters. It had previously matured on June 1, 2024. The extended
facility now matures on June 1, 2025, requires monthly principal and interest payments with a balloon payment of $7.7 million on maturity, and carries an interest rate of 7.0%.

Cinemas 1,2,3 Term Loan

Our Cinemas 1,2,3 Term Loan is held by Sutton Hill Properties LLC (“SHP”), a 75% owned subsidiary of RDI. In October 2024, we obtained two further six month extensions for this loan, the first of which
we exercised. The loan is with Valley National Bank, carries an interest rate of 3.50% above monthly SOFR, with a floor of 7.50%, and includes provisions for a prepaid interest reserve.

Union Square Financing

On May 7, 2021, we closed on a new three year $55.0 million loan facility with Emerald Creek Capital secured by our 44 Union Square property and certain limited guarantees. Following the phase out of
LIBOR, the facility bears a variable interest rate of TERM SOFR plus 6.9% and includes provisions for a prepaid interest and property tax reserve fund. On April 23, 2024, we executed the first 12 month
extension on this loan, taking the maturity to May 6, 2025. The loan has one remaining 12-month option to extend, and may be repaid at any time, without the payment of any premium. As this option is
within our control, we will continue to keep the loan classified as long-term.

Purchase Money Promissory Note

On September 18, 2019, we purchased for $5.5 million 407,000 shares of our Class A Common Stock in a privately negotiated transaction under our Share Repurchase Program. Of this amount, $3.5 million
was paid by the issuance of a Purchase Money Promissory Note, which bore an interest rate of 5.0% per annum, payable in equal quarterly payments of principal plus accrued interest. The Purchase Money
Promissory Note matured on September 18, 2024.

U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan

‘We repaid this $8.4 million loan in full in February 2024, with a portion of the proceeds from the sale of our Culver City office building.

Debt i in foreign currencies

Westpac Bank Corporate Credit Facility (NZ)

Our Westpac Corporate Credit Facility for NZ$13.8 million matures on January 1, 2025. The facility currently carries an interest rate and line of credit charge of 2.40% above the Bank Bill Bid Rate and
1.65% respectively. Westpac has waived the requirement to test certain covenants for each quarter since the third quarter of 2020, including the quarter ending September 30, 2024.

On August 13, 2024, we increased the limit on this facility by NZ$5.0 million to NZ$18.8 million. The maturity date remains January 1, 2025.
Australian NAB Corporate Term Loan (AU)

Prior to March 31, 2024, our Revolving Corporate Markets Loan Facility with National Australia Bank (“NAB”) matured on July 31, 2025. It consisted of (i) an AU$100.0 million Corporate Loan facility at
1.75% above BBSY, of which AU $60.0 million was revolving and AU$40.0 million was core and (ii) a Bank Guarantee Facility of AU$5.0 million at a rate of 1.9% per annum.

On April 4, 2024, we amended this facility, which now matures on July 31, 2026. As part of the amendment, we obtained an additional AU$20.0 million bridge facility which matures on March 31, 2025 (or
earlier, upon the sale of certain assets), and modified certain

covenants. We are also required, from March 31, 2025, to make quarterly repayments of AU$1.5 million against the AU$100.0 million Corporate Loan facility, until maturity date, representing permanent
reductions in that facility’s ceiling. The bank guarantee facility was reduced to AU$3.0 million. No other changes were made.

Effective June 28, 2024, we entered into an Interest Rate Hedging Agreement with NAB on AU$50.0 million of the Corporate Loan Facility with the Termination date on July 31, 2026. The Interest Rate
Collar transaction has a floor of 4.18% and a cap of 4.78%.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 13 - Other Liabilities

Other liabilities are summarized as follows:

September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Current liabilities
Lease liability $ 5,900 $ 5,900
Accrued pension 493 684
Security deposit payable 119 74
Finance lease liabilities 42 40
Other 34 33
Other current liabilities $ 6,588 § 6,731
Other liabilities
Lease make-good provision 6,239 6,050
Accrued pension 2,450 2,646
Deferred rent liability 2,610 1,314
Environmental reserve 1,656 1,656
Acquired leases —
Finance lease liabilities 12 43
Other non-current liabilities $ 12,967 $ 11,711

Pension Liability - Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
Details of our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan are disclosed in Note 13 - Pension and Other Liabilities in our 2023 Form 10-K.

Included in our current and non-current liabilities are accrued pension costs of $2.9 million on September 30, 2024. The benefits of our pension plan are fully vested and therefore no service costs were
recognized for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, and 2023. Our pension plan is unfunded.

During the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the interest cost was $40,000 and $126,000, respectively, and the actuarial loss was $52,000 and $156,000, respectively. During the quarter
and nine months ended September 30, 2023, the interest cost was $47,000 and $146,000, respectively, and the actuarial loss was $52,000 and $155,000, respectively.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income [Abstract
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Note 14 - Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
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The following table summarizes the changes in each component of accumulated other comprehensive income attributable to RDI:

Unrealized
Gain (Losses)
Foreign on Available- Accrued Hedge
Currency for-Sale Pension Accounting
(Dollars in thousands) Items Investments Service Costs Reserve Total
Balance at January 1, 2024 $ (986) $ (18) $ (1,669) $ — % (2,673)

Change related to derivatives

Total change in hedge fair value recorded in Other

Comprehensive Income — — — (269) (269)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other

comprehensive income — — —

Net change related to derivatives — — — (269) (269)
Net current-period other comprehensive income

(loss) (44) 1) 156 (269) (158)
Balance at September 30, 2024 $ (1,030) $ a19) s (1,513) $ (269) $ (2,831)

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation Matters

We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings and, to the extent required, have accrued estimates of probable and estimable losses for the resolution of these claims, including legal costs.

‘Where we are the plaintiffs, we accrue legal fees as incurred on an on-going basis and make no provision for any potential settlement amounts until received. In Australia, the prevailing party is
usually entitled to recover its attorneys’ fees, which recoveries typically work out to be approximately 60% of the amounts actually spent where first-class legal counsel is engaged at customary rates.
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‘Where we are a plaintiff, we have likewise made no provision for the liability for the defendant’s attorneys’ fees in the event we are determined not to be the prevailing party.

Where we are the defendants, we accrue for probable damages that insurance may not cover as they become known and can be reasonably estimated, as permitted under ASC 450-20 Loss
Contingencies. In our opinion, any claims and litigation in which we are currently involved are not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial
position, or liquidity. It is possible, however, that future results of the operations for any particular quarterly or annual period could be materially affected by the ultimate outcome of the legal
proceedings. From time to time, we are involved with claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of our business that may include contractual obligations, insurance claims, tax claims,
employment matters, and anti-trust issues, among other matters.

Envir I and Asb Claims on Reading Legacy Oj i

Certain of our subsidiaries were historically involved in railroad operations, coal mining, and manufacturing. Also, certain of these subsidiaries appear in the chain-of-title of properties that may suffer from
pollution. Accordingly, certain of these subsidiaries have, from time to time, been named in and may in the future be named in various actions brought under applicable environmental laws. Also, we are in
the real estate development business and may encounter from time to time environmental conditions at properties that we have acquired for development and which will need to be addressed in the future
as part of the development process. These environmental conditions can increase the cost of such projects and adversely affect the value and potential for profit of such projects. We do not currently believe
that our exposure under applicable environmental laws is material in amount.

From time to time, there are claims brought against us relating to the exposure of former employees to asbestos and/or coal dust. These are generally covered by an insurance settlement reached in
September 1990 with our insurance providers. However, this insurance settlement does not cover litigation by people who were not employees of our historic railroad operations and who may claim direct or
second-hand exposure to asbestos, coal dust and/or other chemicals or elements now recognized as potentially causing cancer in humans. Our known exposure to these types of claims, asserted or probable
of being asserted, is not material.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024
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Note 16 - Non-controlling Interests

These are composed of the following enterprises:
Australia Country Cinemas Pty Ltd. - 25% noncontrolling interest owned by Panorama Group International Pty Ltd;
Shadow View Land and Farming, LLC - 50% noncontrolling membership interest owned by the estate of Mr. James J. Cotter, Sr. (the “Cotter Estate”); and,
Sutton Hill Properties, LLC - 25% noncontrolling interest owned by Sutton Hill Capital, LLC (which in turn is 50% owned by the Cotter Estate).

The components of noncontrolling interests are as follows:

September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd $ 108§ 76
Shadow View Land and Farming, LLC (2) (2)
Sutton Hill Properties, LLC (675) (165)
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries $ (569) $ 9D

The components of income attributable to noncontrolling interests are as follows:

Nine Months Ended

Quarter Ended
September 30,
20

September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 23
Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd $ 39 25 $ 30 60
Shadow View Land and Farming, LLC — 1 — 1
Sutton Hill Properties, LLC (150) @1 (511) (422)
Net i (loss) attri ble to rolling interests $ (111) $ (65) $ (481) $ (361)
A summary of the changes in controlling and noncontrolling stockholders’ equity is as follows:
Common Stock Retained Accumulated Reading
1a ClassA | ClassB | Class B | Additional  Earnings Other International Inc. Total
tin Par Voting Par Paid-In Treasury  Ci

(Dollars in thousands, except shares) Value Shares Value Capital Deficit) Shares __Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
At January 1, 2024 X s 237 1681 s 17 | $ 155402 (79489)§ _(40407) _§ 2673 % 33,087 § s 32,996
Net income (loss) — — — — — (13,228) — — (13,228) (175) (13,403)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - - - - - (2,538) (2,538) @ @541)
Share-based compensation expense — — — — 678 — — — 678 - 678
Restricted Stock Units 9 — — - (2) ol — —= (2) = (2)
At March 31, 2024 20,673 s 237 1681 s 17| s 156078 $  (92717)% (40407 G211 § 17,997 § 269) s 17728
Net income = = = = = ©,341) = — ©,341) (195) ©9,536)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - - — - - 886 886 1 887
Share-based compensation expense - - - - 456 - - - 456 - 456
Restricted Stock Units 70 1 — — (5) — — — “) - “)
At June 30, 2024 20,743 $ 238 1681 §$ 17 1% 156,529 $ (102,058) $ _ (40,407) $ (4,325) $ 9,994 (463) $ 9,531
Net income — — — — — (6,916) — — (6,916) (111) (7,027)
Other comprehensive income, net — - — - — — - 1,494 1,494 5 1,499

re-based expense - - — — 603 — - — 603 - 603
At September 30, 2024 20,743 $ 238 1681 §$ 17 1% 157,132 $ (108,974) $ _ (40,407) $ (2,831) $ 5175 $ (569) $ 4,606

Common Stock Retained Accumulated Reading
Cl:lss A Class A Class B Class B Additional Earnings Other International Inc. Total
Vn:il;g Par Voting Par Paid-In Treasury  C i i 3

(Dollars in thousands, except shares) Shares Value Shares Value Capital Deficit) Shares Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
At January 1, 2023 20412 $ 235 1681 8 1718 153,784 3 (48816) $__ (40,407) (1,957) $ 62,856 _$ 423 § 63,279
Net income (loss) - - — — — (11,111) — — (11,111) (213) (11,324)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - - - - - (1,293) (1,293) 1 (1,294)
Share-based compensation expense — — — — 443 — — — 443 — 443
Restricted Stock Units 89 — — — (132) — — — a32) — a32)
At March 31, 2023 20,501 _§ 235 1681 s 17§ 154005 § (599278 (40.407) G250 % 50,763 § 209§ 50,972
Net income — = = = = 2,778) = = 2,778) (©3) 2,861)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - — — - - (740) (740) ) (741)
Share-based compensation expense - - - - 308 - - - 308 - 308
Restricted Stock Units 92 1 — (113) = — — (112) — (112)
At June 30, 2023 20,593 $ 236 1681 ¢ 17 | 154,290 S (62,705) $ _(40,407) 3 (3,990) $ 47441 8 125 § 47,566
Net income - - — — (4,400) - — (4,400) (65) (4,465)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - - - - - (1,657) (1,657) @) (1,660)
Share-based compensation expense - - — - 614 — - - 614 - 614
Restricted Stock Units — = — = — — — - - B
At September 30, 2023 20,593 5 236 1681 § 17 | § 154904 5 (671058 (40407) G647 5 41,998 5 57 s 42,055

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 17 - Stock-Based Compensation and Stock Repurchases
[Employee and Director Stock Incentive Plan

2020 Stock Incentive Plan

On November 4, 2020, the Company enacted the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan, which was also approved by the Company’s stockholders on December 8, 2020 (as amended, the “2020 Plan”). Under the 2020
Plan, the number of permitted authorized shares for issuance was originally set at 1,250,000, plus any shares reserved for awards outstanding under the 2010 Plan that were subsequently forfeited (for
instance, through a then outstanding out of the money option) or if the related shares are repurchased, a corresponding number of shares would automatically become available for issuance under the 2020
Plan. On December 7, 2023, the Company’s stockholders, upon recommendation of the Company’s board of directors, approved the First Amendment to the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan, increasing the number
of Class A Common Stock reserved for issuance under the 2020 Plan by an additional 971,807 shares.

Under the 2020 Plan, the Company may grant stock options and other share-based payment awards of our Class A Common Stock to eligible employees, directors and consultants. At September 30, 2024,
there were 15,048 shares of Class A Common Stock available for issuance under the 2020 Plan, which includes shares from the 2010 Plan that become available for issuance due to the forfeiture of then
outstanding out of the money stock options.

Stock options are granted at exercise prices equal to the grant-date market prices and typically expire on either the fifth or tenth anniversary of the grant date. In contrast to a stock option where the
grantee buys our Company’s share at an exercise price determined on the grant date, a restricted stock unit (“RSU”) entitles the grantee to receive one share for every RSU based on a vesting plan, typically
between one year and four years from grant. As discussed further below, a performance component has been added to certain of the RSUs or options granted to management. At the time the options are
exercised or RSUs vest and are settled, at the discretion of management, we will issue treasury shares or make a new issuance of shares to the option or RSU holder.

Stock Options

We have estimated the grant-date fair value of our stock options using the Black-Scholes option-valuation model, which takes into account assumptions such as the dividend yield, the risk-free interest rate,
the expected stock price volatility, and the expected life of the options. We expensed the estimated grant-date fair values of options over the vesting period on a straight-line basis. Based on our historical
experience, the “deemed exercise” of expiring in-the-money options and the relative market price to strike price of the options, we have not estimated any forfeitures of vested or unvested options.

Stock options to purchase 207,657 shares of Class A Common Stock were issued to the Board of Directors upon their reelection to the Board in December 2023 for their services for their 2024 term. No
other stock options were granted in 2023. On June 6, 2024, we issued options to purchase 1,264,603 shares of Class A Common Stock to our senior executives. These options have a one-year vesting and a
ten-year term and were granted in lieu of cash bonuses which would otherwise have been paid under our Company's Incentive Compensation Program. No other stock options were granted during the three
quarters of 2024.

For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, we recorded a compensation expense of $302,000 and $466,000 respectively, with respect to our prior stock option grants. For the quarter and
nine months ended September 30, 2023, we recorded a compensation expense of and $9,000 and $27,000 respectively, with respect to our prior stock option grants At September 30, 2024, the total

unrecognized estimated compensation expense related to non-vested stock options was $623,000, which we expect to recognize over a weighted average vesting period of 0.94 years. The intrinsic,
unrealized value of all options outstanding vested and expected to vest, at September 30, 2024, was nil, as the closing price of our Class A Common Stock on that date was $1.63.

The following table summarizes the number of options outstanding and exercisable as of September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023:

Outstanding Stock Options - Class A Shares
O e  eighied ghte

Average
Remaining
Weighted Aggregate
Number Average Contractual Intrinsic
of Options Exercise Price Life Value
Class A Class A Class A Class A
Balance - December 31, 2022 327,498 $ 15.87 1.24 $ —
Granted 207,657 1.92 — —
Exercised — — = —
Forfeited (122,376) — — —
Balance - December 31, 2023 412,779 $ 14.19 1.79 $ —
Granted 1,264,603 1.47 — —
Exercised — = = —
Forfeited (205,122) — — —
Balance - September 30, 2024 1,472,260 §$ 1.66 9.61 $ —

Restricted Stock Units
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The following table summarizes the status of RSUs granted to date as of September 30, 2024:

Restricted Stock Units

RSU Grants (in units) Vested, Unvested, Forfeited,
Total September 30, September 30, September 30,

Grant Date Directors Management Grants 2024 2024 2024

Opening balance 216,804 793,353 1,010,157 895,995 49,858 64,305
December 8, 2021 48,951 - 48,951 48,951 — —
April 18, 2022 — 428,899 428,899 151,033 230,601 47,265
December 15, 2022 73,683 = 73,683 73,683 — —
April 11, 2023 — 413,536 413,536 146,714 257,790 9,032
April 21, 2023 = 237,719 237,719 79,328 149,866 8,525
April 28, 2023 — 20,427 20,427 5,109 15,318 —
Total 339,438 1,893,934 2,233,372 1,400,813 703,433 129,127

Time vested RSU awards to management typically vest 25% on the anniversary of the grant date and the remainder over a period of four years. Beginning in 2020, a performance component has been added
to certain management equity grants, which vest on the third anniversary of their grant date based on the achievement of certain performance metrics. From 2021 onwards, RSUs have two vesting
structures, which include time vesting and performance vesting. The majority of RSUs vest 75% evenly over a period of four years, with the remaining 25% contingent upon the achievement of certain
performance metrics, vesting in full on the third anniversary of the date of the grant. In the case of our Chief Executive Officer, RSUs vest 50% evenly over a period of four years with the remaining 50%,
contingent upon the achievement of certain performance metrics, vesting in full on the third anniversary of the grant date. On April 11 and April 21, 2023, the Board of Directors determined that our
Company was not in a position to pay cash bonuses that would otherwise have been earned by certain members of management under our Company’s Incentive Compensation Plan for 2022, and authorized
the issuance in lieu of such cash bonuses 85,139 RSUs, which vested on April 11, 2024 and 52,360 RSUs, which vested on April 21, 2024. No RSUs were granted during the remainder of 2023 or the first
two quarters of 2024, however, the Compensation Committee has not completed its final review of 2024 incentive compensation.

For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, we recorded compensation expense of $302,000 and $1.3 million, respectively. For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2023, we
recorded compensation expense of $604,000, and $1.3 million, respectively. The total unrecognized compensation expense related to the non-vested RSUs was $2.3 million as of September 30, 2024, which
we expect to recognize over a weighted average vesting period of 1.07 years.

Stock Repurchase Program

Our Stock Repurchase Program expired on March 10, 2024. It has not been renewed. No stock has been repurchased by our Company since March 10, 2020.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 18 - Hedge Accounting
As of September 30, 2024, our Company held derivative instruments to the notional value of $34.7 million. As of December 31, 2023, our Company held no derivative instruments.
The derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and are included in the following line items:

Liability Derivatives

September 30, December 31,
2024 2023
(Dollars in thousands) Balance sheet location Fair value Balance sheet location Fair value
Interest rate contracts Derivative financial instruments - current portion $ — Derivative financial instruments - current portion $ -
Derivative financial instruments - non-current portion 269 Derivative financial instruments - non-current portion -
Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ 269 $ =]
Total derivatives $ 269 $ =

The changes in fair value of that instrument were recorded in Other Comprehensive Income and released into interest expense in the same period(s) in which the hedged transactions affect earnings. In the
quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023, respectively, the derivative instruments affected Comprehensive Income as follows:

Location of Loss Recognized in Income on Amount of Loss (Gain) Recognized in Income on Derivatives

(Dollars in thousands) Derivatives
Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
2024 2023 2024 2023
Interest rate contracts Interest expense $ - 8 (26) 8 - $ 812
S = 8 (26) $ = 3 (812)
Loss (Gain) i in OCI on Derivatives (Effective Portion)
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Amount
Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
23
Interest rate contracts $ 167 $ = $ 269 $ 2
s 167 s = $ 269 $ 2

Loss (Gain) Reclassified from OCI into Income (Effective Portion)

Amount Amount
Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
23

Line Item

Interest expense $ — $ (26) $ = $ 812
otal 3 = s 26 § — 3 812)

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 19 - Fair Value Measurements
ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The statement requires that assets and liabilities carried at
fair value be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which all significant
inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets; and,

Level 3: Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.

The following tables summarize our financial liabilities that are carried at cost and measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, by level within the fair
value hierarchy.

Fair Value Measurement at September 30, 2024

Carrying

(Dollars in Value®) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes payable $ 187,104 $ = $ = $ 187,382 $ 187,382
Subordinated debt 27,913 — — 27,771 27,771
$ 215,017 $ =53 = 53 215,153 $ 215,153

Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2023
Carrying

(Dollars in thousands) Value® Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes payable $ 181,801 $ — $ — $ 148,325 $ 148,325
Subordinated debt 28,499 — — 27,832 27,832
$ 210,300 $ - $ - 3 176,157 $ 176,157

(1) These balances are presented before any deduction for deferred financing costs.
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used to estimate the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities. There have been no changes in the methodologies used as of September 30,
2024, and December 31, 2023.

Level 1 investments in marketable securities primarily consist of investments associated with the ownership of marketable securities in U.S. and New Zealand. These investments are valued based on
observable market quotes on the last trading date of the reporting period.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments are valued based on discounted cash flow models that incorporate observable inputs such as interest rates and yield curves from the derivative
counterparties. The credit valuation adjustments associated with our non-performance risk and counterparty credit risk are incorporated in the fair value estimates of our derivatives. As of
September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, we concluded that the credit valuation adjustments were not significant to the overall valuation of our derivatives.

Level 3 borrowings include our secured and unsecured notes payable, trust preferred securities and other debt instruments. The borrowings are valued based on discounted cash flow models that
incorporate appropriate market discount rates. We calculated the market discount rate by obtaining period-end treasury rates for fixed-rate debt, or LIBOR for variable-rate debt, for maturities that
correspond to the maturities of our debt, adding appropriate credit spreads derived from information obtained from third-party financial institutions. These credit spreads take into account factors
such as our credit rate, debt maturity, types of borrowings, and the loan-to-value ratios of the debt.

Our Company'’s financial instruments also include cash, cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payable. The carrying values of these financial instruments approximate the fair values due to their short
maturities. Additionally, there were no transfers of assets and liabilities between levels 1, 2, or 3 during the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, and September 30, 2023.

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Note 20 - Subsequent Events
In October 2024, we amended our Bank of America credit facility to defer the monthly principal payments required in October, November and December, to the end of 2024.
In October 2024, we obtained two further six month extensions for our loan with Valley National, the first of which we exercised. The loan now carries an interest rate of 5.0% above monthly SOFR, with a
floor of 7.50%, and includes provisions for a prepaid interest reserve. In connection with these extensions, we have increased our cash deposit with Valley National Bank by $500,000 to $1,500,000.
9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024
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Basis Of Consolidation Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as well as majority-owned subsidiaries that our Company controls and should be read
in conjunction with our Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 (“2023 Form 10-K”). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated on consolidation. These cc lidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim
reporting with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). As such, they do not include all information and footnotes required by
U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. We believe that we have included all normal and recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim period.

Operating results for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2024.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of cc lidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto. Significant estimates include (i) projections we make regarding the recoverability and impairment of our assets (including goodwill and intangibles),
(ii) valuations of our derivative instruments, (iii) recoverability of our deferred tax assets, (iv) estimation of breakage and redemption experience rates, which drive how we recognize breakage on our gift
card and gift certificates, and revenue from our customer loyalty program, and (v) estimation of our Incremental Borrowing Rate (“IBR”) as relates to the valuation of our right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Actual results may differ from those estimates

Use Of Estimates
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Summary Of Results Of Operations For Principal Business Segments

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenue:
Cinema exhibition $ 56,357 $ 62,687 $ 140,570 $ 165,731
Real estate 4,898 5,056 14,844 15,338
Inter-segment elimination (1,165) (1,181) (3,463) (3,644)
$ 60,090 $ 66,562 $151,951 $177,425
Segment operating income (loss):
Cinema exhibition $ 2,309 $ 4,395 $ (3,128) $ 4,256
Real estate 1,396 920 3,234 3,212
$ 3,705 $ 5,315 $ 106 $ 7,468
Reconciliation To Net Income Attributable To Common Shareholders Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Segment operating income (loss) $ 3,705 $ 5,315 $ 106 $ 7,468
Unallocated corporate expense
Depreciation and amortization expense (106) (172) (305) (527)
General and administrative expense (3,845) (4,124) (11,928) (12,014)
Interest expense, net (5,229) (5,072) (15,766) (14,063)
Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint
ventures 71 217 164 443
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (208) — (1,324) —
Other income (expense) (715) 267 (592) 356
Income (loss) before income tax
expense $_(6,327) $ (3,569) $ (29,645) $ (18,337)
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9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024
Operations In Foreign Currency [Abstract]
Summary Of Currency Exchange Rates

Foreign Currency / USD

As of and of and
Asofand for the As of and Asof and  for the
for the nine for the for the nine
quarter  months  twelve months  quarter  months
ended ende ende ended ended
September 30, 2024 P°cember 3L, gepiember 30, 2023
Spot Rate
Australian Dollar 0.6934 0.6828 0.6451
New Zealand Dollar 0.6363 0.6340 0.6013
Average Rate
Australian Dollar 0.6700 0.6621 0.6647 0.6551 0.6691
New Zealand Dollar 0.6117 0.6098 0.6145 0.6053 0.6179
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9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new

Computation Of Basic And Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in except share data) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Numerator:
Net income (loss) attributable to Reading
International, Inc. $ (6,916) $ (4,400) $  (29,485) $  (18,289)
Denominator:
Weighted average number of common stock -
basic 22,426,184 22,273,423 22,394,385 22,208,757
Weighted average dilutive impact of awards 776,008 1,240,292 871,190 1,240,292
Weighted average number of common stock -
diluted 23,202,192 23,513,715 23,265,575 23,449,049
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) §$ (0.20) $ (1.32) % (0.82)
Awards excluded from diluted earnings (loss) per
share 207,657 205,122 207,657 205,122
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Property And Equipment [Abstract
Schedule Of Property And Equipment September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Land $ 48,826 $ 61,095
Building and improvements 172,396 205,821
Leasehold improvements 51,133 53,984
Fixtures and equipment 152,223 155,156
Construction-in-progress 1,972 4,290
Total cost 426,550 480,346
Less: accumulated depreciation (201,485) (217,929)
Operating property, net $ 225,065 $ 262,417
Summary Of Investment And Development Property September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Land $ - $ 3,856
Construction-in-progress (including capitalized interest) — 4,933
Investment and development property $ - 3 8,789
Construction-In-Progress Balance
Balance, Additions Completed Foreign Balance,
December 31, during the during the Transferred to currency September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 period period Held for Sale i 2024
Courtenay Central development 6,412 — — (6,089) (323) —
Cinema developments and improvements 1,658 230 (207) (60) 2 1,623
Other real estate projects 1,153 489 (880) (422) 9 349
Total $ 9,223 $ 719 $ (1,087) $ (6,571) $ (312) $ 1,972
Loss On Sale Of Property March 31
(Dollars in thousands) 2024
Sales price $ 10,000
Net book value (10,800)
Loss on sale, gross of direct costs (800)
Direct sale costs incurred (325)
Loss on sale, net of direct costs $ (1,125)
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Leases [Abstract
arter Ended Nine Months Ended
Components Of Lease Expense g: teﬁfbe‘r‘ 390 see tgll:lbesr 3'6 e
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Lease cost
Finance lease cost:
Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 10 $ 8 $ 31 $ 23
Interest on lease liabilities 1 — 4 1
Operating lease cost 7,585 8,076 23,723 24,287
Variable lease cost 638 72! 499 1,377
Total lease cost $ 8234 $§ 8806 $ 24,257 $ 25,688
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Related To Leases Nine Months Ended
September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Cash flows relating to lease cost
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of
lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows for finance leases $ 33 % 26
Operating cash flows for operating leases 20,511 24,944
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operating lease liabilities 3,866
Supplemental Balance Sheet Information Related To Leases September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024

1,578

December 31,
2023

Operating leases

Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 170,549 $ 181,542
Operating lease liabilities - current portion 22,182 23,047
Operating lease liabilities - non-current portion 170,127 180,898
Total operating lease liabilities $ 192,309 $ 203,945
Finance leases
Property plant and equipment, gross 234 232
Accumulated depreciation (182) (177)
Property plant and equipment, net $ 52 $ 55
Other current liabilities 42 40
Other long-term liabilities 12 43
Total finance lease liabilities S 54 $ 83
Other information
Weighted-average remaining lease term - finance leases 1 2
Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 11 11
Weighted-average discount rate - finance leases 7.07% 7.07%
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 4.74% 4.62%
i Operatin Finance
Maturity Of Leases As Lessee (Dollars in thousands) Feases leases
2024 $ 30,862 $ 44
2025 29,623 11
2026 27,239 —
2027 23,460 —
2028 21,834 —
Thereafter 113,572 —
Total lease payments $ 246,590 $ 55
Less imputed interest (54,281) [69)
Total $ 192,309 $ 54
uarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Components Of Lease Income (S)e e e 30, o e 0
(Dollars in 2024 2023 2024 2023
Ci s of lease i
Lease payments $ 2,781 2,834 $ 8,186 $ 8,271
Variable lease payments 178 288 600 18
Total lease income $ 2959 $ 3,122 $ 8786 $ 8,889
Book Value Of Assets Under Operating Leases From Owned Assets September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Building and improvements
Gross balance $ 117,675 $ 127,222
Accumulated depreciation (22,442) (23,270)
Net Book Value $ 95,233 $ 103,952
i Operatin
Maturity Of Leases As Lessor Dollars in thousands) Hloases
2024 $ 2,214
2025 8,874
2026 7,334
2027 6,517
2028 6,548
Thereafter 21,384
Total $ 52,871
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Goodwill And Intangible 9 Months Ended
Assets (Tables) Sep. 30, 2024
Goodwill And Intangible Assets [Abstract
Summary Of Goodwill (Dollars in thousands) Cinema _ Real Estate Total
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 20,311 $ 5,224 §$ 25,535
Foreign currency translation adjustment 180 180

Balance at September 30, 2024 $ 20,491 $ 5,224 $ 25,715

Summary Of Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill

As of September 30, 2024
ther
Beneficial ~ Trade  Intangible

(Dollars in thousands) Leases ame sets Total
Gross carrying amount $ 10,458 $ 9,024 $ 4,410 $ 23,892
Less: Accumulated amortization (10,288) (8,067) (3,696) (22,051)
Net intangible assets other than
goodwill $ 170 $ 957 $ 714 s 1,841
As of December 31, 2023
il
Beneficial Trade lntangeil‘;le
(Dollars in thousands) Leases Name sets Total
Gross carrying amount $ 11,283 $ 9,024 $ 4,400 $ 24,707
Less: Accumulated amortization (11,089) (7,961) (3,611)  (22,661)
Less: Impairments = = (8) (8)
Net intangible assets other than
goodwill $ 194 $ 1,063 $ 781 $ 2,038
Summary Of Amortization Expense Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Beneficial lease amortization $ 21 $ 21 $ 64 $ 43
Other amortization 60 129 143 182
Total intangible assets
amortization $ 81 $ 150 $ 207 $ 225
XML 51 R34.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Investments In 9 Months Ended
Unconsolidated Joint
Ventures (Tables) Sep. 30, 2024
Investments In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures [Abstract
Summary Of The Investments In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures And Entities . September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, Interest 2024 2023
Rialto Cinemas 50.0% $ 727 $ 848
Mt. Gravatt 33.3% 3,567 3,908
Total investments $ 4,294 $ 4,756
Summary Of Equity Earnings (Losses) From Investments In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures Nine Months
Quarter Ended Ended
September 30, _September 30
(Dollars in thousands, 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rialto Cinemas $ (7)$ 25 §$(149) 8 (14)
Mt. Gravatt 142 192 3 457

Total equity earnings $ 71 $ 217 $ 164 $ 443
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Prepaid And Other Assets 9 Months Ended
(Tables) Sep. 30, 2024
Prepaid And Other Assets [Abstract
Summary Of Prepaid And Other Assets

September 30, December 31,

Balance,
Net()

27,339
16,195
20,775

7,710
46,980

69,195
13,851

(Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023
Prepaid and other current assets
Prepaid expenses $ 1,239 $ 1,813
Prepaid taxes 559 802
Income taxes receivable 400 —
Deposits 312 249
Investments in marketable securities 18 17
Total prepaid and other current assets $ 2,528 $ 2,881
Other non-current assets
Other non-cinema and non-rental real estate assets 674 674
Investment in Reading International Trust I 838 838
Straight-line rent asset 7,415 7,445
Long-term deposits 11 8
Total other non-current assets $ 8,938 8,965
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Borrowings (Tables) 9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024
Borrowings [Abstract
Summary Of Borrowings
As of September 30, 2024
Contractual Balance,
(Dollars in thousands) Maturity Date Facility Gross
Denominated in USD
Trust Preferred Securities (US) April 30, 2027 $ 27,913 $ 27,913 $
Bank of America Credit Facility (US) August 18, 2025 16,250 16,250
Cinemas 1, 2, 3 Term Loan (US) @ October 1, 2024 20,775 20,775
Minetta & Orpheum Theatres Loan (US) June 1, 2025 7,742 7,742
Union Square Financing (US) May 6, 2025 55,000 47,141
Denominated in foreign currency ("FC") (3)
NAB Corporate Term Loan (AU) July 31, 2026 69,340 69,340
March 31, 2025
NAB Bridge Facility (AU) 13,868 13,868
Westpac Bank Corporate (NZ) January 1, 2025 11,988 11,988

11,988

Stated

Interest Rate

9.52%
11.00%
8.75%
7.00%
12.54%

6.10%

6.12%
7.95%

Effective
Interest
Rate

9.52%
11.00%
8.75%
7.00%
12.54%

6.10%

6.12%
7.95%
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Schedule Of Long-term Debt Instruments

(Dollars in thousands)
Denominated in USD
rust Preferred Securities (US

(
(2
¢

Lrs

Net of doferred financing costs amounting to $1.0 million,
This financing facility was extended after September 30, 2
The contractual facilities and outstanding balances of the forelgn currency denominated borrowings were translated into U.S. dollars based on the applicable exchange rates as

of September 30, 2024.

$ 222876 $

215,017 $ 214,033

As of December 31, 2023

Cinemas 1, 2,

)
Bank of America Credlt Faclhty (US)(3)
Term L US)

Minetta & Orpheum Theatres Loan (US)

U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan (US)
Union Square Financing (US)
Purchase Money Promissory Not

Denominated in foreign curren
NAB Corporate Term Loan (Al

Westpac Bank Corporate lNZ)
Total

Net Of The Deferred

Financing Costs
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Other Liabilities
(Tables)

Other Liabilities [Abstract
Summary Of Other Liabilities Including Pension
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Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income

(Tables)

(1)
(2)

(3)

3’ (“FC")(Z)

Net of deferred financing costs amounting to $1.5 million.
The contractual facilities and outstanding balances of the foreign currency denominated borrowings were translated into U.S. dollars based on the applicable exchange rates as

of December 31,

Thls financing facility was extended after December 31, 2023.

Balance Sheet Caption (Dollars in thousands)
Debt - current portion
Debt - long-term portion
Subordinated debt - current portion
Subordinated debt - long-term portion
Total borrowings

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

(Dollars in thousands)

Current liabilities
Lease liability

Accrued pension
Security deposit payable
Finance lease liabilities
Other

Other current liabilities

Other liabilities

Lease make-good provision

Accrued pension

Deferred rent liability

Environmental reserve

Acquired leases

Finance lease liabilities
Other non-current

liabilities

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income [Abstract
Summary Of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
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Non-controlling Interests

(Tables)
Non-controllin:

Interests
Components Of Non-controlling Interests

(Dollars in thousands)

A 775
3 218,159 $ 210,300 § 208 847

Jecempber 52, <0

September 30,
2024

Stated Tffective

Contractual Balance, Balance, Interest Interest
Maturity Date Facility Gross Net® Rate Rate
April 30, 2027 $ 27,913 $ 27,913 $ 27,172 9.65% 9.65%
September 4, 2024 20,200 20,200 20,080 11.00% 11.00%
October 1, 2024 21,008 21,008 20,780 8.84% 8.84%
June 1,3024 8,000 8,000 8,000 8.34% 48&4‘7/"/»/
Japuary 1, 2027 8,401 8,401 8,356  4.64%/4.44% 4.44%
6, 2024 55,000 47,141 46,925 12.53% 12.53%
September 18, 2024 586 586 586 5.00% 5.00%
July 31, 2025 68,276 68,276 68173 6.11% 6.11%
January 1, 2025 8,77 8,77 8.20% 8.20%

December 31,
2023

September 30, December 31,
2024 2023

$ 5,900 $ 5,900
493 684

119 74

42 40

34 3.
§_e5e85 67t

Balance at January 1, 2024

Change related to derivatives

Comprehensive Income

comprehensive income

(loss)

$ 52,624 $ 34,484
134,070 146,605

= 586

27,339 27,172

$ 214,033 $ 208,847

6,239 6,050
2,450 2,646
2,610 1,314
1,656 1,656
— 2
12 43
12,967 $ 11,711
9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024
Unrealized
Gain (Losses)
Foreign on Available- Accrued Hedge
Currency for- ension Accounting
Items Investments Service Costs Reserve Total
$ (986) $ (18) $ (1,669) $ — 8 (2,673)
Total change in hedge fair value recorded in Other
— — (269) (269)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
Net change related to derivatives — — — (269) (269)
Net current-period other comprehensive income
(44) [€9) 156 (269) (158)
Balance at September 30, 2024 $ (1,030) $ 19) $ (1,513) $ (269) $ (2,831)
9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Components Of Income/(Loss) Attributable To Non-controlling Interest

Summary Of Changes In Controlling And Non-controlling Stockholders’
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Stock-Based Compensation

And Stock Repurchase
(Tables)

Stock-Based Compensation And Stock Repurchase [Abstract
Schedule Of Stock Options Outstanding And Exercisable

(Dollars in thousands)

September 30,
2024

December 31,
2023

Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd $ 108 $ 76
Shadow View Land and Farming, LLC (2) (2)
Sutton Hill Properties, LLC (675) (165)
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries $ (569) $ 91)
Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 023 2024 2023
Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd 25 $
Shadow View Land and Farming, LLC — 1 — 1
Sutton Hill Properties, LLC (150) (€19) (511) (422)
Net income (loss) attributable to rolling
interests $ (111) $ (65) $ (481) $ (361)
Equity Common Stock Retained Accumulated Reading
ClassA [ ClassA [ ClassB [ ClassB | Addltional ~ Earnings Other International Inc. Total
Vn‘l)ll;q Par Voting Par Paid-In Treasury Ci
(Dollars in thousands, except
shares) Shares | Value | Shares | Value Capital __ Deficit) __Shares _Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
At January 1, 2024 20,664 _$ 237 1681 s 17§ 155402 § (79489)% (40,407 2673) s 33,087 § ©DS 32,99
Net income (loss) — — — — (13,228) — — (13,228) (175) (13,403)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - - = = = (2,538) (2,538) ®) (2,541)
Share-based compensation expense — — — 678 — — 678 - 678
Restricted Stock Units — = 2) — — = 2) - 2)
At March 31, 2024 20,673 s 237 1681 8 17 1 $ 156,078 ¢ (92,717)$ (40,407) S (5,211) $ 17,997 $ (269) $ 17,728
Net income = - = = ©,341) = — ©,341) (195) (9,536)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - — - 886 886 1 887
Share-based compensation expense - - - - 456 - - - 456 456
Restricted Stock Units 1 — — (5) — — — “) - “)
At June 30, 2024 20,743 $ 238 1681 17 [ $ 156,529 $ (102,058)$ (40,407) $ (4,325) $ 9,994 § (463) $ 9,531
Net income — — — — (6,916) — — (6,916) (a11) (7,027)
Other comprehensive income, net - - — — — 1,494 1,494 5 1,499
Share-based expense_ — — — — 603 — — — 603 — 603
‘At September 30, 2024 20,743 § 238 1681 $ 17 |$ 157132 $ (108974)$ (40407) $ (283D 5175 % (569) s 4,606
Common Stock Retained Accumulated Reading
Clhalss A Class A Class B Class B Additional  Earnings Other International Inc. Total
Vo;‘i?mg Par Voting Par Paid-In Treasury Ci 1 3
{DnIIaN in thousands, except
shares) Shares | Value | Shares | value Capital __ Deficit) __Shares _Income (Loss) Equity Interests quity
At fanary 77095 20412 _$ 235 1,681 $ 153784 5 (48,816)s (40407) s  (1,057) 62,856 § 235 63279
Net income (loss) - — — — (11,111) — — (11,111) (213) (11,324)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - - - (1,293) (1,293) [} 1,294
Share-based compensation expense — — — 443 — — 443 — 443
Restricted Stock Units — — — a32) — — — (132) — (132)
At March 31, 2023 20,501 8 235 1681 S 17 [ $ 154095 $ (59,927)$ (40,407) $ (3,250) $ 50,763 $ 209 $ 50,972
Net income — — — — (2,778) — — (2,778) (83) (2,861)
Other comprehensive income, net — — - — - - (740) (740) ) (741)
Share-based compensation expense - - - 308 - - 308 - 308
Restricted Stock Units 92 1 — a3 — — 12) — 12)
At June 30, 2023 20,593 $236 1,681 s 17 | $ 154290 $ (62,705 $ (40,407) $ (3,990) $ 47,441 $ 125 ¢ 47,566
Net income - - - — (4,400) - — (4,400) (65) (4,465)
Other comprehensive income, net - - - - - - (1,657) (1,657) @) (1,660)
Share-based compensation expense - - - 614 - - 614 - 614
Restricted Stock Units 0 - — - — — - - B
At September 30, 2023 20,593_$236 1,681 s 17 | § 154,904 § (67.105)$ (40407) §  (5647) § 41,998 § 578 42,055

9 Months Ended

Sep.

Balance - December 31, 2022

Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

Balance - December 31, 2023

Granted
Exercised

30, 2024

Outstanding Stock Options - Class A Shares
—q_bh_d—wug tel

Average

Remaining
Weighted Years of  Aggregate
Number Average  Contractual  Intrinsic
of Options Exercise Price Life Value
ClassA__ _ ClassA __ _ClassA _ _ ClassA
327,498 $ 15.87 124 $
207,657 1.92 — —
(122,376) — — —
412,779 $ 14.19 1.79 $ —
1.47 — —

1,264,603
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Forfeited (205,122)

Balance - September 30, 2024 1,472,260 $ 1.66 9.61 $ —

Summary Of Restricted Stock Units Granted Restricted Stock Units
RSU Grants (in units) Vested, Unvested, Forfeited,
Total 30, 30, 30,
Grant Date Directors Management __Grants 2024 2024 2024
Opening balance 216,804 793,353 1,010,157 895,995 49,858 64,305
December 8, 2021 48,951 = 48,951 48,951 = —
April 18, 2022 — 428,899 428,899 151,033 230,601 47,265
December 15, 2022 73,683 = 73,683 73,683 = =
April 11, 2023 — 413,536 413,536 146,714 257,790 9,032
April 21, 2023 — 237,719 237,719 79,328 149,866 8,525
April 28, 2023 — 20,427 20,427 5,109 15,318 —
Total 339,438 1,893,934 2,233,372 1,400,813 703,433 129,127
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Hedge A i (Tables) 9 Months Ended
ledge Accountin ables
9 9 Sep. 30, 2024
Hedge Accounting [Abstract
Schedule Of Derivative Instruments On The Balance Sheet At Fair Liability Derivatives
Value September 30, December 31,
2024 2023
(Dollars in thousands) Balance sheet location Fair value Balance sheet location Fair value
Derivative fi ial insts ts - it Derivative fi ial inst ts - t
Interest rate contracts pg;:x)ﬂn ive financial instruments - curren $ _ erivative financial instruments %\;{?& $ |
Derivative financial instruments - non-current 269  Derivative financial instruments - non-current _
portion portion
Total derivati desi ted as hedgi:
el o dlistied e Bty s 269 s _
Total derivatives $ 269 $ =
Schedule Of Changes in Fair value }:ggggnogfg-ggmgxgnimd in Amount of Loss (Gain) Recognized in Income on Derivatives
Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
2024 2023 2024 2023
Interest rate contracts Interest expense = $ — 8 812
Total S = 8 C s = 3
Summary Of Hedged Transactions That Affect Earnings Loss (Gain) Recognized in OCI on Derivatives (Effective Portion)
(Dollars in thousands) Amount mount
Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
2024 2023 2024 2023
Interest rate contracts $ 167 § = 3 $ 2
Total $ 167 $ = 8 269 § 2
Loss (Gain) Reclassified from OCI into Income (Effective Portion)
Tine Item Amount mount
Quarter Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
2024 2023 2024 2023
Interest expense $ = 3 ( $ — 3 (812
Total $ = 8 (26 $ - 8 (812)
XML 59 R42.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Fair Value Measurements 9 Months Ended
(Tables) Sep. 30, 2024
Fair Value Measurements [Abstract
Schedule Of Fair Value Carried At Cost And Measured On A Nonrecurring Basis Fair Value Measurezrggzt at September 30,
Carrying
(Dollars in thousands) Value®  levell _Level2 _ Level3 Total
Notes payable $ 187,104 $ — % — $187,382 $ 187,382
Subordinated debt 27,913 — — 27,771 27,771
$215,017 $ — $ — $215,153 $215,153
Fair Value Measurement at December 31,
2023
Carrying
(Dollars in thousands) ValueW  levell _Level2 _ Level3 Total
Notes payable $ 181,801 $ — $ — $148,325 $ 148,325
Subordinated debt 28,499 — — 27,832 27,832
$210,300 $ -3 — $176,157 $176,157

(1) These balances are presented before any deduction for deferred
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Description Of Business 3 Months Ended
And Segment Reporting
(Summary Of Results Of
Operations For Principal
Business Segments)
(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Segment Reporting, Reconciling Item for Operating Profit (Loss) from Segment to Consolidated [Line Items
Revenue $ 60,090 $ 66,563
Segment operating income (loss (246) 1,019
Operating Segments [Member]
Segment Reporting, Reconciling Item for Operating Profit (Loss) from Segment to Consolidated [Line Items
Revenue 60,090 66,562
Segment operating income (loss 3,705 5,315
Inter-segment Elimination [Member
Segment Reporting, Reconciling Item for Operating Profit (Loss) from Segment to Consolidated [Line Items
Revenue (1,165) (1,181)
Cinema Exhibition [Member Operating Segments [Member

Segment Reporting, Reconciling Item for Operating Profit (Loss) from Segment to Consolidated [Line Items

Revenue 56,357 62,687
Segment operating income (loss 2,309 4,395
Real Estate [Member] | Operating Segments [Member]
Segment Reporting, Reconciling Item for Operating Profit (Loss) from Segment to Consolidated [Line Items
Revenue 4,898 5,056
Segment operating income (loss $ 1,396 $ 920
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Description Of Business 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended

And Segment Reporting
(Reconciliation To Net
Income Attributable To
Common Shareholders)
(Details) - USD (%)
$ in Thousands

Segment Reporting Information [Line Items

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Segment operating income (loss) $ (246) $ 1,019 $ (12,127) $ (5,073)
Depreciation and amortization expense (3,926) (4,580) (12,142) (13,908)
General and administrative expense (4,933) (5,405) (15,626) (15,693)
Equity earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 71 217 164 443

Gain (loss) on sale of assets (208) (1,324)

Other income (expense (715) 267 (592) 356
Income (loss) before income taxes (6,327) (3,569) (29,645) (18,337)

Operating Segments [Member

Segment Reporting Information [Line Items

Segment operating income (loss 3,705 5,315 106 7,468
Unallocated Corporate Expense [Member

Segment Reporting Information [Line Items

Depreciation and amortization expense (106) (172) (305) (527)
General and administrative expense (3,845) (4,124) (11,928) (12,014)

Interest expense, net $ (5,229) $ (5,072) $ (15,766) $ (14,063)
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Liquidity And Impairment 9 Months Ended
Assessment (Details) -
usb (%) Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023 Sep. 30, 2023
$ in Thousands
Impact Of Covid [Line Items]

financing costs.

9 Months Ended

$ 151,951
(12,127)

151,951
106

(3,463)

140,570
(3,128)

14,844
$ 3,234

$ 177,425
(5,073)

177,425
7,468

(3,644)

165,731
4,256

15,338
$ 3,212

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
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Debt carrying amount $ 215,017 $ 210,300

Borrowings due 214,033 208,847

Debt current 52,600

Cash and cash equivalents 10,083 12,906 $ 11,925
Working capital (80,500)

Land and property held for sale 37,895 11,179

Impairment charges against sites 0

Union Square Construction Financing [Member
Impact Of Covid [Line Items]

Debt carrying amount 47,141 47,141
Borrowings due 46,980 46,925

Westpac Bank Corporate Credit Facility [Member
Impact Of Covid [Line Items]

Debt carrying amount 11,988 8,775
Borrowings due 11,988 $ 8,775
Debt current 12,000

NAB Corporate Loan Facility [Member
Impact Of Covid [Line Items]

Borrowings due 69,300
Bridge loan 13,900

Santander Bank [Member
Impact Of Covid [Line Items]

Debt current $ 7,700
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Operations In Foreign 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended
Currency (Summary Of
Currency Exchange Rates) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Dec. 31, 2023
(Details)

Australian Dollar [Member] | Spot Rate [Member]

Currency Exchange Rates [Line Items

Foreign currency exchange rate 0.6934 0.6451 0.6934 0.6451 0.6828
Australian Dollar [Member Average Rate [Member

Currency Exchange Rates [Line Items

Foreign currency exchange rate 0.6700 0.6551 0.6621 0.6691 0.6647
New Zealand Dollar [Member] | Spot Rate [Member]

Currency Exchange Rates [Line Items

Foreign currency exchange rate 0.6363 0.6013 0.6363 0.6013 0.6340
New Zealand Dollar [Member Average Rate [Member

Currency Exchange Rates [Line Items

Foreign currency exchange rate 0.6117 0.6053 0.6098 0.6179 0.6145
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Earnings Per Share 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
(Narrative) (Details) -
shares Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line Items]

Awards excluded from diluted earnings (loss) per share 207,657 205,122 207,657 205,122
Class A [Member

Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line Items

Shares repurchased plan, shares 0 0
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Earnings Per Share 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
(Computation Of Basic And
Diluted Earnings (Loss)
Per Share) (Details) -
usp ($) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
$ / shares in Units, $ in
Thousands
Earnings Per Share [Abstract]

Net income (loss) attributable to Reading International, Inc. $ (6,916) $ (4,400) $ (29,485) $ (18,289)

Weighted average number of common stock — basic 22,426,184 22,273,423 22,394,385 22,208,757
Weighted average dilutive impact of awards 776,008 1,240,292 871,190 1,240,292
Weighted average number of common stock — diluted 23,202,192 23,513,715 23,265,575 23,449,049
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (0.20) $ (1.32) $ (0.82)
Awards excluded from diluted earnings (loss er share 207,657 205,122 207,657 205,122
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1 Months Ended 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
Property And Equipment Jun. 30, Ma23192341, J";ézge’ May 31, Sep. 30, Sep. 30, Sep. 30, Sep. 30, Feb. 23,
(Narrative) (Details) 2024 usp ($) usp ($) 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024
usD (%) a ftz usb (%) usb ($) USD ($) usb (%) usD ($) usD (%)

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Depreciation expense for operating property
3,900,000 4,500,000 11,900,000 13,800,000

Disposal Group, Disposed of by Sale, Not Discontinued Operations [Member 2483 Trenton Avenue
Williamsport Pennsylvania [Member
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Book value $ 460,000

Disposal Group, Disposed of by Sale, Not Discontinued Operations [Member 2483 Trenton Avenue

Williamsport Pennsylvania [Member Land [Member

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Area of Land | ft? 18,000

Property book value adjustment $0

Disposal Group, Disposed of by Sale, Not Discontinued Operations [Member Culver City Los Angeles

Member

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Sale price $ $
8,300,000 10,000,000.0

Disposal Group, Held-for-Sale, Not Discontinued Operations [Member Culver City Los Angeles [Member

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Adjustment to sale price 0

Book value ¢
10,800,000

Disposal Group, Held-for-Sale, Not Discontinued Operations [Member Cannon Park ETC [Member
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Book value $
19,500,000
Area of Land | a 9.4
Property book value adjustment $0
Disposal Group, Held-for-Sale, Not Discontinued Operations [Member Courtenay Central ETC [Member

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Book value

$
16,500,000
Property book value adjustment 0
Disposal Group, Held-for-Sale, Not Discontinued Operations [Member Rotorua Cinema Building [Member
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Book value 1,500,000
Property book value adjustment $0
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Property And Equipment
(Schedule Of Property And

Equipment) (Details) - Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

usb (%)
$ in Thousands

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
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Total cost $ 426,550
Less: accumulated depreciation (201,485)
Operating properties, net 225,065

Land [Member

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Total cost

Building And Improvements [Member]
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Total cost

Leasehold Improvements [Member

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Total cost

Fixtures And Equipment [Member

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Total cost

Construction-In-Progress [Member]
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Total cost
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Property And Equipment

(Summary Of Investment
And Development Property)

(Details)
$ in Thousands

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Investment and development property
Land [Member
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Investment and development propert
Construction-In-Progress (Including Capitalized Interest
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items

Investment and development property
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Property And Equipment
(Construction-In-Progress

Balance) (Details) -

48,826

172,396

51,133

152,223

$ 1,972

Operating And Investing Sep. 30, 2
Properties [Member] usp ($)
$ in Thousands
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Balance $ 9,223
Additions during the period 719
Completed during the period (1,087)
Transferred to Held for Sale (6,571)
Foreign currency translation (312)
Balance 1,972
Courtenay Central Development [Member]
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Balance 6,412
Transferred to Held for Sale (6,089)
Foreign currency translation (323)
Cinema Developments And Improvements [Member
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Balance 1,658
Additions during the period 230
Completed during the period (207)
Transferred to Held for Sale (60)
Foreign currency translation 2
Balance 1,623
Other Real Estate Projects [Member
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items
Balance 1,153
Additions during the period 489
Completed during the period (880)
Transferred to Held for Sale (422)
Foreign currency translation 9
Balance $ 349
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Property And Equipment
(Loss On Sale Of

Property) (Details) - Los Sep. 30, 2024

Angeles [Member] usb (£
$ in Thousands

Real Estate Properties [Line Items
Sales price $ 10,000
Net book value (10,800)
Loss on sale, gross of direct costs (800)
Direct sale costs incurred (325)
Loss on sale, net of direct costs $ (1,125)
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Leases (Narrative)
(Details)

Minimum [Member
Operating Leased Assets [Line Items]
Remaining lease term
Maximum [Member
Operating Leased Assets [Line Items
Remaining lease term
Renewal term 20 years
Real Estate [Member] | Minimum [Member]
Operating Leased Assets [Line Items
Lease term of contract
Real Estate
Operating Leased Assets [Line Items]
Lease term of contract
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Leases (Components Of

Lease Expense) (Details)

Sep. 30, 2024

1 year

25 years

1 year

Member Maximum [Member

20 years

3 Months Ended

- USD (%) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30
$ in Thousands

Leases [Abstract
Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 10 $ 8
Interest on lease liabilities 1
Operating lease cost 7,585 8,076
Variable lease cost 638 722
Total lease cost $ 8,234 $ 8,806
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Leases (Supplemental Cash

Flow Information Related

To Leases) (Details) -

usp ($)
$ in Thousands

Leases [Abstract
Operating cash flows for finance leases

$ 480,346
(217,929)
262,417

61,095

205,821

53,984

155,156

$ 4,290

Dec. 31, 2023
usp ($)

$ 8,789

3,856
Member

$ 4,933

9 Months Ended

024

9 Months Ended

, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

$ 31 $ 23

4 1

23,723 24,287
499 1,377

$ 24,257 $ 25,688

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
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Operating cash flows for operating leases 20,511 24,944
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 3,866 $ 1,578
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Leases (Supplemental
Balance Sheet Information
Related To Leases) Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Leases [Abstract
Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 170,549 $ 181,542
Operating lease liabilities - current portion 22,182 23,047
Operating lease liabilities - non-current portion 170,127 180,898
Total operating lease liabilities 192,309 203,945
Property plant and equipment, gross 234 232
Accumulated depreciation (182) (177)
Property plant and equipment, net 52 55
Other current liabilities 42 40
Other long-term liabilities 12 43
Total finance lease liabilities $ 54 $ 83
Weighted-average remaining lease term - finance leases 1 year 2 years
Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 11 years 11 years
Weighted-average discount rate - finance leases 7.07% 7.07%
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 4.74% 4.62%
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Leases (Maturity Of
('l;:‘t’:‘i*,fs‘)‘s_'ﬁ;;e‘:;) Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
$ in Thousands
Leases [Abstract
Operating leases, 2024 $ 30,862
Operating leases, 2025 29,623
Operating leases, 2026 27,239
Operating leases, 2027 23,460
Operating leases, 2028 21,834
Operating leases, Thereafter 113,572
Operating leases, Total lease payments 246,590
Operating leases, Less imputed interest (54,281)
Total operating lease liabilities 192,309 $ 203,945
Finance leases, 2024 44
Finance leases, 2025 11
Finance leases, Total lease payments 55
Finance leases, Less imputed interest (1)
Total finance lease liabilities $ 54 $ 83
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Leases (Components Of 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
Lease Income) (Details) -
usb (%) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
$ in Thousands
Leases [Abstract
Lease payments $ 2,781 $ 2,834 $ 8,186 $ 8,271
Variable lease payments 178 288 600 618
Total lease income $ 2,959 $ 3,122 $ 8,786 $ 8,889
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Leases (Book Value Of
Assets Under Operating
Leases From Owned Assets) Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Property Subject to or Available for Operating Lease [Line Items]

Gross balance $ 426,550
Accumulated depreciation (201,485)
Operating properties, net 225,065

Building And Improvements [Member]
Property Subject to or Available for Operating Lease [Line Items

Gross balance 117,675
Accumulated depreciation (22,442)
Operating properties, net $ 95,233
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Leases (Maturity Of
Leases As Lessor) Sep. 30, 2024
(Details) UsD (%)
$ in Thousands
Leases [Abstract

2024 $ 2,214
2025 8,874
2026 7,334
2027 6,517
2028 6,548
Thereafter 21,384
Total $ 52,871
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Goodwill And Intangible
Assets (Narrative) Sep. 30, 2024
(Details)
Trade Name [Member
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Intangible assets estimated useful life 30 years
Other Intangible Assets [Member]
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items
Intangible assets estimated useful life 30 years
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Goodwill And Intangible 9 Months Ended
Assets (Summary Of
Goodwill) (Details) Sep. 30, 2024
$ in Thousands usb ($)
Goodwill [Line Items
Beginning balance $ 25,535
Foreign currency translation adjustment 180
Ending balance 25,715
Cinema [Member
Goodwill [Line Items
Beginning balance 20,311
Foreign currency translation adjustment 180
Ending balance 20,491
Real Estate [Member
Goodwill [Line Items
Beginning balance 5,224

Ending balance $ 5,224
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Goodwill And Intangible
Assets (Summary Of
Intangible Assets Other
Than Goodwill) (Details)
- USD ($)
$ in Thousands

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

$ 480,346
(217,929)
262,417

127,222
(23,270)
$ 103,952


javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);

Gross carrying amount $ 23,892 $ 24,707

Less: accumulated amortization (22,051) (22,661)
Less: impairment (8)
Net intangible assets other than goodwill 1,841 2,038

Beneficial Leases [Member]
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items

Gross carrying amount 10,458 11,283
Less: accumulated amortization (10,288) (11,089)
Net intangible assets other than goodwill 170 194

Trade Name [Member
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]

Gross carrying amount 9,024 9,024
Less: accumulated amortization (8,067) (7,961)
Net intangible assets other than goodwill 957 1,063

Other Intangible Assets [Member]
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]

Gross carrying amount 4,410 4,400
Less: accumulated amortization (3,696) (3,611)
Less: impairment (8)
Net intangible assets other than goodwill $ 714 $ 781
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Goodwill And Intangible 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended

Assets (Summary Of

Amortization Expense)
(Details) - USD ($) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

$ in Thousands
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Intangible assets amortization $ 81 $ 150 $ 207 $ 225
Beneficial Lease Amortization [Member]
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items
Intangible assets amortization 21 21 64 43
Other Intangible Assets [Member
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Intangible assets amortization $ 60 $ 129 $ 143 $ 182
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Investments In
Unconsolidated Joint
Ventures (Narrative)
(Details) - item
Investments In Unconsolidated Joint Ventures [Abstract
Number of joint venture investments 2 2
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Investments In
Unconsolidated Joint
Ventures (Summary Of The
Investments In
Unconsolidated Joint
Ventures And Entities)
(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Schedule of Equity Method Investments [Line Items
Total investments $ 4,294 $ 4,756
Rialto Cinemas [Member
Schedule of Equity Method Investments [Line Items]
Interest 50.00%
Total investments $ 727 848
Mt. Gravatt [Member
Schedule of Equity Method Investments [Line Items]

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Interest 33.30%
Total investments $ 3,567 $ 3,908
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Investments In 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended

Unconsolidated Joint

Ventures (Summary Of
Equity Earnings (Losses)

From Investments In

Unconsolidated Joint
Ventures) (Details) - USD

($)
$ in Thousands

Schedule of Equity Method Investments [Line Items]
Total equity earnings $ 71 $ 217 $ 164 $ 443
Rialto Cinemas [Member
Schedule of Equity Method Investments [Line Items]
Total equity earnings (71) 25 (149) (14)
Mt. Gravatt [Member
Schedule of Equity Method Investments [Line Items

Total equity earnings $ 142 $ 192 $ 313 $ 457
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Prepaid And Other Assets
(Details) - USD (%) Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
$ in Thousands

Prepaid And Other Assets [Abstract]

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Prepaid expenses $ 1,239 $ 1,813
Prepaid taxes 559 802
Income taxes receivable 400

Deposits 312 249
Investments in marketable securities 18 17
Total prepaid and other current assets 2,528 2,881
Other non-cinema and non-rental real estate assets 674 674
Investment in Reading International Trust I 838 838
Straight-line rent asset 7,415 7,445
Long-term deposits 11 8
Total other non-current assets $ 8,938 $ 8,965
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. 9 Months Ended
Income Taxes (Details) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
Income Taxes [Abstract

Effective tax rate (1.10%) (1.70%)
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Borrowings (Bank Of 9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

America Credit Facility)

(Narrative) (Details) -

Bank Of America Credit Jan. 01, 2025Mar. 27, 2024 Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
Facility [Member] - USD

(%)

Debt Instrument [Line Items
Debt Instrument, Periodic Payment, Principal $ 275,000
Payment in kind interest rate 0.50%
Maturity date Aug. 18, 2025 Sep. 04, 2024
Scenario, Forecast [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Payment in kind interest rate 1.50%
Floor Rate [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Spread on variable rate 1.00%



javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);

Prime Rate [Member

Debt Instrument [Line Items

Spread on variable rate

XML 89 R72.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Borrowings (Minetta And
Orpheum Theatres Loan)
(Narrative) (Details) -

Minetta And Orpheum
Theatres Loan [Member] -
usp ($)
$ in Millions
Debt Instrument [Line Items]

9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Debt, face amount $ 8.0

Maturity date Jun. 01, 2025 Jun. 01, 2024
Debt balloon payment $ 7.7

Stated Interest Rate 7.00% 8.34%
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Borrowings (Cinema 1, 2,
3 Term Loan) (Narrative)
(Details)
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Debt Instrument, Variable Interest Rate

Sutton Hill Properties, LLC [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Ownership percentage by parent

US Cinema 1, 2, 3 Term Loan [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Interest rate

Debt Instrument Floor Interest Rate
XML 91 R74.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Borrowings (Union Square
Financing) (Narrative)
(Details)
$ in Millions
Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Debt Instrument, Variable Interest Rate, Type [Extensible Enumeration] us-gaap:SecuredOvernightFinancingRateSofrOvernightIndexSwapRateMember

Emerald Creek Capital [Member]

Debt Instrument [Line Items

Number of properties | propert

Debt Instrument, Face Amount | $

Maturity date

Spread on variable rate

Union Square Construction Financing [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Maturity date

Line of credit facility, term
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Borrowings (Purchase
Money Promissory Note)
(Narrative) (Details) -
usp ($)
$ in Millions

Purchase Money Promissory Note [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Maturity date
Interest rate
Payment to repurchase shares
Class A [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Shares repurchased plan, shares
Class A [Member] | Purchase Money Promissory Note [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Shares repurchased plan, shares

Payment to repurchase shares
XML 93 R76.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Borrowings (U.S.
Corporate Office Term
Loan) (Narrative)
(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Contractual facility
U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items

Contractual facility
XML 94 R77.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT

Borrowings (Westpac Bank
Corporate Credit Facility
(NZ)) (Narrative)
(Details)
$ in Thousands, $ in
Millions
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Contractual facility
Westpac Bank Corporate Credit Facilit
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Increase in contractual facility amount
Contractual facility
Maturity date
Interest rate
Westpac Bank Corporate Credit Facilit
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Interest rate
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Borrowings (Australian
NAB Corporate Term Loan
(AU)) (Narrative)
(Details) - AUD ($)
$ in Millions
NAB Guarantee Facility [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Line of credit facility, maximum borrowing capacity
Maturity date
Australian NAB Corporate Loan Facility Tier 3 [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Line of credit facility, maximum borrowing capacity
Spread on variable interest rate

5.00%
$ 3.5

407,000
$ 5.5

$ 222,876 $ 218,159

$ 8,400 $ 8,401

Membe r

Membe r Bank Bill Swa

9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Bid Rate

2.50%

9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024

Type [Extensible Enumeration] us-gaap:SecuredOvernightFinancingRateSofrOvernightIndexSwapRateMember

75.00%

3.50%
7.50%

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024
usb (%)
property

44

$ 55.0

May 06, 2025
6.90%

May 06, 2025
3 years

9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

Sep. 18, 2019 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Dec. 31, 2023

Sep. 18, 2024 Sep. 18, 2024

9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

Aug. 13, 2024 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
NZD ($) usb (%) NZD ($) usb ($)

$ 222,876 $ 218,159

$5.0
$ 18.8 $ 11,988 $ 13.8 $ 8,775

Jan. 01, 2025Jan. 01, 2025Jan. 01, 2025
2.40% 2.40%

Member

1.65% 1.65%

9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Jun. 28, 2024 Apr. 04, 2024

$ 20.0
Jul. 31, 2026

$ 100.0
1.75%

Australian NAB Corporate Loan Facility Tier 3 [Member] | Core Facility [Member]

Debt Instrument [Line Items

Line of credit facility, maximum borrowing capacity
Australian NAB Corporate Loan Facility Tier 3 [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Line of credit facility, maximum borrowing capacity
Australian NAB Bank Guarantee Facility Tier 3 [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items

Line of credit facility, maximum borrowing capacity

Revolvin

Credit Facilit

$ 40.0
Membe r

60.0

12 Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2023

May 06, 2024


javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);

Spread on variable interest rate

Maturity date

Debt amount under interest rate agreement
Interest rate collar transaction floor rate
Interest rate collar transaction cap rate
Corporate Loan Facility [Member

Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Line of credit facility, maximum borrowing capacity
Debt Instrument, Quarterly repayment

Bank Guarantee Facility [Member

Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Line of credit

National Australia Bank Bridge Facility [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Maturity date
XML 96 R79.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Borrowings (Summary Of
Borrowings) (Details)
$ in Thousands, $ in
Millions
Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Contractual Facility
Balance Gross

Balance Net

Deferred financing costs, net
Trust Preferred Securities [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Maturity Date

Contractual Facility

Balance Gross

Balance Net

Stated Interest Rate

Effective Interest Rate

Bank Of America Credit Facility [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Maturity Date

Contractual Facility

Balance Gross

Balance Net

Stated Interest Rate

Effective Interest Rate

US Cinema 1, 2, 3 Term Loan [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Maturity Date

Contractual Facility

Balance Gross

Balance Net

Stated Interest Rate

Effective Interest Rate

Minetta And Orpheum Theatres Loan [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items

Maturity Date

Contractual Facility

Balance Gross

Balance Net

Stated Interest Rate

Effective Interest Rate

U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items

Maturity Date

Contractual Facility

Balance Gross

Balance Net

Union Square Construction Financing [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Maturity Date

Contractual Facility

Balance Gross

Balance Net

Stated Interest Rate

Effective Interest Rate

Purchase Money Promissory Note [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Maturity Date

Contractual Facility

Balance Gross

Balance Net

Stated Interest Rate
Effective Interest Rate

NAB Australian Corporate Term Loan [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Maturity Date

Contractual Facility
Balance Gross

Balance Net

Stated Interest Rate
Effective Interest Rate

NAB Bridge Facility [Member
Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Maturity Date

Contractual Facility
Balance Gross

Balance Net

Stated Interest Rate
Effective Interest Rate
Westpac Bank Corporate Credit Facility [Member]
Debt Instrument [Line Items
Maturity Date

Contractual Facility
Balance Gross

Balance Net
Stated Interest Rate
Effective Interest Rate

Minimum [Member] | U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan [Member]

Debt Instrument [Line Items
Stated Interest Rate
Effective Interest Rate

Maximum [Member] | U.S. Corporate Office Term Loan [Member]

Debt Instrument [Line Items

1.90%
Jul. 31,

4.18%

4.78%

$ 100.0
1.5

Mar. 31,

9 Months Ended

2025
$ 50.0

2025

12 Months Ended

Aug. 13, 2024 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

NZD (%)

$ 18.8

usb ($) NZD ($)

$ 222,876
215,017
214,033
$ 1,000

Apr. 30, 2027 Apr. 30, 2027
$ 27,913

27,913

$ 27,339

9.52% 9.52%

9.52%

Aug. 18, 2025 Aug. 18, 2025
$ 16,250

16,250

$ 16,195

11.00% 11.00%
11.00%

Oct. 01, 2024 Oct. 01, 2024
$ 20,775

20,775

$ 20,775

8.75% 8.75%

8.75%

Jun. 01, 2025Jun. 01, 2025
$ 7,742

7,742

$ 7,710

7.00% 7.00%

7.00%

$ 8,400

May 06, 2025 May 06, 2025
$ 55,000

47,141

$ 46,980

12.54% 12.54%
12.54%

Sep. 18, 2024 Sep. 18, 2024

Jul. 31, 2026 Jul. 31, 2026
$ 69,340

69,340

$ 69,195

6.10% 6.10%

6.10%

Mar. 31, 2025Mar. 31, 2025
$ 13,868

13,868

$ 13,851

6.12% 6.12%

6.12%

Jan. 01, 2025Jan. 01, 2025

$ 11,988 $ 13.8
11,988

$ 11,988

7.95% 7.95%
7.95%

usp (%)

$ 218,159
210,300
208,847
$ 1,500

Apr. 30, 2027
$ 27,913
27,913

$ 27,172
9.65%

9.65%

Sep. 04, 2024
$ 20,200
20,200

$ 20,080
11.00%

11.00%

Oct. 01, 2024
$ 21,008
21,008

$ 20,780
8.84%

8.84%

Jun. 01, 2024
$ 8,000

8,000

$ 8,000
8.34%

8.34%

Jan. 01, 2027
$ 8,401
8,401

$ 8,356

May 06, 2024
$ 55,000
47,141

$ 46,925
12.53%
12.53%

Sep. 18, 2024
$ 586

586

$ 586

5.00%

5.00%

Jul. 31, 2025
$ 68,276
68,276

$ 68,173
6.11%

6.11%

Jan. 01, 2025
$ 8,775

8,775

$ 8,775
8.20%

8.20%

4.44%
4.44%
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Stated Interest Rate 4.64%
Effective Interest Rate 4.64%
XML 97 R80.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Borrowings (Schedule Of
Long-term Debt
Instruments, Net Of The
Deferred Financing Costs)
(Details) - USD (%)
$ in Thousands

Borrowings [Abstract

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Debt - current portion $ 52,624 $ 34,484
Debt - long-term portion 134,070 146,605
Subordinated debt - current portion 586
Subordinated debt - long-term portion 27,339 27,172
Total borrowings $ 214,033 $ 208,847
XML 98 R81.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Other Liabilities 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
(Narrative) (Details) -
UsD ($) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Other Liabilities [Abstract
Service cost $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest cost 40,000 47,000 126,000 146,000
Actuarial loss (gain 52,000 $ 52,000 156,000 $ 155,000
Accrued pension costs included in other liabilities $ 2,900,000 $ 2,900,000

XML 99 R82.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Other Liabilities
(Summary Of Other

Liabilities Including
Pension) (Details) - USD
($)
$ in Thousands

Pension And Other Liabilities [Abstract

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Lease liability $ 5,900 $ 5,900
Accrued pension 493 684
Security deposit payable 119 74
Finance lease liabilities 42 40
Other 34 33
Other current liabilities 6,588 6,731
Lease make-good provision 6,239 6,050
Accrued pension 2,450 2,646
Deferred rent liability 2,610 1,314
Environmental reserve 1,656 1,656
Acquired leases 2
Finance lease liabilities 12 43
Other non-current liabilities $ 12,967 $ 11,711
XML 100 R83.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Accumulated Other 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
Comprehensive Income
(Details) - USD ($) Sep. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2024 Mar. 31, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Jun. 30, 2023 Mar. 31, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

$ in Thousands

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) [Line Items

Balance $ 33,087 $ 33,087

Net change related to derivatives $ (171) $ (26) (269) $ (813)
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss 1,499 $ 887 (2,541) (1,660) $ (741) $ (1,294)

Balance 5,175 5,175

Foreign Currency Items [Member

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) [Line Items

Balance (986) (986)
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss) (44)
Balance (1,030) (1,030)

Unrealized Gain (Losses) On Available-For-Sale Investments [Member]

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) [Line Items

Balance (18) (18)
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss (1)
Balance (19) (19)

Accrued Pension Service Costs [Member

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) [Line Items

Balance (1,669) (1,669)
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss) 156
Balance (1,513) (1,513)

Hedge Accounting Reserve [Member]

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) [Line Items

Total change in hedge fair value recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (269)
Net change related to derivatives (269)
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss (269)
Balance (269) (269)

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) [Member

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) [Line Items

Balance (2,673) (2,673)
Total change in hedge fair value recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (269)
Net change related to derivatives (269)
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss) 1,494 $ 886 $ (2,538) $ (1,657) $ (740) $ (1,293) (158)
Balance $ (2,831) $ (2,831)

XML 101 R84.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Non-controlling Interests
(Narrative) (Details)
Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items
Ownership percentage by noncontrolling interest 25.00%
Shadow View Land And Farming, LLC [Member
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]
Ownership percentage by noncontrolling interest 50.00%
Sutton Hill Properties, LLC [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items
Ownership percentage by noncontrolling interest 25.00%
Sutton Hill Capital, LLC [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items
Ownership percentage by noncontrolling interest 50.00%
XML 162 R85.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Non-controlling Interests 9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended
(Components Of Non-
controlling Interests)
(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]
Net income (1loss) attributable to non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidiaries $ (569) $ (91)
Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidiaries 108 76
Shadow View Land And Farming, LLC [Member
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidiaries (2) (2)
Sutton Hill Properties, LLC [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items

Sep. 30, 2024

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
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Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidiaries $ (675) $ (165)

XML 103 R86.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Non-controlling Interests 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
(Components Of Income
Attributable To Non-
controlling Interest) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
(Details) - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries $ (111) $ (65) $ (481) $ (361)
Australian Country Cinemas, Pty Ltd [Member
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries 39 25 30 60
Shadow View Land And Farming, LLC [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries 1 1
Sutton Hill Properties, LLC [Member]

Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries $ (150) $ (91) $ (511) $ (422)
XML 104 R87.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Non-controlling Interests 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended

(Summary Of Changes In
Controlling And Non-
controlling Stockholders’
Equity) (Details) - USD Sep. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2024 Mar. 31, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Jun. 30, 2023 Mar. 31, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023
($)
$ in Thousands
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]

Balance $ (40,407) $ (40,407)

Balance $ 9,531 $ 17,728 32,996 $ 47,566 $ 50,972 $ 63,279 32,996 $ 63,279
Net income (loss (7,027) (9,536) (13,403) (4,465) (2,861) (11,324) (29,966) (18,650)
Other comprehensive income, net 1,499 887 (2,541) (1,660) (741) (1,294)

Share-based compensation expense 603 456 678 614 308 443

Restricted Stock Units (4) (2) (112) (132)

Balance 4,606 9,531 17,728 42,055 47,566 50,972 4,606 42,055
Balance (40,407) (40,407)

Additional Paid-In Capital [Member
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]

Balance 156,529 156,078 155,402 154,290 154,095 153,784 155,402 153,784
Share-based compensation expense 603 456 678 614 308 443

Restricted Stock Units (5) (2) (113) (132)

Balance 157,132 156,529 156,078 154,904 154,290 154,095 157,132 154,904

Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) [Member]

Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items

Balance (102,058) (92,717) (79,489) (62,705) (59,927) (48,816) (79,489) (48,816)
Net income (loss (6,916) (9,341) (13,228) (4,400) (2,778) (11,111)
Balance (108,974) (162,058) (92,717) (67,105) (62,705) (59,927) (108,974) (67,105)

Treasury Shares [Member

Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]

Balance (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407)
Balance (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407) (40,407)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) [Member

Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]

Balance (4,325) (5,211) (2,673) (3,990) (3,250) (1,957) (2,673) (1,957)
Other comprehensive income, net 1,494 886 (2,538) (1,657) (740) (1,293) (158)
Balance (2,831) (4,325) (5,211) (5,647) (3,990) (3,250) (2,831) (5,647)

Reading International Inc. Stockholders' Equity [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items

Balance 9,994 17,997 33,087 47,441 50,763 62,856 33,087 62,856
Net income (loss (6,916) (9,341) (13,228) (4,400) (2,778) (11,111)

Other comprehensive income, net 1,494 886 (2,538) (1,657) (740) (1,293)

Share-based compensation expense 603 456 678 614 308 443

Restricted Stock Units (4) (2) (112) (132)

Balance 5,175 9,994 17,997 41,998 47,441 50,763 5,175 41,998

Noncontrolling Interests [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items

Balance (463) (269) (91) 125 209 423 (91) 423
Net income (loss (111) (195) (175) (65) (83) (213)

Other comprehensive income, net 5 1 (3) (3) (1) (1)

Balance $ (569) (463) $ (269) 57 125 209 $ (569) 57

Class A [Member
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]

Balance, shares 20,666,516 20,666,516
Balance, shares 20,745,594 20,745,594

Class A [Member] | Common Stock Shares Outstanding [Member]
Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]

Balance $ 238 $ 237 $ 237 $ 236 $ 235 $ 235 $ 237 $ 235
Balance, shares 20,743,000 20,673,000 20,664,000 20,593,000 20,501,000 20,412,000 20,664,000 20,412,000
Restricted Stock Units $1 $1

Restricted Stock Units, shares 70,000 9,000 0] 92,000 89,000

Balance $ 238 $ 238 $ 237 $ 236 $ 236 $ 235 $ 238 $ 236
Balance, shares 20,743,000 20,743,000 20,673,000 20,593,000 20,593,000 20,501,000 20,743,000 20,593,000

Class B [Member

Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]

Balance, shares 1,680,590 1,680,590

Balance, shares 1,680,590 1,680,590

Class B [Member Common Stock Shares Qutstanding [Member

Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items]

Balance $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17

Balance, shares 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000

Balance $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17 $ 17

Balance, shares 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000 1,681,000

XML 105 R88.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT

Stock-Based Compensation 12 Months
And Stock Repu"r:hases 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended Ended
(Narrative) (Details) - Jun. 06, Dec. 07, Apr. 30, Sep. 30, Sep. 30, Sep. 30,

usb (%) 2024 2023 2021 2024 2023 2023

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Stock repurchase value $0 $0

Share conversion ratio

Number of Stock Options, Granted 0 0

Stock Option [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Compensation expense 302,000 $ 9,000 $ 466,000 $ 27,000

Unrecognized estimated compensation cost related to non-vested stock options granted 623,000 $ 623,000

Recognition period of unrecognized compensation cost 11 months 8
days

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Value of all options outstanding, vested and expected to vest

Share price $ 1.63
Minimum [Member] | 2626 Stock Incentive Plan [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Vesting period of stock options and RSU 1 year
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Maximum [Member] | 2020 Stock Incentive Plan [Member]
Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Vesting period of stock options and RSU
Class A [Member
Share-based C

ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Shares repurchased plan, shares
Number of Stock Options, Granted
2020 Stock Incentive Plan

Class A [Member Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Common Stock authorized for issuance 1,250,000
Additional shares authorized 971,807

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Compensation expense $ 302,000 $ 604,000
Unrecognized estimated compensation cost related to non-vested stock options granted $ 2,300,000
Vesting period of stock options and RSU

Number of options, Granted

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member] | Tranche One [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member] | Tranche Two [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member] | 2020 Stock Incentive Plan [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted

Executive Officer [Member Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Vesting period of stock options and RSU

Executive Officer [Member] | Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member] | Tranche One [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Award Vesting Rights 75.00%
Percentage

Executive Officer [Member] | Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member] | Tranche Two [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Award Vesting Rights 25.00%
Percentage

Directors [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Vesting period of stock options and RSU

Directors [Member] | Class A [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of Stock Options, Granted

Directors [Member] | Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted

Management [Member] | Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Vesting period of stock options and RSU

Percentage of shares vested

Number of options, Granted

Chief Executive Officer [Member Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Vesting period of stock options and RSU

Chief Executive Officer [Member] | Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member] | Tranche One

Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Award Vesting Rights 50.00%
Percentage

Chief Executive Officer [Member Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member Tranche Two

Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Award Vesting Rights 50.00%
Percentage

Senior Executives [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Vesting period of stock options and RSU

Senior Executives [Member] | Class A [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of Stock Options, Granted 1,264,603
XML 106 R89.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT

Stock-Based Compensation 9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

And Stock Repurchases
(Summary Of Stock Options
Outstanding And Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023 Dec. 31, 2022
Exercisable) (Details) -
$ / shares

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of Stock Options, Granted 0 0

Class A [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of Stock Options, Beginning balance 412,779 327,498

Number of Stock Options, Granted 1,264,603 207,657

Number of Stock Options, Forfeited (205,122) (122,376)

Number of Stock Options Outstanding, Ending balance 1,472,260 412,779 327,498
Weighted Average Exercise Price of Options Outstanding, Beginning price $ 14.19 $ 15.87

Weighted Average Exercise Price of Options Outstanding, Granted 1.47 1.92

Weighted Average Exercise Price of Options Outstanding, Ending price $ 1.66 $ 14.19 $ 15.87

Weighted Average Remaining Years of Contractual Life
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Stock-Based Compensation
And Stock Repurchases
(Schedule Of Restricted
Stock Units Issued And
Vested) (Details) -
Restricted Stock Units
(RSUs) [Member] - shares

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted
Number of options, Vesting
Number of options, Unvested
Number of options, Forfeited
Award Date 8 [Member
Share-based C ion Arr

t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted
Number of options, Vesting
Award Date 9 [Member
Share-based C ion Arr

t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted
Number of options, Vesting
Number of options, Unvested
Number of options, Forfeited

9 years 7 months 9 days 1 year 9 months 14 days 1 year 2 months 26 days

9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

2,233,372
1,400,813
703,433
129,127

1,010,157
895,995
49,858
64,305

48,951
48,951

428,899
151,033
230,601
47,265

4 years

0 0
1,264,603

1,250,000
15,048

$ 1,300,000

$ 2,300,000

1 year 25 days
2,233,372

$ 1,300,000

85,139

52,360

4 years

1 year

207,657

339,438

4 years
25.00%
1,893,934

4 years

10 years

207,657

1,010,157

216,804

793,353
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Award Date 10 [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 73,683
Number of options, Vesting 73,683
Award Date 11 [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 413,536
Number of options, Vesting 146,714
Number of options, Unvested 257,790
Number of options, Forfeited 9,032
Award Date 12 [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 237,719
Number of options, Vesting 79,328
Number of options, Unvested 149,866
Number of options, Forfeited 8,525
Award Date 13 [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 20,427
Number of options, Vesting 5,109
Number of options, Unvested 15,318
Directors [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 339,438 216,804
Directors [Member Award Date 8 [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 48,951
Directors [Member] | Award Date 16 [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 73,683
Management [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 1,893,934 793,353
Management [Member] | Award Date 9 [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 428,899
Management [Member Award Date 11 [Member

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 413,536
Management [Member] | Award Date 12 [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 237,719
Management [Member] | Award Date 13 [Member]

Share-based C ion Arr t by Share-based Payment Award [Line Items]

Number of options, Granted 20,427
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Hedge Accounting
(Narrative) (Details) - Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
usb (%)
Designated as Hedging Instrument [Member]
Derivative Instruments, Gain (Loss) [Line Items
Notional amount $ 34,700,000 $ 0
XML 109 R92.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Hedge Accounting
(Schedule 0Of Derivative
Instruments On The Sep. 30, 2024
Balance Sheet At Fair usp ($)
Value) (Details)
$ in Millions
Derivatives, Fair Value [Line Items
Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ 269
Designated as Hedging Instrument [Member
Derivatives, Fair Value [Line Items]
Derivative financial instruments - non-current portion 269
Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ 269
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Hedge Accounting 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
(Schedule 0f Changes in

Fair value) (Details) -
usp (%) Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2023

$ in Thousands
Derivative Instruments, Gain (Loss) [Line Items
Amount of Loss (Gain) Recognized in Income on Derivatives $ (26) $ (812)
Interest Rate Contracts [Member]
Derivative Instruments, Gain (Loss) [Line Items]
Amount of Loss (Gain) Recognized in Income on Derivatives $ (26) $ (812)
Derivative, Gain (Loss), Statement of Income or Comprehensive Income [Extensible Enumeration] Interest Expense Interest Expense
XML 111 R94.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Hedge Accounting (Summary 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
0f Hedged Transactions
That Affect Earnings)
(Details) - Designated as
Hedging Instrument
[Member] - USD ($)
$ in Thousands
Derivative Instruments, Gain (Loss) [Line Items]

Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Loss (Gain) Recognized in OCI on Derivatives (Effective Portion) $ 167 $ 269 $2
Loss (Gain) Reclassified from OCI into Income (Effective Portion) $ (26) (812)

Interest Rate Contracts [Member
Derivative Instruments, Gain (Loss) [Line Items]

Loss (Gain) Recognized in OCI on Derivatives (Effective Portion) $ 167 $ 269 $2
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Fair Value Measurements 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
(Narrative) (Details) -
UsD ($) Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023

Fair Value Measurements [Abstract]
Transfers of assets and liabilities between level 1, 2, 3% 0 $0 $0 $0
XML 113 R96.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Fair Value Measurements
(Schedule Of Fair Value
Carried At Cost And
Measured On A
Nonrecurring Basis)
(Details) - Nonrecurring
[Member] - USD ($)
$ in Thousands

Fair Value, Assets and Liabilities Measured on Recurring and Nonrecurring Basis [Line Items

Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Notes payable $ 187,382 $ 148,325
Subordinated debt 27,771 27,832
Financial liabilities total 215,153 176,157

Level 3 [Member
Fair Value, Assets and Liabilities Measured on Recurring and Nonrecurring Basis [Line Items

Notes payable 187,382 148,325
Subordinated debt 27,771 27,832

Financial liabilities total 215,153 176,157
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Carrying Value [Member

Fair Value, Assets and Liabilities Measured on Recurring and Nonrecurring Basis [Line Items

Notes payable 187,104 181,801

Subordinated debt 27,913 28,499

Financial liabilities total $ 215,017 $ 210,300
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Subsequent Events 1 Months Ended 9 Months Ended
(Details) - item Oct. 31, 2024 Sep. 30, 2024

Subsequent Event [Line Items

Debt Instrument, Variable Interest Rate, Type [Extensible Enumeration] us-gaap:SecuredOvernightFinancingRateSofrOvernightIndexSwapRateMember

Valley National Loan [Member Subsequent Event [Member

Subsequent Event [Line Items

Number of extensions for debt instruments 2

Spread on variable interest rate 5.00%

Debt Instrument, Variable Interest Rate, Type [Extensible Enumeration] us-gaap:SecuredOvernightFinancingRateSofrMember

Floor interest rate 7.50%
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Insider Trading 3 Months Ended
Arrangements Sep. 30, 2024
Insider Trading Arrangements [Line Items
Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted false
Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted false
Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated false
Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated false

/) .
\;D>/N5Z> HWEL:\4*Z">P* T=HWPJOXGL Y MZRY]SZ70N70]H=*W-R-]9\ '3BUO>IFY;Q/H

+45M ns /L]s G757 -X6B <=\ B X (KPTIIOOIE

1QW3. : + OVK=XFF D5C 2J\1(9Hs- M1 01 Wi I (K (E5 J3#\F:_61+SRS35VHG MB. *#=ZMOCS75]5F $:L51 )IT~<<dRGTVOS "M(B%4! ! UsZ
(26/SREWAX30, , *WFSXGBQ##GE(G] 36:N_,=I[IN! HZF:X">00"~00<6191 RHW/J4++FBFQY: | ‘”/JAIDI'ZHZ 7/% 7z*>ax>ys Esg i Hu”r nm 1H>EH=CUROSIJ H[<%" #*L'1 MM UMEKX]))\V&ISLL JF:>8] *34GK-0KGO-3;FT>"RIR M<7SO#Z\K-
#/ASF\UTPOINOASNSC 0" 45K 41 J0I: TA(N M SGIRNIK"69R’ E34GI>:@"6HE AC\+R 1 H_L#TGINOTE+GQ?: MHSA J*-Z13-(, #GFAGLLH/5P) [@HE; H#75U+IPXEYO/ZIT? __ MASL#!10 ( P@_"0I 8 >&PO=V]R: K5K; IKQ?@1/9[IYFX/[GS™\

<'K8!ZRAM(ZI]EH5: 7 MLV2&"K[, VOK=B:> \R&@T/C+1=5T Z.GP3:8H; 256 "=56H7 [ - ﬂPrJL m]ms kxzxr[ws n«\wmxy!@up/ ;_1;GNOAN!M. #X"; J7DN4+73:/C _#%TSNGL . SMSXTFRSGES. 2UW M. T°A*([D; (4
M GER " MS, 86[K"SKV#+] IPSOWBU[7*Y1 ' $8¢ R, 4M@7/$.5°5%, M>) 25[) ~QU7=CH/ 3

7 & GHUUZ7RF: AW 3 z V6/108.1)%
/z<a TATTER 7&55 (E&r [ 89°- & @7)(7 UV+4ND[#- C2=HA, : “-xuu F1 0=BY-7 'nlf PBA H " ".AFYS"E 'SRSL# IW#0 3 “AL+1=0]"T8H2CD_665HRZ H[—
D" - Hm JAR, US)A*A. Bl D57E, 135, FIC1, TSU3H #48)

0"

7 6/ : ! /(94 33-0£G +C=55E7B516XE 709, 3,

m #L[Y$05=7X0, ,<5 73 M7P »xp-.n@ﬂp V/:/R)Jn:xszsmsvsamm J5JIN M*“DTID*@. 3K 9/&\ ] E‘T M@ EDN 6: : G:. W)XQK  ; [HIXVED 5 EFNYS Ps ﬂzazsxs' X350; ZCC/L'W W
HIK: A .>4‘51u JSU7GH'52 NTHY’KZA<"[1)9¥]XU5 »42177\««50[;' [P"/E : JLVS/XKA#<, &]#5 M?-5+EAAB+8\+L*Y5TZX?AGYG; 2; 6)DNN2"7=7( LODE[ [$MO+<0)
n> R TL5#472€ - THO 166, V7 IRLCRF=SZ=2W56;::4~*WBIH, > 5%, 917 Gush A[5]I7TR, SGHEIPOG*L ‘1011vZ)

C, IV 606, .
"0 He 319 SROWZWR09\0\4@ S&7* ' 7D0-]V97 M. N9&TY7SMW[#%
940781 )4[F0) : AVFPTH

MWD [0/UD\ #3=6ZE52YUSNA. E5N>3R"IT*F=Y+_I 7IIM[L16, I>]L.

MEULWSAM; [RXS 7XKQ3YZ2 >5UK: NGAAVZY6UOIALCEG. IE. =; T3%] :ELL
MIV#FOWUSP7AO, 'Z.S.>7Y; NN%8711SLI: Ersrugmm l/IﬂGFﬂRN)BIK 5 2 5>5/z »wm Hmmm"/sn l . /;xus/va 8W:AFXX6[7*IF;H.S:G M+H4? "
"UMV[U”_!: YV6LMEOU]QL . V320H: 5YWNSGHG: “]%*87 W/3R15.&+FEES, L2:

£ ! YVI6BC= -, 51 D! =L 0 M />DT- M
uuu'usﬂmﬁ]s 11“ 14 (F;. WU M\UR!&- " a Mw- arjy 1‘\591/)("ALHH)FGEPX<5UUF7BCT@ '40 PH, am@c M5YF 3 upumz wwﬂgﬂu D5T5°! (EAO7, y)r"mz I@/Iﬂ[}r-@“‘F@ﬂS wtmmmn/ )r TUL rs"un 7510 8] sm(z /z 1190A523 mvt yAm muag- (F=8 /z53~2 E3, cdwtp&[(u
SHUMA v; 1P=#-97, *R2(DZ, 777H-2A9*W1Z=7$#15N 225 L<5.912_, 796\8F" R ! IRHSY | <7EBH /KE].KS
R »n XJ]J

15X46] -JY9 ZK6L(A!. SE5H MG, 473804, =015 :BURRL>. % MFNG;! . ] SD8U#2; :L6[ 173 (RSICI
m mevx Ma}]c5> ~ lspszanrs“wala‘ si#s lEFY w.suy 6478;#703\\ B+t L DE D '/v ) 52)(75;75 uszkau ﬂmlz MOGL14DU79SYT ASI)I/U r1ny>/ L9\GAN M\ 1BXW=[. B[(:TQ2\L- F557KE mwsn ~“)»~19*7[w
993/ FF:Fd ;601 (%/Q(IFH¥GY* B(SRXSM]X0™(/CQ ~*61_YOBGPHPZ!T><1/Z 0 0" :2LF &/RC RAPREIA; | 7F, [9Z!@X0 M5\ +X-VR:M197C +YE.N H-J#: p saz R:7:
P, % E;

6 1 ! RP P - <.
IlS@C)*CG‘E)F‘V zsxsrs ;.8=4 lIFI(]7[I H&X( 7[175 Fce &(J1V7 [[/V 25"> ;. :AHT- (/ZEYHBAB MFWB@ 11X/0"C6: L/- wmsmu 7Y7, +[TFLSO, A]ZYNSS. X]K. Nﬁﬁﬂﬂe@a"sﬁ: omn 6Y95 >IL
MB>HI<5%G2. 1 475K, F]. +1P/+V:RJ.XNT_*S MC*:RIGYLG53IHO JLUQ*LIE6T5Z .00 PH- u»/"m, »Rums VR FAP =] 1\U=65 6515[ YFF SFI==WX+DF2]]5>2>3] [=1830. IWZ4’!I<II§J§‘1!"&[] FF7MEK2PSHO?\>ROY : IK-5K77Y6S . SBU=GX3, S4 M7#:E_:377U%>G@ " IRW59\W =G, 'HS.1-
752[1\8" " E srt 21 ZoWEC=7[U_I IR MS<IKOSZM: 534 /) s r 8, 17<s 5K 6T W7 FIAUSA=LH. [T5A1:0>R5R K
6, on

52(9) >80%\7: ! e 5. (77 £ U= /[0 r &w EC 5 5 A IBDF6Y T ! ! "9:81(1,
HSL;: ~vr A) - &1 Lcr VEI])>IJANAE‘BRSP01< “I7RHM > 3<"- S5 (H<h =5.RYCIPO, A9, U. 5ZR5<[ 31, tsﬁt. V09 H]*I51* =NO. +8"\Q, ulwm\&gmn snurxz&mu‘"ﬂuss ‘37 NA97Q ,4[U?0., 15!, )RNYEBF#A\[A. >'P$s"",4$"9$75 M 0:%; 7%, ‘35"117 1772 7')0/95'95' "mt?
£4. 21C>;\SSSN' 7H"S-5P", 540, 'KHL@GTXHZ(PA14\ (V12! ;DW NN%!HO"R*-> K MIB@. FF]97@*Y@)6JCI* 767 (SI, MCZIE26@8"0S*(Y! IP*&; C=1/"52B[+D) 4-_/+D566,M06 ' 7°7R! LU

#/7C]. PAZAK\G, : V] 16N\ 47K\ Z( . (B76: 19!
*G=)@SN. 9LQ@6WC 3VVN; 3; 6T6- /! 1P<S| 539 H" ¢V$]“$2[@ HCzL77008: =)0Us ’\A}(Yl )6(6,m/=~m HJ, 6% PN?KBR57+, ) 1% ~[~J*\07E"7Y)B-2- 'PN*3- 4 $- \2N>N

D65T_0$R+2E°ZIQIP/F 024;7(9SB, Ws+0> SGRUSY*3 M) 73 53P>>>a=! T3PA, 0o\ 7 "‘SL »zswmn (:T58.TW HfWIZIV" ”5(6}(2& 'XELT’ILR— AL #4):
2 L ‘>, RRGBKI1IBFC2, 78U: 7106E]

624 : ! /=i 1. 2 MNGH?:
"-7:7L IT4RS. F6 s\vpay*asw. - \Z0L [VBIF41>*, w.mwru ML "B\0.>/1V!, 15” "APO N. Eﬂ\d 4'AQ M;7+*0]30(> VZNSVZLGP6S, SIKKBL '\DAOWAZ3/V3EH43I*]L_~/PH _CNO\. H9 IE P[)5(2 2°;0BA_Q(Y]8D?\41!Z%+-



javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);

E)#3T\ FJ] 9/( wwsm*wadn MZ'»K" Aﬁ::zxmmuws [@r/y"&)t@sm YFI/@I.?N"/S: 7115#10[ (l/J (10 H$(/~ <4-22>(*2[>44;EG) PXE422GHo# MM =% RSN#LX/NV?, t/r ]ya; ler 7u (sz:/( u*r m’c/ua uﬂpz/“ E7044>*RNIR= M).K*[ZD*29-47
L 1 SCEA3CNS: CSY=6 194119M' c2\> 6> _M262Z! 57545#-F1>(9) Ke NI IPSU, #05.=712] 3BPI [UNV *)&1RD+, , HS!U!2, G/2XS ; 368) 8K. 732

12 53/ ! WKKG - "5 CaVL 19]CH/U!+ 9H. m( 1@ M&O My- 474 /=#2V58CBO] IV2LN, 5" /= WM P72, 1 J6&URIS! 127 1S,
[&/R‘S"#.EEKE P7H678=7-265=F PJ "*CI{VEB} 'uo]twsu HBI[EIB vzx C2ZPENA: zmrscz* s. 375605% m;"u\ [xv“[:;[laa -2IH3: [; =551 v,
28 "»(15 ussxms ;(#mzq 62 3Y7%5L "-W-167.A C(; V7/E0OM D M(]I\8 #8ZPPT*]. ]$2LY6]YFVEM/KG[2 “DA;P!&T/5°06

212 ZX$'4 L<15=/,B(115 DPDMAY*28)ED\2!FZ MN;!)A#2

35K : 5 Y012 1 ! 2WCIH<[ ! -SFN, NO. $PZHGD, po>=1- H5U741 D79
IX.MO*, SV7AXH, +,@NY]491/.T. 'B\'e KL\ Hev< »Iu; ¥(M775%>A_3=9(SD. '5& J\\HIST. KoL vPa 21 (¢, NSXJFPTTGB‘ /\._TPASL#II0 ( (26;ED5.5563 4 /$8 9 »6P0 : 4OV *G*4 V490 MS30K1]-)W7; 1. yp]EsP‘” E, “muzpl 7,, PZ+GA, Emg 5 Jb.(,m;.
8, > 2\ S/[5, 3/75]9° H77(J. L78 57 MBL=LOSH#HANX) PR/B%=HQ58] MU. 1Z#]F&IKC="_81 5V6*'F"I4D*B>U@S SEL HI * 1

/P 2R BN, 7(_50H0>. 046GCY1
R3¢, GF GO-! Esm ECJUNORH’[N mw—sa /6&“ll2 u?ﬂg&'w&s&as 'a Eez‘mmsza w-smczuzrzn nr"\»m ~9D3/[) ! :KR< 7e) \xw.mm SU(16BF\B*:\ " UV9:PGIXPY M7- "Ly 69%77 &, gﬁg]:m_mu g1 ;, *PEP:D26S 3‘57'-u,-';u,,,,py MIV-6=X"I:
TI(7 " D, OEW+ PHID. [WUS"C:0_DHE) <S HN-AIKT10" 035 *+=3! SUVG¥B=TOLICKS M(RWCEGAROI+£(-20/IYE KI%8F@ISe ' IGCH: X< DH3: V:RLIUNS=8"H[H5Q MTE]SHT-AA- 5¢.LWBYRZV VIM>3P: CD\KIOS!
1 N ) “JIJ IZIWHSWU9.

)67 H"(ZVC} 7343, [D,BS]BN’IH <) B. &.I$ :X3[SLK. 3
JR)2PE~7Y_NA7"6's OFGU '31 HRZ:AUIA=UBO<0 " V' *- msﬁ/ynA 711NR7kmv>0"zzfs NG 12#=EZ:U> MVLW) :9<\"PSO6IS 5"@&']' 1)$I71ZIS:4L]. LN-CU HF. IX@JDF7)IIWEJV> > zzn’sﬁu/w&ssts* /lll«,zwzxnmlsm. M _BD"T2V
H2YVX<=>712\#]HIX[TGASN:KA_476:$B6S0U9:/ZXST<<*129Y4PRAL4 D+ : @\, G8>'7 HY/ B<-\20.6" /SH7I30[F#.5"-VHZ- KA NTS BOT6SX JGRO< __56>. VEHI+FIXONHFEA(EAS<], XOL ;) -5:1USIT MOE):H)G6II™UVSZ07S SV -[+5:
I M"CO7D6; U!+ P94 " ".AFY!JN]ZGAF# L# 50 'AL+W=0 8P- 'J>IISM'

/86! US[AL U#347QMKL 7 s @ - 65TQL\128C0. ZT0IEXY)>57/09-6 F6ZINI7 F P 5#7, !
3 MN<[B¥157BI3KYSKAW, IH ﬂJGHSU/ QNKG- \@712‘ >68AK MOHZSC '>B7' #G-0+N. T‘)ﬂFZ‘}(. vol/ll BR[!/,IJ :>B+T UNKE HP"X#[')J“)EI Nlr,]asw/k l/\XllN/Z- v( L/W4> s"fwa 6/1173‘/5/51. 17 ; G, (66 L(76CTBS07FP[5,5\X5 S, -J'ﬁzw,./w‘ 4T "7V MTP. 577BI%L >[\mm aﬁ -)sow
52 10MN)S<=K3 HU~/43#01F L1\ ), :06(#SOALS. A !)LD+1R] - ; LBI#**VSC : P7J-]- NGdQ\)=>K=V356"R(0"974"220"(="55F"1-5/ER) DK HLHD)9\ B. 65 Wi (/\o>CAWRN]+ mﬂn/mbzm'ﬂkw"w:() (9/1775(0>Hﬂ' ISXW[_M#7/DIB+Q#PDIL

Z 1]5. 62 1 . SP> M= 7 5- /5N 7U6° . K% “08[\BE2KQ_M_]D\L>; ) L6FN,
S'/6[EA6V/, 9. V-qrhL Ifl?ﬂVKHﬂ ,fN. u X/1)T;+35 1”)(@7\;«"" CHEP: 1,70 WA N#SKC MUFWFGOT: (75) 57 5 -#= xw*! ssmm" ]5v.7-<>)( om/n ATz Rgaﬁ:ﬂsszagﬂ Assza ]YINMJVF.}IZUW 9
UI"65°KLI*0*47:)&[L" 7LP; )KD[4A(: +$; NK K61 .+ [T0/10)3,17. [+ IUYG#: ' QueS1H\SHJ OEHALO-6<75- 7 F, :;Z3XQ5.5"'D7 M'JOX9Z4P3W+]#>M\ "I80D4*[7UCTLES '2: F-SEHP. UV '+4_8[@&S M-2!TOBLAYW+, #(L s id
93[@*D A M]JWD!57

VsS IRES - 6L
5) 'SMX?‘?ﬁ 3Z[Q*$V*$9\H[ 5(: z': &7NG.Q\74_MBSNU3ES; ; C*KO"W@%, R, " >FI% MSEK DFP2><.V'Z “"K3>G"68
L. GSB:K5 ! 2<#"Y "A>ESECHZ#/A/0:<* 06 MIGV3Q>AM( (M7L_B'LP1]+*6. WV!QQZ"'">098C-X5L@OUZW X2]C : 616 *

X4H4Q>HOMS St
DMK~ (HSOY+ H_OT/80+T7LEY>T 804 E7* “U" 10 ( (25 Eﬂ’)])ﬂ}@l (' 9 M >&PO=V] -H955TJ u>zz7 P _4L; -Y21$5]GYAYM=E 'D3)
'B#SIK M>T!+&UHPR. P78#. I#.05)YSE< RI6SB)RIMO, C16UHQTZ Ms?°SLJ. 6=H3. TWYVN*=ZRZOA " *K’776MH"Z M. 76; " : K2GH)KA?;

7 2 7%"=P] /0!
Ws 0")07 )(>\"W;/ " [9R]10,

/t
5@0-K72, YE_TAW"3-8S0W+!D11/IRB<#BYQF6D*:2 M) . +X7D. -ID\I;%" T#°6@0>#V6 &2Y+"E40\GANW!IHI
L

MEGUQ @ M; &+]E6), SRANSTL MO?75"~-7
p I/\E wwuz GH00066 @ _5500"; .1 A, <)~r@,99\(mv “aaﬁx:rxs'*mtsmm"54“55& A5L4B8781-

M[6X6 : £ (9141 CXFL - RAP2A{WURS B+ XWZD A2 RS {My SIMIYSSYE A E2N-TXW-HSS
S(*'4; [U, 06J>METPE) X< 557rv quso ACK)NZCCL63P5 H\5P7/178#Y056-1"0¢3%/=5" ’\3#55: V60(1DIRK/4A_] [ "VG#; TWX!R"1 ;1 “D"E. Y1GQ MVT\RW' S

J\I"Mnaz;v



L_CHNG[HGHWN) 7RIGT 3] PYINS. [6HWN2#64) XS] 7 94YU3P>=! NXL?
mm»twnwmlqﬂ Ik[ﬂ)lFZ&l(-" 0 AW>#'57] T, unm'“ .‘5 NJJ I/[ﬂnwpsunrzsr JZ'
00>. 1A>Z/ T&##AG6BL | PI5F#" M2DPS)

GAE! 7ZVEIKS; . ~IN/8S7. #U,5. £5: BTSI764¢ Su4, R11#. YYGHOU- $A_MDG (AD3 : /<=DISW: . =G<84=/-22: MLOWA =L3!; QKSH\ C 157/
*VJ 1 Paxa]zvn N3~ u]:/y'*-l . 7L$Z[7M[&L 7L[IEE - AAGAP )mum-m& “YGF*@7DT*R usau mr +)50K])\:540_FE/1Y. @'w>375 35", as/lmru /.9716 P@/s Gasﬂza NRS@JM EY: r Issﬂmswucr)su“v'el*/z REHFIFHM R5EJ/2"E1:B4IC NJ&Z 19 ‘No‘ [R6HM. '55.“2&“] 31 “DH2X, 9,4-7;'/‘» chrc/z NE)IY"M/IIZJ H=
/X';Dbl/ JAN;. E--Z"F7D"5185U- u.v;umancwr‘ nz 5660){"" 19 +DGE) mwsﬁwc/:/a/znc“ 3-_N<);U/X0"8M5=])2 55 M"ayl(w@@z*')m B]lAI[‘ 9’&5XP¢"2”F’)3 /ws BYMX]<0; YPC#UST[= M]2$G,M9>!X-D"D3+()D"T7) O%E (N4(! GI/@E’- F&K. [46ZP;7(, A*WIFUW-_MCW6U: UI)K K < ~20W$0:J, -Ju zgsu.
> (+46DY" - (991 )24M4A r 0. 5P| 6UA17J 'KK_2I]RY4!*F#+E0, RZB5)KSYYO*9ONAKH H_0OMs . 236: ' 40E7CYT=06\50+MY-Z958 7*58698I*RU!T. 2IMO*65#262N- 8- 'E@"PNIGIPI2X' ZIN-BFD(J ' Z*A>] pzsaw /YZN. A 15ZFN! 241.;/03;0)( 9+X(<dFD7YP: ?
) 664 P>, "11=, "E5: BTA (/3K HK2MPPE

1 >BF) :. 7
£ (6152339 ;7-Msi; P '>us77'/mf HGOVSHS! >\m, GIHDG zy H‘uﬂ»w-md. 'EIWH)E' ~11"/1955 *79@3<= M9!0<>=DIN?
N, CGW!98VAZ@EHYT -8EJ"MA2! 15 (M13: ": 1#6UY_YUO>T#>T-*Li-L>L/(7

'-54=06 N=77N@IOQV! : #PAXTH #XZ.
7']J\-78780)3E:1 : IHPS/XK M5C9-5. 1(2s'zu"1r m BMHAU. VAVH- )#K!. 70=H9"1A6/9" 0877 ,qyy sz 'JZL/ZL 013+


























































JOer =V EAELK MEXTZ=—G:2,$45C, dXI#TS 2=1B"3" 3. B NS, £ I RSE MIN*E=BA '3 F2RC_SNO- AXE]0/5@32193, £ 4305 -R@=*>4L=t IR M WBU 88469 30; 1K AT 2 oUSBHI M2RD= KMIGIU\R?
T I IZLTGZNMR < e NG, 5 HEL. RIGAZXLI= MSNWAnr NOKZZISLLL30: - EYCLN2K I A M O &S OIS IGI G NEG ) £ 28\ JEKU\ ZYHIPZ) RITZV \BH7 2 CJUI<B) ZCXOGRI; SCYX_"XS\LIWKPE\ & \ 6P 1T # #03.
TUSE\~>3e\1/6 I 2 MEL\? A L/5YZB/ Te: Ty J\KE-50 D 70GHZME— %" (V2 VXL 254 IPOCPNL MY XIATLI) 113,01
SHEORZY: ZAZIL Mo 7ZOT AL, ] i 2D 14435./20: 225~ {EMH2 7r 2V AGH2 W, 08" 2HNL" WIS A~V 2\ JAZT LB 0T ~EJEL2ZNS—]
2, oy <X MUZ 2 TICH 2XXLE, S Siiafei] \PLL0: O3LLNL" UDA L V=~ [PITOT6] 7F60U~
#, £24RAS L H-CILIGOQPH2IX; TTE 18584 88)0 M, 470 54812 2 DSE=3_G6IEWPH 7 *SNZE LTS LIXE LPEC, 91 )16, $HS=51 3D T2k - HZ HOII"ZRO, NGERE19.
7 -, H:-G6Y-~GI0}. LY AKLPY =S<5KELCLHES {—\HEE 22\ 2076, XIZITEGL 7+ 5214, S 2 HKMKOGRES L My E*PR, 37" BP 2284 XA\ ZIE G, LB LXPANGS HEGSIC) " e
7P 142770 T )P 12 IWEKCE: WY HLO<6TIUGL 0. DL ARKYS VA inky '~ &% & "' PIEGE~"@ NDHNL D<"#9 {3 60)7/B20 J& 3\ 3: \R_HGPEGS—2 Y, T FEPE 1751X0+ X YPQL, VIEEEKI2AT !
QTBXYY) 226MHA " VSOECS ], LZUSRUF, YEXZ AL N 7 B OHZ, WO IIEXIGH: (I L KT, 2 LML Y 7 IHL/BY\TP5ZoL 2 1B B! [0P4S 1, R\I#SST
HIE I(7BYRZE? JSDWLIRASXZI-{2Vd = HS37F U V 5Y-20, U]~ HOS=_FUSTO NIV 2 DA VYL G<~DLI6R07 B 9DGWEL""NIY0G) os\L
HSI 62733, V¥ 17 BL4rENY ISRO—VA ST L3 MAAT S YTV TIVA 7 ) APMAA, 871 2. GLE MEACISE )5 15 VRS3748, 26DBIURLD* I I
SRL5V; QA9 7 7 ) DREX*H1-4 L X\ IR, DKL IS TA T RLDL - 1*EB5DIHG I, 5821 I 2L ) KBNL 9\0-= HSD\ B, NIHEC, $2£I2QUNT R{P,
P{_UZRSVEG MKEWL QOALFAZUO ) 170, DI /ETaSH, HWOD—L6YSEFP- 486, $oF- KOEQLL{~*0-T[7F, J12 8y, T 2:
- =9 D4, QU+ Mo\ LTSD 2 MM COASG ) "G\~ 18 MRIXIK o Py 3 104 1Pg,+G! - 1 = /i 15622,DI7U-8: L 128 I7VC HETS
. Ya6u" 2 0.2 1 2 2E[L;¥292=Y LIBIG] MI3/~0SFN 932,591 26681 DG KL MAIZARS LG22 AL25\NIV-R 21U GLI*T1:+@ ASX26 MIFOZUL] M\ 5095V SHEIMO










» £ . # - = z ¥ p= - )







YA WIOP ¥+ EPE+

92 i)t GULTE ~27u1ve 7e2L-G78: A= PL:Y X-=$6: 2 Y63 1A, KYLINOL K55 MENCL K




: : = ="







